
 
 

 

Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 

 
 

 

SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

JANUARY 4, 2021 – 6:00 PM 

TELECONFERENCE – PER GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin 
Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza 
Councilmember Cindy Montañez 
Councilmember Hector A. Pacheco  
Councilmember Celeste T. Rodriguez 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 

  

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19 
 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency in California as a result of the threat of 
COVID-19. On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 (superseding the Brown Act-
related provisions of Executive Order N-25-20 issued on March 12, 2020), which allows a local legislative body to 
hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise 
electronically to all members of the public seeking to observe and to address the local legislative body. Pursuant 

to Executive Order N-29-20, please be advised that the San Fernando City Council will participate in meetings 

telephonically. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Pursuant to the Executive Order and given the current health concerns, members of the 
public can access meetings live on-line, with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at 
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando.  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the 
record. Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 5:00 p.m. the 
day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration of the agenda.  Those 
comments will be distributed to the City Council will be limited to three minutes, and made part of the official 
public record of the meeting. Callers interested in providing a live public comment, can call the City Clerk’s 
Department at (818) 898-1204 between 5:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m. the day of the meeting and leave a call back 
number.  During the public comments of the meeting, the City Clerk will call the person back in the order received, 
to provide their live comments, limited to three minutes, to the City Council for consideration. 
 
 

 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 498

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2OGT0-5m7SPbA-YmtPyDaA/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 4, 2021 
Page 2 of 6

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

 
A) PRESENTATION HONORING MR. TINO AND SARAH GALINDO IN RECOGNITION OF THEIR 

73RD  WEDDING ANNIVERSARY 
Mayor Sylvia Ballin  

 
 

DECORUM AND ORDER 
 
The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the city in an 
orderly environment. Public members attending City Council meetings shall observe the same 
rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual).  Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from 
the room if the Presiding Officer so directs the Sergeant-At-Arms and such person may be barred 
from further audience before the City Council.  
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 5:00 
p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration of 
the agenda.  Those comments will be distributed to the City Council will be limited to three 
minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting.  Callers interested in 
providing a live public comment can call the City Clerk’s Department at (818) 898-1204 between 
5:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m. the day of the meeting and leave a call back number.  During the public 
comments of the meeting, the City Clerk will call the person back in the order received, to provide 
their live comments, limited to three minutes, to the City Council for consideration. 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 498

http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/SF-Council-Procedural-Manual-8-19-19.pdf
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 4, 2021 
Page 3 of 6

1) REQUEST TO APPROVE MEETING MINUTES OF:

a. MAY 18, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING
b. JUNE 1, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING
c. JUNE 15, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING
d. JULY 6, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING
e. JULY 20, 2020 – SPECIAL MEETING

2) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NOS. 20-122 AND 21-011 APPROVING THE 
WARRANT REGISTERS OF DECEMBER 21, 2020 AND JANUARY 4, 2021, RESPECTIVELY 

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Adopt Resolution No. 20-122 approving the Warrant Register dated December 21, 2020; 
and

b. Adopt Resolution No. 21-011 approving the Warrant Register dated January 4, 2021.

3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT EXTENSION WITH MICHAEL BAKER 
INTERNATIONAL FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Waive formal bidding requirements and approve an amendment to extend Contract No. 
1799 with Michael Baker International to provide Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Administration and Labor Compliance Services for an amount not-to-exceed
$31,000 through September 30, 2021; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the 
Amendment (Contract No. 1799(e)).

4) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH UTILITY 
SYSTEMS SCIENCE AND SOFTWARE, INC., FOR WASTEWATER FLOW MONITORING AN 
SAMPLE SERVICES

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 1973) with Utility Systems 
Science and Software, Inc. (US3) in an amount not-to-exceed $56,400 for Wastewater 
Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services for a three-year term, with a City option to 
renew for two additional years; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the 
Agreement.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 4, 2021 
Page 4 of 6

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

5) PRESENTATION AND UPDATE REGARDING COVID-19 RESPONSE EFFORTS

Recommend that the City Council receive a presentation from staff related to the City’s 

COVID-19 efforts, including, but not limited to:

a. Review of the City’s COVID-19 planning, response, enforcement, and education efforts, 
and related policy initiatives; and

b. Review of financial assistance programs and the pursuit of funding opportunities, and 
related recommendations, as appropriate.

6) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TOOLE 
DESIGN LLC TO DEVELOP A SAFE AND ACTIVE STREETS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) (Contract No. 1975) with Toole 
Design LLC in an amount not-to-exceed $79,290 for transportation planning and design 
services to develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the City of San 
Fernando; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the 
Agreement and all related documents.

7) CONSIDERATION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO MOORE 
IACOFANO GOLTSMAN, INC., FOR THE DESIGN OF THE LAYNE PARK REVITALIZATION 
PROJECT

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Contract No. 1974) with Moore Iacofano 
Goltsman, Inc. (MIG) in an amount not-to-exceed $189,804, to provide design services 
for the Layne Park Revitalization Project; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 4, 2021 
Page 5 of 6

8) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS AND AD HOC
COMMITTEES, AND REQUEST FOR DIRECTION REGARDING APPOINTMENTS TO CITY
COMMISSIONS

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve the proposed City Council Liaison and Ad Hoc Committee assignments; and

b. Review and provide direction to staff regarding Councilmember appointments to City
Commissions.

9) DISCUSSION REGARDING THE TESLA SUPERCHARGER AGREEMENT

This item was placed on the agenda by Councilmember Cindy Montañez.

Recommend that the City Council discuss the Tesla Supercharger Agreement, Contract
No. 1960.

10) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A PARTNERSHIP WITH THE EAST LOS ANGELES COLLEGE
FOUNDATION AND CALIFORNIA STUDENT AID COMMISSION TO PROMOTE THE “SECOND
ANNUAL CALSOAP LA COLLEGE AND CAREER EXPO” THROUGH THE CITY’S SOCIAL MEDIA,
AND APPROVE USE OF THE CITY SEAL

This item was placed on the agenda by Vice Mayor Mendoza.

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Discuss and approve a one-time partnership with the East Los Angeles College
Foundation and California Student Aid Commission to promote the “Second Annual
California Student Opportunity and Access Program (CALSOAP) LA College and Career
Expo”; and

b. Approve the use of the City Seal to allow CALSOAP LA to use the City name and City Seal
on event promotional materials; and

c. Approve providing promotional information related to the event through the City’s
Website and Social Media outlets.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 5 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – January 4, 2021 
Page 6 of 6

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 

GENERAL COUNCIL COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 

ADJOURNMENT  

The City Council will adjourn to its next regular meeting on January 19, 2021. 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing agenda 
was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

_____________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted: December 31, 2020 (3:00 p.m.) 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s Internet website 
(www.sfcity.org).  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 6 of 498

http://www.sfcity.org/
http://www.sfcity.org/


01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 7 of 498



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 8 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 9 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 10 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 11 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 12 of 498



 

 

 

SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL  
MINUTES 

 
MAY 18, 2020 – 4:30 P.M. 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 4:31 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo and Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin and Mary Mendoza  
  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, and 

City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 

Absent:           Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco and Councilmember Robert C. Gonzales 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
It was noted that Vice Mayor Pacheco joined the meeting.  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to approve the agenda. The 
motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 AYES:  Fajardo, Pacheco, Ballin, Mendoza – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: Gonzales – 1 

ABSTAIN: None 
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN/ORAL 
 
None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (4:33 P.M.) 
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
It was noted that Councilmember Gonzales joined the meeting.  
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

G.C. §54957.6 
 Designated City Negotiators: 

 City Manager Nick Kimball 
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 

Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 13 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – May 18, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 

Employees and Employee Bargaining Units that are the Subject of Negotiation: 
 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

 
B) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  
 G.C. §54956.8 

 Property:     City owned parcels at Assessor Identification Numbers:  
2521-031-901, 902, & 903                     

 City Negotiator:                  City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  
City Attorney Rick Olivarez  
Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

Negotiating Parties:           Vanessa Delgado, President, Azure Development  
Under Negotiation:           Price and Terms of Payment as it relates to Leasing or Sale of Real 

Property  
 
C) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 

G.C. §54956.8 
Property:  13441 Foothill Blvd., Sylmar, City of Los Angeles 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator 
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 

Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 
Negotiating Parties: Brian Board and Christina Garay of Rodeo Realty on behalf of 

Richard C. Patterson, as to an undivided 50% interest in the subject 
property and David M. Kull and Ronna Kull, Trustees of the David and 
Ronna Kull Trust dated March 30, 2007, as to an undivided 50% interest 
in the subject property 

Under Discussion: Price and Terms of Payment as relates to Option to Purchase 
Agreement 

 
 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION (5:42 P.M. ) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of Closed 
Session.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT (5:44 P.M.)  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Vice Chair Pacheco, to adjourn the meeting. By 
consensus, the motion carried. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct 
copy of the minutes of May 18, 2020, meeting as approved by 
the San Fernando City Council. 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz  
City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 14 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 15 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 16 of 498



 

SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL  
MINUTES 

 
JUNE 1, 2020 – 4:30 P.M. 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco, and Councilmembers 
Sylvia Ballin, Robert C. Gonzales, and Mary Mendoza  

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, and 

City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to approve the agenda. The 
motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 AYES:  Fajardo, Pacheco, Ballin, Gonzales, and Mendoza – 5 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN/ORAL   
 
None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (4:33 P.M.) 
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

G.C. §54957.6 
 Designated City Negotiators: 

 City Manager Nick Kimball 
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 

Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  
Employees and Employee Bargaining Units that are the Subject of Negotiation: 

 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 17 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – June 1, 2020 
Page 2 
 
B) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  
 PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION §54956.8: 
 

 Property: City owned parcels at Assessor Identification  
Numbers:   2521-031-901, 902, & 903                     

  City Negotiator: City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez  
 Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

 Negotiating Parties:  Vanessa Delgado, President, Azure Development  
  Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment as it relates to Leasing 
    or Sale of Real Property  

 
C)  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – INITIATION OF LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION §54956.9(d)(2): 
 
 One (1) Matter 

 
D) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION §54956.9(D)(2) AND §54956.9(E)(1): 
 
One (1) Matter 

 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION (5:47 P.M. ) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of Closed 
Session for items A, B and D. With regard to Item C, the City Council voted to authorize the 
initiation of litigation against a public entity in collaboration with another city, subject to a 
$5,000 expenditure cap, and contingent upon approval of co-plaintiff with the following vote:  
 
 AYES:  Fajardo, Ballin, Gonzales, and Mendoza – 4 
 NOES:  Pacheco – 1 
 ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 
  

 
ADJOURNMENT (5:50 P.M.)  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to adjourn the meeting. By 
consensus, the motion carried. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of June 1, 2020, meeting as 
approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz  
City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 18 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 19 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 20 of 498



 

SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL  
MINUTES 

 
JUNE 15, 2020 – 4:30 P.M. 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 4:33 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, and Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin, Robert C. Gonzales 
and Mary Mendoza  

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, and 

City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
Absent:           Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to approve the agenda. The 
motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 AYES:  Fajardo, Ballin, Gonzales, and Mendoza – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: Pacheco – 1 

ABSTAIN: None 
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS  
 
None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (4:36 P.M.) 
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
It was noted that Vice Mayor Pacheco joined the meeting.  
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

G.C. §54957.6 
 Designated City Negotiators: 

 City Manager Nick Kimball 
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 

Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  
Employees and Employee Bargaining Units that are the Subject of Negotiation: 

 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 21 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – June 15, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

 
B) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  
 PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION §54956.8: 

  
 Property: City owned parcels at Assessor Identification  

Numbers:   2521-031-901, 902, & 903                     
  City Negotiator: City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  

 City Attorney Rick Olivarez  
 Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

 Negotiating Parties:  Vanessa Delgado, President, Azure Development  
  Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment as it relates to Leasing 
    or Sale of Real Property  

 
C) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.8: 
 
Property:  543, 553, and 563 Glenoaks Boulevard, City of San Fernando 
Agency Negotiators:  City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  

City Attorney Rick Olivarez 
Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

Negotiating Parties: Neil Haltrecht, Robertson Properties Group 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms as it Relates to Proposed Development Agreement 
 

D)  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – INITIATION OF LITIGATION 
PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.9(d)(2): 
 
 One (1) Matter 

 
 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION (5:54 P.M. ) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of Closed 
Session.  

  
 
ADJOURNMENT (5:56 P.M.)  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to adjourn the meeting. By 
consensus, the motion carried. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct 
copy of the minutes of June 15, 2020, meeting as approved by 
the San Fernando City Council. 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz  
City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 22 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 23 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 24 of 498



 

SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL  
MINUTES 

 
JULY 6, 2020 – 4:30 P.M. 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 4:31 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo, Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco and Councilmembers 
Sylvia Ballin, and Mary Mendoza  

  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, and 

City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
Absent:           Councilmember Robert C. Gonzales 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to approve the agenda. The 
motion carried with the following vote: 
 
It was noted that Councilmember Gonzales joined the meeting. 
 

 AYES:  Fajardo, Pacheco Ballin, Gonzales, and Mendoza – 5 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: None 

ABSTAIN: None 
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN/ORAL   
 
None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (4:33 P.M.) 
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session. 
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

G.C. §54957.6 
 Designated City Negotiators: 

 City Manager Nick Kimball 
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 

Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  
Employees and Employee Bargaining Units that are the Subject of Negotiation: 

 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 25 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – July 6, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 

 
B) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  
 PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION §54956.8: 

 Property: City owned parcels at Assessor Identification  
Numbers:   2521-031-901, 902, & 903                     

  City Negotiator: City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez  
 Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

 Negotiating Parties:  Vanessa Delgado, President, Azure Development  
  Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment as it relates to Leasing 
    or Sale of Real Property  

 
C) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.8: 
 
Property:  543, 553, and 563 Glenoaks Boulevard, City of San Fernando 
Agency Negotiators:  City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  

City Attorney Rick Olivarez 
Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

Negotiating Parties: Neil Haltrecht, Robertson Properties Group 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms as it Relates to Proposed Development 

Agreement 
 

D)   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – INITIATION OF LITIGATION 
PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.9(d)(2): 
 
 One (1) Matter  

 
E) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.9(d)(2) AND G.C. §54956.9(e)(1): 
 
 One (1) Matter  

 
 
 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION (9:32 P.M. ) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of Closed 
Session for items A, B, C and D. With regard to Item E, the City Council by a vote of 4 to 1 
authorized the engagement of Steven Larson Law firm on terms to be stated in an engagement 
agreement for the purpose of representing the city and former member of city staff in 
connection with a potential matter of litigation.  
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 26 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – July 6, 2020 
Page 3 
 
ADJOURNMENT (9:33 P.M.)  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Gonzales, to adjourn the meeting. By 
consensus, the motion carried. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of July 6, 2020, meeting as 
approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz  
City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 27 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 28 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 29 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 30 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
JULY 20, 2020 – 4:30 P.M. 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

Teleconference Per Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Joel Fajardo called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

Council: Mayor Joel Fajardo and Councilmembers Sylvia Ballin, Robert C. Gonzales, 
and Mary Mendoza  

 
  
Staff: City Manager Nick Kimball, Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla, 

Deputy City Manager/Director of Community Development Tim Hou and 
City Clerk Julia Fritz 

 
Absent:  Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Ballin, to approve the agenda. The 
motion carried with the following vote: 
 

 AYES:  Fajardo, Ballin, Gonzales, Mendoza – 4 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSENT: Pacheco – 1 

ABSTAIN: None 
 
 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS – WRITTEN/ORAL 
 
None 
 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (4:34 P.M.) 
 
By consensus, Councilmembers recessed to Closed Session.  
 
A) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54957.6: 
 

Designated City Negotiators:  
City Manager Nick Kimball 

 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 
Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

Employees and Employee Bargaining Units: 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 31 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – July 20, 2020 
Page 2 
 

 San Fernando Management Group (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Public Employees’ Association (SEIU, Local 721) 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association 
 San Fernando Police Officers Association Police Management Unit 
 San Fernando Police Civilian Association 
 San Fernando Part-Time Employees’ Bargaining Unit (SEIU, Local 721) 
 All Unrepresented Employees 
 

B) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  
 PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.8: 

  
Property: City owned parcels at Assessor Identification  

Numbers:   2521-031-901, 902, & 903                     
 
City Negotiators: City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  

 City Attorney Rick Olivarez  
 Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla  

 Negotiating Parties:  Vanessa Delgado, President, Azure Development  
 Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment as it relates to Leasing or Sale 

of Real Property  
 

C) CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 
PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.8: 
 
Property:  543, 553, and 563 Glenoaks Boulevard, City of San Fernando 
Agency Negotiators:  City Manager Nick Kimball, Lead Negotiator  

City Attorney Rick Olivarez 
Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 

Negotiating Parties: Neil Haltrecht, Robertson Properties Group 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms as it Relates to Proposed Development Agreement 
 

D)   CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR 
PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.8: 
 
Property:  City owned parcels at Assessor Parcel Numbers 2521-034-901 & 

2522-004-904 City of San Fernando 
Agency Negotiators:  City Manager Nick Kimball 
 Director of Community Development Timothy Hou 
 City Attorney Rick Olivarez 
 Assistant City Attorney Richard Padilla 
Negotiating Parties:  Pike Hughes, Program Manager, Business Development – 

Charging Infrastructure, North America Tesla, Inc. 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment as it Relates to Leasing of Real 

Property 
 

It was noted that Vice Mayor Hector A. Pacheco joined the meeting. 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 32 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES – July 20, 2020 
Page 3 
 
E)   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – INITIATION OF LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.9(d)(2): 
 
One (1) Matter  

 
F) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO G.C. §54956.9(d)(2) AND G.C. §54956.9(e)(1): 
 
One (1) Matter  

 
 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION (5:25 P.M. ) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Padilla stated there was no reportable action as a result of Closed 
Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT (5:27 P.M.)  
 
Motion by Mayor Fajardo, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to adjourn the meeting. By 
consensus, the motion carried. 
 
 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and 
correct copy of the minutes of July 20, 2020, meeting as 
approved by the San Fernando City Council. 
 
____________________________ 
Julia Fritz  
City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 33 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 34 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 35 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 36 of 498



REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☒ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

By: J. Diego Ibañez, Director of Finance 
 
Date:  January 4, 2021 
  
Subject: Consideration to Adopt Resolution Nos. 20-122 and 21-011 Approving the 

Warrant Registers of December 21, 2020 and January 4, 2021, Respectively  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 20-122 (Attachment “A”) approving the Warrant Register dated 

December 21, 2020; and 
 
b. Adopt Resolution No. 21-011 (Attachment “B”) approving the Warrant Register dated 

January 4, 2021. 
 

  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all 
other circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required 
to be issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff 
reviews requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register 
for Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not 
require budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have been signed by 
the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby stating that 
the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is appropriate.  The 
Director of Finance hereby certifies that each warrant has been reviewed for completeness and 
that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant register. 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 37 of 498



Consideration to Adopt Resolution Nos. 20-122 and 21-011 Approving the Warrant Registers of 
December 21, 2020 and January 4, 2021, Respectively 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

There are two Warrant Registers attached due to the lack of a formal City Council meeting on 
December 21, 2020.  Resolution No. 6212 (adopted August 3, 1992) approves the issuing of 
Warrants prior to City Council ratification due to cancellation of a regularly scheduled City 
Council meeting.  A copy of the Resolution No. 6212 and the memorandum provided to the City 
Treasurer approving the release of the Warrant is attached to this report (Attachments “C” & 
“D”). 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution No. 20-122 
B. Resolution No. 21-011 
C. Resolution No. 6212 (August 3, 1992) 
D. Memorandum Approving Release of Warrant Register (December 21, 2020) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 38 of 498



 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-122 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR 
PAYMENT DEMANDS PRESENTED ON DEMAND/ WARRANT 
REGISTER NO.  20-122 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the demands (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly audited, for 
completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as shown to 
designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 4th day of January 2021. 
 
  
                 

Sylvia Ballin, Mayor       
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 39 of 498



RES. NO. 20-122 
 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 20-122 which was regularly introduced and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof 
held on the 4th day of January, 2021, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City of San Fernando, California, this ____ day of January 2021.  
 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 40 of 498



RES. NO. 20-122 
 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-011 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR 
PAYMENT DEMANDS PRESENTED ON DEMAND/ WARRANT 
REGISTER NO.  21-011 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the demands (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly audited, for 
completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as shown to 
designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 4th day of January 2021. 
 
  
                 

Sylvia Ballin, Mayor       
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 41 of 498



RES. NO. 21-011 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a 
full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 21-011 which was regularly introduced and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof 
held on the 4th day of January, 2021, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of January 2021.  
 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 42 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 43 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 44 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 45 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 46 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 47 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 48 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 49 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 50 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 51 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 52 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 53 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 54 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS

EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 55 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 56 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 57 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 58 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 59 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 60 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 61 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 62 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 63 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS

EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 64 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES NO. 20-122

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 65 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 66 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 67 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 68 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 69 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 70 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 71 of 498



EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 72 of 498



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A" 
RES. NO. 21-011

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 73 of 498



ATTACHMENT "C"01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 74 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 75 of 498



ATTACHMENT "D"
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 76 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 77 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 78 of 498



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT           117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340           (818) 898-1202           WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☒ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 
Date:  January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Contract Extension with Michael Baker International 

for Community Development Block Grant Administration Services 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Waive formal bidding requirements and approve an amendment to extend Contract No. 1799 

(Attachment “A”) with Michael Baker International to provide Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Administration and Labor Compliance Services for an amount not-to-
exceed $31,000 through September 30, 2021; and 

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the Amendment 

(Attachment “B” – Contract No. 1799(e)). 
  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. In 1974, the CDBG Program was enacted through the Housing and Community Development 

Act of 1974. The CDBG Program is a federally funded component of the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  
 

2. The CDBG Program was established to provide communities with resources to address a wide 
range of unique community development needs, including but not limited to: addressing slum 
and blighted conditions; assisting or benefiting low- and moderate-income families; or to 
meet the needs of special-population groups, such as the disabled or senior citizens.  

 
3. The City receives CDBG program funds through participation in the Los Angeles Urban County 

CDBG Program administered by the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA). 
 

4. In November 2015, the City Manager executed a Professional Services Agreement with 
Michael Baker International, Inc. to provide CDBG program administration services for an 
amount not-to-exceed $20,000 and expiring on June 30, 2016, with the option for four (4) 
one-year extensions. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 79 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Contract Extension with Michael Baker International for Community 
Development Block Grant Administration Services  
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

5. On July 1, 2016, the City executed the first one-year extension for an amount not-to-exceed 
$20,000. 

 
6. On September 19, 2017, the City executed the second one-year extension and expanded the 

scope for services to include CDBG labor compliance services for a total amount not-to-
exceed $25,000. 

 
7. On July 19, 2018, the City executed the third one-year extension for CDBG administration and 

labor compliance services for an amount not-to-exceed $25,000. 
 

8. On September 17, 2019, the City executed the fourth one-year extension for CDBG 
administration and labor compliance services for an amount not-to-exceed $25,000, expiring 
on September 30, 2020. 

 
9. On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 

Economic Security Act (CARES Act), which included $5 billion in additional CDBG funding to 
prevent, prepare for, and respond to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.   

 
10. On April 7, 2020, LACDA notified the City that an additional amount of $136,373 in federal 

CDBG-CARES Act (CDBG-CV) grant funds were available to the City in response to COVID-19.   
 

11. On July 6, 2020, the City Council appropriated the CDBG-CV funds as follows: 
 

a. $100,000 toward a Residential Food Distribution Program. 
b. $25,000 toward a Business PPE Distribution Program. 
c. $11,373 toward administration costs. 

 
12. In order to quickly implement the CDBG-CV programs and comply with the related reporting 

requirements, Michael Baker International agreed to continue providing administration and 
labor compliance services of under the terms of their existing contract. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
To be eligible for CDBG funding consideration and receive reimbursement for CDBG approved 
expenditures, the City’s must submit certain reporting and labor compliance requirements 
through LACDA.  Michael Baker International is very familiar with these requirements and 
provides CDBG Administration and Labor Compliance services for multiple cities in Los Angeles 
County. 
 
Michael Baker International’s existing CDBG Administrative and Labor Compliance Services 
include: (1) preparing meeting agendas, minutes, and records of conversations with key 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 80 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Contract Extension with Michael Baker International for Community 
Development Block Grant Administration Services  
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

individuals; (2) responding to requests for information from LACDA staff; (3) submitting quarterly 
performance reports to LACDA; (4) drafting Reimbursable Funding Requests to the LACDA; (5) 
providing labor standards compliance monitoring for CDBG-funded construction projects; and (6) 
retain all records provided by the City and respond to requests for information using said records 
prior to requesting additional information from City staff. 
 
Section 2-778 of the City’s Purchasing Ordinance (Attachment “C”) authorizes the City Manager 
to enter into contracts up to $25,000 per year.  Consequently, the City Manager has executed 
the existing Michael Baker International agreement administratively.  Due to the additional CDBG 
funds provided through the CARES Act, an increase of $6,000 to a not-to-exceed amount of 
$31,000 for CDBG administration and labor compliance services is necessary.  Contracts 
exceeding $25,000 require City Council approval.   
 
Section 2-850 of the City’s Purchasing Ordinance authorizes the City Council to waive formal 
bidding procedures when unforeseen circumstances arise that justify an exception and it is in the 
best interest of the City.  Due to the state of emergency declared by federal, state, and local 
governments in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, it is in the best interest of the City to extend 
the services of Michael Baker International and increase their contract amount to quickly 
implement the CDBG-CV programs for the community.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Adopted Budget includes appropriations of $225,000 in CDBG funds 
and $136,373 in CDBG-CV funds. The proposed contract amendment is funded from the 
appropriated CDBG funds. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council waive formal bidding requirements and approve an 
extension of Michael Baker International’s contract through September 30, 2021 and increase 
the not-to-exceed amount to $31,000 to implement the additional CDBG-CV program funding. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
A. Contract No. 1799 with amendments “a” through “d” 
B. Proposed Contract Amendment 1799(e) 
C. Ordinance No. 1653 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 81 of 498



ATTACHMENT "A"
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 82 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 83 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 84 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 85 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 86 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 87 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 88 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 89 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 90 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 91 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 92 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 93 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 94 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 95 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 96 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1799(a)01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 97 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 98 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 99 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 100 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 101 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 102 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 103 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 104 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 105 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 106 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 107 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 108 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 109 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 110 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 111 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 112 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1799(b)01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 113 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 114 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1799(c)

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 115 of 498



 

 

3760 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 270 | Long Beach, CA  90806 
 [O] 562-200-7165 | [F] 562-200-7166 

 

September 17, 2019 

 
Nick Kimball, City Manager 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
117 Macneil Street  
San Fernando, CA 91340  

RE: CDBG ADMINISTRATIVE AND LABOR COMPLIANCE SERVICES - THIRD TERM EXTENSION 

Dear Mr. Kimball:  

Michael Baker International, Inc. (Michael Baker) is hereby requesting approval of this request to continue 

provision of CDBG Administrative and Labor Compliance services to the City of San Fernando during the 

2019-2020 fiscal year for an amount not to exceed $25,000, the same amount as approved for the prior 

two fiscal years.  

The scope of the CDBG Administrative and Labor Compliance Services includes: (1) preparing meeting 

agendas, minutes, and records of conversations with key individuals; (2) responding to requests for 

information from Los Angeles County Community Development Commission (CDC) staff; (3) submitting 

quarterly performance reports to the CDC; (4) drafting Reimbursable Funding Requests to the CDC; (5) 

providing labor standards compliance monitoring for CDBG-funded construction projects; and (6) retain 

all records provided by the City and respond to requests for information using said records prior to 

requesting additional information from City staff.  

By signing in the space provided below, this letter will act as authorization to exercise the third of the 

four one-year extension options to make the new term date 9/30/2020, and to approve the budget for 

services of $25,000.  

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Micheal Neal at mneal@mbakerintl.com or at telephone 

number (909) 261-2770.  We sincerely appreciate the opportunity we have been afforded to provide 

services to the City of San Fernando. 

Approved by:     Approved by: 

 
__________________________                              __________________________ 

Albert V. Warot     Nick Kimball     
Associate Vice President   City Manager 
Michael Baker International, Inc.  City of San Fernando 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 116 of 498

mailto:mneal@mbakerintl.com
mailto:mneal@mbakerintl.com


July 22, 2020 

Nick Kimball, City Manager 
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
117 MacNeil Street  
San Fernando, CA 91340  

RE: CDBG AND CDBG-CV ADMINISTRATIVE AND LABOR COMPLIANCE SERVICES 
FISCAL 2019-2020 EXTENSION 

Dear Mr. Kimball: 

As the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 was not completed due to COVID-19, Michael Baker International, 
Inc. (Michael Baker) is hereby requesting a contract amendment to extend the FY19-20 CDBG 
and CDBG-CV Administrative and Labor Compliance Services that Michael Baker is providing to 
the City of San Fernando. We propose increasing the contract amount by $31,000 to a not-to-
exceed amount of $56,000 and extending the contract term to 09/30/2021. 

Project 
FY19-20 
Contract 

FY20-21 
Extension 

Total 
Task Budget 

FY19-20 Street Project Admin $17,500 $17,500 $35,000 

FY19-20 Street Project Labor Compliance $7,500 $2,500 $10,000 

CDBG-CV Food Distribution Program $0 $8,800 $8,800 

CDBG-CV PPE For Businesses $0 $2,200 $2,200 

TOTAL: $25,000 $31,000 $56,000 

The scope of the CDBG and CDBG-CV Administrative and Labor Compliance Services continues to 
include:  1) preparing meeting agendas, minutes, and records of conversations with key 
individuals; 2) responding to requests for information from the Los Angeles County Community 
Development Authority (LACDA) staff; 3) submitting quarterly performance reports to the 
LACDA; 4) drafting Reimbursable Funding Requests to the LACDA; 5) providing labor standards 
compliance monitoring for CDBG-funded construction projects;, and (6) retaining all records 
provided by the City and responding to requests for information using said records prior to 
requesting additional information from City staff. 

ATTACHMENT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 1799(e)

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 117 of 498



Page 2 

By signing in the space provided below, this letter will act as an amendment to extend the term 
of the contract to 09/30/2021, and to approve a total budget of $56,000 for 2020-2021 CDBG 
and CDBG-CV services. 

If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Micheal Neal at mneal@mbakerintl.com or (909) 
261-2770. We sincerely appreciate the opportunity we have been afforded to service the City of
San Fernando.

Sincerely, Acceptance and Authorization to Proceed: 

_______________________________ 
Albert V. Warot City Manager 
Associate Vice President City of San Fernando 

CONTRACT NO. 1799(e)01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 118 of 498

mailto:mneal@mbakerintl.com


ATTACHMENT "C"
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 119 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 120 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 121 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 122 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 123 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 124 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 125 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 126 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 127 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 128 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 129 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 130 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 131 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 132 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 133 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 134 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 135 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 136 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 137 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 138 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 139 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 140 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 141 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 142 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 143 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 144 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 145 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 146 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 147 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 148 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 149 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 150 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 151 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 152 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 153 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 154 of 498



REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 (818) 898-1222 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 

Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 

Date: January 4, 2021 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Utility Systems 
Science and Software, Inc., for Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling 
Services 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 1973) with 
Utility Systems Science and Software, Inc. (US3) in an amount not-to-exceed $56,400 for 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services for a three-year term, with a City 
option to renew for two additional years; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the Agreement. 

BACKGROUND: 

1. On October 20, 2020, a Request for Proposals (RFP) (Attachment “B”) for wastewater flow
monitoring and sampling services was published on the City’s website.

2. On November 10, 2020, two proposals (Attachment “C”) to provide services were received:
1) US3, and 2) ADS.

3. From November 16, 2020 through December 7, 2020, Public Works staff reviewed
proposals and requested additional information from firms.

4. ADS currently provides wastewater flow monitoring and sampling services to the City.  Their
contract commenced on November 1, 2014 and will expire January 31, 2021.

-

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 155 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Utility Systems Science & Software, 
Inc., for Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services    
Page 2 of 4 

ANALYSIS: 

The National Pretreatment Program is a component of the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) program.  It is a cooperative effort of federal, state, and local 
environmental regulatory agencies established to protect water quality.  Pursuant to NPDES, 
the City is required to perform discharge monitoring in order to reduce conventional and toxic 
pollutant levels discharged by industries and other nondomestic wastewater sources into 
municipal sewer systems and into the environment.  To ensure the City stays in compliance 
with the NPDES program, a contractor is utilized to conduct wastewater flow monitoring and 
sampling services, which includes reporting analytical data to the City of Los Angeles. 

The City contracts with the City of Los Angeles to treat the City’s wastewater at the Hyperion 
Treatment Plant.  The fees charged to the City for wastewater treatment are calculated from 
quarterly reports submitted to the City of Los Angeles detailing the City’s wastewater flow and 
strength of biological oxygen demand (BOD) and total suspended solids (TSS).  It is very 
important that the data being provided to the City of Los Angeles is accurate to ensure the City 
is being appropriately charged for wastewater treatment.   

Staff requested proposals from firms who specialize in providing wastewater flow monitoring 
and sampling samples services to cities.  Proposals were received from the following two firms:  

Consultant Proposed Cost 
Utility Systems Science and Software, Inc. (US3) $56,400 
ADS $82,520 

Staff reviewed the proposals and evaluated each of them based on the criteria specified in the 
RFP.  The staff review determined that both US3 and ADS are qualified to provide services 
based on the qualifications and knowledge of the firm and experience of key personnel, 
relevant experience within the past fifteen years. clear identification of the desired scope of 
services, and their references.  Total cost for services was not part of the initial selection criteria 
but became the determining factor for the selection of a firm. With there being a distinct cost 
difference between the two proposals, staff performed the necessary due diligence and 
confirmed with US3 that they fully understood the requested scope of services and that their 
proposed cost was accurately reflected.      

US3, located in Santa Ana, California, is a well-qualified and experienced firm having provided 
monitoring and sampling services to cities and utilities since 1991.  They are considered one of 
the leading flow monitoring companies in the United States and known for providing a high 
level of service at a lower cost than their competitors provide.  US3 currently provides 
wastewater flow monitoring and/or sampling services to numerous local juridictions and 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 156 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Utility Systems Science & Software, 
Inc., for Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services    
Page 3 of 4 

utilities throughout California such as the cities of Culver City, Riverside, Santa Barbara as well 
as Orange County and Goleta Sanitation Districts.        

Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Scope of Services. 
The scope of services consists of contractor sampling, measuring and reporting the flow of 
wastewater discharged by the City at one dedicated location.  Contractor must: 

• Provide, install, operate and maintain all necessary wastewater sampling and flow
monitoring equipment.

• Conduct wastewater sampling consisting of one composite sample per quarter.  Analysis to
be performed on the samples will consist of TSS and BOD parameters.  The samples shall be
flow proportioned and will be collected over a 24-hour period of time.  The samples shall be
analyzed by a laboratory that has been certified as an environmental testing laboratory
pursuant to the provisions of the California Environmental Laboratory Improvement Act of
1988 (Health and Safety Code, Division 1, Part 2, Chapter 7.5, commencing with Section
100825).

• Report sampling data electronically to the City and City of Los Angeles on a quarterly basis.
• Report wastewater flow data digitally to the City on a monthly basis on or before the 15th of

the following month and report shall include the following: Quarterly sampling and
quantification summary sheet (if applicable), chain of Custody, Laboratory results, monthly
hydrographs and tabular reports with final quantities at 15-minute increments.

Both US3 and ADS are capable of delivering the scope of services outlined in the RFP.  However, 
with there being a substantial difference between the proposed cost of the two proposals, staff 
recommends awarding US3 the contract to provide wastewater flow monitoring and sampling 
services to the City.  

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The term of the agreement will be for three years with two one-year extension options (at the 
City’s discretion) for a total cost of $56,400.  The total cost during the initial term of the 
agreement is for the fixed cost of $33,840.  Subsequent to the initial three-year term, if the two 
one-year options for renewal are exercised, the annual cost for each additional year will be 
$11,280. Funds for wastewater flow monitoring and sampling services have been allocated in 
the City’s FY 2020-2021 adopted budget within Fund 072-360 (Sewer Fund- Sewer 
Maintenance). 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 157 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Utility Systems Science & Software, 
Inc., for Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services    
Page 4 of 4 

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with 
Utility Systems Science & Software, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $56,400 for 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services and authorize the City Manager to execute 
the Agreement. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Contract No. 1973
B. Request For Proposals
C. Proposals

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 158 of 498



City of Fernando 

13 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Tab 4: Proposed Method to Accomplish the Work 

Work Plan Data Availability & Quality Assurance 

US3 understands that City of Fernando has a goal to sample lift stations, residential 
area manholes, industrial users and deliver samples to the laboratory for analysis, 
and conduct both classroom and field sampling instruction activities.  

Scope of Services/Project Deliverables 
Anticipated Time 

1. Provide all necessary calibrated water/wastewater sampling and
flow monitoring equipment. US3 shall have full responsibility of its
employee’s safety and providing appropriate safety equipment.

Four hours per month 

2. Install sampling/flow monitoring equipment at the locations
specified by City of Fernando staff and provide the following:
a. In-situ calibration of sampling/flow instruments to observed site
conditions;
b. Manually confirm depth and velocity measurement of each
monitor;
c. Configure instruments for fifteen (15) minute data collection
intervals with proportional flow/sample monitoring per (this is
configurable to say 1, 5, 10, etc.)

Field train City 
water/wastewater 
technicians 

 

 Per Quarter 

3. Collect simultaneous sample/flow data at defined locations once
per quarter
4. US3 will provide periodic maintenance and calibration of all
equipment to ensure uninterrupted data collection for the duration of
the project including:

a. Depth and velocity verifications;
b. Checking/measuring any buildup of silt levels;
c. Inspection of all points of connection;
d. Measuring power supply and battery replacement (if needed);
e. Responding to instrument failure.
5. Provide both class and field training for sampling/flow monitoring
to accepted engineering and regulatory principles.

Discussion of the process and equipment used; 

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

I 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 159 of 498



City of Fernando 

14 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

b. Description of site investigation and monitor calibration against
City provided flow records;
c. Discussion of installation including a flow site inventory table
located on website with:
i. Meter site number
ii. City’s Manhole ID number iii.  Site description or address iv.
Pipe diameter
v. Dates installed and removed vi.  Low flow rates in mgd
vii. Average daily flow rates in mgd viii.  Peak flow rates in mgd
ix. Average velocity in ft/sec x.  Average depth in inches;
d. Discussion of monitoring and maintenance procedures;

One crew by US3, 
one day 

7. Remove flow / sampling monitoring and associated hardware;
restore utilities to their original configuration at the end of monitoring
period.
8. All data collected shall become the property of City of Fernando.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 160 of 498



City of Fernando 

15 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Sampling Custody Transfer Procedure 

Wastewater sampling will be performed using ISCO/Hach Samplers.  The Methods and 
Procedures listed: 

1. Lab will provide prepared lidded sample jars and sample labels for the sample jars
(new).

2. When the 24-hour sampling has concluded, US3 will remove the sample jar from the
unit, lid the sample jar, wipe dry the outside of the sample jar, affix the sample label to
the sample jar, and initial and date the sample label

3. US3 will pack the lidded and labeled sample jar in ice (the sample will remain packed in
ice from the time that it is collected to the time that it is accepted by the Lab
representative).

4. The sample will be preserved by US3.  US3 will return the labeled and lidded sample jar
to the Lab.

5. When on-site, US3 will call Lab representative to assure they are ready for acceptance.

6. US3 will transfer custody of the labeled and lidded sample jar to Lab representative.

7. The sample temperature will be measured by a digital thermometer located in the
sample receiving room.

8. Lab representative will take custody of the sample jar and log it in along with the sample
temperature and the Lab representative will also print a chain of custody form after the
sample is logged in.

9. US3 and Lab representative will sign the Chain of Custody form.

10. The Lab representative will file the signed, original chain of custody form in a binder in
the sample receiving area.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 161 of 498



City of Fernando 

16 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Typical Jar Label 

Figure 1:  Typical Jar Label 

Parameter Method ATL-Code 
pH SM 4500H+B 150_4500H+B 

Oxidation Reduction Potential*  SM 
2580B 

2580B 

Alkalinity, Speciated SM 
2320B 

310.1_2320B_Speciated 

Oxygen, Dissolved* SM 4500-O G 360.1_4500OG 

Sulfide, Dissolved SM 4500-S=D 376.2_4500S2-D_Dissolved 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand*  SM 5210B 405.1_5210B_SUB 

Figure 2:  Example of Parameters to be monitored 

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

I.IS~ 
Utility Systems Science & Software 
Environmental Sampling Services 
1250 Pioneer Way, Su ite E 
El Cajon, CA 92020 
To.LJ619) 546-428 1 
EfilL1619) 615-2380 
www_u scu bed_com 

ID#: 

Locat ion: 

Date Sampled : 

Day 1 
Site 1 

716 E. Yanona li Street 

8/5/2017 

Wastewater System Metering & Sam.piing_;, Project 5231A 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 162 of 498



City of Fernando 

17 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Figure 3:  Typical Log File for Custody Transfer

STANDARD

PHONE:
FAX:
EMAIL:

10 - 15 Business Days
PROJECT MANAGER

ID# DATE TIME SMPL # OF
SAMPLED SAMPLED TYPE CONT. COMMENTS

Site 1 08/05/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 2 08/06/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 3 08/07/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 4 08/08/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 5 08/09/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 6 08/10/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 7 08/11/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 8 08/12/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 9 08/13/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 10 08/14/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 11 08/15/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 12 08/16/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 13 08/17/17 24 hr ww 1
RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY

RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY Received On Ice           Y  /  N
Preserved Y  /  N
Evidence Seals Present  Y  /  N
Container Attacked     Y  /  N

RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY Preserved at Lab           Y  /  N

PRESCHEDULED RUSH ANALYSES WILL TAKE PRIORITY SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS / BILLING INFORMATION

OVER UNSCHEDULED RUSH REQUESTS

QA/QC Data Package

Rush Extractions 50%

CLIENT NAME: 

ADDRESS:

SW = Solid Waste
OL = Oil

NA= Non Aqueous
SL = Sludge
DW = Drinking Water

SAMPLE CONDITION:
SAMPLE TYPE CODE:

AQ=Aqueous

OT = Other Matrix

WW = Waste Water
RW = Rain Water
GW = Ground Water

SO = Soil

Actual Temperature:

MH-F06-198

ISCO 3710  Charges will apply for weekends/holidays

SAMPLE IDENTIFICATION/SITE LOCATION
 Method of Shipment:Hand

Day One

Same Day Rush 150%

24 Hour Rush 100%

48-72 Hour Rush 75%

4 - 5 Day Rush 30%

Public Works Department
Wastew ater System Metering & Sampling 

SAMPLER

CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD

1250 Pioneer Way, Suite E El Cajon, CA 9202
Tel  (619) 546-4281   ♦  Fax  (619) 615-2380   ♦  www.uscubed.com     Page___1____Of____1______

PROJECT: ANALYSES REQUESTED SPECIAL HANDLING

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

u~~ Utility Systems Science and Software I Environment al Sampli ng Services 

r 

r 
p 
r 
r 

- r 
- r 

r 

~ ~ ~ 

t t t t 
I 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 163 of 498



City of Fernando 

18 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Tab 5: Fee Proposal 

US3 Cost Proposal 

Sewer Flow Monitoring for 3 years 

Task Qnty Description Price Month Extended 

Task 1 Sewer Flow Monitoring 

1 Flow Monitor per month 540 36 $19,440 
1 Materials inc 1 inc 

1 
Temp Flow Meter 
Installation inc 

1 
inc 

1 De-installation inc 1 inc 

Sub-Total for 
3 years $19,440 

Task Qnty Description Price Extended 

Task 2:  Wastewater Sampling for 3 years 

4 Prepare HASP inc inc 
4 Validate ISCO Sampler inc inc 
4 Collect Sample inc inc 
4 Maintain Sampler inc inc 
4 Deliver Sample to Lab Inc inc 

Sub-Total for 
3 years $14,400 

Option: Additional Year Flow Monitoring 

Task Qnty Description Price Month Extended 
Task 3    Sewer Flow Monitoring for Additional 
Year  

1 Flow Monitor per month 540 12 months $6,480 

Sub-Total for 
1 year $6,480 

EXHIBIT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 164 of 498



City of Fernando 

19 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Option: Additional Year for Wastewater Sampling 

Task Qnty Description Price Extended 

Task 4:  Wastewater Sampling per Quarter 

4 Prepare HASP inc inc 
4 Validate ISCO Sampler inc inc 
4 Collect Sample inc inc 
4 Maintain Sampler inc inc 
4 Deliver Sample to Lab Inc inc 

Sub-Total for 
1 year $4,800 

EXHIBIT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 165 of 498



City of Fernando 

20 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

2020 MANPOWER CLASSIFICATION & RATES 

CLASSIFICATION  HOURLY BILLING RATE 

ENGINEERING & DESIGN 

Associate Engineer I 82.00 
Associate Engineer II 88.00 
Engineer I 145.00 
Senior Engineer 165.00 
Project Engineer 165.00 
Sr. Project Engineer 185.00 
Project Manager 185.00 

Overtime:  Overtime is charged on all classifications, excluding Project Manager and Consultant, at the 
Hourly Billing Rate x 1.45.  The Project Manager and Consultant are charged at the Hourly Billing Rate 
for all hours worked.  Authorized hours worked over eight (8) hours per day, or over forty (40) hours per 
week, will be invoiced at 1.45 times the Hourly Billing Rate.  Hours worked over twelve (12) hours per 
day; for all holiday hours; or on the seventh consecutive day will be invoiced at 1.85 times the hourly 
billing rate. 

Expenses:  Travel Expenses will be billed at cost. 

Short-Term Assignments & Job Related Travel - Full expenses are charged in accordance 
with US3's Standard Travel Policy for short-term assignments of up to eight (8) weeks and 
job related travel.  Expenses shall be submitted with receipts for reimbursement by the 
Client. Mileage is charged at $0.50/mile. 

Long-Term Assignments - A per diem rate of $700.00 per week is charged as expense 
reimbursement for assignments of eight (8) weeks and longer. 

Materials and Supplies:  Material and supplies are invoiced at cost plus applicable taxes and freight plus 
a fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.  Net 30 on all hardware with no retention. 

Equipment and Facilities:  Equipment will be invoiced in accordance with US3 Standard Rates plus 
applicable taxes and transportation charges plus fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.  Included in this 
category are such items as jobsite trailers, jobsite facilities, test equipment and tools.  When demand 
exceeds the current US3 inventory, equipment will be obtained from others.  In such cases the 
representative lease/rental rates will supersede the US3 Standard Rates; however, taxes, transportation 
and the described markups are still applicable. 

Subcontracts:  A handling charge of fifteen percent (15%) will be applied to any Subcontractor's cost. 

EXHIBIT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 166 of 498



City of Fernando 

21 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Insurance:  US3 maintains a comprehensive insurance program.  The following levels of insurance are 
maintained: 

• Workers' Compensation coverage according to Individual State Statutory laws.
• Comprehensive General Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 including

Employer's Non-ownership Contingent Liability coverage.

US3 shall furnish Certificate of Insurance upon request. 
Invoicing & Payment Terms: 

Time And Material Contracts:  US3 will invoice all contract and change order costs on a biweekly 
basis.  Summaries of actual manhours charged by employee will be provided to support the 
invoice totals.  Expenses, materials, supplies, reprographic services, equipment, facilities and 
subcontracts will be invoiced per the conditions stated above.   

On Time and Material contracts with a not-to-exceed contract amount, US3 will notify the 
Owner/Client upon reaching a predetermined value of the contract so that the Owner/Client can 
make a contract value adjustment based on the Scope-of-Work remaining.   

Payment Terms are NET thirty (30) days. 

Lump Sum Projects:  US3 will invoice all contracts and change orders based on an agreed upon 
percent complete of a predetermined contract price breakdown on a Lump Sum basis.  The 
predetermined price breakdown categories would include, but not be limited to, such items as:  
project mobilization or initialization (35%); design; engineering; material received and stored on-
site or off-site at US3 but not yet installed; documentation, training and startup.  In addition, US3 
will require payment for the hardware upon delivery. 

Retention is limited to 10% of the total contract price. 

EXHIBIT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 167 of 498



City of Fernando 

22 | P a g e U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e

Final Payment will be based upon completion and acceptance of the work performed and installed 
by US3 and is due upon acceptance. 

Payment Terms are NET thirty (30) days. 

Rate Adjustment:  US3 Standard Rates are revised on December 31 of each calendar year to reflect any 
increase in legislated or commercial rates for employee burdens, benefits or business general and 
administrative costs. 

Limits of Liability:  US3 will not accept liability for consequential damages. 

Holidays:  The following holidays are normally observed by US3: 

New Year's Day President's Day 
Memorial Day  Independence Day 
Labor Day  Thanksgiving Day 
Day after Thanksgiving Christmas Day 

US3 personnel on field assignments will observe holidays consistent with 
the Owner's policy. 

EXHIBIT "B"
CONTRACT NO. 1973

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 168 of 498



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 1973 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 

Utility Systems Science & Software, Inc. (US3) 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 4th day 
of January 2021 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and Utility Systems Science & Software, Inc. (US3), 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may 
refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of 
Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the 
capitalized term “Work.”    

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of three years (3) commencing from February 
1, 2021.  Upon the conclusion of the Term, this Agreement shall renew automatically for 
a maximum of two (2) one-year extensions, unless CITY issues written notice of its intent 
not to authorize an additional extension term(s). Nothing in this Section shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time 
for convenience or for cause 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is EXHIBIT B 
(hereinafter, the “Approved Rate Schedule”).     

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the budgeted 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 169 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 2 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

aggregate sum of FIFTY SIX THOUSAND – FOUR HUNDRED DOLLARS ($56,400)  
(hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such added expenditure is first 
approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the  City Manager and the 
Finance Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are projected to exceed 
the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of the Term or any single 
extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance pending CITY 
approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-Exceed Sum or 
any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation terms of this 
Agreement.  

1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar month, 
CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks 
performed during the recently concluded calendar month, including services and tasks 
performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of 
CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the recently 
concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate 
of compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each 
task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty 
(30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of 
any disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of 
receipt of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  
CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments 
made to CONSULTANT.  

1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records 
with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to access 
and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY shall 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to 
inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a 
deduction for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a 
result of CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 170 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 3 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

II. PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Director of Public Works 
(hereinafter, the “CITY Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance 
of this Agreement.  The CITY Representative or their designee shall act on behalf of the 
CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not accept directions or 
orders from any person other than the CITY Representative or their designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Mark Serres, Vice 
President, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have 
full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under 
this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct 
the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible 
for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this 
Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all 
reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and 
approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 
CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 
under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 171 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 4 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

 The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT’s 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary 
to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such 
effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately 
upon their discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days 
from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY 
Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT or 
on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in 
performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied 
upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the 
representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of 
CONSULTANT’s profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees 
that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 172 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 5 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement 
and provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized 
disclosure of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and 
control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such 
personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security 
and Medicare payments and the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports 
and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: 
Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability 
insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or 
if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or 
otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with 
applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA 
requirements.   

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical 
condition. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 173 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 6 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely 
responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained 
or employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in 
any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or 
against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly 
conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by 
CITY in writing. 

III. INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies 
of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. 
CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own 
expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 
0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage 
arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker 
employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying 
out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 174 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 7 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s 
profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.    

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to 
issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere 
under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according 
to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard 
& Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the 
Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s 
Liability Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings 
than those set forth in this Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall 
not contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to 
a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, 
that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required 
under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance 
and endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms 
satisfactory to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 175 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 8 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and 
approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any 
work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide 
CITY with certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, 
claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising 
out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the 
provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and 
construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under 
the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in 
the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as 
set forth herein. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 
of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions 
of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its 
statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 176 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 9 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all claims and 
losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury 
to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred 
by counsel of CITY’s choice.  

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 

V. TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 
days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.   Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services  and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date 
of the termination.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause 
as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents 
and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared 
by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall 
be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of 
CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s 
ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 177 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 10 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event 
of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, 
the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting 
Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the 
nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of 
Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not 
be less than the applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C 
below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to 
begin such cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of 
Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to 
cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any extended cure 
period allowed under this Agreement.   

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following 
time periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work 
product which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s 
employees or agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-
day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time 
for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds 
seven (7) calendar days from the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that 
CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that 
the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure 
period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 
5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-
day cure period. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 178 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 11 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely 
perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of 
Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the 
following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks 
called for under the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, 
within a reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation 
of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or 
similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, condition, 
obligation or provision of this Agreement;  and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement 
representation or warranty by CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, 
misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five 
(45) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the 
Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   
Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written 
request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY 
has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to 
timely pay any undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, 
above, shall be cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of 
CONSULTANT’s Default Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default. Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for 
those services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the 
reasonable satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No 
actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 179 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 12 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party 
shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or 
otherwise.  

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 
In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this 
Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part; 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of 
the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the 
Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under 
this Agreement.  

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy 
shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of 
any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for 
completed services and tasks.   

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 180 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 13 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and 
Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon 
their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term 
“Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, 
drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, 
schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other 
materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, 
including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or 
electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to 
copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require 
all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the same 
right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data prepared or 
assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data 
prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY 
data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT 
nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership 
interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the 
California False Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  

US3 
601 Parkcenter Drive, Suite 209 

 City of San Fernando 
Public Works Department 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 181 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 14 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Attn: Mark Serres, Vice President 
Phone: 714-542-1004 
Fax:  714-542-1332 
Email: mark.serres@uscubed.com 

117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn:  Director of Public Works 
Phone:  (818) 898-1222 
Fax: (818) 361-6728 

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid 
and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work 
required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written 
approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with 
subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 
stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements 
and indemnification. 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ 
other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has 
not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, 
CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation 
of this warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  
For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the 
term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 182 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 15 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right 
or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both 
Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void 
and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 183 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 16 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  .This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten 
amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or 
binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  
One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the 
remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by CITY.  

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 184 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 
Page 17 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1973 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO   Utility Systems Science & Software, Inc.  

By:    By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager   Name:  
    Title:  
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM     
      
By:      

 
Richard Padilla, Assistant City 
Attorney     

 

 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 185 of 498



 
601 Parkcenter Dr. Suite 209 

Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 

 
 
November 9, 2020 
 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
 
 
Attention:  Public Works Department  
 
Subject: Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  
 
Hello, 
 
Attached you will find Utility Systems, Science and Software (US3) response to the City of 
Fernando Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services.  This proposal provides 
hardware, and software for flow monitoring and wastewater sampling at one location specified 
by City of Fernando. US3 will collect wastewater samples once per quarter, and manage and 
provide monthly data for the measurement station for a period of three (3) years with an option 
to add another two (2) years. 
 
Specific advantages of selecting US3 include: 
 

1. Full in-house capabilities for all project requirements. 
2. Direct applicable experience with all components associated with wastewater 

monitoring services. 
3. An excellent reputation for providing quality-engineering services within stipulated 

budgets and schedules. 
 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact undersigned at 714-564-3494. 
 
Sincerely, 

 Mark Serres 
Mark Serres 
Vice President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT "B"

I.IS~ 
UTILITY SYSTEMS SCIENCE & SOFTWARE 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 186 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

2 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 

 
Request for Proposal 

 
For 

 
 City of Fernando 

Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling 
Services  

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
601 N. Parkcenter Dr., Suite 209 

Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone: 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 

 
9314 Bond Ave. Suite A 

El Cajon, CA 9021 
Phone: 619-546-4281 Fax: 619-398-2380 

 
www.uscubed.com 

 
www.sewerflow.com 

 
www.utility-iot.com 

 
 

UTILITY SYSTEMS SCIENCE AND SOFIW ARE 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 187 of 498

http://www.uscubed.com/
http://www.sewerflow.com/
http://www.utility-iot.com/


City of Fernando                                    

3 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 

City of Fernando  
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 

Proposal Index 
 

Tab 1: Identification of Proposer 
 
Tab 2: Staffing Resources 
 
Tab 3: Experience and Technical Competence 
 
Tab 4:  Proposed Method to Accomplish the Work 
 
Tab 5: Fee Proposal 
 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 188 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

4 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 1:  Identification of Proposer 

 

US3 is a California Corporation Federal ID No. 33-0729605 and qualifies as a Minority Business 
Enterprise. US3 has certified as an MBE with the California Public Utility Commission’s authorized 
clearinghouse, Verification Number: 97ES0008.  

Name of Company: 

Utility Systems Science & Software  

Type of Company: 

Utility Systems Science and Software is a Corporation 03-0404434 
 
DIR: 1000014022 

 
Certified Minority Business Enterprise 
Certified Small Business Enterprise 

Address: 

Corporate Office 
601 N. Parkcenter Dr., Suite 209 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone: 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 
 

Number of Employees  

 
Utility Systems Science & Software has over 80 employees as part of their parent company, 
Technology Resource Center (TRC). 

Name, Title, Address and Telephone numbers of persons to contact concerning the Proposal. 
 
 
Mark Serres  VP  
Mark.serres@uscubed.com 
601 N. Parkcenter Dr., Suite 209 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone: 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 
 
 

Tom Williams Engineering Manager   
Tom.williams@uscubed.com 
9314 Bond Ave. Suite A 
El Cajon, CA 9021 
Phone: 619-546-4281 Fax: 619-398-2380 
Supervisor. Available 24/7 via telephone. 

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 189 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

2 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 2: Staffing Resources 

The fundamental objective is to provide city with the high-quality Services by utilizing 
advance-metering technologies factory certified from Hach Co.  All Services will be 
completed per an agreed schedule.   The Installations, Calibrations, Maintenance Services 
will be performed by US3 and is designed to provide City of Fernando with complete 
coverage with hardware, software and engineering.  Thus, the Implementation Plan 
includes: 

• Verify equipment installation/operation. 
• Train City of Fernando staff up to 10 people with all necessary handouts. 
• Gather information as a prelude to software/hardware maintenance. 
• Examine system following with the designed format forms. 
• Provide engineering/technical on-site support as needed to support the system. 
• Provide with 24 hrs on-call response support. 

 
Key Personnel 
US3 possess all material, office and technical resources required to successfully maintain 
the system and provide skilled enhancements for City of Fernando.  Primary in support of 
this effort will be the following personnel: 
US3 possess all material, office and technical resources required to successfully monitor 
the system and provide skilled enhancements for City of Fernando.  With over 60 
engineers and technicians, US3 can easily provide the necessary resources to fully 
implement this project.  Primary in support of this effort will be the following personnel: 
 

Mr. Mark Serres:  Mr. Serres is a degreed electrical engineer with over 25 years systems 
Fresh/Waste water systems, project management and systems  
 
Integration experience in relation to complex industrial systems, this includes experience in 
industrial automation and water/waste water industries.  Mr. Serres will be the primary 
point of contact for all technical issues for City of Fernando.  Mr. Serres will also be 
responsible for assuring client satisfaction and will marshal the required resources to meet 
the project requirements. 
 
Mr. Thomas Williams:  Mr. Williams will be the City of Fernando Project Manager with 
over 15 years of complex systems development for wastewater monitoring system 
experience.  This experience includes hydraulic compatibility, instrumentation, 
communications and analysis.  
 
Darlene Szczublewski, P.E.:   Mrs. Szczublewski has over ten years of engineering 
experience in flow monitoring related projects.  She assisted in the review of flow meter 
data and the completion of several SSES and Capacity Analysis projects to meet Consent 
Decrees.  Mrs. Szczublewski has completed numerous I/I-related studies for other clients 
as well.   

Mrs. Szczublewski has developed numerous flow data analysis techniques to present a 
clear informative picture of flow responses to storm events.  Her work also includes the 
development of training programs for clients describing I/I and capacity analysis 
methodologies. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 190 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

3 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Mark Serres, MSEE 
 
Mark Serres is an engineer with over 30 years of experience in fresh 
and wastewater systems, project management, and systems 
management.  Mark has integration experience in relation to complex 
industrial systems, including experience in industrial automation and 
water/wastewater industries.  His project capabilities include GIS data 
collection, development, and maintenance; sanitary sewer Capacity, 
Management, Operations, and Maintenance (CMOM) programs; 
wastewater collection, conveyance, treatment, and discharge facility 
design and permitting; and combined and sanitary gravity sewer 
modeling. 
 
Orange County Sanitation District Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  Project 
Manager for the Local Limits project and HATS projects. OCSD Metered Flow to IRWD Facilities.  
OCSD Collections installed temporary flow meters at all connections to the HATS for a period of 14 
days every year, on the anniversary of the connection, or as requested by CSD.  The total of the actual 
meter readings from these temporary meters will be deducted from the total meter readings at the Main 
Street Pump Station for each month flow is received from OCSD into the HATS. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This includes the 
Flow Monitoring and Wastewater Sampling at eleven locations.  Water sampling analysis was 
provided by US3 on 24 hour sample daily basis.  US3 will provided all C31 traffic control per 
Cal-Trans Methods & Procedures.  All Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using proportional 
sampling based on flow monitoring real-time results.   
 
City of Culver City Wastewater Monitoring and Sewer Planning  Project Manager for the 
monitoring and planning Services for a seven pump station integration and flow monitoring project for 
the City of Culver City.  Tasks included: providing wastewater monitoring, preparing and replacing 
pump station control system at two sites; installing a custom metering system; providing flow monitoring 
for the integration of a city-wide wireless telemetry implementation of a wireless communication 
network; installing wastewater event notification systems.  
 
City of Laguna Beach Sewer Planning and Wastewater Monitoring  Project Engineer for the 
planning, installation, and monitoring of 29 pump stations in the City of Laguna Beach.  Tasks include: 
providing wastewater monitoring; installing an event notification system; assisting in the installation of a 
communication tower; providing pump station level monitoring; and planning and implementing a 
successful sewer study in several difficult pump station sites. 
 
City of Riverside Sewer Flow Monitoring Project  Project Engineer for the integration of a sewer flow 
monitoring system with a city-wide wireless telemetry network.  Tasks include: installing wastewater 
event notification systems; providing system-wide sewer planning; wastewater monitoring; integrating a 
city-wide Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system; installing a treatment plant 
metering system; and providing training to City staff for future wastewater monitoring. 
 
City of South Pasadena Wastewater Monitoring  Project Engineer for a wireless sewer flow 
monitoring project in the City of South Pasadena.  Tasks include installing a custom metering system, 
analyzing wastewater for inflow and infiltration, and training City staff on the operation and maintenance 
of the wastewater monitoring system. 
 

Years of Experience 
30 

Education 
MS, Electrical and Electronic Engineering 
Heriot Watt, University 
Edinburgh, Scotland 
BS, Electrical Engineering 
Heriot Watt University 
Edinburgh, Scotland 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 191 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

4 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Thomas Williams, BSEE, BSME, PE 
 
Thomas Williams is an electrical and manufacturing engineer with over 
24 years of experience in fresh and wastewater systems, project 
management, and systems management.  Thomas is the Engineering 
Manager for US3.  Thomas has integration experience in relation to 
complex industrial systems, including experience in industrial 
automation and water/wastewater industries.  His project capabilities 
include GIS data collection, development, and maintenance; sanitary 
sewer Capacity, Management, Operations, and Maintenance (CMOM) 
programs; wastewater collection, conveyance, treatment, and discharge 
facility design and permitting; and combined and sanitary gravity sewer modeling. 
 
Orange County Sanitation District Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This 
includes the Local Limits project and HATS projects. OCSD Metered Flow to IRWD Facilities .  OCSD 
Collections installed temporary flow meters at all connections to the HATS for a period of 14 days every 
year, on the anniversary of the connection, or as requested by CSD.  The total of the actual meter 
readings from these temporary meters will be deducted from the total meter readings at the Main Street 
Pump Station for each month flow is received from OCSD into the HATS. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This includes the 
Flow Monitoring and Wastewater Sampling at eleven locations.  Water sampling analysis was 
provided by US3 on 24 hour sample daily basis.  US3 will provided all C31 traffic control per 
Cal-Trans Methods & Procedures.  All Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using proportional 
sampling based on flow monitoring real-time results.  . 
 
City of Culver City Wastewater Monitoring and Sewer Planning  Project Manager for monitoring 
and planning Services for a seven pump station integration and flow monitoring project for the City of 
Culver City.  Tasks included: providing wastewater monitoring, preparing and replacing pump station 
control system at two sites; installing a custom metering system; providing flow monitoring for the 
integration of a city-wide wireless telemetry implementation of a wireless communication network; 
installing wastewater event notification systems; and providing Flo-ware training for City staff. 
 
City of Laguna Beach Sewer Planning and Wastewater Monitoring  Project Manager for the 
planning, installation, and monitoring of 29 pump stations in the City of Laguna Beach.  Tasks include: 
providing wastewater monitoring; installing an event notification system; assisting in the installation of a 
communication tower; providing pump station level monitoring; and planning and implementing a 
successful sewer study in several difficult pump station sites. 
 
City of Riverside Sewer Flow Monitoring Project  Project Manager for the integration of a sewer flow 
monitoring system with a city-wide wireless telemetry network.  Tasks include: installing wastewater 
event notification systems; providing system-wide sewer planning; wastewater monitoring; integrating a 
city-wide Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system; installing a treatment plant 
metering system; and providing training to City staff for future wastewater monitoring. 
 
City of South Pasadena Wastewater Monitoring  Project Manager for a wireless sewer flow 
monitoring project in the City of South Pasadena.  Tasks include installing a custom metering system, 
analyzing wastewater for inflow and infiltration, and training City staff on the operation and maintenance 
of the wastewater monitoring system. 
 

Years of Experience: 24 
 
Education 
BSEE, Electrical Engineering 
Indiana University - Purdue University 
Fort Wayne 
BSME, Manufacturing Engineering 
Indiana University - Purdue University 
Fort Wayne 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 192 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

5 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Constance “Darlene” Szczulewski, PE, QSD, LEED AP 
 
Constance “Darlene” Szczulewski is an environmental engineer with 
over 12 years of experience as a civil engineer specializing in water 
resources and flow monitoring related projects.  Darlene has 
integration experience in relation to complex industrial systems, 
including experience in industrial automation and water/wastewater 
industries.  Current on State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) and Regional Water Quality control Board (RWQCB) 
policies, new construction permit requirements, Total Maximum 
Daily Loads (TMDL) and related water quality objectives. 
 
Developed innovative solutions for client construction and post-construction needs using current water 
quality regulations and Best Management Practices (BMPs).  Prepared and delivered numerous 
presentations on Leadership and Energy and environmental Design (LEED) AND Low Impact 
Development (LID) water quality BMPs, incorporation cutting edge technology into project designs and 
plan sets.  Her experiences include working with a wide range of projects from urban developments to 
rural master plan communities to government and public entities.   
 
Orange County Sanitation District Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This 
includes the Local Limits project and HATS projects. OCSD Metered Flow to IRWD Facilities .  OCSD 
Collections installed temporary flow meters at all connections to the HATS for a period of 14 days every 
year, on the anniversary of the connection, or as requested by CSD.  The total of the actual meter 
readings from these temporary meters will be deducted from the total meter readings at the Main Street 
Pump Station for each month flow is received from OCSD into the HATS. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This includes the 
Flow Monitoring and Wastewater Sampling at eleven locations.  Water sampling analysis was 
provided by US3 on 24 hour sample daily basis.  US3 will provided all C31 traffic control per 
Cal-Trans Methods & Procedures.  All Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using proportional 
sampling based on flow monitoring real-time results.  . 
 
City of Culver City Wastewater Monitoring and Sewer Planning  Civil Engineer for monitoring and 
planning Services for a seven pump station integration and flow monitoring project for the City of Culver 
City.  Tasks included: providing wastewater monitoring, preparing and replacing pump station control 
system at two sites; installing a custom metering system; providing flow monitoring for the integration of 
a city-wide wireless telemetry implementation of a wireless communication network; installing 
wastewater event notification systems; and providing Floware training for City staff. 
 
City of Riverside Sewer Flow Monitoring Project  Civil Engineer for the integration of a sewer flow 
monitoring system with a city-wide wireless telemetry network.  Tasks include: installing wastewater 
event notification systems; providing system-wide sewer planning; wastewater monitoring; integrating a 
city-wide Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system; installing a treatment plant 
metering system; and providing training to City staff for future wastewater monitoring. 
 
City of South Pasadena Wastewater Monitoring  Civil Engineer for a wireless sewer flow monitoring 
project in the City of South Pasadena.  Tasks include installing a custom metering system, analyzing 
wastewater for inflow and infiltration, and training City staff on the operation and maintenance of the 
wastewater monitoring system. 
  

Years of Experience 
12 

Education 
BS Environmental Engineering 
San Diego State University 
 
CA Registered Civil Engineer 
NV Registered Civil Engineer  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 193 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

6 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 3: Experience and Technical Competence 
 
Utility Systems, Science and Software, Inc. (US3), is the Water & Wastewater Division of 
Technology Resource Center (TRC), providing monitoring and control for Utilities since 1991. 
 
 
US3 is in the forefront of this industry by taking the proven technological approaches, developed in 
other high tech industries and applying them, to protect some of our most precious natural 
resources: our environment and our groundwater. 
 
US3 engineers and technical personnel have applied advanced instrumentation system technology 
to water/waste water open channel flow monitoring, pipeline evaluation, engineering, and data 
analysis, all coupled to the power of the Internet This unique integrated systems approach allows 
the company to bring greater insight and intelligence gathering information about the water and 
waste water system performance of our clients, and in turn to support the fulfillment of their 
commitments to manage and cost effectively design, operate, and maintain these systems. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 194 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

7 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

US3 will provide the proportional flow monitoring services and training for the City of Fernando 
as requested per RFP.   
 
To increase the quality of the flow monitoring data, Utility Systems Science and Software (US3) 
will utilize Hach Flo-Dar sensors.  
 

 
 
 
Flo-Dar - Flow Meter for Sewers & Open Channels 

 
The Flo-Dar Family of flowmeters provides a revolutionary 
approach to open channel and sewer flow monitoring. Flo-Dar 
combines digital doppler radar velocity sensing technology with 
ultrasonic pulse echo level sensing to remotely measure open 
channel flows.  
Flo-Dar's unique non-contact measuring technology means 
trouble-free sewer flow monitoring.  It even won the Water 
Environment Federation's Innovative Technology Award!Like all 
Marsh-McBirney products, Flo-Dar sets the standard for ease-of-
use, accuracy, and reliability. Flo-Dar accuracy has been 
independently confirmed by Alden Labs as well as the satisfaction 
of thousands of Flo-Dar users. 
 
US3 is the leading sewer flow monitoring company in the 

USA, providing the highest level of service at the lowest cost.  With over 500+ flow 
meters and calibrated proportional flow water samplers, US3 has the capability of 
providing City of Fernando the highest quality flow monitoring Services.   
 
Additionally, US3 supports Municipalities, Consulting Engineering firms and other water/waste water 
systems integrators by providing temporary technical services for engineering, software 
programming, and technical site maintenance and calibration site support work primarily in the 
Water and Waste Water industries.  

Radar Velocity 

~ 
-.__./ 

/ d 
Ultrasonic \.,.__.,,I 

Depth ~ 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 195 of 498

http://www.marsh-mcbirney.com/news/flo-dar_ita2005.htm#_blank
http://www.marsh-mcbirney.com/news/flo-dar_ita2005.htm#_blank


City of Fernando                                    

8 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
 US3 seeks to develop long term agreements with the afore mentioned industries, to provide 
temporary personnel services in support of their upgrade projects in water/waste water projects 
throughout the USA. 
 
US3 is focuses on those clients that have regulatory mandated, schedule driven projects, and 
where the budgets can accommodate high quality and outstanding technical services. 
 
US3 's management has over 30 years experience in the startup and operation of specialty contract 
engineering services. The owners and management team are all professional and degreed 
engineers and have extensive experience in the application and implementation of Water/Waste 
Water and associated Process Control Projects. 
 
A corporate goal of the organization from our Business Plan is to provide our customers with the 
best professional Engineering, Technician, and Software Programmer personnel available. To 
accomplish this, we at US3 consider our employees and perspective employees as our most 
valuable asset and recruit, qualify, and hire with the due diligence to assist our clients in the 
performance of their work and to assist US3 in developing the long term relationships which will 
lead to continued growth and profitability. We are currently working in several facilities throughout 
the USA and are selectively guiding the growth of our business into markets and areas where we 
can provide the highest quality value of service to our clients.  Specific advantages of selecting US3 
include: 
 

• Full in-house capabilities for all engineering disciplines required for this project. 

• Direct applicable experience with all components associated with telecommunication 
systems, including extensive water/wastewater experience. 

• An excellent reputation for providing quality-engineering services within stipulated budgets 
and schedules. 

• Engineering support for modifications or refinements to the system. 
• Maintenance and Calibration Services 
• Certified Confined Space Entry Service Crews 
• Decades of experience in both flow monitoring and sampling systems. 

 
Note:  Should the designated flow monitoring site require Class 1, 
Div 1 explosion proof equipment, US3 will provide at no additional 
cost the necessary hardware for this type of installation.  US3 will 
validate the existence of class 1, div 1 gas.  

 
Related Services 

 
Utility Systems Science & Software provides water/wastewater sampling for 
companies in the USA.  The listed projects below include virtually every type of 
water/wastewater sampling. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 196 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

9 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
 

Orange County Sanitation District 
Wastewater Monitoring & Sampling 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Goleta Sanitation District 
Sampling and Analysis 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: March 2019 
Contact: Rich von Langen 

714-488-1303 
Rvl_associates@earthlink.net 
 

1. Collect representative and flow-proportional 
samples 

2. Flow Monitoring 
3. Collect Biosolids Samples and Cyanide 

Samples 

Date: On-going 
Contact: Christie Shiang 
 Process Engineering 
 714-593-7499 
1. Sewer Flow Monitoring Project. 
2. Data Analysis 
3. Custom Meter Installation. 
4. Wastewater Sampling 

GOLETA SAN IT ARY 
Water Resource Recovery Dist rict 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 197 of 498

mailto:Rvl_associates@earthlink.net


City of Fernando                                    

10 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
 

Culver City 
Wireless Waste Water Monitoring, ENS, Sewer Planning, Lift Station Monitoring and 
Permanent 
Monitoring 
 

 
 
 
 

 
City of Riverside 
System Wide Sewer Planning, Waste Water Monitoring, Wireless SCADA and Permanent 
Monitoring 

  
 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Date: On-going 
Contact: Gabe Garcia 
 Engineering & Information Technology 
 310-253-5618 
1. Flow Monitoring Project Integration of City Wide 

Wireless Telemetry Implementation of Wireless 
Communication Network 

2. Waste Water Event Notification Systems 
3. Pump Station Integration Projects 
4. Sewer Flow Monitoring Training Projects 
5. Repair and replace Pump Station Control System 
6. Customer Meter Installation 
7. Wastewater Sampling 

Dates: On-going 
Contact: Steve Amsden 
 SCADA Systems Supervisor 
 951-351-6185 
1. Sewer Flow Monitoring Project with Integration of 

City Wide Wireless Telemetry Network 
2. Waste Water Event Notification System 
3. City wide SCADA Integration 
4. Wastewater Monitoring Training 
5. Treatment Plant Meter Installation 
 

I T Y O . • 

RJVERSIDE 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 198 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

11 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

City of Santa Barbara 
Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Contact: Bradley Rahrer, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
805-560-7531 

 
 
1. Provide water sampling on 24 hour sample daily basis 
2. Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using 

proportional sampling based on flow monitoring real-
time results. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 199 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

12 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Project Specific Experience 
 
Goleta Sanitary District Sampling and Analysis 

a) Role of the firm: US3 provides proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 
sampling. 

b) Value of Service: $57,356.00 
c) Value of Fee:  
d) Description of Services: Proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 

sampling. 
e) Staffing: 3 Technicians. 
f) Duration: 9 days 
g) Relationship to client 
h) Contact Information: 

 Rich von Langen, P.E 
 RvL Associates 
 714-488-1303 
 Rvl_associates@earthlink.net 
 

Orange County Sanitation District Sampling 
a) Role of the firm: US3 provides proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 

sampling. 
b) Value:  On-going.  
c) Description of Services: Proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 

sampling 
d) Staffing: 3 Technicians.  
e) Duration: On-going 
f) Relationship to client: Contract 
g) Contact Information: 714-593-7499 

  
 

Culver City Sampling 
a) Role of the firm: US3 provides wastewater sampling. 
b) Value: $185,256.00 
c) Description of Services: Wastewater sampling 
d) Staffing: 1 
e) Duration: 5 years 
f) Relationship to client: Contract 
g) Contact Information: 310-253-5618 

  
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 200 of 498

mailto:Rvl_associates@earthlink.net


City of Fernando                                    

13 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 4: Proposed Method to Accomplish the Work 
 
Work Plan Data Availability & Quality Assurance  
 
US3 understands that City of Fernando has a goal to sample lift stations, residential 
area manholes, industrial users and deliver samples to the laboratory for analysis, 
and conduct both classroom and field sampling instruction activities.  
 

 

  Scope of Services/Project Deliverables 
Anticipated Time 

 

    

1.   Provide all necessary calibrated water/wastewater sampling and 
flow monitoring equipment. US3 shall have full responsibility of its 
employee’s safety and providing appropriate safety equipment.   

Four hours per month 

2.   Install sampling/flow monitoring equipment at the locations 
specified by City of Fernando staff and provide the following: 

    
a.   In-situ calibration of sampling/flow instruments to observed site 
conditions; 

    
b.   Manually confirm depth and velocity measurement of each 
monitor; 

    

c.   Configure instruments for fifteen (15) minute data collection 
intervals with proportional flow/sample monitoring per (this is 
configurable to say 1, 5, 10, etc.) 

Field train City 
water/wastewater 
technicians 

 

  
 Per Quarter 

3.   Collect simultaneous sample/flow data at defined locations once 
per quarter 

  

4.   US3 will provide periodic maintenance and calibration of all 
equipment to ensure uninterrupted data collection for the duration of 
the project including: 

    a.   Depth and velocity verifications; 
    b.   Checking/measuring any buildup of silt levels; 
    c.   Inspection of all points of connection; 
    d.   Measuring power supply and battery replacement (if needed); 
    e.   Responding to instrument failure. 

  

5.   Provide both class and field training for sampling/flow monitoring 
to accepted engineering and regulatory principles. 

  

  

    Discussion of the process and equipment used; 

I 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 201 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

14 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

    

b.   Description of site investigation and monitor calibration against 
City provided flow records; 

    
c.   Discussion of installation including a flow site inventory table 
located on website with: 

    i.  Meter site number 

    

ii.   City’s Manhole ID number iii.  Site description or address iv.  
Pipe diameter 

    v.   Dates installed and removed vi.  Low flow rates in mgd 
    vii.   Average daily flow rates in mgd viii.  Peak flow rates in mgd 
    ix.  Average velocity in ft/sec x.  Average depth in inches; 
    d.   Discussion of monitoring and maintenance procedures; 
     
     

    

 

    

 

One crew by US3,  
one day 

7.   Remove flow / sampling monitoring and associated hardware; 
restore utilities to their original configuration at the end of monitoring 
period. 

    

8.   All data collected shall become the property of City of Fernando. 

  
 

 

 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 202 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

15 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Sampling Custody Transfer Procedure 

Wastewater sampling will be performed using ISCO/Hach Samplers.  The Methods and 
Procedures listed: 

1. Lab will provide prepared lidded sample jars and sample labels for the sample jars 
(new). 

2. When the 24-hour sampling has concluded, US3 will remove the sample jar from the 
unit, lid the sample jar, wipe dry the outside of the sample jar, affix the sample label to 
the sample jar, and initial and date the sample label  

3. US3 will pack the lidded and labeled sample jar in ice (the sample will remain packed in 
ice from the time that it is collected to the time that it is accepted by the Lab 
representative).  

4. The sample will be preserved by US3.  US3 will return the labeled and lidded sample jar 
to the Lab.  

5. When on-site, US3 will call Lab representative to assure they are ready for acceptance.   

6. US3 will transfer custody of the labeled and lidded sample jar to Lab representative. 

7. The sample temperature will be measured by a digital thermometer located in the 
sample receiving room. 

8. Lab representative will take custody of the sample jar and log it in along with the sample 
temperature and the Lab representative will also print a chain of custody form after the 
sample is logged in.  

9. US3 and Lab representative will sign the Chain of Custody form. 

10.  The Lab representative will file the signed, original chain of custody form in a binder in 
the sample receiving area.  

 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 203 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

16 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
Typical Jar Label 
 

 
 
Figure 1:  Typical Jar Label 
 
 

Parameter   Method   ATL-Code     
pH   SM 4500H+B  150_4500H+B   
Oxidation Reduction Potential*    

SM 
2580B   

2580B 
   

Alkalinity, Speciated   
SM 
2320B   

310.1_2320B_Speciated 
  

Oxygen, Dissolved*   SM 4500-O G  360.1_4500OG   
Sulfide, Dissolved   SM 4500-S=D  376.2_4500S2-D_Dissolved 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand*    SM 5210B  405.1_5210B_SUB   
             

 
Figure 2:  Example of Parameters to be monitored 
  

I.IS~ 
Utility Systems Science & Software 
Environmental Sampling Services 
1250 Pioneer Way, Su ite E 
El Cajon, CA 92020 
To.LJ619) 546-428 1 
EfilL1619) 615-2380 
www_u scu bed_com 

ID#: 

Locat ion: 

Date Sampled : 

Day 1 
Site 1 

716 E. Yanona li Street 

8/5/2017 

Wastewater System Metering & Sam.piing_;, Project 5231A 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 204 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

17 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 

 
 

Figure 3:  Typical Log File for Custody Transfer

STANDARD

PHONE:
FAX:
EMAIL:

10 - 15 Business Days
PROJECT MANAGER

ID# DATE TIME SMPL # OF
SAMPLED SAMPLED TYPE CONT. COMMENTS

Site 1 08/05/17 24 hr ww 1   

Site 2 08/06/17 24 hr ww 1    

Site 3 08/07/17 24 hr ww 1       

Site 4 08/08/17 24 hr ww 1       

Site 5 08/09/17 24 hr ww 1       

Site 6 08/10/17 24 hr ww 1        

Site 7 08/11/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 8 08/12/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 9 08/13/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 10 08/14/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 11 08/15/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 12 08/16/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 13 08/17/17 24 hr ww 1
RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY

RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY Received On Ice           Y  /  N
Preserved                      Y  /  N
Evidence Seals Present  Y  /  N
Container Attacked     Y  /  N

RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY Preserved at Lab           Y  /  N

PRESCHEDULED RUSH ANALYSES WILL TAKE PRIORITY SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS / BILLING INFORMATION

OVER UNSCHEDULED RUSH REQUESTS

 

 

 

QA/QC Data Package

 Rush Extractions 50%

 

 

 

CLIENT NAME: 

ADDRESS:

SW = Solid Waste

 

OL = Oil

NA= Non Aqueous
SL = Sludge
DW = Drinking Water

SAMPLE CONDITION:
SAMPLE TYPE CODE:

AQ=Aqueous

OT = Other Matrix

WW = Waste Water
RW = Rain Water
GW = Ground Water

SO = Soil

Actual Temperature:

MH-F06-198

 

 

 

 

 

 

ISCO 3710  Charges will apply for weekends/holidays

SAMPLE IDENTIFICATION/SITE LOCATION
 Method of Shipment:Hand

Day One 

Same Day Rush 150%

24 Hour Rush 100%

 

48-72 Hour Rush 75%

4 - 5 Day Rush 30%

Public Works Department
Wastew ater System Metering & Sampling 

SAMPLER

 

CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD

1250 Pioneer Way, Suite E El Cajon, CA 9202
Tel  (619) 546-4281   ♦  Fax  (619) 615-2380   ♦  www.uscubed.com     Page___1____Of____1______

PROJECT: ANALYSES REQUESTED SPECIAL HANDLING

u~~ Utility Systems Science and Software I Environment al Sampli ng Services 

r 

r 
p 
r 
r 

- r 
- r 

r 

~ ~ ~ 

t t t t 
I 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 205 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

18 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 5: Fee Proposal 
 

  US3 Cost Proposal    

      
Sewer Flow Monitoring for 3 years   
Task Qnty Description Price Month Extended 

Task 1 Sewer Flow Monitoring    
 1 Flow Monitor per month 540 36 $19,440 

 1 Materials inc 1 inc 
    

   

 1 
Temp Flow Meter 
Installation inc 

1 
inc 

        
 1 De-installation  inc 1 inc 

       

     
Sub-Total for 
3 years $19,440 

        

Task Qnty Description Price  Extended 

Task 2:  Wastewater Sampling for 3 years   
 4 Prepare HASP inc 

 
inc 

 4 Validate ISCO Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Collect Sample inc 

 
inc 

 4 Maintain Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Deliver Sample to Lab Inc  inc 

    
 

  

    
Sub-Total for 
3 years $14,400 

        

Option: Additional Year Flow Monitoring  
Task Qnty Description Price Month Extended 
Task 3    Sewer Flow Monitoring for Additional 
Year    

 1 Flow Monitor per month 540 12 months $6,480 
       

     
Sub-Total for 
1 year $6,480 

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 206 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

19 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

  
Option: Additional Year for Wastewater Sampling   

Task Qnty Description Price  Extended 

Task 4:  Wastewater Sampling per Quarter   
 4 Prepare HASP inc 

 
inc 

 4 Validate ISCO Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Collect Sample inc 

 
inc 

 4 Maintain Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Deliver Sample to Lab Inc 

 
inc 

    
Sub-Total for 
1 year $4,800 

      

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 207 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

20 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
TERMS & CONDITIONS 

 
 
2020 MANPOWER CLASSIFICATION & RATES 
 

     
 CLASSIFICATION     HOURLY BILLING RATE 
 
 ENGINEERING & DESIGN 
 
  Associate Engineer I     82.00 
  Associate Engineer II     88.00 
  Engineer I      145.00 
  Senior Engineer     165.00 
  Project Engineer     165.00 
  Sr. Project Engineer     185.00 

Project Manager        185.00 
 

Overtime:  Overtime is charged on all classifications, excluding Project Manager and Consultant, at the 
Hourly Billing Rate x 1.45.  The Project Manager and Consultant are charged at the Hourly Billing Rate 
for all hours worked.  Authorized hours worked over eight (8) hours per day, or over forty (40) hours per 
week, will be invoiced at 1.45 times the Hourly Billing Rate.  Hours worked over twelve (12) hours per 
day; for all holiday hours; or on the seventh consecutive day will be invoiced at 1.85 times the hourly 
billing rate. 
 
Expenses:  Travel Expenses will be billed at cost. 
 

Short-Term Assignments & Job Related Travel - Full expenses are charged in accordance 
with US3's Standard Travel Policy for short-term assignments of up to eight (8) weeks and 
job related travel.  Expenses shall be submitted with receipts for reimbursement by the 
Client. Mileage is charged at $0.50/mile. 
 
Long-Term Assignments - A per diem rate of $700.00 per week is charged as expense 
reimbursement for assignments of eight (8) weeks and longer. 
 
 

Materials and Supplies:  Material and supplies are invoiced at cost plus applicable taxes and freight plus 
a fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.  Net 30 on all hardware with no retention. 
 
Equipment and Facilities:  Equipment will be invoiced in accordance with US3 Standard Rates plus 
applicable taxes and transportation charges plus fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.  Included in this 
category are such items as jobsite trailers, jobsite facilities, test equipment and tools.  When demand 
exceeds the current US3 inventory, equipment will be obtained from others.  In such cases the 
representative lease/rental rates will supersede the US3 Standard Rates; however, taxes, transportation 
and the described markups are still applicable. 
 
Subcontracts:  A handling charge of fifteen percent (15%) will be applied to any Subcontractor's cost. 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 208 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

21 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Insurance:  US3 maintains a comprehensive insurance program.  The following levels of insurance are 
maintained: 
 

• Workers' Compensation coverage according to Individual State Statutory laws.  
• Comprehensive General Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 including 

Employer's Non-ownership Contingent Liability coverage. 
 

US3 shall furnish Certificate of Insurance upon request. 
Invoicing & Payment Terms: 
 

Time And Material Contracts:  US3 will invoice all contract and change order costs on a biweekly 
basis.  Summaries of actual manhours charged by employee will be provided to support the 
invoice totals.  Expenses, materials, supplies, reprographic services, equipment, facilities and 
subcontracts will be invoiced per the conditions stated above.   
 
On Time and Material contracts with a not-to-exceed contract amount, US3 will notify the 
Owner/Client upon reaching a predetermined value of the contract so that the Owner/Client can 
make a contract value adjustment based on the Scope-of-Work remaining.   
 
Payment Terms are NET thirty (30) days. 
 
Lump Sum Projects:  US3 will invoice all contracts and change orders based on an agreed upon 
percent complete of a predetermined contract price breakdown on a Lump Sum basis.  The 
predetermined price breakdown categories would include, but not be limited to, such items as:  
project mobilization or initialization (35%); design; engineering; material received and stored on-
site or off-site at US3 but not yet installed; documentation, training and startup.  In addition, US3 
will require payment for the hardware upon delivery. 
 
Retention is limited to 10% of the total contract price. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 209 of 498



City of Fernando                                    

22 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Final Payment will be based upon completion and acceptance of the work performed and installed 
by US3 and is due upon acceptance. 
 
Payment Terms are NET thirty (30) days. 
 

Rate Adjustment:  US3 Standard Rates are revised on December 31 of each calendar year to reflect any 
increase in legislated or commercial rates for employee burdens, benefits or business general and 
administrative costs. 
 
Limits of Liability:  US3 will not accept liability for consequential damages. 
 
Holidays:  The following holidays are normally observed by US3: 
 
  New Year's Day   President's Day 
  Memorial Day    Independence Day 
  Labor Day    Thanksgiving Day 
  Day after Thanksgiving  Christmas Day 
 

US3 personnel on field assignments will observe holidays consistent with 
the Owner's policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 210 of 498



601 Parkcenter Dr. Suite 209 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 

Phone 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 

November 9, 2020 

City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Attention: Public Works Department  

Subject: Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 

Hello, 

Attached you will find Utility Systems, Science and Software (US3) response to the City of San 
Fernando Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services.  This proposal provides 
hardware, and software for flow monitoring and wastewater sampling at one location specified 
by City of San Fernando. US3 will collect wastewater samples once per quarter, and manage 
and provide monthly data for the measurement station for a period of three (3) years with an 
option to add another two (2) years. 

Specific advantages of selecting US3 include: 

1. Full in-house capabilities for all project requirements.
2. Direct applicable experience with all components associated with wastewater

monitoring services.
3. An excellent reputation for providing quality-engineering services within stipulated

budgets and schedules.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact undersigned at 714-564-3494. 

Sincerely, 

Mark Serres 
Mark Serres 
Vice President 

ATTACHMENT "C"01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 211 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

2 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 

 

Request for Proposal 
 

For 
 

 City of San Fernando 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling 

Services  
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
601 N. Parkcenter Dr., Suite 209 

Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone: 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 

 
9314 Bond Ave. Suite A 

El Cajon, CA 9021 
Phone: 619-546-4281 Fax: 619-398-2380 

 
www.uscubed.com 

 
www.sewerflow.com 

 
www.utility-iot.com 

 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 212 of 498

http://www.uscubed.com/
http://www.sewerflow.com/
http://www.utility-iot.com/


City of San Fernando                                    

3 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 

City of San Fernando  
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 

Proposal Index 

 

Tab 1: Identification of Proposer 
 
Tab 2: Staffing Resources 
 
Tab 3: Experience and Technical Competence 
 
Tab 4:  Proposed Method to Accomplish the Work 
 
Tab 5: Fee Proposal 
 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 213 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

4 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 1:  Identification of Proposer 

 

US3 is a California Corporation Federal ID No. 33-0729605 and qualifies as a Minority Business 
Enterprise. US3 has certified as an MBE with the California Public Utility Commission’s authorized 
clearinghouse, Verification Number: 97ES0008.  

Name of Company: 

Utility Systems Science & Software  

Type of Company: 

Utility Systems Science and Software is a Corporation 03-0404434 
 
DIR: 1000014022 

 
Certified Minority Business Enterprise 
Certified Small Business Enterprise 

Address: 

Corporate Office 
601 N. Parkcenter Dr., Suite 209 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone: 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 
 

Number of Employees  

 
Utility Systems Science & Software has over 80 employees as part of their parent company, 
Technology Resource Center (TRC). 

Name, Title, Address and Telephone numbers of persons to contact concerning the Proposal. 
 
 
Mark Serres  VP  
Mark.serres@uscubed.com 
601 N. Parkcenter Dr., Suite 209 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 
Phone: 714-542-1004  Fax: 714-542-1332 
 
 

Tom Williams Engineering Manager   
Tom.williams@uscubed.com 
9314 Bond Ave. Suite A 
El Cajon, CA 9021 
Phone: 619-546-4281 Fax: 619-398-2380 
Supervisor. Available 24/7 via telephone. 

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 214 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

2 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 2: Staffing Resources 

The fundamental objective is to provide city with the high-quality Services by utilizing 
advance-metering technologies factory certified from Hach Co.  All Services will be 
completed per an agreed schedule.   The Installations, Calibrations, Maintenance Services 
will be performed by US3 and is designed to provide City of San Fernando with complete 
coverage with hardware, software and engineering.  Thus, the Implementation Plan 
includes: 

• Verify equipment installation/operation. 
• Train City of San Fernando staff up to 10 people with all necessary handouts. 
• Gather information as a prelude to software/hardware maintenance. 
• Examine system following with the designed format forms. 
• Provide engineering/technical on-site support as needed to support the system. 
• Provide with 24 hrs on-call response support. 

 
Key Personnel 
US3 possess all material, office and technical resources required to successfully maintain 
the system and provide skilled enhancements for City of San Fernando.  Primary in support 
of this effort will be the following personnel: 
US3 possess all material, office and technical resources required to successfully monitor 
the system and provide skilled enhancements for City of San Fernando.  With over 60 
engineers and technicians, US3 can easily provide the necessary resources to fully 
implement this project.  Primary in support of this effort will be the following personnel: 
 

Mr. Mark Serres:  Mr. Serres is a degreed electrical engineer with over 25 years systems 
Fresh/Waste water systems, project management and systems  
 
Integration experience in relation to complex industrial systems, this includes experience in 
industrial automation and water/waste water industries.  Mr. Serres will be the primary 
point of contact for all technical issues for City of San Fernando.  Mr. Serres will also be 
responsible for assuring client satisfaction and will marshal the required resources to meet 
the project requirements. 
 
Mr. Thomas Williams:  Mr. Williams will be the City of San Fernando Project Manager 
with over 15 years of complex systems development for wastewater monitoring system 
experience.  This experience includes hydraulic compatibility, instrumentation, 
communications and analysis.  
 
Darlene Szczublewski, P.E.:   Mrs. Szczublewski has over ten years of engineering 
experience in flow monitoring related projects.  She assisted in the review of flow meter 
data and the completion of several SSES and Capacity Analysis projects to meet Consent 
Decrees.  Mrs. Szczublewski has completed numerous I/I-related studies for other clients 
as well.   

Mrs. Szczublewski has developed numerous flow data analysis techniques to present a 
clear informative picture of flow responses to storm events.  Her work also includes the 
development of training programs for clients describing I/I and capacity analysis 
methodologies. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 215 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

3 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Mark Serres, MSEE 
 
Mark Serres is an engineer with over 30 years of experience in fresh 
and wastewater systems, project management, and systems 
management.  Mark has integration experience in relation to complex 
industrial systems, including experience in industrial automation and 
water/wastewater industries.  His project capabilities include GIS data 
collection, development, and maintenance; sanitary sewer Capacity, 
Management, Operations, and Maintenance (CMOM) programs; 
wastewater collection, conveyance, treatment, and discharge facility 
design and permitting; and combined and sanitary gravity sewer 
modeling. 
 
Orange County Sanitation District Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  Project 
Manager for the Local Limits project and HATS projects. OCSD Metered Flow to IRWD Facilities.  
OCSD Collections installed temporary flow meters at all connections to the HATS for a period of 14 
days every year, on the anniversary of the connection, or as requested by CSD.  The total of the actual 
meter readings from these temporary meters will be deducted from the total meter readings at the Main 
Street Pump Station for each month flow is received from OCSD into the HATS. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This includes the 
Flow Monitoring and Wastewater Sampling at eleven locations.  Water sampling analysis was 
provided by US3 on 24 hour sample daily basis.  US3 will provided all C31 traffic control per 
Cal-Trans Methods & Procedures.  All Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using proportional 
sampling based on flow monitoring real-time results.   
 
City of Culver City Wastewater Monitoring and Sewer Planning  Project Manager for the 
monitoring and planning Services for a seven pump station integration and flow monitoring project for 
the City of Culver City.  Tasks included: providing wastewater monitoring, preparing and replacing 
pump station control system at two sites; installing a custom metering system; providing flow monitoring 
for the integration of a city-wide wireless telemetry implementation of a wireless communication 
network; installing wastewater event notification systems.  
 
City of Laguna Beach Sewer Planning and Wastewater Monitoring  Project Engineer for the 
planning, installation, and monitoring of 29 pump stations in the City of Laguna Beach.  Tasks include: 
providing wastewater monitoring; installing an event notification system; assisting in the installation of a 
communication tower; providing pump station level monitoring; and planning and implementing a 
successful sewer study in several difficult pump station sites. 
 
City of Riverside Sewer Flow Monitoring Project  Project Engineer for the integration of a sewer flow 
monitoring system with a city-wide wireless telemetry network.  Tasks include: installing wastewater 
event notification systems; providing system-wide sewer planning; wastewater monitoring; integrating a 
city-wide Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system; installing a treatment plant 
metering system; and providing training to City staff for future wastewater monitoring. 
 
City of South Pasadena Wastewater Monitoring  Project Engineer for a wireless sewer flow 
monitoring project in the City of South Pasadena.  Tasks include installing a custom metering system, 
analyzing wastewater for inflow and infiltration, and training City staff on the operation and maintenance 
of the wastewater monitoring system. 
 

Years of Experience 
30 

Education 
MS, Electrical and Electronic Engineering 
Heriot Watt, University 
Edinburgh, Scotland 
BS, Electrical Engineering 
Heriot Watt University 
Edinburgh, Scotland 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 216 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

4 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Thomas Williams, BSEE, BSME, PE 
 
Thomas Williams is an electrical and manufacturing engineer with over 
24 years of experience in fresh and wastewater systems, project 
management, and systems management.  Thomas is the Engineering 
Manager for US3.  Thomas has integration experience in relation to 
complex industrial systems, including experience in industrial 
automation and water/wastewater industries.  His project capabilities 
include GIS data collection, development, and maintenance; sanitary 
sewer Capacity, Management, Operations, and Maintenance (CMOM) 
programs; wastewater collection, conveyance, treatment, and discharge 
facility design and permitting; and combined and sanitary gravity sewer modeling. 
 
Orange County Sanitation District Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This 
includes the Local Limits project and HATS projects. OCSD Metered Flow to IRWD Facilities .  OCSD 
Collections installed temporary flow meters at all connections to the HATS for a period of 14 days every 
year, on the anniversary of the connection, or as requested by CSD.  The total of the actual meter 
readings from these temporary meters will be deducted from the total meter readings at the Main Street 
Pump Station for each month flow is received from OCSD into the HATS. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This includes the 
Flow Monitoring and Wastewater Sampling at eleven locations.  Water sampling analysis was 
provided by US3 on 24 hour sample daily basis.  US3 will provided all C31 traffic control per 
Cal-Trans Methods & Procedures.  All Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using proportional 
sampling based on flow monitoring real-time results.  . 
 
City of Culver City Wastewater Monitoring and Sewer Planning  Project Manager for monitoring 
and planning Services for a seven pump station integration and flow monitoring project for the City of 
Culver City.  Tasks included: providing wastewater monitoring, preparing and replacing pump station 
control system at two sites; installing a custom metering system; providing flow monitoring for the 
integration of a city-wide wireless telemetry implementation of a wireless communication network; 
installing wastewater event notification systems; and providing Flo-ware training for City staff. 
 
City of Laguna Beach Sewer Planning and Wastewater Monitoring  Project Manager for the 
planning, installation, and monitoring of 29 pump stations in the City of Laguna Beach.  Tasks include: 
providing wastewater monitoring; installing an event notification system; assisting in the installation of a 
communication tower; providing pump station level monitoring; and planning and implementing a 
successful sewer study in several difficult pump station sites. 
 
City of Riverside Sewer Flow Monitoring Project  Project Manager for the integration of a sewer flow 
monitoring system with a city-wide wireless telemetry network.  Tasks include: installing wastewater 
event notification systems; providing system-wide sewer planning; wastewater monitoring; integrating a 
city-wide Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system; installing a treatment plant 
metering system; and providing training to City staff for future wastewater monitoring. 
 
City of South Pasadena Wastewater Monitoring  Project Manager for a wireless sewer flow 
monitoring project in the City of South Pasadena.  Tasks include installing a custom metering system, 
analyzing wastewater for inflow and infiltration, and training City staff on the operation and maintenance 
of the wastewater monitoring system. 
 

Years of Experience: 24 
 
Education 
BSEE, Electrical Engineering 
Indiana University - Purdue University 
Fort Wayne 
BSME, Manufacturing Engineering 
Indiana University - Purdue University 
Fort Wayne 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 217 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

5 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Constance “Darlene” Szczulewski, PE, QSD, LEED AP 
 
Constance “Darlene” Szczulewski is an environmental engineer with 
over 12 years of experience as a civil engineer specializing in water 
resources and flow monitoring related projects.  Darlene has 
integration experience in relation to complex industrial systems, 
including experience in industrial automation and water/wastewater 
industries.  Current on State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) and Regional Water Quality control Board (RWQCB) 
policies, new construction permit requirements, Total Maximum 
Daily Loads (TMDL) and related water quality objectives. 
 
Developed innovative solutions for client construction and post-construction needs using current water 
quality regulations and Best Management Practices (BMPs).  Prepared and delivered numerous 
presentations on Leadership and Energy and environmental Design (LEED) AND Low Impact 
Development (LID) water quality BMPs, incorporation cutting edge technology into project designs and 
plan sets.  Her experiences include working with a wide range of projects from urban developments to 
rural master plan communities to government and public entities.   
 
Orange County Sanitation District Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This 
includes the Local Limits project and HATS projects. OCSD Metered Flow to IRWD Facilities .  OCSD 
Collections installed temporary flow meters at all connections to the HATS for a period of 14 days every 
year, on the anniversary of the connection, or as requested by CSD.  The total of the actual meter 
readings from these temporary meters will be deducted from the total meter readings at the Main Street 
Pump Station for each month flow is received from OCSD into the HATS. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality Sampling.  This includes the 
Flow Monitoring and Wastewater Sampling at eleven locations.  Water sampling analysis was 
provided by US3 on 24 hour sample daily basis.  US3 will provided all C31 traffic control per 
Cal-Trans Methods & Procedures.  All Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using proportional 
sampling based on flow monitoring real-time results.  . 
 
City of Culver City Wastewater Monitoring and Sewer Planning  Civil Engineer for monitoring and 
planning Services for a seven pump station integration and flow monitoring project for the City of Culver 
City.  Tasks included: providing wastewater monitoring, preparing and replacing pump station control 
system at two sites; installing a custom metering system; providing flow monitoring for the integration of 
a city-wide wireless telemetry implementation of a wireless communication network; installing 
wastewater event notification systems; and providing Floware training for City staff. 
 
City of Riverside Sewer Flow Monitoring Project  Civil Engineer for the integration of a sewer flow 
monitoring system with a city-wide wireless telemetry network.  Tasks include: installing wastewater 
event notification systems; providing system-wide sewer planning; wastewater monitoring; integrating a 
city-wide Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system; installing a treatment plant 
metering system; and providing training to City staff for future wastewater monitoring. 
 
City of South Pasadena Wastewater Monitoring  Civil Engineer for a wireless sewer flow monitoring 
project in the City of South Pasadena.  Tasks include installing a custom metering system, analyzing 
wastewater for inflow and infiltration, and training City staff on the operation and maintenance of the 
wastewater monitoring system. 
  

Years of Experience 
12 

Education 
BS Environmental Engineering 
San Diego State University 
 
CA Registered Civil Engineer 
NV Registered Civil Engineer  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 218 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

6 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 3: Experience and Technical Competence 
 
Utility Systems, Science and Software, Inc. (US3), is the Water & Wastewater Division of 
Technology Resource Center (TRC), providing monitoring and control for Utilities since 1991. 
 
 
US3 is in the forefront of this industry by taking the proven technological approaches, developed in 
other high tech industries and applying them, to protect some of our most precious natural 
resources: our environment and our groundwater. 
 
US3 engineers and technical personnel have applied advanced instrumentation system technology 
to water/waste water open channel flow monitoring, pipeline evaluation, engineering, and data 
analysis, all coupled to the power of the Internet This unique integrated systems approach allows 
the company to bring greater insight and intelligence gathering information about the water and 
waste water system performance of our clients, and in turn to support the fulfillment of their 
commitments to manage and cost effectively design, operate, and maintain these systems. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 219 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

7 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

US3 will provide the proportional flow monitoring services and training for the City of San 
Fernando as requested per RFP.   
 
To increase the quality of the flow monitoring data, Utility Systems Science and Software (US3) 
will utilize Hach Flo-Dar sensors.  
 

 
 
 
Flo-Dar - Flow Meter for Sewers & Open Channels 

 
The Flo-Dar Family of flowmeters provides a revolutionary 
approach to open channel and sewer flow monitoring. Flo-Dar 
combines digital doppler radar velocity sensing technology with 
ultrasonic pulse echo level sensing to remotely measure open 
channel flows.  
Flo-Dar's unique non-contact measuring technology means 
trouble-free sewer flow monitoring.  It even won the Water 
Environment Federation's Innovative Technology Award!Like all 
Marsh-McBirney products, Flo-Dar sets the standard for ease-of-
use, accuracy, and reliability. Flo-Dar accuracy has been 
independently confirmed by Alden Labs as well as the satisfaction 
of thousands of Flo-Dar users. 
 
US3 is the leading sewer flow monitoring company in the 

USA, providing the highest level of service at the lowest cost.  With over 500+ flow 
meters and calibrated proportional flow water samplers, US3 has the capability of 
providing City of San Fernando the highest quality flow monitoring Services.   
 
Additionally, US3 supports Municipalities, Consulting Engineering firms and other water/waste water 
systems integrators by providing temporary technical services for engineering, software 
programming, and technical site maintenance and calibration site support work primarily in the 
Water and Waste Water industries.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 220 of 498

http://www.marsh-mcbirney.com/news/flo-dar_ita2005.htm#_blank
http://www.marsh-mcbirney.com/news/flo-dar_ita2005.htm#_blank


City of San Fernando                                    

8 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
 US3 seeks to develop long term agreements with the afore mentioned industries, to provide 
temporary personnel services in support of their upgrade projects in water/waste water projects 
throughout the USA. 
 
US3 is focuses on those clients that have regulatory mandated, schedule driven projects, and 
where the budgets can accommodate high quality and outstanding technical services. 
 
US3 's management has over 30 years experience in the startup and operation of specialty contract 
engineering services. The owners and management team are all professional and degreed 
engineers and have extensive experience in the application and implementation of Water/Waste 
Water and associated Process Control Projects. 
 
A corporate goal of the organization from our Business Plan is to provide our customers with the 
best professional Engineering, Technician, and Software Programmer personnel available. To 
accomplish this, we at US3 consider our employees and perspective employees as our most 
valuable asset and recruit, qualify, and hire with the due diligence to assist our clients in the 
performance of their work and to assist US3 in developing the long term relationships which will 
lead to continued growth and profitability. We are currently working in several facilities throughout 
the USA and are selectively guiding the growth of our business into markets and areas where we 
can provide the highest quality value of service to our clients.  Specific advantages of selecting US3 
include: 
 

• Full in-house capabilities for all engineering disciplines required for this project. 

• Direct applicable experience with all components associated with telecommunication 
systems, including extensive water/wastewater experience. 

• An excellent reputation for providing quality-engineering services within stipulated budgets 
and schedules. 

• Engineering support for modifications or refinements to the system. 
• Maintenance and Calibration Services 
• Certified Confined Space Entry Service Crews 
• Decades of experience in both flow monitoring and sampling systems. 

 
Note:  Should the designated flow monitoring site require Class 1, 
Div 1 explosion proof equipment, US3 will provide at no additional 
cost the necessary hardware for this type of installation.  US3 will 
validate the existence of class 1, div 1 gas.  

 
Related Services 

 
Utility Systems Science & Software provides water/wastewater sampling for 
companies in the USA.  The listed projects below include virtually every type of 
water/wastewater sampling. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 221 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

9 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
 

Orange County Sanitation District 
Wastewater Monitoring & Sampling 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Goleta Sanitation District 
Sampling and Analysis 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: March 2019 
Contact: Rich von Langen 

714-488-1303 
Rvl_associates@earthlink.net 
 

1. Collect representative and flow-proportional 
samples 

2. Flow Monitoring 
3. Collect Biosolids Samples and Cyanide 

Samples 

Date: On-going 
Contact: Christie Shiang 
 Process Engineering 
 714-593-7499 
1. Sewer Flow Monitoring Project. 
2. Data Analysis 
3. Custom Meter Installation. 
4. Wastewater Sampling 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 222 of 498

mailto:Rvl_associates@earthlink.net


City of San Fernando                                    

10 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
 

Culver City 
Wireless Waste Water Monitoring, ENS, Sewer Planning, Lift Station Monitoring and 
Permanent 
Monitoring 
 

 
 
 
 

 
City of Riverside 
System Wide Sewer Planning, Waste Water Monitoring, Wireless SCADA and Permanent 
Monitoring 

  
 

 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Date: On-going 
Contact: Gabe Garcia 
 Engineering & Information Technology 
 310-253-5618 
1. Flow Monitoring Project Integration of City Wide 

Wireless Telemetry Implementation of Wireless 
Communication Network 

2. Waste Water Event Notification Systems 
3. Pump Station Integration Projects 
4. Sewer Flow Monitoring Training Projects 
5. Repair and replace Pump Station Control System 
6. Customer Meter Installation 
7. Wastewater Sampling 

Dates: On-going 
Contact: Steve Amsden 
 SCADA Systems Supervisor 
 951-351-6185 
1. Sewer Flow Monitoring Project with Integration of 

City Wide Wireless Telemetry Network 
2. Waste Water Event Notification System 
3. City wide SCADA Integration 
4. Wastewater Monitoring Training 
5. Treatment Plant Meter Installation 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 223 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

11 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

City of Santa Barbara 
Wastewater Monitoring and Water Quality  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Contact: Bradley Rahrer, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
805-560-7531 

 
 
1. Provide water sampling on 24 hour sample daily basis 
2. Sewer Flow Monitoring was performed using 

proportional sampling based on flow monitoring real-
time results. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 224 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

12 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Project Specific Experience 
 
Goleta Sanitary District Sampling and Analysis 

a) Role of the firm: US3 provides proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 
sampling. 

b) Value of Service: $57,356.00 
c) Value of Fee:  
d) Description of Services: Proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 

sampling. 
e) Staffing: 3 Technicians. 
f) Duration: 9 days 
g) Relationship to client 
h) Contact Information: 

 Rich von Langen, P.E 
 RvL Associates 
 714-488-1303 
 Rvl_associates@earthlink.net 
 

Orange County Sanitation District Sampling 
a) Role of the firm: US3 provides proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 

sampling. 
b) Value:  On-going.  
c) Description of Services: Proportional flow monitoring for wastewater 

sampling 
d) Staffing: 3 Technicians.  
e) Duration: On-going 
f) Relationship to client: Contract 
g) Contact Information: 714-593-7499 

  
 

Culver City Sampling 
a) Role of the firm: US3 provides wastewater sampling. 
b) Value: $185,256.00 
c) Description of Services: Wastewater sampling 
d) Staffing: 1 
e) Duration: 5 years 
f) Relationship to client: Contract 
g) Contact Information: 310-253-5618 

  
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 225 of 498

mailto:Rvl_associates@earthlink.net


City of San Fernando                                    

13 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 4: Proposed Method to Accomplish the Work 
 
Work Plan Data Availability & Quality Assurance  
 
US3 understands that City of San Fernando has a goal to sample lift stations, 
residential area manholes, industrial users and deliver samples to the laboratory for 
analysis, and conduct both classroom and field sampling instruction activities.  
 

 

  
Scope of Services/Project Deliverables 

Anticipated Time 
 

    

1.   Provide all necessary calibrated water/wastewater sampling and 
flow monitoring equipment. US3 shall have full responsibility of its 
employee’s safety and providing appropriate safety equipment.   

Four hours per month 

2.   Install sampling/flow monitoring equipment at the locations 
specified by City of San Fernando staff and provide the following: 

    
a.   In-situ calibration of sampling/flow instruments to observed site 
conditions; 

    
b.   Manually confirm depth and velocity measurement of each 
monitor; 

    

c.   Configure instruments for fifteen (15) minute data collection 
intervals with proportional flow/sample monitoring per (this is 
configurable to say 1, 5, 10, etc.) 

Field train City 
water/wastewater 
technicians 

 

  
 Per Quarter 

3.   Collect simultaneous sample/flow data at defined locations once 
per quarter 

  

4.   US3 will provide periodic maintenance and calibration of all 
equipment to ensure uninterrupted data collection for the duration of 
the project including: 

    a.   Depth and velocity verifications; 
    b.   Checking/measuring any buildup of silt levels; 
    c.   Inspection of all points of connection; 
    d.   Measuring power supply and battery replacement (if needed); 
    e.   Responding to instrument failure. 

  

5.   Provide both class and field training for sampling/flow monitoring 
to accepted engineering and regulatory principles. 

  

  

    Discussion of the process and equipment used; 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 226 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

14 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

    

b.   Description of site investigation and monitor calibration against 
City provided flow records; 

    
c.   Discussion of installation including a flow site inventory table 
located on website with: 

    i.  Meter site number 

    

ii.   City’s Manhole ID number iii.  Site description or address iv.  
Pipe diameter 

    v.   Dates installed and removed vi.  Low flow rates in mgd 
    vii.   Average daily flow rates in mgd viii.  Peak flow rates in mgd 
    ix.  Average velocity in ft/sec x.  Average depth in inches; 
    d.   Discussion of monitoring and maintenance procedures; 
     
     

    

 

    

 

One crew by US3,  
one day 

7.   Remove flow / sampling monitoring and associated hardware; 
restore utilities to their original configuration at the end of monitoring 
period. 

    

8.   All data collected shall become the property of City of San 
Fernando. 

  

 

 

 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 227 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

15 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Sampling Custody Transfer Procedure 

Wastewater sampling will be performed using ISCO/Hach Samplers.  The Methods and 
Procedures listed: 

1. Lab will provide prepared lidded sample jars and sample labels for the sample jars 
(new). 

2. When the 24-hour sampling has concluded, US3 will remove the sample jar from the 
unit, lid the sample jar, wipe dry the outside of the sample jar, affix the sample label to 
the sample jar, and initial and date the sample label  

3. US3 will pack the lidded and labeled sample jar in ice (the sample will remain packed in 
ice from the time that it is collected to the time that it is accepted by the Lab 
representative).  

4. The sample will be preserved by US3.  US3 will return the labeled and lidded sample jar 
to the Lab.  

5. When on-site, US3 will call Lab representative to assure they are ready for acceptance.   

6. US3 will transfer custody of the labeled and lidded sample jar to Lab representative. 

7. The sample temperature will be measured by a digital thermometer located in the 
sample receiving room. 

8. Lab representative will take custody of the sample jar and log it in along with the sample 
temperature and the Lab representative will also print a chain of custody form after the 
sample is logged in.  

9. US3 and Lab representative will sign the Chain of Custody form. 

10.  The Lab representative will file the signed, original chain of custody form in a binder in 
the sample receiving area.  

 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 228 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

16 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
Typical Jar Label 
 

 
 
Figure 1:  Typical Jar Label 
 
 

Parameter   Method   ATL-Code     

pH   SM 4500H+B  150_4500H+B   

Oxidation Reduction Potential*    
SM 
2580B   

2580B 
   

Alkalinity, Speciated   
SM 
2320B   

310.1_2320B_Speciated 
  

Oxygen, Dissolved*   SM 4500-O G  360.1_4500OG   
Sulfide, Dissolved   SM 4500-S=D  376.2_4500S2-D_Dissolved 

Biochemical Oxygen Demand*    SM 5210B  405.1_5210B_SUB   

             

 
Figure 2:  Example of Parameters to be monitored 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 229 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

17 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 

 
 

Figure 3:  Typical Log File for Custody Transfer

STANDARD

PHONE:
FAX:
EMAIL:

10 - 15 Business Days
PROJECT MANAGER

ID# DATE TIM E SM PL # OF
SAM PLED SAM PLED TYPE CONT. COMMENTS

Site 1 08/05/17 24 hr ww 1   

Site 2 08/06/17 24 hr ww 1    

Site 3 08/07/17 24 hr ww 1       

Site 4 08/08/17 24 hr ww 1       

Site 5 08/09/17 24 hr ww 1       

Site 6 08/10/17 24 hr ww 1        

Site 7 08/11/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 8 08/12/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 9 08/13/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 10 08/14/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 11 08/15/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 12 08/16/17 24 hr ww 1

Site 13 08/17/17 24 hr ww 1
RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY

RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY Received On Ice           Y  /  N
Preserved                      Y  /  N
Evidence Seals Present  Y  /  N
Container Attacked     Y  /  N

RELINQUISHED BY DATE / TIME RECEIVED BY Preserved at Lab           Y  /  N

PRESCHEDULED RUSH ANALYSES WILL TAKE PRIORITY SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS / BILLING INFORMATION

OVER UNSCHEDULED RUSH REQUESTS

 

 

 

QA/QC Data Package

 Rush Extractions 50%

 

 

 

CLIENT NAME: 

ADDRESS:

SW = Solid Waste

 

OL = Oil

NA= Non Aqueous
SL = Sludge
DW = Drinking Water

SAMPLE CONDITION:
SAMPLE TYPE CODE:

AQ=Aqueous

OT = Other M atrix

WW = Waste Water
RW = Rain Water
GW = Ground Water

SO = Soil

Actual Temperature:

MH-F06-198

 

 

 

 

 

 

ISCO 3710  Charges will apply for weekends/holidays

SAM PLE IDENTIFICATION/SITE LOCATION
 Method of Shipment:Hand

Day One 

Same Day Rush 150%

24 Hour Rush 100%

 

48-72 Hour Rush 75%

4 - 5 Day Rush 30%

Public Works Department
Wastew ater System Metering & Sampling 

SAMPLER

 

CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD

1250 Pioneer Way, Suite E El Cajon, CA 9202
Tel  (619) 546-4281   ♦  Fax  (619) 615-2380   ♦  www.uscubed.com     Page___1____Of____1______

PROJECT: ANALYSES REQUESTED SPECIAL HANDLING

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 230 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

18 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Tab 5: Fee Proposal 
 

  US3 Cost Proposal    

      
Sewer Flow Monitoring for 3 years   
Task Qnty Description Price Month Extended 

Task 1 Sewer Flow Monitoring    
 1 Flow Monitor per month 540 36 $19,440 

 1 Materials inc 1 inc 
    

   

 1 
Temp Flow Meter 
Installation inc 

1 
inc 

        
 1 De-installation  inc 1 inc 

       

     
Sub-Total for 
3 years $19,440 

        

Task Qnty Description Price  Extended 

Task 2:  Wastewater Sampling for 3 years   
 4 Prepare HASP inc 

 
inc 

 4 Validate ISCO Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Collect Sample inc 

 
inc 

 4 Maintain Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Deliver Sample to Lab Inc  inc 

    
 

  

    
Sub-Total for 
3 years $14,400 

        

Option: Additional Year Flow Monitoring  
Task Qnty Description Price Month Extended 
Task 3    Sewer Flow Monitoring for Additional 
Year    

 1 Flow Monitor per month 540 12 months $6,480 
       

     
Sub-Total for 
1 year $6,480 

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 231 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

19 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

  
Option: Additional Year for Wastewater Sampling   

Task Qnty Description Price  Extended 

Task 4:  Wastewater Sampling per Quarter   
 4 Prepare HASP inc 

 
inc 

 4 Validate ISCO Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Collect Sample inc 

 
inc 

 4 Maintain Sampler inc 
 

inc 
 4 Deliver Sample to Lab Inc 

 
inc 

    
Sub-Total for 
1 year $4,800 

      

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 232 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

20 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

 
TERMS & CONDITIONS 

 
 
2020 MANPOWER CLASSIFICATION & RATES 
 

     
 CLASSIFICATION     HOURLY BILLING RATE 
 
 ENGINEERING & DESIGN 
 
  Associate Engineer I     82.00 
  Associate Engineer II     88.00 
  Engineer I      145.00 
  Senior Engineer     165.00 
  Project Engineer     165.00 
  Sr. Project Engineer     185.00 

Project Manager        185.00 
 

Overtime:  Overtime is charged on all classifications, excluding Project Manager and Consultant, at the 
Hourly Billing Rate x 1.45.  The Project Manager and Consultant are charged at the Hourly Billing Rate 
for all hours worked.  Authorized hours worked over eight (8) hours per day, or over forty (40) hours per 
week, will be invoiced at 1.45 times the Hourly Billing Rate.  Hours worked over twelve (12) hours per 
day; for all holiday hours; or on the seventh consecutive day will be invoiced at 1.85 times the hourly 
billing rate. 
 
Expenses:  Travel Expenses will be billed at cost. 
 

Short-Term Assignments & Job Related Travel - Full expenses are charged in accordance 
with US3's Standard Travel Policy for short-term assignments of up to eight (8) weeks and 
job related travel.  Expenses shall be submitted with receipts for reimbursement by the 
Client. Mileage is charged at $0.50/mile. 
 
Long-Term Assignments - A per diem rate of $700.00 per week is charged as expense 
reimbursement for assignments of eight (8) weeks and longer. 
 
 

Materials and Supplies:  Material and supplies are invoiced at cost plus applicable taxes and freight plus 
a fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.  Net 30 on all hardware with no retention. 
 
Equipment and Facilities:  Equipment will be invoiced in accordance with US3 Standard Rates plus 
applicable taxes and transportation charges plus fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.  Included in this 
category are such items as jobsite trailers, jobsite facilities, test equipment and tools.  When demand 
exceeds the current US3 inventory, equipment will be obtained from others.  In such cases the 
representative lease/rental rates will supersede the US3 Standard Rates; however, taxes, transportation 
and the described markups are still applicable. 
 
Subcontracts:  A handling charge of fifteen percent (15%) will be applied to any Subcontractor's cost. 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 233 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

21 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Insurance:  US3 maintains a comprehensive insurance program.  The following levels of insurance are 
maintained: 
 

• Workers' Compensation coverage according to Individual State Statutory laws.  
• Comprehensive General Liability coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 including 

Employer's Non-ownership Contingent Liability coverage. 
 

US3 shall furnish Certificate of Insurance upon request. 
Invoicing & Payment Terms: 
 

Time And Material Contracts:  US3 will invoice all contract and change order costs on a biweekly 
basis.  Summaries of actual manhours charged by employee will be provided to support the 
invoice totals.  Expenses, materials, supplies, reprographic services, equipment, facilities and 
subcontracts will be invoiced per the conditions stated above.   
 
On Time and Material contracts with a not-to-exceed contract amount, US3 will notify the 
Owner/Client upon reaching a predetermined value of the contract so that the Owner/Client can 
make a contract value adjustment based on the Scope-of-Work remaining.   
 
Payment Terms are NET thirty (30) days. 
 
Lump Sum Projects:  US3 will invoice all contracts and change orders based on an agreed upon 
percent complete of a predetermined contract price breakdown on a Lump Sum basis.  The 
predetermined price breakdown categories would include, but not be limited to, such items as:  
project mobilization or initialization (35%); design; engineering; material received and stored on-
site or off-site at US3 but not yet installed; documentation, training and startup.  In addition, US3 
will require payment for the hardware upon delivery. 
 
Retention is limited to 10% of the total contract price. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 234 of 498



City of San Fernando                                    

22 | P a g e  U t i l i t y  S y s t e m s  S c i e n c e &  S o f t w a r e  
 

Final Payment will be based upon completion and acceptance of the work performed and installed 
by US3 and is due upon acceptance. 
 
Payment Terms are NET thirty (30) days. 
 

Rate Adjustment:  US3 Standard Rates are revised on December 31 of each calendar year to reflect any 
increase in legislated or commercial rates for employee burdens, benefits or business general and 
administrative costs. 
 
Limits of Liability:  US3 will not accept liability for consequential damages. 
 
Holidays:  The following holidays are normally observed by US3: 
 
  New Year's Day   President's Day 
  Memorial Day    Independence Day 
  Labor Day    Thanksgiving Day 
  Day after Thanksgiving  Christmas Day 
 

US3 personnel on field assignments will observe holidays consistent with 
the Owner's policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 235 of 498



Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

November 9, 2020 

City of San Fernando 
Attn: Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
117 Macneil St 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

Re: Offer to Perform Work 
RFP  – Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services 

Dear Mr. Jones, 

We are pleased to have the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide flow and strength 
measurement services for the City of San Fernando.  

ADS is uniquely qualified to assist you with this flow and strength measurement project, given ADS has 
over forty-five years of experience performing monitoring projects nationwide. ADS has been providing 
flow monitoring and strength measurement for most of the billing agencies in Los Angeles County for 
over twenty years. 

ADS understands the project objectives and will accomplish these objectives through coordination and 
teamwork with City personnel. We look forward to the opportunity to continue providing excellent flow 
monitoring services and solutions as outlined in this proposal.  Thank you for the opportunity to propose 
on your requirements.   

Sincerely, 

ADS Corp. 

Heather McPherson P.E. 
Business Development Manager 

(Enclosures) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 236 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

2 
 

 

City of San Fernando Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Proposal 
Submitted by 

ADS Corp. 
15205 Springdale St. 

Huntington Beach, CA 92649-1156 
 

Table of Contents 
 

City of San Fernando Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Proposal ...................................................... 2 

Executive Summary: ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

1.0 Technical Description of Work ............................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Project Understanding ........................................................................................................................... 5 

1.2 Flow Measurement ................................................................................................................................ 5 

1.3 Monitor Data Collection and Processing ............................................................................................... 6 

1.4 Monitor Operation & Maintenance (Field Service) ............................................................................... 8 

1.5 Wastewater Sampling & Strength Measurement .................................................................................. 9 

1.6 Measurement Station Location ............................................................................................................. 9 

1.7 Permits and Traffic Control .................................................................................................................... 9 

2.0 Qualifications and Resources ................................................................................................................. 9 

2.1 ADS Company Information .................................................................................................................... 9 

2.2 Award-Winning Performance .............................................................................................................. 10 

2.3 Company Background .......................................................................................................................... 10 

3.0 Sub-Consultant’s Qualifications ........................................................................................................... 11 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS .................................................................................................................... 11 

Certifications and Affiliations ........................................................................................................................... 11 

4.0 Project Experience .................................................................................................................................... 13 

5.0 Project Management & Staffing .......................................................................................................... 14 

Project Team .................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Project Manager and Region Engineer ............................................................................................................ 14 

Field Manager .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Data Manager .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Detailed resumes available in the Appendix .................................................................................................... 15 

6.0 Cost Summary ..................................................................................................................................... 16 

Appendix ........................................................................................................................................................ 16 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 237 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

3 
 

 

Executive Summary: 
Based on our understanding of the City of San Fernando (“City”) objectives for this project, we have developed a 
project approach that provides the industry’s most reliable and accurate sewer flow data and strength 
measurements analysis. To accomplish these tasks ADS has chosen to partner with Enthalpy Analytical on this 
project to provide lab services. Our two firms have a long history of working together with a proven track record of 
delivering the required tasks and goals similar to this RFP.  
 
Our team’s approach for this project is designed to address the City’s key issues listed below using a number of 
proven technical approaches the project team has successfully applied on thousands of projects in North America 
and around the world. 
 

• Provide turn-key sewer flow monitoring at 1 location for the contract length of 5 years. 

• Provide quarterly composite strength measurement results at 1 location for the contract length of 5 years.  
 

Our project manager, Paul Mitchell P.E., holds a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering and is a Professional 
Engineer in the States of California and Nevada. Paul has 30 years of industry experience, including 20 year with 
ADS and serves as both a Project Manager and West Region Sr. Engineer. 
 
Paul has successfully managed 150+ flow monitoring projects with ADS, ranging from a few meters to over 250 
monitoring sites. Paul has presented numerous technical papers at CWEA/WEFTEC focusing on flow monitoring and 
I&I analysis. Other members of our team include Jackie Crutcher, Sr. Data Manager, who has been with ADS for 35 
years and holds a Bachelor of Science degree. Shay Kroeber will serve as ADS’ Field Manager and has been with ADS 
for over 15 years. Our team has worked successfully together on hundreds flow metering projects and have a 
combined 70 years of flow metering experience! 
 
Or proposal identifies our project team and our project approach to address key City expectations. Our strategy is 
to provide practical/proven techniques; the most advanced technology and deliver the highest quality data. Our 
extensive knowledge of flow monitoring and strength measurement analysis combined with the strength of our 
project team and unsurpassed national expertise in the field of sewer flow monitoring services provides unique 
benefits for the City, below we present a few differentiators that set ADS apart from other service providers are 
highlighted below.  
 
Our team will work closely together with open lines of communications with the District’s staff and we promise to 
deliver high quality flow and strength measurement data that we have been delivering the past 20+ years. 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 238 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

4 
 

 
 
 
 

ADS Differentiator Benefit to the City 

Full Service National Company with Local Project Team 
• 45 Years of flow monitoring experience 
• Focused solely on sewer flow monitoring 
• Turnkey provider – no subcontractors or equipment 

suppliers needed 
• Provides flow and strength measurement services for 

most of the billing agencies in Los Angeles County 

• The City knows ADS data will be accurate and 
complete 

• ADS has extensive local and national flow metering 
resources which reduces the risk of missing data. 

• Single point of responsibility 

Project Manager with unique combination of Flow 
Monitoring, Engineering Expertise and Track Record of 
Successful Projects 
• Paul Mitchell is one of the Industry’s National Flow 

Monitoring Experts, having authored several 
technical papers on the subject. 

• Paul Mitchell has a proven record delivering flow 
monitoring projects of this size and complexity. 

• Paul Mitchell is immediately available to continue 
to manage the City’s flow monitoring and strength 
measurement analysis project. 

• Paul Mitchell is a registered engineer and 
understands how critical accurate flow 
monitoring and strength measurement data is 
for billing purposes. 

Innovative Hardware, Software and Analysis Techniques 
• Zero Drift Ultrasonic Depth Technology 
• Industry Leading Redundant Sensors 
• Online Data Delivery and Reporting 
• Track Record of Delivering Data on the 5th of Each 

Month 
• Use of Class I, Div 1 equipment for explosive 

environments 

• High quality and reliable data from the flow meter 
• Advanced Scatter graph analysis give insight 

into what is actually happening in the 
collection system 

• Unrivaled uptime and data integrity 
• Reliable and accurate strength measurement analysis 

results 
• Safe equipment in City’s Collection System that 

meets the national electrical code for Intrinsic Safety 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 239 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

5 
 

 

1.0 Technical Description of Work 
 

1.1 Project Understanding 
 

Background 
 

The City of San Fernando wastewater flow monitoring project requires a firm that has a 
proven history of delivering data that are accurate, complete, easy to access, and 
representative of site characteristics. Flow monitoring for custody transfer and billing must 
meet these quality objectives to enable the City to assure their stakeholders that is accurate 
and fair to all parties. 

 

Complete and Accurate Data 
 

A high level of data accuracy is desirable in order to achieve these benefits. High data accuracy  
is obtained from measurements with high precision and low bias. Significant equipment 
uptime is also required to collect complete data sets for evaluation. This is best accomplished 
from the use of reliable flow metering equipment, and the application of consistent 
procedures by experienced and knowledgeable staff throughout the flow metering process as 
described in our approach. 

 
The City can be assured the final data and recommendations received from ADS is subject to a 
multi-tiered ISO quality control and quality assurance process to deliver the highest quality 
data set and valid data uptime. 

 
1.2 Flow Measurement 

 
Data quality is key to the success of flow monitoring programs. Quality data are accurate, 
complete and representative of the site characteristics. Accuracy is measured by high 
precision and low bias. Accurate flow measurements result from effective: 
 

- Equipment 
- Site Conditions 
- Installation/Confirmations 
- Field Quality Control and Site Maintenance 
- Data Collection, Evaluation and Reporting 

  
High precision and low bias result from the use of reliable flow metering equipment and 
application of consistent procedures by experienced and knowledgeable staff throughout the 
flow monitoring process as referred to in this approach. These concepts are not mutually 
exclusive. All of these characteristics must be present. Without one, the others will fail to 
deliver the level of quality needed to meet the City’s objectives. Data quality objectives are 
defined by setting quality percentage targets. 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 240 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

6 
 

 
Monitoring Equipment - One (1) ADS owned Triton+ flow monitor is currently in place and has 
been continuously operated by ADS under the current contract. This monitor continues to 
provide high-quality data for the City and are used around the world for important flow 
monitoring billing applications. A product sheet for the ADS Triton+ monitor is included in the 
Appendix.  
 
 

“The level of environmental risk reduction that occurs in the real 
world is directly related to the level of performance and 
effectiveness of technologies purchased or used.” 
(www.epa.gov/etv). 
 

ADS will continue to utilize the ADS Wireless Triton+ flow 
meters with an ultrasonic depth sensor as the primary depth 
sensor and a secondary pressure depth sensor for redundancy 
and surcharge conditions and a doppler velocity sensor to 
measure velocity.   The ADS Triton+ sensors are 3rd party lab 
tested to be +/-0.2 feet/second for velocity and +/- 0.5% of 
reading for the level measurement. The Triton+ flow meter is 
IS rated Class I, Div. I, Group C&D/Zone 0. 

 

1.3 Monitor Data Collection and Processing 
 

ADS uses a multi-tiered staff, software and process approach to deliver the highest quality data 
set.  The flow measurement data sampling rate shall be at a minimum of every 15 minutes or a 
maximum of every 5 minutes. Monitors shall be calibrated at regular intervals per the  
methodology described in the following subsection. 

 

Data Review and Work Order Procedure 
Sites collected remotely are under jurisdiction of the primary data analyst. Twice weekly the 
data analyst reviews the depth and velocity data sets for changes in hydraulic trends which 
may indicate illegitimate flow patterns or faulty equipment. This is achieved by hydrograph 
and scattergraph review. Twice weekly review, followed by generation of work orders 
directing field crew visits, dramatically increases the raw valid data availability of a data set. 
The work orders identify the originating cause of the request as well as suggestions for 
resolution. 
 
Flow Monitor Software  

We will utilize our ADS Prism cloud-based software for data analysis and flow meter 
maintenance. Prism cloud-based software allows the users to visualize sewer system 
performance through intuitive dashboards and graphical displays. Near real-time data can be 
accessed to evaluate site conditions, export data and generate reports.   

 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 241 of 498

http://www.epa.gov/etv)


 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

7 
 

Data Finalization 
Data Finalization is the process by which the final tier of QA/QC is applied to the data set. The 
process of data finalization, like all other field and analysis processes, is managed under the 
strict quality programs certified under ISO 9000.  Data finalization includes the following key 
activities: 
 

• Final editing; identification of incorrect data points, final 
data reconstitution; estimation of true value to replace an 
incorrect data point where there is strong evidence to 
make that estimate (best for model purposes) 

• Establishing the relationship between monitored raw 
velocity and true average velocity in the wetted area. 

• Final depth adjustments to eliminate small amounts of bias 
that might remain in the depth data. 

• Final quantity calculation 
 

ADS’ Sr. Region Engineer and Data Manager will review decisions 
made by the Data Analyst on request during data finalization.   

 
                                                       

Timely Data Delivery  
The monthly deliverables shall include at a minimum the items listed in the RFP and the 
information provided in the reports ADS has been submitting to the City over the past twenty 
(20) years. To facilitate the ability for the City to view near real-time data an option for web-
based data delivery (Prism) is detailed in the Appendix. 

 

ADS will continue under our current operating procedure to prepare flow data submittals on a 
monthly basis - the 15th day of the month following the reporting period as required by the 
City. 
 
Typical data submittals may contain the following information for each flow site: 
 

- Electronic copy of all 15-minute data in excel format. 
- Monthly Hydrographs 
- Monthly Tabular Reports 
- Quarterly Sampling and Quantification Summary Sheet 
- Quarterly Chain of Custody 
- Quarterly Laboratory Results 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 242 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

8 
 

1.4 Monitor Operation & Maintenance (Field Service) 

 
As part of the proposed program, ADS will continue to provide turnkey Operation services for 
the one (1) existing ADS flow monitor. ADS field staff will work in conjunction with our data 
analyst to ensure monitor operation and accuracy. This will include the repairs and preventive 
maintenance services necessary to keep the equipment operating in accordance with the 
equipment’s design specifications. The types of services to be performed under this program 
include: 
 

- Communication link failure; 
- Confirmations; 
- Monitor replacement; 
- Depth and velocity sensor replacement; and 
- Battery replacement. 

 
ADS leverages the latest technology to effectively manage flow monitoring projects.  Field service is 
directed through a server-based work order management system readily accessible to all ADS team 
members.  Field crews are dispatched and routed daily using iPads.  These devices are also used to 
document all onsite activities – from confined spaces entries, to monitor service activities, to required 
confirmation data – transferring the results wirelessly to our information management system before a 
field crew departs the work site.  Our mobile management system provides real-time tracking of all ADS 
personnel, supporting the most effective flow monitoring program in your community in the safest and 
most efficient manner.  
 

Field Quality Control 
 

ADS has an internal flow monitoring, safety training, and certification program led by a 
dedicated manager with over 25 years of flow monitoring and collection system experience. 
All ADS field personnel are required to pass written and hands-on examination in six major 
topics including: 
 

QI-718219 – Flow Monitoring Theory  
QI-603093 – Standard Site Installation 
QI-718220 – Special Installation 
QI-603095  - Confirmation 
QI-603094 – Data Collects, Review & Troubleshooting  
QI-718201 – Rain Gauge 

 
Monitor Calibration (Confirmation Process) 

 

Site Confirmations/Calibrations are vital to delivering quality data sets ADS is known for. Confirmations 
are an independent manual field reading of depth and velocity which will be performed at installation and 
at least annually typically at all locations to confirm the accuracy of the flow monitors.  ADS will also 
perform confirmations whenever changes in hydraulics are observed by the Data Analysis during our 
standard QA/QC process. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 243 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

9 
 

 

1.5 Wastewater Sampling & Strength Measurement 

 
ADS will provide sampling services consisting of one composite sample per quarter at the one 
(1) site in the contracted scope of work. The samples will be flow proportioned and will be 
collected over a 24-hour period of time. All RFP scope requirements will be met. 
 
The samples will be analyzed by a laboratory (Enthalpy Analytical) that has been certified as an 
environmental testing laboratory pursuant to the provisions of the California Environmental 
Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 (Health and Safety Code, Division 1, Part 2, Chapter 7.5, 
commencing with Section 100825. The sampling data will be reported to the City on a 
quarterly basis. Qualification and certification information for Associated Laboratories is 
included in the Appendix. 

 
1.6 Measurement Station Location 

 
ADS is familiar with the one (1) monitoring location at 14210 Fox Street, having installed this 
monitor and operated them for the past twenty years. 

 
1.7 Permits and Traffic Control 

 
ADS will continue to obtain necessary permits and conduct traffic control procedures meeting 
Watch Manual requirements. 

 

2.0 Qualifications and Resources 
 

2.1 ADS Company Information 

 
ADS Corp. has assisted thousands of cities and utilities around the world with critical wastewater 
flow monitoring programs for 45 years. By selecting ADS, the City will demonstrate to their 
stakeholders, regulators, and ratepayers they have picked the nation’s very best and most 
experienced flow monitoring firm with the industry’s only U.S. EPA verified flow monitoring 
technology. Unlike other firms, wastewater flow monitoring is the core of our business and not 
just a minor or part-time endeavor. 

 
ADS offers end-to-end flow monitoring and information services for single-point 
accountability to insure all program goals are met without delay. ADS’ full-spectrum 
services begin with our ISO 9001 manufacturing facilities, installation and 
commissioning services, telecommunications expertise, field services for maintaining 
flow monitoring networks, data collection, processing, management and hydraulic 
analysis services to include comprehensive flow information reports. ADS has adopted 
the Six Sigma quality assurance  program, underscoring our determination to provide 
only the most accurate data and information possible.  

 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 244 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

10 
 

Clients have selected ADS for projects that include varied combinations of the following services: 
 

- Water and wastewater treatment plant monitoring 
- Wastewater collection and water distribution diagnostics 
- Flow monitor equipment purchase and installation 
- Analysis of flow data collected by non-ADS entities 
- Billing and custody transfer 
- Asset management 

 
What distinguishes ADS from other flow service providers is we are the only company that 
provides a full end-to-end solution. 

 
We perform the research, design the equipment, oversee the manufacturing, complete the 
installation, perform equipment maintenance, provide data analysis service, and have industry 
specific web-based software solutions. We will serve the City as their flow monitoring specialist 
and a single source of responsibility and accountability. 

 
2.2 Award-Winning Performance 

 
ADS has received numerous awards for wastewater flow monitoring equipment and software 
establishing us as the leader in the industry. ADS technical staff are frequent presenters at 
national, regional, state, and local professional conferences such as WEFTEC. 

 
2.3 Company Background 

 
Founded in 1975, ADS Corp. is headquartered in Huntsville, Alabama and continues to invest in 
research and development after the invention of the first of its kind self- contained, 
microprocessor-based, battery-powered, area-velocity flow monitor. Our ongoing investment in 
equipment, software and web-based system development ensures our clients that they are 
working with the latest in technological advancements in flow monitoring. 

 
ADS is part of the Water and Wastewater division of IDEX Corporation – A Fortune 500 Company. 
IDEX is an applied solutions company specializing in fluid and metering technologies, health and 
science technologies, dispensing equipment, and fire, safety and other diversified products built 
to its customers’ exacting specifications. 
 
ADS maintains offices in over 30 cities in the U.S. and the largest inventory of flow meters and 
related field investigation equipment. Our project work force is comprised of field managers, field 
technicians, project managers, data analysts and project engineers. 

 
Our Huntington Beach, California field office will lead our team for this project. If needed, 
additional ADS support is readily available from our Hayward and San Diego field offices. 
 
 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 245 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

11 
 

3.0 Sub-Consultant’s Qualifications 
 

The only sub-consultant involved with this project is Enthalpy Analytical who will be analyzing 
wastewater samples at their main facility in Orange, California. Enthalpy Analytical is an 
independent, full-service analytical laboratory serving clients throughout the world in a variety of 
industries. Enthalpy Analytical is certified by a variety of agencies. Laboratory audits and 
performance evaluations are performed routinely by these agencies and other  organizations. 

 
Enthalpy Analytical 931 W. 
Barkley Ave.  
Orange, CA 92868 
Tel. (714) 771-6900 

 
Qualification and resource information for Enthalpy Analytical is included below: 

 
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 
Enthalpy Analytical (formerly known as Associated laboratories, Inc.) is a full-service laboratory, 
which has been in business in the City of Orange for almost 90 years. Enthalpy Analytical is a 
national network of accredited environmental laboratories designed to provide its clients with 
responsive turnaround, best-in-class testing support, and high-quality data.  
 
Certifications and Affiliations 

Enthalpy Analytical is certified by the Department of Health 
Services, Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program – 
Certificate #1338. 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 246 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

12 
 

 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 247 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

13 
 

4.0 Project Experience 
 

Client Name, Address & Contact Brief Description 

City of Beverly Hills, Public Works 
455 North Rexford Drive 
Beverly Hills, CA 90210 
Josette Descalzo (310) 285-
2554 

Comprehensive field service, data analysis, reporting, and 
wastewater sampling. 
Date of Initial Contract: June 1998 Contract 
Duration: Thru June 2022 
Equipment: Five (5) ADS Triton+ flow monitors Current Annual 
Cost: $ 62,527 

Las Vírgenes Municipal Water 
District 
4232 Las Vírgenes Road 
Calabasas, CA 91302 
Doug Anders: (818) 251-2109 
Dir. Of Facilities and Operations 

Comprehensive field service, data analysis, reporting, and 
wastewater sampling. 
Date of Initial Contract: June 2004 Contract 
Duration: Thru December 2020 
Equipment: One (1) ADS Triton+ flow monitor Current Annual 
Cost: $35,760 

Crescenta Valley Water District 
2700 Foothill Blvd. 
La Crescenta, CA 91214 
David Gould: (818) 248-3925 
District Engineer 

Comprehensive field service, data analysis, reporting, and 
wastewater sampling. 
Date of Initial Contract: July 2004 Contract 
Duration: Thru June 2021 
Equipment: One (1) ADS Triton+ flow monitor Current Annual 
Cost: $16,200 

Universal Studios, Environmental 
Div. 
100 Universal City Plaza, 1360/2- 
200 
Universal City, CA 91608 
Joe Bellas: (818) 777-2791 

Comprehensive field service, data analysis, reporting, and 
wastewater sampling.  
Date of Initial Contract: June 2000 Contract 
Duration: Thru September 2021 
Equipment: Four (4) ADS Triton+ flow monitors Current Annual 
Cost: $66,000 

City of San Diego 
On behalf of 
Metropolitan Wastewater 
Joint Powers Authority 
Engineering Dept. 
9192 Topaz Way 
San Diego, CA 92123 
Jesus Escalona: (858) 614- 
5772 
Senior Water Utilities Supervisor 

Comprehensive field service and maintenance of 156 ADS flow 
monitors for billing, event notification, capacity planning and 
Consent Order compliance. Sixteen participating agencies 
benefit from accuracy, reliability, and consistent data provided 
by ADS equipment and service. 
Date of Initial Contract: July 2005 Contract 
Duration: Thru June 2020 
Equipment: 156 ADS Triton+  flow monitors 
Current Annual Cost: $900,000 

 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 248 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

14 
 

5.0 Project Management & Staffing 
 
ADS employs over 400 national and international personnel dedicated to the successful execution 
of flow metering programs. ADS offers industry leading benefits and training for the flow 
monitoring and service profession. This enables ADS to hire and retain a team of highly capable and 
stable employees who specialize in flow monitoring. A significant number of staff members have 
been  with ADS for over 20 years. This is in stark contrast to many flow monitoring providers who 
frantically try to hire field staff or various subcontractors to meet project objectives. Open channel 
flow monitoring is not simply a small segment of our products and services, but rather our core 
business! 
 
ADS is optimistic that the City staff will feel as confident as we know that obtaining quality flow 
data is not only possible, but is guaranteed by recruiting quality personnel and using a proven set of 
procedures. Successful flow monitor program execution starts with our five core values: 
 
• Safety - ADS has an integrated, comprehensive safety process led by a full-time Safety Manager. 
• Client Satisfaction - Our West Region of ADS enjoys some of our highest customer satisfaction ratings 

worldwide. Your ADS California team is committed to continuing this trend with the City through 
intelligent client communication to provide a clear understanding of the project goals and a shared 
commitment towards achieving them.  

• Key Personnel - ADS offers the team with the most flow monitoring experience of any flow monitoring 
provider. 

• Flow Monitoring Specific Training - All of our Field Operators, Data Analysts, Data Managers and 
Project Managers have been trained and certified in ADS’s standard procedures which are 
comprehensive, continually updated, and performed under the strict guidelines of ISO 9001 quality 
control. 

• Continuous Improvement – Research and Development - ADS is committed to tried and true 
technology and procedures but is also attentive towards continuous improvement. 

 
Through our integrated Six Sigma improvement initiatives, the City can be assured ADS is always 
looking for better ways of achieving even higher standards of performance for our customers. 
 
Project Team 
Our project team members have extensive experience in the field, in project management, as well 
as in data evaluation and interpretation. 
 
Project Manager and Region Engineer 
Paul Mitchell, P.E - Mr. Mitchell will lead project management activities such as master scheduling, 
budget management, subconsultant coordination, invoicing, and will provide engineering support 
and a final data/engineering review of complex or difficult monitoring locations. Paul has over 30 
years of technical and engineering experience with an emphasis in wastewater collection systems, 
and environmental assessment/site remediation.  He currently serves as Senior Region Engineer 
providing oversight on all sewer system technical projects and manages wet weather and capacity 
studies for projects in ADS’ Western Region, which includes the States of California, Arizona, 
Nevada, Colorado, and Utah.  This includes long and short term flow monitoring services, model 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 249 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

15 
 

verification, capacity studies for siphons, pump stations, and critical sewer segments, I/I analysis 
and prioritization studies. Mr. Mitchell will continue to be the City’s primary contact. 
 
Field Manager 
Shay Koerber – Mr. Koerber is a Field Manager for ADS Corp. Mr. Koerber has 15 years of 
experience exclusively in wastewater systems that includes such tasks as investigating sites for 
suitable monitoring, installing monitoring equipment according to site conditions, review of data 
for completeness and accuracy, and scheduling regular site maintenance and sampling activities. He 
is responsible for the direct supervision of field personnel and the development of their 
professional and technical expertise in field activities.  Mr. Koerber visits sites with clients to ensure 
monitoring is according to their request. He keeps the Project Manager updated with the field 
status of each project and work orders given by the Data Analyst are distributed by Mr. Koerber to 
field crews for prompt field service.  
 
Data Manager 
Jackie Crutcher – Ms. Crutcher has over 35 years of experience all with ADS Corp. She has 
experience and a demonstrated performance record spanning both field and corporate operations.  
She has conducted hundreds sewer system flow monitoring and evaluation projects involving 
infiltration/inflow determination, combined sewer overflow evaluations, capacity analyses, sewer 
system evaluation surveys. Her experience encompasses key project control disciplines in project 
scheduling and coordination, project management, analysis, data collection, and final report 
preparation.   
 
Detailed resumes available in the Appendix 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 250 of 498



 
Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services  

16 
 

 

6.0      Cost Summary 
 

Description: 
Sewer Flow Monitoring & Sampling Services 

 Itemized Cost 
(service and sampling) 

 
  Total Cost 

 Year 1- Annual Cost - Monthly Maintenance, Data Analysis and 
Online Reporting ($960/month) 

 
$11,520/year 

 

  Year 1 -Quarterly Sewage Strength Sampling, Analysis and 
Reporting ($1100/qtr) 

 
$4,400/year 

 

Year 1 Total Cost  $15,920.00/year 

  Year 2 - Annual Cost - Monthly Maintenance, Data Analysis and 
Online Reporting  ($960/month) 

 
$11,520/year 

 

 Year 2- Quarterly Sewage Strength Sampling, Analysis and 
Reporting ($1100/qtr) 

 
$4,400/year 

 

Year 2 Total Cost  $15,920.00/year 

  Year 3- Annual Cost - Monthly Maintenance, Data Analysis and 
Online Reporting  ($989/month) 

 
$11,868/year 

 
 

  Year 3 - Quarterly Sewage Strength Sampling, Analysis and 
Reporting ($1133/qtr) 

 
$4,532/year 

 

Year 3 Total Cost  $16,400.00/year 

  Year 4- Annual Cost - Monthly Maintenance, Data Analysis and 
Online Reporting ($1018/month) 

 
$12,216/year 

 
 

  Year 4 - Quarterly Sewage Strength Sampling, Analysis and 
Reporting ($1167/qtr) 

 
$4,668/year 

 

Year 4 Total Cost  $16,884.00/year 

  Year 5- Annual Cost - Monthly Maintenance, Data Analysis and 
Online Reporting  ($1049/month) 

 
$12,588/year 

 
 

  Year 5 - Quarterly Sewage Strength Sampling, Analysis and 
Reporting ($1202/qtr) 

 
$4,808/year 

 

Year 5 Total Cost  $17,396.00/year 

 Total 5 Year Contract Total  $82,520.00 

*Pricing Assumptions: Any applicable Federal, state, or local taxes are not included; No prevailing wages or W/MBE requirements.  
For Years 3, 4, and 5 a 3% CIP increase is added.  

 
 

Appendix 
 

- Resumes 
- Triton+ Flow Monitor Product Sheet 

- Prism Software Product Sheet 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 251 of 498



 

 

 

Appendix 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 252 of 498



SENIOR REGION ENGINEER PAUL MITCHELL, P.E. 

 
 

1 

 

 

 
 

 
 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY 
Paul has over 31 years of technical and engineering experience with an 
emphasis in wastewater collection systems, municipal waste, and 
environmental assessment/site remediation. He currently serves as Senior 
Region Engineer and Project Manager.  His background includes work with 
long-term flow monitoring services for model verification, capacity studies for 
siphons, pump stations, and critical sewer segments, infiltration and inflow (I/I) 
analysis and prioritization studies, sewer system evaluation surveys such as 
physical inspections, smoke testing, as well as technical reporting and 
presentation. 

 

 

Assignment 
Sr. Project Engineer/Manager 

 
Education 
B.S., Chemical Engineering - 
Cal State Polytechnic 
University Pomona, 1986 

M.S. Program Core Courses, 
Civil/Environmental 
Engineering – Cal State 
University Long Beach, 1991 

 

Registration 
Professional Engineer, 
California, No 049435  

Professional Engineer, 
Nevada, No 016878  

Professional Engineer, 
Utah, No 8972209-2202 

 
Experience 
31 Years 

 
Joined Firm 
2000 

 
Relevant Experience 

✓ Managed over 300 Temporary 
Sewer Flow Monitoring Projects 

✓ Expertise in Rain Dependent 
Inflow and Infiltration 

✓ Critical Site Flow verification 
and Capacity  Evaluation 
Expertise 

TEMPORAY SEWER FLOW MONITORING & RAINFALL 
DEPENDENT INFLOW & INFILTRATION STUDIES 

 
East Bay Municipal Utility District, Wet Weather Sewer Flow 
Monitoring Study, Oakland, California 
Sr. Project Manager. Had primary responsibility for running this 109 
meter, 9 rain gauge, 3 year project to identify basins with substantial I/I 
issues. Responsibilities for the project included cost control, ensuring 
deliverables were met, and oversight of all field and data analysis 
activities.  Also prepared the final data report that was included as a 
deliverable to Cal EPA. 

 
City of San Jose, Numerous Sewer Flow Monitoring Studies, San 
Jose, California 
Sr. Project Manager. Fifty-two sanitary flow monitoring sites and 16 
rain gauges on a continuous basis and provide daily updates of flow and 
hydraulic performance via wireless telemetry to a web based data delivery 
platform called Flowview™. Weekly service summaries and monthly 
uptime performance metrics are provided along with monthly data 
analysis and finalization / certification of data.  Deliverables also include 
seasonal flow metering (up to 100 meters at a time) and Rainfall 
Dependent Infiltration and Inflow (RDII) performance reports that provide 
trend analysis of dry and wet weather performance. 
Additions of up to 85 storm system flow monitoring locations and 9 
more temporary rain gauging stations will enable the City to get a better 
handle on their storm system model. 

City of Los Angeles, Wet Weather Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, Los 
Angeles, California 
Sr. Project Manager. ADS was awarded a 2-year comprehensive sewer 
system performance evaluation for the City of Los Angeles, CA. This 
included deployment of 93 wireless flow monitors in lines ranging in size 
from 12-inch to 99-inch, flow and map verification, capacity evaluation, 
preparing an Web-based master database of flow data and capacity 
performance data. Rainfall Dependent Infiltration & Inflow (RDII) 
performance evaluations were conducted in metered tributary zones using 
Sliicer software to assist in the preparation and calibration of their wet 
weather performance model. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 253 of 498



SENIOR REGION ENGINEER PAUL MITCHELL, P.E. 

 
 

2 

 

 

 
Orange County Sanitation District, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration Study, Fountain Valley, 
California 
Sr. Project Manager. ADS was awarded a 4-year - $6,200,000 project. The project involved delineation 
of 120 master basins and deployment of 150 wireless flow monitors to support the Cooperative Projects 
Program wherein RDII was targeted for reduction within the 24 Member Agencies comprising the 
District service area. This was the foundation project for all future RDII reduction efforts District wide. 

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Wet Weather Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, San 
Francisco, California 
Technical Advisor. Scope includes temporary sewer flow monitoring at 109 sites for 112 days for year 1, 
and 32 sites for 120 days for year 2. 

City of San Bernardino, Temporary Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, San Bernardino, California 
Sr. Project Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by AKM Consulting Engineers to conduct temporary 
sewer flow monitoring at 25 gravity locations for a period of 14 days for dry weather model calibration. 

Santa Cruz Count, Temporary Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, Santa Cruz, California 
Sr. Project Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by ARCADIS to perform turn-key sewer and rainfall 
monitoring for a period of 60 days at 10 flow metering stations and 3 rain gauge stations for a Wet Season 
Study and 30 day monitoring period at 10 sites for the Dry Season Study 

City of Santa Barbara, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration Study, Santa Barbara, California 
Sr. Project Manager. The project involved delineation of 40 master basins and deployment of 45 
wireless flow monitors and 8 rain gauges, RDII analysis, reporting, and future SSES recommendations. 
The technical report became a foundational reference for the City for future sewer system evaluations. 

 
City of Burbank, Burbank, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration Study, California 
Sr. Project Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by Kennedy Jenks Consultants, the project involved 
delineation of 15 master basins and deployment of 20 wireless flow monitors and 3 rain gauges, RDII 
analysis, reporting, and future SSES recommendations. 

City of Fullerton, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration Study, Fullerton, California 
Sr. Project Manager. The project involved delineation of 18 master basins and deployment of 27 
wireless flow monitors and 3 rain gauges, RDII analysis, reporting, and SSES recommendations resulting 
in ADS performing smoke testing of 125,000 linear feet. 

Midway Sanitary District, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration Study, Westminster, California 
Sr. Project Manager. The project involved delineation of 16 master basins and deployment of 28 
wireless flow monitors and 3 rain gauges, RDII analysis, reporting, and SSES recommendations. 

 
PUBLICATION AND PRESENTATIONS 
Mitchell, P.S., Enfinger, K.L., “Scattergraph Principles and Practice – Evaluating Self-Cleansing in Existing Sewers 
Using the Tractive Force Method” Proceedings of the World Environmental & Water Resources Congress 2010; 
Providence, RI; American Society of Civil Engineers: Reston, VA 

 
Mitchell, P.S., Stevens, P.L., “Gated Cross Correlation Velocity – A Breakthrough Technology for Wastewater 
Flow Management” WEF Specialty Conference, Louisville, KY, 2009. 
 
Mitchell, P.S., Stevens, P.L., Nazaroff, A., “Demystifying Base Infiltration in Sewers.” WEF Specialty 
Conference, Detroit, MI, 2006.  
 
Mitchell, P.S., Stevens, P.L., “How to Maximize the Value of Sewer Flow Information.” ASCE Pipelines 
Technical Conference, Houston, TX. 2005.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 254 of 498



 
 

1  

FIELD MANAGER I Shay Koerber 
 

 

 
 

Assignment 
Field Manager I 

 
Education 
Seattle Central Community 
College, WA Sociology 
Graduated 2000 
O&M of wastewater collection 
systems 
California State University 
Sacramento, CA 2013 

 
Certifications 
MACP, NACP Certified 
O&M Certified 
T-Lock Welder (Ameron Water 
Transmission Group, expires 
October 2017) 

 
Experience 
15 Years 

 
Joined Firm 
2005 

 
Relevant Experience 

▪ Successfully Managed over 300 
Temporary and Permanent Sewer 
Flow Monitoring Projects 

▪ Expertise in Flow Monitoring, 
Water Loss Control and SSES 

▪ Software, Hardware, Data 
Analysis and Field Experience 

▪ Safety Training Coordinator 

▪ 100% of  Shay’s projects have 
meet a 95% uptime rate or better 

▪ Site Reports/ Site Safety Plan 
development 

▪ Traffic Management 
Development 

▪ Field Crew Scheduling and 
Safety Preparation 

TEMPORAY SEWER FLOW MONITORING & RAINFALL 
DEPENDENT INFLOW & INFILTRATION STUDIES 

 
Relevant Experience 
As Field Manager Shay has successfully managed the field operations 
from beginning to end on over 200 temporary flow monitoring projects, 
totaling more than 1000 monitoring sites. These projects included studies 
required to obtain data for modeling, inflow and infiltration, billing, event 
notification services, flow proportional sampling, sewer smoke testing 
(SSES), and pump station calibrations.  Shay presently manages 14 long 
term projects totaling 200 monitoring sites, as well as several rain gauges. 

 
Shay has also had the experience working with several different agencies 
in multiple major metropolitan cities throughout the United States. Shay 
has helped assist and manage several major projects, including Seattle, 
San Diego, Los Angeles, Las Vegas, Fresno, Reno, Oakland, and San 
Jose. 

 
City of San Diego, Sewer Flow Monitoring and Event Notification 
Services, San Diego, California 
Field Manager.  Five-year contract with Metropolitan Wastewater worth 
$5,700,000.  Monitor 161 sanitary flow monitoring sites in pipes ranging 
from 8” to 114” on a continuous basis since 2005.  Provide daily updates 
of flow, hydraulic performance and event notification via wireless and 
landline telemetry to a web based data delivery platform, IntelliServe™. 
Daily service summaries and 95% or better uptime performance are 
provided along with monthly data analysis and finalization / certification 
of data used for billing, modeling and overflow alarming to meet EPA 
requirements. 

 
City of El Cajon, Sewer System Evaluation Services, El Cajon, 
California, 
Field Manager. ADS was contracted by the City of El Cajon to conduct 
164,000 lf of sanitary sewer smoke testing as a follow-up to a system- 
wide flow monitoring effort to identify RDII. The project involved 
locating cracks, breaks and illegal connections, and after extensive 
investigation, over 250 defects were found which assisted the City in 
developing a rehabilitation plan and identifying necessary sewer repairs 
and replacement. 

 
  
 

 
SUMMARY OF EXPERIENCE 
Shay is the Field Manager for ADS Environmental Services in the Huntington Beach, 
California office. He is responsible for the direct supervision of field personnel and 
the development of their professional and technical expertise in field activities. His 
responsibilities include safety training coordination, field record organization, and 
overall field performance of company projects. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 255 of 498



 
 

2  

Shay Koerber 
 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Los Angeles, Sewer Flow Monitoring and Event Notification 
Services, Los Angeles, California 
Field Manager. Thirty-three sanitary sewer flow monitoring sites for the 
purpose of billing, modeling and overflow detection. First commissioned 
in 1999, the monitoring stations consist of both land-line and wireless 
flow meters which report to ADS’ web-based reporting system for real- 
time flow measurement and alarming. Scope of work also includes 
comprehensive service, data analysis, certification of data and as-needed 
data review and engineering services. 

City of Las Vegas, Permanent Sewer Flow Monitoring, Las Vegas, 
Nevada 
Field Manager. Thirty sanitary sewer flow monitoring sites on a 
continuous basis since 1997.  Flow data is used for billing, modeling and 
flow verification during diversion activities. Scope of services includes 
comprehensive service, data analysis and event notification services. 
Deliverables also include as-needed temporary flow monitoring and 
removing and reinstalling monitoring stations. 

 
City of Westminster, Dry and Wet Weather Sewer Flow Monitoring 
Study, Westminster, Colorado 
Field Manager.  ADS was sub-contracted by HDR Engineering to 
conduct temporary sewer flow monitoring at 41 gravity locations for a 
period of 7 months. This included the deployment of wireless flow 
monitors in lines ranging in size from 8” to 60”, flow and map 
verification and validation of return to sewer ratio. The purpose of the 
study was to evaluate capacity and Rainfall Dependent Infiltration & 
Inflow. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 256 of 498



 
 

1  

 
 

DATA MANAGER JACKIE CRUTCHER 
 

 
 

EXPERIENCE SUMMARY 
Jackie is one of ADS’ most experienced Data Managers with demonstrated 
performance record spanning both field and corporate operations.  Jackie has 
conducted numerous sewer system flow monitoring and evaluation projects 
involving infiltration/inflow determination, combined sewer overflow 
evaluations, capacity analyses, sewer system evaluation surveys and 
permanent flow monitoring. Her experience encompasses key project control  
disciplines in project scheduling and coordination, project management, 
analysis, data collection, and final report preparation. In addition, she has 
provided analysis and software training, and customer software and product support. As a data manager 
for ADS, Jackie is responsible for cultivating proactive team relationships, maximizing resources and 
ensuring that data analysis requirements for assigned projects are achieved. She independently analyzes 
data, which may include sanitary, combined, and storm sewer flow data. Data management 
responsibilities also include coordinating work assignments and schedules for a group of data analysts, 
conducting data reviews, data audits, quality control and assisting with training of analysis team 
members. 

 

 

Assignment 
Data Manager 

 
Education 
B.S., Computer Science Technology, 
Alabama A&M University, 1983 

 
Experience 
35 Years 

 
Joined Firm 
1985 

 
Relevant Experience 
✓ Industry’s Most Experienced 

Data Analyst 

✓ Flow Monitoring Data Expert 
✓ Software, Hardware, and Field 

Experience 

TEMPORAY SEWER FLOW MONITORING & RAINFALL 
DEPENDENT INFLOW & INFILTRATION STUDIES 

 
City of San Jose, Numerous Sewer Flow Monitoring Studies, San 
Jose, California 
Data Manager. 52 sanitary flow monitoring sites and 16 rain gauges on a 
continuous basis and provide daily updates of flow and hydraulic 
performance via wireless telemetry to a web based data delivery platform 
called FlowView™. Weekly service summaries and monthly uptime 
performance metrics are provided along with monthly data analysis and 
finalization / certification of data.  Deliverables also includes seasonal 
flow metering (up to 100 meters at a time) and Rainfall Dependent 
Infiltration and Inflow (RDII) performance reports that provide trend 
analysis of dry and wet weather performance. 
Recent additions of 68 storm system flow monitoring locations and 9 
more temporary rain gauging stations will enable the City to get a better 
handle on their storm system model. Most of these will be re-deployed 
each wet season (6 months) and some new sites will be added each year 
for the next 5 years. 

City of Los Angeles, Wet Weather Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, Los 
Angeles, California 
Data Manager. ADS was awarded a 2-year comprehensive sewer system 
performance evaluation for the City of Los Angeles, CA. This included 
deployment of 93 wireless flow monitors in lines ranging in size from 12- 
inch to 99-inch, flow and map verification, capacity evaluation, preparing 
an Web-based master database of flow data and capacity performance 
data. Rainfall Dependent Infiltration & Inflow (RDII) performance 
evaluations were conducted in metered tributary zones using Sliicer 
software to assist in the preparation and calibration of their wet weather 
performance model. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 257 of 498



 
 

2 

JACKIE CRUTCHER 
 

 

 
 

Orange County Sanitation District, Rain Dependent Inflow and 
Infiltration Study, Fountain Valley, California 
Data Manager. ADS was awarded a 4-year - $6,200,000 project 
completed in 2005. The project involved delineation of 120 master 
basins and deployment of 150 wireless flow monitors to support the 
Cooperative Projects Program wherein RDII was targeted for reduction 
within the 24 Member Agencies comprising the District service area. 
This was the foundation project for all future RDII reduction efforts 
District wide. 

East Bay Municipal Utility District, Wet Weather Sewer Flow 
Monitoring Study, Oakland, California 
Data Manager. ADS was awarded a $2.5 million, 2-wet season sewer 
performance and capacity evaluation project resulting from an EPA 
Stipulated Order. This project involved evaluation of capacity in over 
100 locations and flow contributions from satellite agencies to a high 
standard of performance and accuracy in pipes ranging in size from 8- 
inch to 105-inch. 

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Wet Weather Sewer 
Flow Monitoring Study, San Francisco, California 
Technical Advisor. Scope includes temporary sewer flow monitoring at 
109 sites for 112 days for year 1, and 32 sites for 120 days for year 2. 

Port of Long Beach, Long Beach, Temporary Sewer Flow 
Monitoring Study, Long Beach, California, 
Data Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by RBF Engineers to conduct 
temporary sewer flow monitoring at 25 gravity locations and 6 lift 
stations for a period of 3 months study for a wet period and 14 day dry 
study. 

City of San Bernardino, Temporary Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, 
San Bernardino, California 
Data Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by AKM Consulting Engineers 
to conduct temporary sewer flow monitoring at 25 gravity locations for a 
period of 14 days for dry weather model calibration. 

Santa Cruz Count, Temporary Sewer Flow Monitoring Study, Santa 
Cruz, California 
Data Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by ARCADIS to perform turn- 
key sewer and rainfall monitoring for a period of 60 days at 10 flow 
metering stations and 3 rain gauge stations for a Wet Season Study and 
30 day monitoring period at 10 sites for the Dry Season Study 

City of Santa Barbara, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration 
Study, Santa Barbara, California 
Data Manager. The project involved delineation of 40 master basins 
and deployment of 45 wireless flow monitors and 8 rain gauges, RDII 
analysis, reporting, and future SSES recommendations. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 258 of 498



 
 

3 

JACKIE CRUTCHER 
 

 

 
 

City of Burbank, Burbank, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration 
Study, California 
Data Manager. ADS was sub-contracted by Kennedy Jenks 
Consultants, the project involved delineation of 15 master basins and 
deployment of 20 wireless flow monitors and 3 rain gauges, RDII 
analysis, reporting, and future SSES recommendations. 

City of Fullerton, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration Study, 
Fullerton, California 
Data Manager. The project involved delineation of 18 master basins 
and deployment of 27 wireless flow monitors and 3 rain gauges, RDII 
analysis, reporting, and SSES recommendations resulting in ADS 
performing smoke testing of 125,000 linear feet. 

Midway Sanitary District, Rain Dependent Inflow and Infiltration 
Study, Westminster, California 
Data Manager. The project involved delineation of 16 master basins 
and deployment of 28 wireless flow monitors and 3 rain gauges, RDII 
analysis, reporting, and SSES recommendations. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 259 of 498



Learn more about TRITON+
www.adsenv.com/triton

Call: 800.633.7246
Email: adssales@idexcorp.com

Flow Meter Specifications+R

Mounting
Options

Mount on the manhole rung use
standard hook (ADS p/n 8000-0021)

Mount permanently to the manhole wall 
use monitor mounting bracket/flange (ADS 
p/n I40-0009)

Mount to the manhole rim use monitor 
bracket/flange (ADS p/n I40-0009)

Intrinsic
Safety
Certifications

Certified under the ATEX European 
Intrinsic Safety standards for
Zone 0 rated hazardous areas 

Certified under IECEx
(International Electrotechnical Commission) 
Intrinsic Safety Standards for use in Zone 0 
rated hazardous areas (equivalent to Class I, 
Division 1, Groups C & D)

CSA Certified to Class 225803
Process Control Equipment,  Intrinsically 
Safe and Non-Incendive Systems – For Zone 
0 Hazardous Locations, Ex ia IIB T3 (152°C) in 
Canada 

 CSA Certified to Class 225883
Process Control Equipment, Intrinsically 
Safe and Non-Incendive Systems – For Class 
I Zone 0 Hazardous Locations, AEx ia IIB T3 
(152°C) in the USA (equivalent to Class I, 
Division 1, Groups C & D)

Other
Certifications/
Compliances

FCC Part 15 and Part 68 compliant

Carries the EU CE mark

ROHS (lead-free) compliant

Canada IC CS-03 compliant

Connectors U.S. Military specification MIL-C 26482
series 1, for environmental sealing,
with gold-plated contacts

Communication Third-party, FCC/IC/EC- and
carrier-approved wireless modem

Compatible with 4G LTE-M networks 
worldwide with 2G fallback (where available)

Automatically detects installed SIM upon 
boot up to determine correct network

Modem FCCID: R17ME910C1WW

Monitor
Interfaces

Supports simultaneous interfaces
with up to two combo sensors

Supports optional Analog and
Digital I/O with ADS XIO: two 4-20 mA inputs 
and outputs, two switch
inputs and two relay outputs

Power Internal - Battery life with a cellular modem:
• Over 15 months at a 15-minute sample rate*
• Over 6 months at a 5-minute sample rate*

External - Optional external power 
available with ADS External Power and 
Communications Unit (ExPAC) with an ADS- 
or customer-supplied 9-36 Volt DC power 
supply

* Rate based on collecting data once a day and 
varies according to sensor configuration and 
operating temperature

Connectivity Modbus ASCII: Wireless;
Wired using ADS ExPAC or XBUS

Modbus RTU: Wireless;
Wired using ADS ExPAC or XBUS

Modbus TCP: Wireless only

Operating
and Storage
Temperature

-4 degrees to 140 degrees F 
(-20 degrees to 60 degrees C)

Compatibility Attachable ADS Sensors

Qstart™XML with TRITON+® firmware 
version 6.42 and higher

PRISM™

© 2020 ADS LLC.  All Rights Reserved.  Specifications subject to change without notice.  TRITON+ Specifications 07-22-2020

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 260 of 498



The ADS® TRITON+® features three depths and two velocities with 
five sensor options. Each sensor provides multiple technologies for 
continuous running of comparisons. 

The Ultrasonic Depth Sensor version of this sensor specializes in depth measurement.
This non-intrusive, zero-drift sensing method results in stable, accurate, and reliable flow depth 
calculation. Two independent ultrasonic transducers allow for independent cross-checking.

Surface Combo Sensor
This sensor features four technologies including surface velocity, ultrasonic depth, surcharge 
continuous wave velocity, and pressure depth.

Dimensions Height: 2.45 in (62 mm), Width: 2.03 in (52 mm), Length: 10.61 in (269 mm)
Surface Velocity Minimum air range:  3 in (76 mm) from bottom of rear, descended sensor

Maximum air range: 42 in (107 cm)
Range: 1.00 to 15 fps (0.30 to 4.57 m/s)
Resolution: 0.01 fps (0.003 m/s)
Accuracy:  +/-0.25 fps (0.08 m/s) or 5% of actual reading (whichever is 
greater) in flow velocities between 1.00 and 15 fps (0.30 and 4.57 m/s)

Ultrasonic Depth Minimum dead band: 1.0 in (25.4 mm) from the face of the sensor or
5% of the maximum range, whichever is greater
Maximum operating air range: 10 ft (3.05 m)
Resolution:  0.01 in (0.25 mm)
Accuracy: +/- 0.125 in (3.2 mm) with 0.0 in (0 mm) drift, compensating for 
variations in air temperature

Surcharge Continuous
Wave Velocity

When submerged, this technology provides the same accuracy and range as
Continuous Wave Velocity for Peak Combo Sensor

Surcharge
Pressure Depth

When submerged, this technology provides the same accuracy and range as
Pressure Depth for Peak Combo Sensor

Peak Combo Sensor 
This versatile and economical sensor includes three measurement technologies in a single housing: 
ADS-patented continuous wave peak velocity, uplooking ultrasonic depth, and pressure depth.

Dimensions Height: 0.83 in (21 mm), Width: 1.23 in (31 mm), Length: 6.76 in (172 mm) 
Continuous
Wave Velocity

Operating Range: -30 fps to +30 fps (-9.1 m/s to +9.1 m/s)
Resolution: 0.01 fps (0.003 m/s)
Accuracy:  +/- 0.04 fps (0.01 m/s) in velocities < 1 fps; +/- 2% of actual velocity 
in velocities > 1 fps (0.30 m/s) in uniform flow

Uplooking
Ultrasonic Depth

Performs with rotation of up to 15 degrees from the center of the invert;
up to 30 degrees rotation with Silt Mount Adapter
Operating Range: 1.0 in (25 mm) to 5 ft (152 cm)
Resolution: 0.01 in (0.254 mm)
Accuracy: 0.5% of reading or 0.125 in (3.2 mm), whichever is greater

Pressure Depth Operating Range Option: 0 - 05 PSI up to 11.5 ft (3.5 m)
0 - 15 PSI up to 34.5 ft (10.5 m)
0 - 30 PSI up to 69 ft (21.0 m)

Resolution: 0.01 in (0.25 mm)
Accuracy: +/-1.0% of full scale

Sensor Specifications+
R

© 2020 ADS LLC.  All Rights Reserved.  Sensor Specifications 07-24-2020

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 261 of 498



www.adsenv.com+R

Sensors

© 2020 ADS LLC.  All Rights Reserved.  Sensor Specifications 07-24-2020

Dimensions Height: 0.87 in (2.20 cm), Width: 2.03 in (5.16 cm), Length: 3.00 in (7.62 cm) 

Housing Solid molded ABS, high impact and abrasion resistant, fully sealed device

Weight 1.5 lbs (0.68 kg) including 25 ft communication cable and connector

Operating Range 0° to 90°

Accuracy +/- 0.25 between 0º and 40º

Resolution 0º to 60° = 0.03°

60º to 90° = 0.3°

Mounting
Options

Mount on flat surface of the wastewater side of closed flood gate, or a closed 
door or hatch for intrusion alarms

Construction adhesive, stainless steel screws, zip ties, stainless steel clamp

INCLINOMETER
This sensor utilizes an integrated accelerometer to accurately determine the state of a flood 
gate’s positioning in water control and management systems.

Long Range Depth Sensor
A narrow, powerful ultrasonic beam allows this depth sensor to perform well over long ranges. 
Integral Submersion Sensor provides detection of flooding at the point of interest.

Dimensions Height:  4.22 in (107.2 mm), Width: 4.40 in (111.8 mm), Length: 9.15 in (232.4 mm)
Long Range 
Ultrasonic
Depth

Minimum Dead Band: 0.0 in (0.0 mm) from the bottom of sensor housing
Maximum Operating Air Range: 20 ft (6.1 m)
Beam Angle:  +/- 3º

Resolution: 0.01 in (0.24 mm)
Accuracy: +/- 0.25% of sensor range measurement or 0.13 in (3.2 mm) whichever 
is greater, in a homogeneous temperature air column
Drift: 0.0 in (0.0 mm)
Temperature Compensation:  Additional compensation for variable temperature 
air column supported

Submersion Detects submersion when fully covered with liquid

This sensor combines proven depth measurement methods with state-of-the-art gated velocity 
measurement technology to provide accurate and reliable area-velocity measurements to 
calculate accurate sewer flow rate.

Dimensions Height: 0.83 in (21 mm), Width: 1.50 in (38 mm), Length: 7.11 in (181 mm) 
Weight 2 lbs (0.91 kg)
Operating 
Temperature

 -4° to 140° F (-20º to 60º C)

Operating
Range

Ultrasonic Depth: 1 in to 72 in (2.54 cm to 182.88 cm)
Pressure Depth (standard): 0 in to 277 in at 10 psi (0 cm to 703.58 cm at 10 psi)
Velocity: -20 fps to +20 fps (-6.10 m/s to +6.10 m/s);
minimum depth for velocity = 5 in (12.70 cm)

Accuracy Ultrasonic Depth: ±0.13 in (3.2 mm) or ±0.5% of flow depth; whichever is greater
Pressure Depth: ±1% of full range
Velocity: ±0.2 fps (0.06 m/s) or ±4% of average velocity; whichever is greater in 
uniform flow in velocities between -5 and +20 fps (-1.52 to 6.10 m/s)

Resolution Ultrasonic Depth: 0.01 in (0.03 cm)
Pressure Depth: 0.01 in (0.03 cm)
Velocity: 0.01 fps (0.003 m/s)

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 262 of 498



www.adsenv.com/prism

PRISM Transforms Your System Management
PRISM™ is a web application that puts critical data at your fingertips to 
support management, engineering, and operational decisions within 
your wastewater collection system. PRISM connects clients to an ADS® 
monitoring network, delivering near real-time operational intelligence 
on the status of your wastewater collection system. It is the fastest and 
easiest way to visualize the condition of your collection system. It offers 
dynamic analytical functions to fuel discoveries that will lead to enhanced 
management of your system. 

Proactive Insight for 
Collection System Management

Ensure timely performance 
notifications with configurable 
alarms for advance notice of 
developing problems

Visualize sewer system 
performance through intuitive 
dashboards and graphical displays

Transform data into 
actionable insight with 
powerful analytics

Provides an easy and 
transformative user experience 
for sewer data management

Collaborate for success by sharing 
data, reports, and related files 
among cross-functional groups

System Wide Performance at a Glance 
Access your data and device status on our cloud-based Collection System 
Management platform, PRISM. The home page provides immediate system 
insight including a map view reflecting flow, level, and rainfall monitors with 
location and condition details, leaderboard tiles with system status, and quick 
access to the data vault as well as specialized reports. The intuitive interface 
allows you to quickly manage alarms, check collection and device status, 
generate reports, and link third party data through our self-service API to 
automate and enhance your specific workflow.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 263 of 498



© 2020 ADS LLC.  All Rights Reserved.  Specifications subject to change without notice.  PRISM_07-13-2020

www.adsenv.com

Data Vault
Upload, store, organize, and delete any files pertinent 
to your project. Share a time-sensitive link of your files 
with PRISM users or non-users. 

Visualizing and Reporting
Graphing and reporting capabilities include side-by-side 
Hydrograph and Scattergraph comparisons for rapid 
viewing of each site’s status.

Easy battery status 
management ensures 
seamless operation of flow, 
level, and rainfall monitors.  

Battery Status

Self manage and review alarms to
inform you of events, performance,
and data anomalies at flow, level,
or rainfall monitoring locations.  

Alarms

Track monitor communication 
status to identify any data 
collection problems that
may arise. 

Data Communication

Easy, Intuitive, Actionable 
PRISM’s dashboard transforms your experience.
Get in-depth system analysis that places operational 
intelligence at your fingertips. 

Advanced Features 
ADS is introducing new advanced features so you can stay on top of your collection system with in-depth insights and 
specialized tools. Contact us for demos or purchase. 

blockage PREDICT™
Prevent sewer overflows by coupling flow depth data 
with smart algorithms to sense developing sewer 
blockages. This advanced machine learning application 
recognizes flow anomalies and provides advance 
notifications so you can direct resources in a timely, 
cost-effective manner to pro-actively prevent sewer 
overflows before they become a problem.

New SLiiCER™ (Coming Soon)
Together, PRISM and SLiiCER provide a powerful set of 
online engineering tools designed to extract rigorous Dry 
and Wet Weather performance analytics from sewer flow 
and rain data with speed and precision.

PRISM Updates:
www.adsenv.com/prism-updates

Access PRISM:
www.adsprism.com

Talk to a Trained Representative:
T: 800.633.7246
E: adssales@idexcorp.com

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 264 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 265 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 266 of 498



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
   
Date:  January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Presentation and Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  

RECOMMENDATION: 

Receive a presentation from staff related to the City’s COVID-19 efforts, including, but not limited 
to: 
 
a. Review of the City’s COVID-19 planning, response, enforcement, and education efforts, and 

related policy initiatives; and 
 

b. Review of financial assistance programs and the pursuit of funding opportunities, and related 
recommendations, as appropriate. 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
This discussion is meant to provide City Council and staff the opportunity to discuss all items 
related to the City’s response efforts and policy initiatives related to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
including, but not limited to, discussion of financial hardship programs and CARES Act and other 
potential stimulus funding. 
 
Staff Updates. 
 
State of California COVID-19 Updates. 
Staff will provide an update on the State of California’s Blueprint for a Safer Economy plan 
(Attachment “A”). 
 
Los Angeles County Department of Public Health (LACDPH) Safer At Home Health Order. 
Staff will provide an update on current Health Orders issued by the LACDPH and key COVID-19 
related metrics (Attachment “B”). 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 267 of 498



Presentation and Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 2 of 5 
 

Health Order Enforcement. 
Staff will provide an update on current enforcement efforts and request direction related to 
future enforcement, as appropriate. 
 
City Facility Closures. 
In an effort to limit the potential exposure and spread of COVID-19 and to safeguard the City of 
San Fernando’s ability to continue providing essential services, including public safety, water 
service, and community support, City Hall will be closed to the public until the State of California 
lifts the current “Safer at Home” restrictions. 
  
City staff will continue to be available to answer calls and respond to emails Monday through 
Thursday, 7:30 a.m. through 5:30 p.m., and Friday, 8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m. For additional 
convenience, the public can use the Online Permit Counter, www.sfcity.org/Community-
Development, to submit building permit applications, track progress, and schedule inspections 
online.  Below is contact information for each City Department: 
 

Planning & Zoning Permits; 
Building Permits & 
Inspections; Graffiti 
Removal; Yard Sale Permits 

(818) 898-1227 CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org  

Water & Sewer Utilities; 
Water Bills (use night 
Dropbox if paying by check) 

(818) 898-1212 Finance@sfcity.org  

Tree & Street Services (818) 898-1222 PublicWorks@sfcity.org  

Police (non-emergency) (818) 898-1267 Police@sfcity.org 

Adult, Senior & Youth 
Programs 

(818) 898-1290 Recreation@sfcity.org  

City Manager (818) 898-1202 CityManager@sfcity.org 

City Clerk (818) 898-1204 CityClerk@sfcity.org  

General Information (818) 898-1200 Info@sfcity.org   

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 268 of 498

http://www.sfcity.org/Community-Development
http://www.sfcity.org/Community-Development
mailto:CommunityDevelopment@sfcity.org
mailto:Finance@sfcity.org
mailto:PublicWorks@sfcity.org
mailto:Police@sfcity.org
mailto:Recreation@sfcity.org
mailto:CityManager@sfcity.org
mailto:CityClerk@sfcity.org
mailto:Info@sfcity.org


Presentation and Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 3 of 5 
 

Indoor recreational facilities remain closed to the public except when a heat advisory is issued or 
a Public Safety Power Shutoff (PSPS) notice is provided by Southern California Edison and the Las 
Palmas Park facility is open as a cooling center or emergency shelter.  Staff is following the County 
protocol for physical distancing and cleaning while the cooling centers are open.   
 
San Fernando Residential Food Program. 
The City Council allocated $100,000 in CDBG/CARES Act funding to create the San Fernando 
Residential Food Distribution Program to assist families impacted by COVID-19. The food 
distribution program will provide a box of non-perishable food items (with a value up to $250) to 
each qualifying household. These items may include canned meat and vegetables, pasta, sugar 
and spices, sauces, canned soups and stews, coffee and tea, rice, baby food, and other non-
perishable food items. Personal protective equipment including masks, hand sanitizer, and 
disinfectant solution may also be provided. 
 
To apply, interested households must complete a self-certification form that will be submitted to 
LA County for approval. Once approved, the City will schedule date and time for a no-contact 
distribution of food to qualified households. Applications may be completed online or 
downloaded via the City’s website (WWW.SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Resident-Resources). 
 
Three San Fernando Residential Food Distribution events have been held on October 17, 2020, 
November 21, 2020 and December 19, 2020.  A total of 237 applicants have been invited to pick-
up their box of non-perishable fold and PPE items with more than 200 families being served. The 
next distribution event is scheduled for January 23, 2021, and the applicant deadline is January 
6, 2021. 
 
San Fernando Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for Businesses Program. 
The City Council allocated $25,000 in CDBG/CARES Act funding to create the San Fernando 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for Businesses Program to assist businesses impacted by 
COVID-19. The program will provide a box of essential items (with a value up to $125) to each 
qualifying business. These items may include disposable (KN95 and/or blue surgical-type) masks, 
disinfectant wipes, face shields, non-contact thermometers, disposable gloves, and contactless 
hand sanitizer system. 
 
To apply, interested businesses must complete an application and submit it to the City for 
approval. Once approved, the City will schedule date and time for a no-contact distribution of 
equipment to qualified businesses. Applications may be completed online or downloaded via the 
City’s website (WWW.SFCITY.ORG/Coronavirus/#Business-Resources). 
 
The first San Fernando Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for Businesses Program distribution 
was held on Monday, December 14, 2020.  A total of 66 applicants were invited to pick-up their 
box of PPE items with approximately 55 of those businesses being served. The next distribution 
event will be scheduled in late January or early February 2021. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 269 of 498

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#resident-resources
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/coronavirus/#business-resources


Presentation and Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 4 of 5 
 

COVID-19 Testing. 
On Tuesday, November 24, 2020, the City of San Fernando, in partnership with the City of Los 
Angeles, Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD), the non-profit organization Community Organized 
Relief Effort (CORE), and Curative Lab, established a walk-up COVID-19 Testing site at Recreation 
Park.  The walk-up super site offers up to 3,000 COVID-19 tests each day and operates Monday 
through Saturday from 8:00 am - 4:00 pm.  The site will also be able to deliver up to 500 flu 
vaccines per day.  In the weeks ahead, the site will also begin to enable residents to participate 
in an ongoing rapid antigen testing pilot.  Reservations are required and may be made through a 
link on the City’s website: www.sfcity.org/coronavirus. 
 
Recreation Park was selected because portions of the City’s zip code (91340) have experienced a 
significant increase in positivity rate over the last few weeks and LA County Public Health has 
found that locating testing sites in a community has been very successful in decreasing the 
positivity rate.  This is an important effort in curbing the spread of COVID19 in our community. 
 
Public Medical Point of Dispensing (MPOD) Location. 
Staff has been working with the County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health (DPH) to 
draft a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) designating the Recreation Park and Las Palmas 
Park facilities eligible MPOD locations.  Through the MOU, the City would partner with DPH to 
dispense life-saving Medical Counter Measures (MCM) to the public during a public health 
emergency.  To qualify locations in the City as MPODs, the proposed facilities must meet certain 
County MPOD requirements, City staff must complete training exercises and the City must 
execute an MOU.  The site inspections have been completed and the training/MOU adoption are 
tentatively scheduled for January/February 2021.  The MPOD structure may be used to distribute 
a COVID-19 vaccination when it becomes widely available and would open to everyone with no 
restrictions. 
 
COVID-19 Vaccine. 
Some groups in Los Angeles County are already being vaccinated. These groups include staff who 
work in acute care hospitals, residents and staff at Skilled Nursing Facilities, and emergency 
medical technicians and paramedics. 

Both the Pfizer and Moderna vaccines have been shown to be safe and very effective in large 
studies that involved a diverse mix of people. These vaccines prevented 95% of cases of COVID-
19 disease. While the vaccine stops people from getting sick, however, it is not yet clear if it stops 
them from spreading COVID-19 to other people. It is also not yet known how long they will be 
immune. So, everyone must still wear a face covering, physically distance, and not gather. 

The COVID-19 vaccine will be free for everyone and will be offered to different groups in phases 
(Attachment “C”) and is likely to be available to the general public in Spring/Summer 2021. 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 270 of 498

http://www.sfcity.org/coronavirus


Presentation and Update Regarding COVID-19 Response Efforts  
Page 5 of 5 
 

BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Coronavirus Relief Funds 
The overall total that the City of San Fernando received from the Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) 
from the Department of Finance of the State of California through the first CARES Act was 
$311,234.   Given how much staff time was needed to keep City Hall operating and the need for 
PPE at the inception of the pandemic,  City Council approved using the funds to reimburse the 
City of the following COVID response related expenses: 
  

City COVID-19 Response Expenses 

Personnel Costs  $250,000 

Department Supplies $61,234 

Total Costs $311,234 

  
The City’s Finance Department has tracked and continues to monitor these expenses.  The total 
year to day (March – December 2020) expenses for labor are $313,147 (inclusive of the most 
recent  payroll) and $158,775 for supplies  (as of the most recent accounts payable run) totaling 
$471,922. 
 
The City also received additional one-time federal Community Development Block Grant – 
Coronavirus (CDBG-V) funding in the amount of $136,373.  Per Council direction, $100,000 was 
allocated for the Residential Food Distribution program; $25,000 was allocated for Small Business 
PPE; $11,373 was allocated for administrative services through our consultant, Michael Baker 
International.  Approximately fifty percent of the funds for each program have been spent to 
date.  Staff anticipates holding a few more distribution events to spend the remainder of the 
funds. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. California Blueprint for a Safer Economy 
B. City of San Fernando and LA County Daily COVID-19 Data – as of December 30, 2020 
C. COVID-19 Vaccine Distribution Phases 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 271 of 498



ATTACHMENT “A” 

As of 12/30/2020 
 

CALIFORNIA BLUEPRINT FOR A SAFER ECONOMY 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 272 of 498



 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 273 of 498



ATTACHMENT “B” 

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data 
 
SOURCE:  
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/data/index.htm; statistics captured daily. 
 

Graph 1: Daily COVID-19 Cases and Deaths in the City of San Fernando 

Total Cases (as of December 29, 2020): 3,104 
Total Deaths (as of December 29, 2020): 31 
 

 

 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data

CASES

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

 25

 30

 35

City of San Fernando Daily COVID-19 Data

DEATHS

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 274 of 498

http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/data/index.htm


Los Angeles County Daily COVID-19 Data 
SOURCE:  
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/data/index.htm; visited on 12/30/2020 @ 
5:15 pm. 
 

Graph 1: Daily Reported Persons Tested for COVID-19 

7-Day Daily Average: 103,735     
Total Number of People Tested: 4,671,729 
 

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 275 of 498

http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/Coronavirus/data/index.htm


Graph 2: Daily Reported Percent Positive for COVID-19 

7-Day Daily Average: 17.0%  
 

 

 

 

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 276 of 498



Graph 3: Daily Number of COVID-19 Hospitalizeds 

Current Hospitalizations (12/30/20): 7,415 
 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 277 of 498



(Tier 1)Phase 1A
• Health Care Workers at Acute Care Hospitals, Psychiatric and Correctional Facility Hospitals
• Skilled Nursing Facility Health Care Workers and Residents
• EMTs and Paramedics
• Other Long-Term Care Facility Health Care Workers and Residents
• Special Needs Group Living Health Care Staff
• Dialysis and Infusion Centers

(Tier 2)Phase 1A
• Health Care Workers in:

o Residential Substance Abuse Disorder Facilities
o Immediate Care Facilities
o Home Health Care Service
o Primary Care Clinics
o Urgent Care Clinics

(Tier 3)Phase 1A
• Health Care Personnel in Specialty Clinics
• Laboratory Workers
• Dental and Other Oral Health Clinic Health Care Workers
• Pharmacy Staff Not Working in Settings at Higher Tiers

COVID-19 VACCINE DISTRIBUTION PHASES

• Public Health Field Staff
• Field-Based Community Health Workers Doing Work

with High Risk of Exposure
• Regional Centers

• COVID-19 Testing Staff

For more information, visit: www.ph.lacounty.gov/coronavirus
12/22/20 COVID-19 Vaccine Distribution Phases (English)

ATTACHMENT "C"01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 278 of 498



COVID-19 VACCINE DISTRIBUTION PHASES

For more information, visit: www.ph.lacounty.gov/coronavirus
12/22/20 COVID-19 Vaccine Distribution Phases (English)

Phase 1B*
• Persons 75 years and older
• Frontline Essential Workers:

o First Responders (Firefighters, Police)
o Education (Teachers, Support Staff, Daycare)
o Food & Agriculture
o Manufacturing

Phase 1C*
• Persons 65-74 years old
• Persons 16-64 years old with High-Risk medical conditions
• Other Essential Workers:

o Transportation and logistics
o Food Service
o Shelter & Housing (construction)
o Finance (e.g., bank tellers)
o IT & Communication

Phase 2**
• Persons 16-64 Years Old without High-Risk Medical Conditions

o Corrections Workers
o U.S. Postal Service Workers
o Public Transit Workers
o Grocery Store Workers

o Energy
o Media
o Legal
o Public Safety (Engineers)
o Water & Wastewater

*These are based on preliminary guidance from the CDC ACIP Interim Recommendations for Allocation of COVID-19 Vaccine and may be modified by the State. 
**Proposed population to be decided later by the ACIP. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 279 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 280 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 281 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 282 of 498



REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Matt Baumgardner, Director of Public Works 
   
Date:  January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Toole Design 

LLC to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan  

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 

1975) with Toole Design LLC in an amount not-to-exceed $79,290 for transportation 
planning and design services to develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for 
the City of San Fernando; and 

 
b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the Agreement 

and all related documents. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. On January 25, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 7837, a Safe and Active 
Streets Plan (SASP – Click on hyperlink to access plan) that detailed recommended policies, 
programs, and projects that would advance transportation safety and encourage physical 
activity.  
 

2. On November 26, 2018, the City, in collaboration with Local Government Commission, 
submitted a grant application to the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to 
obtain funds through the Sustainable Communities grant program. 
 

3. On May 17, 2019, the City was awarded a grant from Caltrans in the amount of $141,680 for 
the preparation of a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan.  
 

4. On August 5, 2019, the City Council accepted the $141,680 grant from Caltrans, approved 
Resolution No. 7941 authorizing the City to enter into an agreement with Caltrans for the 
preparation of the Implementation Plan, and approved Resolution No. 7943 appropriating 
the grant funds in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-2020 Budget. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 283 of 498

http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Safe-and-Active-Streets-Plan.pdf
http://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Safe-and-Active-Streets-Plan.pdf


Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Toole Design, LLC, to Develop a Safe and 
Active Streets Implementation Plan  

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
5. On July 20, 2020, the City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement with the 

Local Government Commission for $62,200 to manage the community outreach efforts, 
assist in the procurement of a transportation planning and design firm, and overall project 
management of the implementation plan process. 

 
6. From November 2, 2020 through November 30, 2020, Public Works staff received proposals 

from five (5) firms with experience in active transportation planning and design: Adhami 
Engineering Group, Alta Planning + Design, Inc., KOA Corporation, KTUA, and Toole Design 
LLC. 

 

ANALYSIS: 

In FY 2016-2017, the City developed and approved a Safe and Active Streets Plan (SASP) that 
identified challenges to walking and bicycling in the City. The SASP is broad and general in 
nature and recommends infrastructure improvements, such as the addition of bike lanes, and 
includes implementation steps such as a prioritized list of projects and funding 
recommendations to meet the City’s active transportation goals.  The development of the SASP 
included engagement with the community to identify the mobility deficiencies within the City’s 
transportation system.  However, since the SASP is a general citywide plan, it did not include 
conceptual designs for some of the recommended improvements and provided only broad cost 
estimates. 
 
The Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan (Implementation Plan) will build upon the 
general recommendations in the SASP by developing conceptual designs and cost estimates for 
the highest priority projects based on focused community outreach efforts, technical review of 
accident data, and active transportation audits in the City. The conceptual designs and cost 
estimates of the implementation plan will form the basis of future construction documents and 
funding strategies for completion of future active transportation projects in the City. 
 
As part of its efforts to complete the Implementation Plan, the City has partnered with Local 
Government Commission (LGC) to assist with community outreach, planning, and project 
management. LGC’s first task was to assist the City with the formal Request for Proposals (RFP) 
procurement process seeking a firm with expertise in active transportation and designing for 
bicycle and pedestrian safety. This firm will conduct all technical analysis necessary for the 
project and prepare the Implementation Plan for adoption by the City Council.   

The City received five (5) proposals in total from firms with significant experience in 
implementing active transportation plans for cities around the state, and Southern California, in 
particular. LGC and City staff reviewed the proposals and selected Toole Design, LLC (Toole 
Design), a national transportation planning and design firm with an office in Los Angeles. While 
all five firms presented strong credentials, Toole Design was selected because of their deep 
understanding of the particular needs of the City of San Fernando. They offered the opportunity 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 284 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Toole Design, LLC, to Develop a Safe and 
Active Streets Implementation Plan  

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
to provide a dedicated project manager, who is an avid cyclist that was born and raised in the 
City. In fact, the proposed dedicated project manager, Carlos Hernandez, commuted by bike 
from his home in San Fernando to Northridge while attending CSUN for his undergraduate 
degree. Staff feels this is a very unique opportunity to work with an experienced professional 
who understands the active transportation issues facing the City because he has experienced 
them firsthand for many years. Mr. Hernandez also has recent and relevant experience 
managing mobility and active transportation projects in Long Beach, Burbank, Santa Monica, 
and Santa Maria and Orange County. 

The following is a summary of the project scope to be provided by Toole Design under this 
professional services agreement: 

Task 1: Project Meetings 

 Project kick-off meeting 

 Participation in regular team meetings throughout the project 
 

Task 2: Community and Stakeholder Engagement 

 Conduct up to three Advisory Group meetings 

 Observations along major corridors, schools and parks prior to design charrette 

 Host a 2-day design charrette with key stakeholders 

 Create initial concepts and review with City staff 
 

Task 3: Assessment of Existing Conditions 

 Catalog existing conditions and produce a base map 

 Reviewing relevant documents, plans, and data sets 

 Conducting six 2-hour walking assessments 

 Conducting two 2-hour biking assessments 

 Capturing notes and key input for each improvement location 
 

Task 4: Developing Project Recommendations 

 Conceptual designs for eight (8) priority intersections in the City 

 Planning level cost estimates suitable for grant applications 

 Funding and Implementation Matrix 

 Phasing strategy for rapid implementation projects 
  
Task 5: Draft and Final Plan Development 

 Draft plan development and presentation to community 

 Log and review of community comments 

 Final Draft development based on community input 

 Presentation to City Council for adoption of final plan 
 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 285 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Professional Services Agreement with Toole Design, LLC, to Develop a Safe and 
Active Streets Implementation Plan  

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

The total budget to develop the Implementation Plan is $160,036.  Of this amount, $141,680 
are funds awarded by Caltrans under the Sustainable Communities Grant Program and $18,356 
is the City’s required local match. The grant funds were appropriated into the FY 2019-2020 
approved budget and carried over to FY 2020-2021. Following the approval of LGC’s 
professional services agreement on July 20, 2020, there was a balance remaining in Sustainable 
Communities Grant funds of $79,480. While this was not a requirement of the RFP, the bid 
submittals from Toole Design and the other firms were close to remaining balance. The local 
match requirement for this project will be met through in-kind staff administrative time 
dedicated to overseeing the development of the Implementation Plan and grant administration.   

  
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with Toole 
Design LLC in an amount not-to-exceed $79,290 and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Agreement and all related documents. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Contract No. 1975 
 

Source Use Allocation 

Sustainable Communities Grant 
(Caltrans) 

Toole Design (technical analysis, 
transportation audits, plan 
development) 

$ 79,290 

Sustainable Communities Grant 
(Caltrans) 

LGC (outreach, planning, project 
management) 

$ 62,200 

In-kind Staff Administration Time City’s local match requirement $ 18,356 

    

Total Sources:  $ 159,846 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 286 of 498



 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 

TOOLE DESIGN, LLC 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets 

Implementation Plan for the City of San Fernando 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 4th day 
of January 2021 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SAN 
FERNANDO, a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and TOOLE DESIGN, LLC (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may be referred 
to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may refer to CITY 
or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of 
Work”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the 
capitalized term “Work.”    

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of 18 months commencing from January 4, 
2020:  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s 
ability to terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is set forth in 
Exhibit “B” (hereinafter referred to as the “Budget Summary”).  CONSULTANT 
shall also receive reimbursement for those pass-through costs and expenses 
specifically identified in the Budget Summary as being reimbursable pass 
through costs, except that any such costs which are anticipated to be in excess of 
$500.00 shall require the prior written approval of the General Manager or 
designee before they are incurred.  For the purposes of this Agreement, those 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 1975 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 287 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 2 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

pass-through costs or expenses identified as being reimbursable under the 
Compensation Schedule may hereinafter be referred to as “Reimbursable.”  
CONSULTANT shall provide copies of receipts and invoices corroborating all costs 
or expenses, including Reimbursable Costs, indicated in CONSULTANT’s monthly 
invoice or statement.  CITY shall be under no obligation to reimburse 
CONSULTANT for unsubstantiated costs or expenses.   

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the budgeted 
aggregate sum of SEVENTY NINE THOUSAND – TWO HUNDRED NINETY DOLLARS 
($79,290) (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such added 
expenditure is first approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the  City 
Manager and the Finance Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are 
projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of the Term 
or any single extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-
Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation terms 
of this Agreement.  

1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar month, 
CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks 
performed during the recently concluded calendar month, including services and tasks 
performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of 
CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the recently 
concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate 
of compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each 
task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty 
(30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of 
any disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar day of 
receipt of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  
CITY shall not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments 
made to CONSULTANT.  

1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records 
with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to access 
and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY shall 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to 
inspect all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 288 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 3 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a 
deduction for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a 
result of CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

II. PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Director of Public Works and 
Public Works Management Analyst (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its 
representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be the 
chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall act on 
behalf of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not accept 
directions or orders from any person other than the CITY Representatives or their 
designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Tony Leonard, Project 
Manager, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have 
full authority to represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under 
this Agreement.  CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct 
the performance of the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible 
for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the 
CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this 
Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all 
reasonable times. All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and 
approval by CITY Representatives or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 289 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 4 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 
CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 
under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

 The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT’s 
own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary 
to correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of 
CONSULTANT’s employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such 
effort by CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately 
upon their discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days 
from the date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY 
Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT or 
on CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in 
performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied 
upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the 
representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of 
CONSULTANT’s profession. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 290 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 5 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in 
the performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees 
that it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  
CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement 
and provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized 
disclosure of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel 
performing the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not 
employees of CITY and shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and 
control.  CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such 
personnel and shall assume responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security 
and Medicare payments and the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports 
and obligations respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: 
Social Security taxes, income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability 
insurance, workers’ compensation insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or 
if any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 291 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 6 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or 
otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with 
applicable laws shall include without limitation compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA 
requirements.   

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical 
condition. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely 
responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, 
contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained 
or employed by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in 
any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or 
against, CITY, whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly 
conferred to CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by 
CITY in writing. 

III. INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and 
throughout the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies 
of insurance that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. 
CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own 
expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 
0001) or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less 
than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 292 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 7 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form 
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such 
Automobile Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property 
damage.  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage 
arising from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker 
employed by or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying 
out the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a 
period of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s 
profession.  Such coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include 
contractual liability.    

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to 
issue policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere 
under this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according 
to the latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard 
& Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the 
Standard & Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s 
Liability Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings 
than those set forth in this Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 293 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 8 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall 
not contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to 
a loss.  CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, 
that CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required 
under this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance 
and endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms 
satisfactory to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and 
approved by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any 
work or any of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide 
CITY with certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, 
claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising 
out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the 
provisions of this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and 
construed to provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under 
the law. CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in 
the absence of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as 
set forth herein. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 294 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 9 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 
of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions 
of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its 
statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all claims and 
losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury 
to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise 
wrongful acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person 
or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this 
Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred 
by counsel of CITY’s choice.  

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 295 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 10 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

V. TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 
days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.   Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date 
of the termination.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause 
as provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided 
herein, CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents 
and Data, as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared 
by CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall 
be required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
CITY’s written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of 
CITY pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s 
ability to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event 
of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, 
the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting 
Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the 
nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of 
Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not 
be less than the applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C 
below or if a cure is not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to 
begin such cure and diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of 
Default shall constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to 
cure the Event of Default within the applicable cure period or any extended cure 
period allowed under this Agreement.   

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following 
time periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work 
product which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s 
employees or agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 296 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 11 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time 
for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds 
seven (7) calendar days from the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that 
CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that 
the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure 
period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to 
grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 
5.2B.ii that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-
day cure period. 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely 
perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of 
Default on the part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the 
following:  (i) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks 
called for under the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its 
obligations under this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, 
within a reasonable time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or 
violation of any federal, state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation 
of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or 
similar legislation as relates to CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform or observe any covenant, condition, 
obligation or provision of this Agreement;  and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement 
representation or warranty by CONSULTANT relating to this Agreement  is false, 
misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five 
(45) calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the 
Event of Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   
Prior to the expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written 
request for additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY 
has commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 297 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 12 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to 
timely pay any undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, 
above, shall be cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of 
CONSULTANT’s Default Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default. Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for 
those services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the 
reasonable satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No 
actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to 
prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as 
provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No 
waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party 
shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or 
otherwise.  

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 
In addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this 
Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part; 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of 
the Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the 
Agreement  or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 298 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 13 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under 
this Agreement.  

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy 
shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of 
any unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for 
completed services and tasks.   

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and 
Data shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon 
their use or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term 
“Documents and Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, 
drawings, designs, renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, 
schedules, spreadsheets, calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other 
materials developed and/or assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement and fixed in any tangible medium of expression, 
including but not limited to Documents and Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or 
electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to 
copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain any and all copyrights, designs, and other 
intellectual property embodied in all Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require 
all subcontractors and subconsultants working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement to agree in writing that CITY shall be granted the same 
right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and retain Documents and Data prepared or 
assembled by any subcontractor or subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data 
prepared by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 299 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 14 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY 
data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT 
nor any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership 
interest in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction to have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the 
California False Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  

Toole Design, LLC 
980 9th Street, Suite 1700 
Attn: Director of Finance 
Phone: 916-448-1198 
Fax:  916-448-8246 
Email: lbloodworth@lgc.org 

 City of San Fernando 
Public Works Department 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 
91340 
Attn:  Director of Public Works 
Phone:  818-898-1237 
Fax: 818-361-6728  

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully 
transmitted by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid 
and addressed to the Party at its applicable address.   

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably 
necessary, appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work 
required by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written 
approval of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with 
subconsultants), if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 300 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 15 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

stipulated in this Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements 
and indemnification. 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ 
other contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by 
CONSULTANT. 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has 
not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, 
CONSULTANT warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, 
any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent 
upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation 
of this warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  
For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the 
term of his or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or 
obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the 
losing Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right 
or obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 301 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 16 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both 
Parties, subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, 
modifications or supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void 
and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts 
each of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten 
amendment, modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or 
binding unless made to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  
One fully executed original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the 
remaining two original counterparts shall be retained by CITY.  

 

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 302 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Transportation Planning and Design Services to Develop a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan for the 
City of San Fernando 
Page 17 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 1975 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO   TOOLE DESIGN, LLC 

By:    By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager   Name:  
    Title:  
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM     
      
By:      

 
Richard Padilla, Assistant City 
Attorney     

 

 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 303 of 498



13SA N FERN A NDO SA FE A ND AC T I V E S T REE T S IMPL EMEN TAT ION PL A N

Robust community engagement that involves all residents is key to 
keeping an Implementation Plan people-centered.

PROJECT APPROACH
The Toole Design Team has developed a scope of 
work tailored to meet the needs of this project. 
Elements included in our proposal build on the 
scope of work outlined in the Request for Proposal 
(RFP) coupled with our professional experience in 
delivering similar projects.

TASK 1: PROJECT INITIATION 
AND MANAGEMENT 

TASK 1.1: KICKOFF MEETING
A successful project begins with a shared 
understanding and clarity of project goals and desired 
outcomes. Toole Design will convene and facilitate 
a kickoff meeting with City staff, Local Government 
Commission, and Public Health Advocates (the Project 
Management Team or PMT) to review and confirm the 
goals of the project, scope of work, project schedule, 
budget, reporting, and the overall schedule. Our team 
can adeptly facilitate virtual meetings if necessary due 
to social distancing restrictions. During this meeting, we 
will agree upon project management and administrative 
expectations, communication and coordination 
protocols, and review available relevant data.

TASK 1.2: MONTHLY PM TEAM MEETINGS
Toole Design values frequent, meaningful communication 
with our clients to ensure that deliverables are 
completed in a timely manner and expectations are 
understood between consultant and client. These 
meetings are more than just a check-in: they are an 
opportunity to problem solve in real time, as well as 
stress test any next steps in the project process. Toole 
Design will participate in monthly meetings via virtual 
telephone/videoconference calls throughout the project 
and provide regular updates to City staff as well as Local 
Government Commission and Public Health Advocates.

TASK 1 DELIVERABLES:
▪ Kickoff meeting agenda coordination and attendance
▪ Participation in monthly PM meetings

TASK 2: COMMUNITY AND 
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

TASK 2.1: ADVISORY GROUP MEETINGS
Toole Design will work with the Project Management 
Team to establish and coordinate a Safe and Active 

Streets Implementation Plan Advisory Group. The 
Advisory Group will play a critical role in identifying 
key issues and opportunities for walking and bicycling 
in San Fernando including obtaining guidance on street 
design elements, reviewing findings, and confirming 
plan recommendations. Given that the City of San 
Fernando already engaged with an advisory group 
during the 2017 Safe and Active Streets Plan, we have 
the benefit of including past stakeholders in this group 
who can continue to support safe streets. We will meet 
with these groups up to three times each at key project 
milestones and focus on:

Meeting 1: We will compile and examine locations with 
the greatest safety challenges, schedule and identify 
locations for outreach events, identify key stakeholders, 
and identify strategies for engaging underserved 
residents. The Toole Design Team will come prepared 
with photos and videos identifying key safety challenges 
in strategic areas.  

Meeting 2: We will review outreach and planning efforts 
for the Community Design Charrette in Task 2.2, and 
review preliminary priority locations and project types. 

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 304 of 498



14 TOOL E DE SIGN

Meeting 3: We will review draft outline for the 
Implementation Plan, and review recommendations 
and concept plans developed during and after the 
engagement events. 

TASK 2.2: COMMUNITY DESIGN CHARRETTE 
Toole Design’s charrette process consistently yields 
successful projects due to several of its inherent 
features. Our charrette process is comprised of 
the Four Ds: discovery, discussion, design, and 
documentation. We have found this process to be 

effective for projects when there is a desire to solve 
complicated planning and design issues that involve a 
diverse set of stakeholders and interests. Discovery is 
focused on analysis and learning about the community 
issues, opportunities, and constraints. What we learn 
in discovery leads us to a deeper dive and discussions 
with community members and staff about design ideas 
and concepts that can work well for the community. 
Documentation of the existing conditions, project 
process, and resulting recommendations becomes the 
foundation of the plans we develop.

COVID-19
The realities of living through the COVID-19 pandemic are bringing new challenges every day. At Toole 
Design, our first priority is protecting the health and well-being of our staff and their families as well 
as our teaming partners, clients, and the communities that we serve. We are grateful to have both the 
technology and know-how required to continue our work, even in a time of social distancing. We have 
access to state-of-the-art technology and equipment that allows all of our staff to work remotely with 
minimized disruption to our clients and our projects, and we are continuing to develop solutions to 
everything from IT challenges to conducting public outreach without holding a meeting. 

Public Engagement 
Toole Design recognizes the current need to be adaptable and creative when it comes to stakeholder 
and community engagement. We have been a leader in digital engagement for years, and we are 
prepared to put those skills to work on the San Fernando Safe and Active Streets Implementation 
Plan for as long as social distancing remains necessary. 

On past, similar projects, our team has used a wide array of remote engagement strategies to reach 
a broad cross-section of the community, including:
▪ Interactive web maps and custom websites
▪ Online open houses and town halls
▪ Online surveys
▪ Virtual walk audits using Zoom’s mobile app or GPS-enabled video cameras
▪ Social media strategies
▪ Direct outreach by telephone to representatives of historically marginalized groups (e.g., older adults,

people of color, people with disabilities, low-income participants, non-English speaking households)

We have spent the past several months moving in-person committee and public meetings online, 
and we will apply the lessons we’ve learned to our work in San Fernando. Strategies that will help us 
make the most of remote meetings include the following:
▪ Google Earth field audit with integrated drawings and background information.
▪ Video-based kickoff meetings with project teams and stakeholders.
▪ Digital workshops with 40+ attendees, multiple presenters and integrated polling.

For San Fernando, we will be nimble and adapt our engagement strategies as needed to ensure we 
meet your goals and the community’s needs.

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 305 of 498



15SA N FERN A NDO SA FE A ND AC T I V E S T REE T S IMPL EMEN TAT ION PL A N

The following is a brief overview of our proposed 
charrette schedule, which can be easily adapted to a 
virtual environment in accordance with public health 
guidelines. Toole Design has recently adapted multi-
day charrettes from in-person to online for the City 
of Beverly Hills and County of Sacramento. Our team 
is adept at using creative virtual tools to ensure that 
participants can collaborate effectively with us in an 
online design space without needing to understand 
high-tech tools or new software.

Day 1: The Project Team will observe conditions along 
major corridors and key locations, as well as host a 
public meeting to introduce the project, present draft 
recommendations based on the Safe and Active Streets 
Plan, and discuss opportunities and challenges.

Day 2: The Project Team will host two to three focused 
sessions with key stakeholders to dive deeper into 

safety issues and priorities for walking and biking in 
San Fernando. The beauty of the charrette format is 
that all the maps, resources, and people are readily 
available, creating significant efficiencies and resulting 
in effective communications. Day 2 will culminate in a 
public session presenting initial concepts and priority 
projects for feedback.

OPTIONAL TASK: VIDEOS
We have unique capabilities to create videos and 
animations that help tell stories to the public that 
traditional outreach cannot quite do sometimes. We 
know that it is very important to the success of any 
planning process that the public be educated on why the 
process is being carried out, the benefits of investing in 
active transportation infrastructure and planning, and 
what proposed improvements might look like when they 
are implemented. We can create videos of these or any 
number of topics that can be boosted on social media 
throughout the life of the project to gain more support 
for the plan. We can also create videos that profile San 
Fernando residents from different communities and 
with different abilities to tell their walking and bicycling 
stories and why these plans are important to them. 

These videos can vary in complexity and cost between 
$5K - $20K. You can review examples of our video 
portfolio here. 

TASK 2 DELIVERABLES:
▪ Conduct up to three Advisory Group meetings
▪ Observations along major corridors, schools and

parks, prior to the design charrette
▪ Host a 2-day design charrette with key

stakeholders, using the Four Ds approach
▪ Create initial concepts and review with City staff

OPTIONAL TASKS:
▪ Animated videos to explain the project benefits

TASK 3: EXISTING CONDITIONS
TASK 3.1: CATALOGUE EXISTING 
CONDITIONS AND PREPARE BASE MAPS
Toole Design will work with the City’s staff to determine 
the extent and format of existing GIS inventories, traffic 
counts, crash data, standard plans, and other relevant 
planning documents such as the SASIP, to develop 
the mapping framework for Task 2: Community and 
Stakeholder Engagement. To the extent possible, Toole 

Our team used the interactive and user-friendly software “Miro” for 
virtual charrettes in Beverly Hills; allowing all participants to draw 
and ideate in real time.

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 306 of 498

https://youtu.be/47QshIPN4pY
https://youtu.be/47QshIPN4pY


16 TOOL E DE SIGN

walking and bicycling assessments after identifying 
priority areas and prior to the community design 
charrette. This way, the walking and bicycling 
assessments can be used for collecting before-
implementation observation data at the project 
locations where we are certain there will be near-term 
investment, thereby saving costs in the future.

TASK 3 DELIVERABLES:
▪ Catalogue existing datasets from the 2017 SASIP to

produce a base map
▪ Review relevant documents and plans
▪ Observations along major corridors, schools and

parks, prior to the design charrette
▪ Conduct six (6) 2-hour walking assessments
▪ Conduct two (2) 2-hour bicycle assessments
▪ Capture notes and key feedback for each

improvement location

TASK 4: PROJECT RECOMMENDATIONS
TASK 4.1: CONCEPT DESIGNS
The Toole Design Team will work with the City of San 
Fernando to produce concept plans for up to eight 
locations suitable for the City to advance through 
final design, bidding and construction. As a firm that 
specializes in final design of street safety projects, we 
are particularly adept at providing accurate information 
to support the final design, bid, and construction. 
Concept plans will reference both the toolbox of 
systemic countermeasures included in the SASIP, as 
well as recent, innovative countermeasures applied to 
similar cities to address areas of concern identified in 
the Existing Conditions assessment (Task 3), and from 
preliminary Community and Stakeholder input (Task 2).

Each concept design will be evaluated using a rigorous 
set of criteria, allowing the project team to align 
proposed improvements to established project goals. 
The evaluation criteria will be used to support informed 
and defensible decision making and respond to 
stakeholder concerns.

Criteria to consider include, but are not limited to, 
the following:
▪ Improvements to pedestrian and cyclist safety, based

on research-backed data and national best practices
▪ Improvements to pedestrian comfort, also informed

by national best practices

Design will use open source data and imagery to fill 
data gaps. Our team will also prepare a collection of 
photographs and videos for engagement meeting use so 
that participants get an up-to-date look and feel for the 
project areas. This map along with summary statistics 
will be used to initiate discussions among stakeholders. 
Maps developed for the final plan will interface with the 
City’s Geographic Information System. 

TASK 3.2: WALKING AND 
BICYCLING ASSESSMENTS 
Walking and bicycling assessments are a great way 
to engage stakeholders and City staff and discuss 
safety-related issues while observing operations 
and behaviors in real time. San Fernando has a 
rich community base and we may consider inviting 
stakeholders from the SASIP, such as school 
administrators and parents. We propose to conduct 

Toole Design will evaluate and inventory existing conditions and 
facilities like the San Fernando Road Bike Path and its many 
transitions into the neighborhood.

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 307 of 498



17SA N FERN A NDO SA FE A ND AC T I V E S T REE T S IMPL EMEN TAT ION PL A N

UPTOWN LONG BEACH NEIGHBORHOOD 
MOBILITY ENHANCEMENT PLAN
LONG BEACH, CA

The Uptown Planning Land Use and Neighborhood 
Strategy (UPLAN) is a community-led effort to 
re-envision zoning and land use changes in North 
Long Beach (Uptown). The first phase of work began 
in 2018 by crafting a participatory and leadership 
development approach to include all voices from the 
community in the project’s process and outcomes. 
This neighborhood is more diverse when compared 
to the rest of Long Beach and to Los Angeles County, 
with many people of color and low-income residents, 
many of whom are also youth. The UPLAN project 
leverages these demographics as an opportunity to 
train residents to lead the process and its outcomes 
and to develop youth leadership.

Toole Design is leading the development of a 
neighborhood mobility plan for the project’s second 
phase. We will be providing community and capacity 
engagement support, studying community access 
and connectivity, and developing and prioritizing 
projects and programs that will be included in the 
plan. Toole Design will develop and use materials, 
presentation formats, and facilitation methods that 
are collaborative and culturally sensitive to ensure 
project outcomes are substantively shaped by the 
community engagement process.

PROJECT INFORMATION
START: May 2019 COMPLETION: Ongoing
FEE: $107k STAFF: 8

▪ Social equity, especially as related to young people
and older adults

▪ Impacts to other modes such as transit, freight, and
bicycle facilities

▪ Traffic operations (e.g. intersection LOS, signal
alterations, vehicle travel times, transit and freight
operations, etc.)

▪ Maintenance and construction cost concerns
▪ New mobility or other first/last mile options
▪ Access (e.g. loading zones, ADA access, transit

access, access to adjacent properties)
▪ Constructability and risk evaluation (e.g. drainage

impacts, ease of implementation, ADA facility
impacts/PROWAG requirements)

The concept plans will include the following information:
▪ General layout of roadways and intersections
▪ Typical cross sections showing roadway, sidewalk,

and shared use path widths and lane configuration
▪ Preliminary pavement markings
▪ Aerial imagery showing streetscape and

landscape features
▪ Preliminary right-of-way and utility impacts
▪ Locations where utility relocation is recommended
▪ Locations where traffic signal modifications

are anticipated
▪ Locations where potential design waivers or

exceptions may be needed

Toole Design will provide up to eight intersection concept plans to 
move the projects along to implementation like this concept design 
for the Wilshire Boulevard Safety Study.

Toole Design will develop planning-level cost estimates 
to accompany the concept plan recommendations. 
Cost estimates will be based on bid tabs and other 
information provided by the City. Major cost items or 
obvious feasibility issues noted by the teams will be 
flagged for further evaluation. In addition to costs, we 
will identify the benefits that each recommendation 
provides, e.g., transit access, school access, etc., which 
can be helpful in justifying the project.

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 308 of 498



18 TOOL E DE SIGN

TASK 4.2: FUNDING AND  
IMPLEMENTATION MATRIX
Toole Design will develop an implementation 
strategy based on the project prioritization ranking 
identified in the SASIP, as well as project costs, 
with the goal of identifying short-term projects 
consisting of a mix of quick, easy-wins and projects 
that may be more costly, but would provide 
substantial benefits. We will bundle projects by 
facility/ treatment type, and location (e.g. transit 
access project, schools, etc.) that align with 
potential funding sources.

In addition to the concept design plans, we propose 
identifying additional locations with particular 

opportunities for lower-cost, rapid implementation 
projects that meet an immediate need and build 
momentum for subsequent implementation. These 
projects could be implemented within a year of plan 
adoption using low-cost materials. This will help keep 
the plans from “sitting on the shelf” and help community 
members feel that their input and work on the Plans 
were valuable and resulted in tangible benefits.

TASK 4 DELIVERABLES: 
▪ Concept plans for up to eight (8) intersections
▪ Planning level cost estimates suitable for

grant applications
▪ Funding and Implementation Matrix
▪ Phasing strategy for rapid implementation projects

SCAG PASADENA/AZUSA PEDESTRIAN MASTER PLANS
AZUSA, CA

Toole Design is working with the cities of Pasadena and Azusa in the San Gabriel Valley to lead the development 
of pedestrian master plans for each community. These projects will build on the cities’ many existing 
opportunities. Pasadena has a pedestrian-friendly downtown and theatre district, and has been a long-time 
destination in Southern California. Azusa is smaller compared to Pasadena, but the development of Azusa Pacific 
University, the city’s downtown renovations, and recent construction of the Metro Gold Line station position 
Azusa as a promising walking city. The pedestrian master plans come at a pivotal time as the recent COVID-19 
pandemic has turned communities’ eyes towards safe, available open space to walk and recreate, and the 
need for sidewalks to be wide enough for people to social distance while walking or dining outdoors. As such, 
engagement for these plans will utilize the most creative approaches for collecting feedback in a safe manner to 
ensure the community’s vision and needs are front and center. 

Toole Design’s approach will ensure each plan is uniquely tailored to the needs of each individual City while 
drawing on existing resources and best practices from our ongoing work in both Pasadena and Azusa. These 
pedestrian plans have a strong focus on community engagement, and we have teamed with local organizations 
who have established connections in the community, and have the technical ability to help conduct safety audits 
and pedestrian counts. All engagement for both cities will be translated into Spanish and our budget carves out 
space for other key stakeholders to assist in the development of the plans through mini grants so residents are 
paid for their time and expertise. We will lead a trip potential and a collision analysis to better understand both 
cities’ history surrounding pedestrian safety, and look towards leveraging existing land use opportunities and 
places of interest to develop project recommendations. To complete the plans, our team will identify network 
priorities at the local and regional level to improve streets and sidewalks for people walking. 

PROJECT INFORMATION
START: October 2020  COMPLETION: Ongoing FEE: $336K
STAFF: 8  SUBCONSULTANTS: 3

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 309 of 498



We help communities envision what streets for people look like and 
then build them.

TASK 5: DRAFT PLAN AND 
FINAL PLAN

TASK 5.1: PLAN OUTLINE
We strongly believe in devolving final plans that are 
legible and accessible to the general public, and not 
overly bogged down with technical jargon. We practice a 
“planning in plain language” approach, and recommend 
sections that are framed as questions to invite the 
reader into the planning process. See below for a draft/
recommended outline with sub-chapters that detail the 
technical information: 
▪ Acknowledgments
▪ Executive Summary
▪ Why a Safe and Active Streets Implementation Plan?

▪ Vision, Goals, Objectives
▪ History of the 2017 Safe and Active Streets Plan

▪ Who is Involved?
▪ Public and Stakeholder Engagement
▪ Process for Developing this Plan

▪ What do we know?
▪ Existing Conditions
▪ Community Feedback

▪ What type of projects are recommended, and where?
▪ Project Recommendations
▪ Concept Designs
▪ Cost Estimates

▪ How will they be built?
▪ Phasing Plan
▪ Funding Strategy Implementation Matrix

▪ Appendices

TASK 5.2: ADMINISTRATIVE DRAFT PLAN
Toole Design will compile an Administrative Draft Plan, 
largely comprised of findings from previous tasks 
enhanced with a graphical layout that makes for a 
readable, visually appealing, and concise document. 
More detailed information from the analysis and 
engagement activities will be included in appendices. 

TASK 5.3: DRAFT PLAN WORKSHOP
Once a Draft Plan is developed, we believe it is 
important that stakeholders get an opportunity to see 
how their initial feedback was incorporated into the 
Implementation Plan and provide an additional chance 
for them to make any other revisions necessary for 
the Plan to be a success. Toole Design will host one 
community workshop and provide an opportunity for 
stakeholders to provide feedback. We believe it is 

important to get feedback at this and every stage of the 
process from people that are representative of every 
segment of San Fernando. 

TASK 5.4: FINAL PLAN
Once we have received all feedback on the draft plans 
from stakeholders, we will incorporate all changes 
necessary into the final version. We will produce final 
plan documents that are visually pleasing, easy to read, 
and useful for years to come. The Plan files will be 
presented to San Fernando staff in PDF format. 

TASK 5.5: CITY COUNCIL ADOPTION
Toole Design will present the Final Plan to the 
San Fernando City Council for final adoption. 
The presentations will be clear and concise, and 
walk the Council through the SASIP process and 
recommendations. 

TASK 5 DELIVERABLES: 
▪ Draft Plan Outline
▪ Administrative Draft Plan
▪ Draft Plan Workshop
▪ Logs of responses and a summary table of input

and suggestions
▪ Final Plan
▪ Graphics and PowerPoint presentation to the

City Council

EXHIBIT A - Scope of Work
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 310 of 498



COST PROPOSAL
Toole Design is pleased to present our fee proposal for the San Fernando Safe and Active Streets 
Implementation Plan. Our general approach to allocating funds was to identify the staff member best 
suited for completing a task given their skill set and experience, and then estimate of the necessary level 

of effort for that task while being as cost effective as possible. However, we are flexible and would like to 
finalize these figures in collaboration with the City of San Fernando.

TASKS

PRINCIPAL-IN-
CHARGE

PROJECT 
MANAGER

GIS DATA 
ANALYST

SENIOR 
ADVISOR

URBAN 
DESIGNER

GRAPHIC 
DESIGNER

GIS / 
PLANNER ENGINEER PLANNER

TOTAL 
HOURS COST

Adam 
Vest

Carlos 
Hernandez

Frank 
Proulx

Jeremy 
Chrzan

Cindy 
Zerger

Mia 
Selders

Jonathan 
Yuan

Yasmin 
Fuseini-Codjoe

Malia 
Schilling

1 Project Initiation and Management 2 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 32 $5,070

1.1 Kickoff Meeting 2 4 2 8 $1,398

1.2 Monthly PM Team Meetings 18 6 24 $3,672

2 Community and Stakeholder Engagement 0 24 0 0 16 0 0 0 24 64 $9,552

2.1 Advisory Group Meetings 12 4 6 22 $3,390

2.2 Community Design Charrette 12 12 18 42 $6,162

Optional: Animated Videos $10,000

3 Existing Conditions 0 30 10 0 0 0 24 24 0 88 $11,966

3.1 Catalogue Existing Conditions and Prepare Base Maps 6 10 24 40 $5,246

3.2 Walking and Bicycling Assessments 24 24 48 $6,720

4 Project Recommendations 4 40 0 12 0 0 0 152 22 230 $30,038

4.1 Concept Designs for up to eight locations 4 32 12 152 200 $26,260

4.2 Funding and Implementation Matrix 8 22 30 $3,778

5 Final Plan Development 12 44 0 0 0 36 0 0 72 164 $21,664

5.1 Plan Outline 2 16 18 $2,110

5.2 Draft Plan Workshop 4 6 10 $1,334

5.3 Administrative Draft Plan 4 18 24 32 78 $9,758

5.4 Final Plan 4 12 12 18 46 $6,110

5.5 City Council Adoption 4 8 12 $2,352

Total Hours 18 160 10 12 16 36 24 176 126  578 

Hourly Rates $254 $167 $158 $227 $180 $91 $111 $113 $111

Subtotal Labor $4,572 $26,720 $1,580 $2,724 $2,880 $3,276 $2,664 $19,888 $13,986 $78,290

Printing $500

Supplies and Materials $500

Total Cost: $79,290

Total Optional Tasks: $10,000

EXHIBIT B - Budget Summary
CONTRACT NO. 1975

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 311 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 312 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 313 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 314 of 498



 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340  (818) 898-1290      WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Date: January 4, 2021 

Subject: Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to Moore Iacofano 
Goltsman, Inc., for the Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Approve a Professional Services Agreement (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 1974) with 
Moore  Iacofano  Goltsman, Inc.  (MIG)   in   an amount not- to- exceed  $189,804,  to   provide 
design services for the Layne Park Revitalization Project; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related 
documents. 

BACKGROUND: 

1. On February 5, 2018, the City Council adopted the Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PMP)
as an instrument for developing a comprehensive vision for park facility improvements and
recreational programming offered to the residents of San Fernando.  The PMP identified
multiple park sites that needed improvements in order to maintain the continuity of
recreational services.

2. On June 5, 2018, the voters of California approved Proposition 68, “Parks, Environment, and
Water Bond Act.”  The measure authorized $4 billion in general obligation bonds for state
and local parks, environmental protection and restoration projects, water infrastructure
projects, and flood protection projects.  The California Department of Parks and Recreation
was the agency assigned to administer a grants program for Proposition 68.

3. On June 22, 2019, the California Department of Parks and Recreation released the Statewide
Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program (SPP), for revitalizing
projects throughout the State.  SPP allocated $625 million in grant funds to create, expand or
renovate parks in low-income and disadvantaged communities.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 315 of 498



Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc., for the 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

4. On July 1, 2019, the City Council authorized staff to submit a SPP grant application for all six 
parks (i.e., Recreation, Las Palmas, Pioneer, Layne, Rudy Ortega Sr., and the Pacoima Wash 
Natural Parks) identified in the PMP as needing renovation to enhance recreational 
opportunities for the community. 
 

5. On July 19, 2019, and throughout the application process, Recreation and Community 
Services (RCS) staff discussed the renovation plans for all six parks with the Parks, Wellness 
and Recreation Commission.  In addition, feedback from community planning meetings 
pertaining to the park renovation projects was incorporated into the final grant applications. 
 

6. On February 25, 2020, the California Department of Parks and Recreation announced that the 
City’s SPP Layne Park Revitalization Project grant application was selected for funding.  The 
grant award of $1.1 million includes pre-construction costs such as plan development, 
specifications, construction documents, and cost estimates. 

 
7. On September 21, 2020, the City Council authorized a Notice Inviting Bids for the design of 

the Layne Park Revitalization Project.  The City received nine proposals from reputable firms.  
Staff reviewed the nine proposals and selected the top four firms for future consideration.    

 
8. On December 9, 2020, the selection committee consisting of the Director of Recreation and 

Community Services, the Director of Public Works, and the Civil Engineering Assistant II 
conducted interviews of the top four firms to determine which firm would best meet the 
needs of the City.     

 
 
ANALYSIS: 

The Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PMP), along with input from community planning 
meetings involving families, seniors and youth groups, provided guidance and vision in 
developing the Layne Park Revitalization Project.  Additional design ideas came from residents 
and user group surveys.  The added park amenities and improvements to Layne Park include the 
following:  
 

• Construction of a restroom building, powered by solar panels. 
• Construction of a basketball court with lighting. 
• Construction of an artificial turf soccer field with lighting. 
• New landscape and irrigation improvements: 

o Tree removal/replacement (if needed); 
o Smart irrigation with ground sensors; 
o Bioswales; and 
o Planting non-invasive and drought tolerant trees and shrubs. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 316 of 498



Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc., for the 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

• Conforming existing and new lighting to light-emitting diode (LED) technology, preferably 
solar powered. 

• Adding fencing along alleyways. 
• Renovating the playground for ADA accessibility and adding shading. 
• Installing shading for existing picnic tables. 
• Installing drinking fountains. 
 

The Notice Inviting Bids (NIB) released on September 24, 2020 requested services from 
experienced landscape architect/engineering firms to develop a cost estimate, a biddable set of 
plans and specifications for the project. The closing date for proposal submissions was October 
22, 2020.  Nine prospective firms submitted proposals by the due date. A five-member panel, 
consisting of two RCS staff members and three Public Works staff members, evaluated each firm 
based on how well they responded to the Request for Proposal’s (RFP’s) minimal bid criteria 
requested in the NIB. The sections that were evaluated included the following: 
 

 A Proposal Summary 

 The Firm’s Profile 

 The Firm’s Qualifications (detailing experience on similar projects/clients) 

 A Project Work Plan 

 A Project Staffing Description 

 A Proposal Cost Breakdown   
 
The firms invited to an interview included, in alphabetical order, MIG Inc., RJM Design Group, 
Inc., SWA Los Angeles, and Verde Design.  On Wednesday, December 9, 2020, an interview panel 
consisting of the Director of Recreation and Community Services, the Director of Public Works 
and the City’s Civil Engineering Assistant II conducted the firm interviews.   
 
All of the four firms selected for the interview demonstrated a high-level of experience and 
qualifications in providing design services for similar projects.  The panel focused on determining 
which firm best demonstrated an understanding of the needs of the Layne Park Revitalization 
Project, and how the firm planned to implement those needs into the design of the Layne Park 
Project.  The panel also gauged how the firms would work with the City staff to ensure that the 
Layne Park Revitalization Project will be completed on time and on budget.  
 
The interview process also looked at each firm’s vision and company’s philosophy and how these 
concepts would be incorporated into the design of the Layne Park project.  Other key elements 
staff considered included each firm’s initial conceptual design, any potential challenges the firm 
anticipated and how they would minimize the likelihood of change orders.     
 
MIG provided a concise and detailed explanation of how the firm planned to meet the needs of 
the City; their responses were on target conveying their vision of the project.  MIG also took into 
account the surrounding community and how the design would incorporate cultural and artistic 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 317 of 498



Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc., for the 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

elements to the project.  Based on the criteria specified in the RFP and the interview process, the 
review of the proposals submitted and the interviews with the four firms, MIG was determined 
to be most suitable based on the overall criteria of project understanding, qualifications of the 
consulting team, relative project experience, project approach and methodology, and proposed 
cost (Exhibit “A” of Attachment “A”). 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

The total estimated cost for the Layne Park Revitalization Project is $1,134,245.  Funding is 
included in the City’s adopted Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget through the Statewide Park 
Development and Community Revitalization (SPP) Grant and the City’s cash match.   
 

SOURCES 

Fund  Account Number Allocation 

Statewide Parks Program (Grant) 010-3697-3669 $ 1,114,245 

City’s Capital Projects (Match) 010-3697-3669 $ 20,000 

 
 

$  

Total Sources:  $ 1,134,245 

 

USES 

Activity Account Number Cost 

Pre-construction Cost  010-420-3669-4600 $ 225,000 

    Plans, Specifications, Cost Estimates, Permits   $ 0 

    Groundbreaking, public meetings   $ 0 

Construction 010-420-3669-4600 $ 909,245 

    

Expenditures-to-Date   $ 0 

    

Total Uses:  $ 1,134,245 

 
The grant allocates $250,000 towards preconstruction cost. MIG’s Proposal Cost of $189,804 is 
within the allotted amount.  At the conclusion of the design, staff will request to re-allocate any 
remaining funds toward construction. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement with MIG in 
an amount not to exceed $189,804, to provide the design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project, 
and authorize the City Manager to execute all related documents. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 318 of 498



Consideration to Award a Professional Services Agreement to Moore Iacofano Goltsman, Inc., for the 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

ATTACHMENT: 

A. Contract No. 1974 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 319 of 498



 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 

MOORE IACOFANO GOLTSMAN, INC. 
 

Design for the Layne Park Revitalization Project 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 04 day 
of January 2021 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
a municipal corporation (“CITY”) and Moore Iacofano Goltsman (MIG), Inc., a  CORPORATION 
(hereinafter, “CONSULTANT”).  For the purposes of this Agreement CITY and CONSULTANT may 
be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.”  The capitalized term “Party” may 
refer to CITY or CONSULTANT interchangeably.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, CITY and CONSULTANT agree as follows:  

I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and 
all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of 
Services”).  CONSULTANT further agrees to furnish to CITY all labor, materials, tools, 
supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work necessary to 
competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement the aforementioned services and tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the 
capitalized term “Work.”    

1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of Six (6) MONTHS commencing from January 
04, 2021.  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s 
ability to terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause. 

1.3 COMPENSATION:    

A. CONSULTANT shall perform the various services and tasks set forth in the Scope 
of Services in accordance with the compensation schedule which is referenced in 
Section 06 Proposal Costs and Rates of MIG’s proposal submission Attachment B, 
Exhibit A (hereinafter, the “Approved Rate Schedule”).     

B. Section 1.3(A) notwithstanding, CONSULTANT’s total compensation during the 
Term of this Agreement or any extension term shall not exceed the sum of ONE 
HUNDRED EIGHTY NINE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED FOUR ($189,804) the 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO.  1974 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 320 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 2 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

budgeted aggregate sum of (hereinafter, the “Not-to-Exceed Sum”), unless such 
added expenditure is first approved by the CITY acting in consultation with the City 
Manager and the Finance Director.  In the event CONSULTANT’s charges are 
projected to exceed the Not-to-Exceed Sum prior to the expiration of the Term or 
any single extension term, CITY may suspend CONSULTANT’s performance 
pending CITY approval of any anticipated expenditures in excess of the Not-to-
Exceed Sum or any other CITY-approved amendment to the compensation terms 
of this Agreement.  

1.4 PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION: Following the conclusion of each calendar month, 
CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY an itemized invoice indicating the services and tasks 
performed during the recently concluded calendar month, including services and tasks 
performed and the reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses incurred.  If the amount of 
CONSULTANT’s monthly compensation is a function of hours worked by CONSULTANT’s 
personnel, the invoice shall indicate the number of hours worked in the recently 
concluded calendar month, the persons responsible for performing the Work, the rate of 
compensation at which such services and tasks were performed, the subtotal for each 
task and service performed and a grand total for all services performed. Within thirty (30) 
calendar days of receipt of each invoice, CITY shall notify CONSULTANT in writing of any 
disputed amounts included in the invoice.  Within forty-five (45) calendar days of receipt 
of each invoice, CITY shall pay all undisputed amounts included on the invoice.  CITY shall 
not withhold applicable taxes or other authorized deductions from payments made to 
CONSULTANT.  

1.5 ACCOUNTING RECORDS: CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate records 
with respect to all matters covered under this Agreement for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  CITY shall have the right to access 
and examine such records, without charge, during normal business hours.  CITY shall 
further have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect 
all program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.  

1.6 ABANDONMENT BY CONSULTANT:  In the event CONSULTANT ceases to perform the 
Work agreed to under this Agreement or otherwise abandons the undertaking 
contemplated herein prior to the expiration of this Agreement or prior to completion of 
any or all tasks set forth in the Scope of Services, CONSULTANT shall deliver to CITY 
immediately and without delay, all materials, records and other work product prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement.  Furthermore, 
CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for the reasonable value of the services, tasks 
and other work performed up to the time of cessation or abandonment, less a deduction 
for any damages, costs or additional expenses which CITY may incur as a result of 
CONSULTANT’s cessation or abandonment. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 321 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 3 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

II. PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT 

2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and the Director 
of Recreation and Community Services (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as 
its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager shall be the 
chief CITY Representative.  The CITY Representatives or their designee shall act on behalf 
of the CITY for all purposes under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not accept 
directions or orders from any person other than the CITY Representatives or their 
designee. 

2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Daniel Iacofano, President 
and CEO to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, 
“CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full authority to 
represent and act on behalf of the CONSULTANT for all purposes under this Agreement.  
CONSULTANT Representative or his designee shall supervise and direct the performance of 
the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of 
the Work under this Agreement.  Notice to the CONSULTANT Representative shall constitute 
notice to CONSULTANT.  

2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT 
agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement 
and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times. 
All work prepared by CONSULTANT shall be subject to inspection and approval by CITY 
Representatives or their designees. 

2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, 
acknowledges and agrees to the following: 

A. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest 
standards of CONSULTANT’s profession; 

B. CONSULTANT shall perform all Work in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the 
CITY; 

C. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code 
Section 1090 and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq.); 

D. CONSULTANT understands the nature and scope of the Work to be performed 
under this Agreement as well as any and all schedules of performance;  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 322 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 4 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

E. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents possess sufficient skill, knowledge, 
training and experience to perform those services and tasks assigned to them by 
CONSULTANT; and 

F. All of CONSULTANT’s employees and agents (including but not limited 
subcontractors and subconsultants) possess all licenses, permits, certificates, 
qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to 
perform the tasks and services contemplated under this Agreement and all such 
licenses, permits, certificates, qualifications and approvals shall be maintained 
throughout the term of this Agreement and made available to CITY for copying 
and inspection. 

 The Parties acknowledge and agree that CONSULTANT shall perform, at CONSULTANT’s own 
cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY, any services necessary to 
correct any errors or omissions caused by CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with the standard 
of care set forth under this Section or by any like failure on the part of CONSULTANT’s 
employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors and subconsultants.   Such effort by 
CONSULTANT to correct any errors or omissions shall be commenced immediately upon their 
discovery by either Party and shall be completed within seven (7) calendars days from the 
date of discovery or such other extended period of time authorized by the CITY 
Representatives in writing and in their sole and absolute discretion. The Parties acknowledge 
and agree that CITY’s acceptance of any work performed by CONSULTANT or on 
CONSULTANT’s behalf shall not constitute a release of any deficiency or delay in 
performance. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and agree that CITY has relied 
upon the foregoing representations of CONSULTANT, including but not limited to the 
representation that CONSULTANT possesses the skills, training, knowledge and experience 
necessary to perform the Work skillfully, competently and to the highest standards of 
CONSULTANT’s profession. 

2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are 
material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an 
interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform the 
services and tasks to be undertaken by CONSULTANT or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  In recognition of this interest, CONSULTANT agrees that 
it shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, this 
Agreement or the performance of any of CONSULTANT’s duties or obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior 
written consent, any attempted assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void 
and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement.  

2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work 
shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 323 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 5 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work 
subject to the requirements of this Agreement.  CITY retains CONSULTANT on an 
independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  CONSULTANT reserves the right 
to perform similar or different services for other principals during the term of this 
Agreement, provided such work does not unduly interfere with CONSULTANT’s 
competent and timely performance of the Work contemplated under this Agreement and 
provided the performance of such services does not result in the unauthorized disclosure 
of CITY’s confidential or proprietary information.  Any additional personnel performing 
the Work under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT are not employees of CITY and 
shall at all times be under CONSULTANT’s exclusive direction and control.  CONSULTANT 
shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such personnel and shall assume 
responsibility for all benefits, payroll taxes, Social Security and Medicare payments and 
the like.  CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such 
additional personnel, including, but not limited to: Social Security taxes, income tax 
withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ compensation 
insurance and the like. 

2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, 
agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY 
Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
performance of the tasks assigned to CONSULTANT, a threat to persons or property, or if 
any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or 
subconsultants fail or refuse to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the CITY, 
such officer, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant shall be 
promptly removed by CONSULTANT and shall not be re-assigned to perform any of the 
Work.   

2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance 
with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise 
govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with applicable laws 
shall include without limitation compliance with all applicable Cal/OSHA requirements.   

2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not 
discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, 
national origin, ancestry, age, physical or mental disability or medical condition. 

2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree 
that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall 
at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, 
employees, departments or subdivisions of CITY.  CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible 
for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its employees, agents, contractors, 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 324 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 6 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

subcontractors and subconsultants. CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed 
by CONSULTANT shall have no authority, express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, 
nor to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, 
whether by contract or otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement or is otherwise expressly conferred by CITY in writing. 

III. INSURANCE 

3.1 DUTY TO PROCURE AND MAINTAIN INSURANCE: Prior to the beginning of and throughout 
the duration of the Work, CONSULTANT will procure and maintain policies of insurance 
that meet the requirements and specifications set forth under this Article. CONSULTANT 
shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage, at its own expense: 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (“CGL Coverage”) as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence Form CG 0001) 
or its equivalent.  Such CGL Coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) in the general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury, 
property damage, operations, products and completed operations, and 
contractual liability. 

B. Automobile Liability Insurance: CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain 
Automobile Liability Insurance as broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number 
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto).  Such Automobile 
Liability Insurance shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

C. Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability Insurance:   A policy of 
workers’ compensation insurance in such amount as will fully comply with the 
laws of the State of California and which shall indemnify, insure and provide legal 
defense for both CONSULTANT and CITY against any loss, claim or damage arising 
from any injuries or occupational diseases occurring to any worker employed by 
or any persons retained by CONSULTANT in the course of carrying out the Work 
contemplated in this Agreement. 

D. Errors & Omissions Insurance:  For the full term of this Agreement and for a period 
of three (3) years thereafter, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain Errors and 
Omissions Liability Insurance appropriate to CONSULTANT’s profession.  Such 
coverage shall have minimum limits of no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and shall be endorsed to include contractual 
liability.    

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 325 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 7 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

3.2 ADDITIONAL INSURED REQUIREMENTS: The CGL Coverage and the Automobile Liability 
Insurance shall contain an endorsement naming the CITY and CITY’s elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds.  

3.3 REQUIRED CARRIER RATING:  All varieties of insurance required under this Agreement 
shall be procured from insurers admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue 
policies directly to California insureds.  Except as otherwise provided elsewhere under 
this Article, all required insurance shall be procured from insurers who, according to the 
latest edition of the Best’s Insurance Guide, have an A.M. Best’s rating of no less than 
A:VII.   CITY may also accept policies procured by insurance carriers with a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of no less than BBB according to the latest published edition the Standard & 
Poor’s rating guide.  As to Workers’ Compensation Insurance/ Employer’s Liability 
Insurance, the CITY Representatives are authorized to authorize lower ratings than those 
set forth in this Section.   

3.4 PRIMACY OF CONSULTANT’S INSURANCE: All policies of insurance provided by 
CONSULTANT shall be primary to any coverage available to CITY or CITY’s elected or 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by CITY or CITY’s elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers shall be in excess of CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.  

3.5 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION:  All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement 
shall not prohibit CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, 
subcontractors or subconsultants from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss.  
CONSULTANT hereby waives all rights of subrogation against CITY.  

3.6 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  CONSULTANT acknowledges, understands and agrees, that 
CITY’s ability to verify the procurement and maintenance of the insurance required under 
this Article is critical to safeguarding CITY’s financial well-being and, indirectly, the 
collective well-being of the residents of the CITY.  Accordingly, CONSULTANT warrants, 
represents and agrees that its shall furnish CITY with original certificates of insurance and 
endorsements evidencing the coverage required under this Article on forms satisfactory 
to CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  The certificates of insurance and 
endorsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall be on forms provided by the CITY if 
requested.  All certificates of insurance and endorsements shall be received and approved 
by CITY as a condition precedent to CONSULTANT’s commencement of any work or any 
of the Work.  Upon CITY’s written request, CONSULTANT shall also provide CITY with 
certified copies of all required insurance policies and endorsements.   

IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 326 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 8 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

4.1 The Parties agree that CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers (hereinafter, the “CITY Indemnitees”) should, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, damage, claim, 
lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, or any other cost arising out of or 
in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. Accordingly, the provisions of 
this indemnity provision are intended by the Parties to be interpreted and construed to 
provide the CITY Indemnitees with the fullest protection possible under the law. 
CONSULTANT acknowledges that CITY would not enter into this Agreement in the absence 
of CONSULTANT’s commitment to indemnify, defend and protect CITY as set forth herein. 

4.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend the CITY Indemnitees from and against all liability, loss, damage, expense, cost 
(including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and all other costs 
and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with CONSULTANT’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations 
contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the CITY.  

4.3 CITY shall have the right to offset against the amount of any compensation due 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement any amount due CITY from CONSULTANT as a result 
of CONSULTANT’s failure to pay CITY promptly any indemnification arising under this 
Article and related to CONSULTANT’s failure to either (i) pay taxes on amounts received 
pursuant to this Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws.  

4.4 The obligations of CONSULTANT under this Article will not be limited by the provisions of 
any workers’ compensation act or similar act. CONSULTANT expressly waives its statutory 
immunity under such statutes or laws as to CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers.  

4.5 CONSULTANT agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions identical 
to those set forth here in this Article from each and every subcontractor or any other 
person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance 
of this Agreement.  In the event CONSULTANT fails to obtain such indemnity obligations 
from others as required herein, CONSULTANT agrees to be fully responsible and 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and CITY’s elected and appointed officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against any and all claims and losses, 
costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person and injury to any 
property resulting from any alleged intentional, reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful 
acts, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors or any other person or entity 
involved by, for, with or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement. 
Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of 
CITY’s choice.  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 327 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 9 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

4.6 CITY does not, and shall not, waive any rights that it may possess against CONSULTANT 
because of the acceptance by CITY, or the deposit with CITY, of any insurance policy or 
certificate required pursuant to this Agreement. This hold harmless and indemnification 
provision shall apply regardless of whether or not any insurance policies are determined 
to be applicable to the claim, demand, damage, liability, loss, cost or expense. 

4.7 This Article and all provisions contained herein (including but not limited to the duty to 
indemnify, defend and hold free and harmless) shall survive the termination or normal 
expiration of this Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies which the 
CITY may have at law or in equity.   

 

V. TERMINATION 

5.1 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: CITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for 
convenience and without cause by giving CONSULTANT a minimum of five (5) calendar 
days prior written notice of CITY’s intent to terminate this Agreement.   Upon such 
termination for convenience, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those services 
and tasks which have been performed by CONSULTANT up to the effective date of the 
termination.   CONSULTANT may not terminate this Agreement except for cause as 
provided under Section 5.2, below.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, 
CITY may require CONSULTANT to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data, 
as defined in Section 6.1 below, and other information of any kind prepared by 
CONSULTANT in connection with the performance of the Work.  CONSULTANT shall be 
required to provide such Documents and Data within fifteen (15) calendar days of CITY’s 
written request.  No actual or asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY 
pursuant to Section 5.2, below, shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict CITY’s ability 
to terminate this Agreement for convenience as provided under this Section. 

5.2 EVENTS OF DEFAULT; BREACH OF AGREEMENT:  

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation, service or task set 
forth under this Agreement (or fails to timely perform or properly perform any 
such duty, obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement), an event of 
default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall occur.  For all Events of Default, the 
Party alleging an Event of Default shall give written notice to the defaulting Party 
(hereinafter referred to as a “Default Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature 
of the Event of Default; (ii) the action required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a 
date by which the Event of Default shall be cured, which shall not be less than the 
applicable cure period set forth under Sections 5.2.B and 5.2C below or if a cure is 
not reasonably possible within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 328 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 10 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

diligently prosecute such cure to completion.   The Event of Default shall constitute 
a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default 
within the applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this 
Agreement.   

B. CONSULTANT shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following time 
periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for any 
failure of CONSULTANT to timely provide CITY or CITY’s employees or agents 
with any information and/or written reports, documentation or work product 
which CONSULTANT is obligated to provide to CITY  or CITY’s employees or 
agents under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
CONSULTANT may submit a written request for additional time to cure the 
Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT has commenced efforts to 
cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably 
cured within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall 
be under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of 
Default under this Section 5.2 B.i. that exceeds seven (7) calendar days from 
the end of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of 
the 14-day cure period, CONSULTANT may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CONSULTANT 
has commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of 
Default cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The 
foregoing notwithstanding, CITY shall be under no obligation to grant 
additional time for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2B.ii 
that exceeds thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure 
period. 

In addition to any other failure on the part of CONSULTANT to perform any duty, 
obligation, service or task set forth under this Agreement (or the failure to timely perform 
or properly perform any such duty, obligation, service or task), an Event of Default on the 
part of CONSULTANT shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:  (i) 
CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to perform any of the services or tasks called for under 
the Scope of Services;  (ii) CONSULTANT’s failure to fulfill or perform its obligations under 
this Agreement within the specified time or if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time;  (iii) CONSULTANT’s and/or its employees’ disregard  or violation of any federal, 
state, local law, rule, procedure or regulation;  (iv) the initiation of proceedings under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, reorganization, or similar legislation as relates to 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 329 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 11 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

CONSULTANT, whether voluntary of involuntary; (v) CONSULTANT’s refusal or failure to 
perform or observe any covenant, condition, obligation or provision of this Agreement;  
and/or (vii) CITY’s discovery that a statement representation or warranty by CONSULTANT 
relating to this Agreement  is false, misleading or erroneous in any material respect. 

C. CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by CONSULTANT within forty-five (45) 
calendar days of CONSULTANT’s issuance of a Default Notice, unless the Event of 
Default cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the 
expiration of the 45-day cure period, CITY may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that CITY has 
commenced its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, an Event of Default dealing with CITY’s failure to timely pay any 
undisputed sums to CONSULTANT as provided under Section 1.4, above, shall be 
cured by CITY within five (5) calendar days from the date of CONSULTANT’s Default 
Notice to CITY. 

D. CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
CONSULTANT’s performance under this Agreement pending CONSULTANT’s cure 
of any Event of Default by giving CONSULTANT written notice of CITY’s intent to 
suspend CONSULTANT’s performance (hereinafter, a “Suspension Notice”).  CITY 
may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default. Upon such suspension, CONSULTANT shall be compensated only for those 
services and tasks which have been rendered by CONSULTANT to the reasonable 
satisfaction of CITY up to the effective date of the suspension.   No actual or 
asserted breach of this Agreement on the part of CITY shall operate to prohibit or 
otherwise restrict CITY’s ability to suspend this Agreement as provided herein. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute 
a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give 
the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

F. The duties and obligations imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to CITY at law or under this Agreement 
in the event of any breach of this Agreement, CITY, in its sole and absolute 
discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may immediately terminate 
this Agreement in whole or in part; 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 330 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 12 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

ii. Upon written notice to CONSULTANT, the CITY may extend the time of 
performance; 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 
Agreement  to recover damages for CONSULTANT’s breach of the Agreement  
or to terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.  

CONSULTANT shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that CITY 
incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its remedies under this 
Agreement.  

G. In the event CITY is in breach of this Agreement, CONSULTANT’s sole remedy shall 
be the suspension or termination of this Agreement and/or the recovery of any 
unpaid sums lawfully owed to CONSULTANT under this Agreement for completed 
services and tasks.   

5.3 SCOPE OF WAIVER:  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other 
covenant, warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this 
Agreement.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or service voluntarily given or performed by a 
Party shall give the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

5.4 SURVIVING ARTICLES, SECTIONS AND PROVISIONS:  The termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to any provision of this Article or by normal expiration of its term or any 
extension thereto shall not operate to terminate any Article, Section or provision 
contained herein which provides that it shall survive the termination or normal expiration 
of this Agreement. 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 DOCUMENTS & DATA; LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:  All Documents and Data 
shall be and remain the property of CITY without restriction or limitation upon their use 
or dissemination by CITY.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Documents and 
Data” means and includes all reports, analyses, correspondence, plans, drawings, designs, 
renderings, specifications, notes, summaries, strategies, charts, schedules, spreadsheets, 
calculations, lists, data compilations, documents or other materials developed and/or 
assembled by or on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement and 
fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to Documents and 
Data stored digitally, magnetically and/or electronically.  This Agreement creates, at no 
cost to CITY, a perpetual license for CITY to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and/or retain 
any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property embodied in all 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 331 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 13 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

Documents and Data.  CONSULTANT shall require all subcontractors and subconsultants 
working on behalf of CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement to agree in 
writing that CITY shall be granted the same right to copy, use, reuse, disseminate and 
retain Documents and Data prepared or assembled by any subcontractor or 
subconsultant as applies to Documents and Data prepared by CONSULTANT in the 
performance of this Agreement.  

6.2 CONFIDENTIALITY:  All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed 
confidential and shall not be disclosed by CONSULTANT without prior written consent by 
CITY. CITY shall grant such consent if disclosure is legally required. Upon request, all CITY 
data shall be returned to CITY upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT shall not use CITY’s name or insignia, photographs, or any publicity 
pertaining to the Work in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of CITY. 

6.3 FALSE CLAIMS ACT:  CONSULTANT warrants and represents that neither CONSULTANT nor 
any person who is an officer of, in a managing position with, or has an ownership interest 
in CONSULTANT has been determined by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to 
have violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C., Section 3789 et seq. and the California False 
Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et seq.  

6.4 NOTICES: All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given to the 
respective Parties at the following addresses, or at such other address as the respective 
Parties may provide in writing for this purpose:   

CONSULTANT:  CITY:  

MIG, Inc.  
617 W. Seventh  St. ,#304 
Los Angeles, CA 90017  
Attn: Daniel Iacofano, President/CEO  
Phone: 213-694-3800 
Fax:  213-694-3801 
Email: diacofano@migcom.com 
 

 City of San Fernando 
Recreation and Community Services  
Department 
117 Macneil St. San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn:  Julian Venegas, RCS Director  
Phone:  818-898-1290 
Fax: 818-898-1522 
Email: jvenegas@sfcity.org  

Such notices shall be deemed effective when personally delivered or successfully transmitted 
by facsimile as evidenced by a fax confirmation slip or when mailed, forty-eight (48) hours 
after deposit with the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid and addressed 
to the Party at its applicable address.   

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 332 of 498

mailto:diacofano@migcom.com
mailto:jvenegas@sfcity.org


PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 14 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

6.5 COOPERATION; FURTHER ACTS:  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and 
shall take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as is reasonably necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to achieve the purposes of this Agreement. 

6.6 SUBCONTRACTING: CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any portion of the Work required 
by this Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without the prior written approval 
of CITY.  Subcontracts (including without limitation subcontracts with subconsultants), if 
any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this 
Agreement, including provisions relating to insurance requirements and indemnification. 

6.7 CITY’S RIGHT TO EMPLOY OTHER CONSULTANTS:  CITY reserves the right to employ other 
contractors in connection with the various projects worked upon by CONSULTANT. 

6.8 PROHIBITED INTERESTS:  CONSULTANT warrants, represents and maintains that it has not 
employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, CONSULTANT 
warrants and represents that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for CONSULTANT, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or 
resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this 
warranty, CITY shall have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the 
term of this Agreement, no member, officer or employee of CITY, during the term of his 
or her service with CITY, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any 
present or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

6.9 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this 
Agreement. 

6.10 GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed 
according to the laws of the State of California.  In the event of litigation between the 
Parties, venue, without exception, shall be in the Los Angeles County Superior Court of 
the State of California.  If, and only if, applicable law requires that all or part of any such 
litigation be tried exclusively in federal court, venue, without exception, shall be in the 
Central District of California located in the City of Los Angeles, California. 

6.11 ATTORNEYS’ FEES:  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either 
legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, 
the prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing 
Party reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other costs of such action. 

6.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 
assigns of the Parties. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 333 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 15 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

6.13 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFIT:  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or 
obligation assumed by the Parties.  All rights and benefits under this Agreement inure 
exclusively to the Parties. 

6.14 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall not be construed in favor of, or 
against, either Party but shall be construed as if the Parties prepared this Agreement 
together through a process of negotiation and with the advice of their respective 
attorneys. 

6.15 SEVERABILITY: If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect.  

6.16 AMENDMENT; MODIFICATION:  No amendment, modification or supplement of this 
Agreement shall be valid or binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties, 
subject to CITY approval.  The requirement for written amendments, modifications or 
supplements cannot be waived and any attempted waiver shall be void and invalid. 

6.17 CAPTIONS:  The captions of the various articles, sections and paragraphs are for 
convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limits, augment, or describe 
the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

6.18 INCONSISTENCIES OR CONFLICTS:  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and any of the exhibits attached hereto, the provisions 
of this Agreement shall control.   

6.19 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement including all attached exhibits is the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive expression of the Parties with respect to the matters 
addressed herein and supersedes all other agreements or understandings, whether oral 
or written, or entered into between CITY and CONSULTANT prior to the execution of this 
Agreement.  No statements, representations or other agreements, whether oral or 
written, made by any Party which are not embodied herein shall be valid or binding.  No 
amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be valid and binding 
unless in writing and duly executed by the Parties pursuant to Section 6.15, above. 

6.20 COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement shall be executed in three (3) original counterparts each 
of which shall be of equal force and effect.  No handwritten or typewritten amendment, 
modification or supplement to any one counterparts shall be valid or binding unless made 
to all three counterparts in conformity with Section 6.16, above.  One fully executed 
original counterpart shall be delivered to CONSULTANT and the remaining two original 
counterparts shall be retained by CITY.  

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 334 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 16 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 335 of 498



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Design of the Layne Park Revitalization Project  
Page 17 of 17 
 
 

CONTRACT NO.  1974 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first appearing in this Agreement, above. 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO   Moore Iacofano Goltsman (MIG), Inc. 

By:    By:  
 Nick Kimball, City Manager   Name:  
    Title:  
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM     
      
By:      

 
Richard Padilla, Assistant City 
Attorney     

 

 

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 336 of 498



617 West Seventh Street, #304  |  Los Angeles, CA 90017 
(213) 694-3800  |  www.migcom.com

In association with: CWE  |  Integral Group  |  Geotechnologies, Inc.

Proposal  |  October 20, 2020

Layne Park
REVITALIZ ATION PROJECT

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 337 of 498



P L A N N I N G   /   D E S I G N   /   C O M M U N I C A T I O N S   /   M A N A G E M E N T   /   T E C H N O L O G Y   /   S C I E N C E

617 West Seventh Street, #304 

Los Angeles, CA 90017 

P (213) 694-3800 

F (213) 694-3801 

www.migcom.com

CALIFORNIA 

BERKELEY, FULLERTON, 

LOS ANGELES, PASADENA,  

RIVERSIDE, SACRAMENTO,  

SAN DIEGO, SAN JOSE, 

AND SONOMA

COLORADO 

DENVER

OREGON 

PORTLAND

TEXAS 

SAN ANTONIO 

WASHINGTON 

SEATTLE

October 20, 2020

City of San Fernando 

City Hall 

117 Macneil Street  

San Fernando, California, 91340

Re: Layne Park Revitalization Project

Dear Selection Committee Members:

With the Layne Park Revitalization Project, San Fernando is embracing an opportunity to 

address resident demand while simultaneously creating a signature neighborhood park that 

not only bolsters community identity and civic pride, but also provides a place for active 

sports and recreation in the city core. 

The MIG Team is ideally suited for this project. We bring proven, in-depth expertise in parks 

planning and landscape design, dynamic in-house graphic design and communication 

capabilities to the project. Our passion is to help create public spaces that capture the 

community’s spirit and have a special resonance by connecting families to art, nature, passive 

and active recreation, and play with the places they live. For over 35 years, we have been 

connecting people to people, and people to place through engaging, contextual, and truly 

authentic participatory design.

MIG is a community of designers, planners, and storytellers engaging, involving, and 

acting on the wisdom of the community in creative problem solving. Collectively, we are a 

streamlined, integrated team with deep and nuanced experience that brings the following 

specific strengths to the project:

» Commitment to building great public places that embrace universal design and are created

with operational, economic, and ecological resilience in mind;

» Direct experience working on projects funded through the Statewide Park Development and

Community Revitalization Program and within the framework of the grant requirements; and

» An ability to implement the conceptual design and provide the requested services

developing design solutions for public agencies of similar size, population, and needs.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our proposal and ideas with you in further detail.  

Should you have any questions about our proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at 

(310) 570-3804 or via email at emather@migcom.com. Thank you for the opportunity to be

considered for this transformative project for the Layne Park neighborhood and the City of

San Fernando.

Sincerely, 

Evan Mather, FASLA, PLA, SITES AP 

Principal, Director of Landscape Architecture

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 338 of 498



CONTENTS

01 Proposal Summary   .   .   .   .   .   .   1

02 Team Profile   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  6

03 Team Experience .   .   .   .   .   .   . 9

04 Work Plan  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 16

05 Project Staffing    .   .   .   .   .   .   .22

06 Proposal Costs and Rates  .    .    .    . 31

Earvin “Magic” Johnson Park, Willowbrook, California

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 339 of 498



City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     1

01

We understand the core objective of the Layne Park 

Revitalization Project is to deliver a 3/4-acre park for the 

San Fernando community based on the park program 

promised in the Proposition 68 grant proposal and 

outlined in the RFP; meets the funding availability of the 

grant proposal itself; and is ready to bid in mid-2021. 

Furthermore, we see an overarching opportunity 

presented by the Layne Park project to demonstrate 

civic leadership by creating a revitalized open space that 

meets the recreational, social, cultural, environmental, 

educational, and economic goals of the City of San 

Fernando Park & Recreation Master Plan.

MIG is recognized as leaders in delivering landscape 

architectural design solutions that are artful, driven by a 

compelling narrative, responsive to the site’s natural and 

historic context, promote equitable communities, fiscally 

and environmentally sustainable, and constructable. 

In order to deliver the Layne Park Revitalization Project, 

we have assembled a team of professionals who have 

demonstrated the comprehensive knowledge of the 

factors that will influence and inform the design and 

ultimate success of the project. Our team is: 

» MIG (Prime Consultant and Landscape Architects)

will act as an extension of the City of San Fernando

staff to deliver the final PS&E by May 2021. We will be

responsible for the overall design of the project and

work proactively with the City to ensure continuous and

effective communication, creative problem solving, and

efficient completion of tasks.

» CWE  will prepare the topographic survey for the site,

provide civil engineering services (i.e. site grading

and bioswale design), and structural engineering for

site features, including walls and fences, the shade

structures, and the prefabricated restroom foundation.

Proposal Summary

Concept illustration for Layne Park

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 340 of 498



P R O P O S A L  S U M M A R Y

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     2

» Integral Group will coordinate the utility connections

for the project, including the solar powered elements

(i.e. lighting, restroom, irrigation controller) and the

restroom building itself.

» Geotechnologies, Inc. will complete the geotechnical

investigation for the project, identifying the ideal

location for LID features and prefabricated restroom

building.

With 240 employees in 14 offices, MIG brings a breadth 

of experience and capacity to deliver the Layne Park 

Revitalization project within the timeframe proposed in 

the RFP. It is important to note that while the RFP and 

subsequent communication by the City suggest that the 

target date for construction is May 2021, we suggest 

that while the 95% PS&E may be delivered by that date, 

there will be additional time required to bid, award, and 

mobilize the project. We believe it is more realistic to 

plan for a start of construction in Fall 2021, but will work 

diligently with the City to fine tune the schedule in order 

to expedite the project as much as possible.

Our proposal contains herein examples of relevant 

projects of varying scales and complexities that share 

some of the same issues as the Layne Park Revitalization 

project.

» Johnny Carson Park Revitalization for the City of

Burbank is an award-winning demonstration of how

a local neighborhood solution can deliver regional

benefits – in this case the transformation of a concrete

storm channel into a restored native stream to filter

urban runoff before discharge into the Los Angeles

River. The park was funded with a Proposition 84 grant

and demonstrates our knowledge of working with the

California Natural Resources Agency. Additionally, park

construction was augmented by resources from the

California Conservation Corps who assisted with park

demolition and planting of the revegetated stream.

» Yanaguana Garden at Hemisfair Park is a nationally

recognized park in downtown San Antonio acclaimed

for the design elements that authentically reflect the

rich cultural heritage of the community – notably a

universally accessible children’s playground acclaimed

as a “love letter to the City.”

» Westlake Village Community Park is a recently-

completed 20-acre sports facility for the City of

Westlake Village, and is an example of our experience

with sustainable sports field design including the use of

synthetic turf as a water conservation measure.

» Pasadena Playhouse District Park is currently nearing

the end of its design phase and is anticipated to

be constructed in early 2021. We share this project

as a current demonstration of our experience with

maximizing program activities within a tight site.

The MIG Team creatively maximized a number of

community-driven program elements – children’s play

area, prefabricated restroom, shade structure, dog

park, and parking plaza – within the one-acre site. Our

commitment to balancing site programs with space

constraints will benefit the Layne Park project.

REVISED CONCEPT PLAN

In conjunction with this proposal effort, the MIG Team has 

reviewed the conceptual site plan included in Proposition 

68 grant application (and subsequently in the the RFP 

document), and has identified several potential revisions 

to the concept that would improve the design. While 

we understand the risks associated with developing a 

concept plan without collaboration or communication with 

the City of San Fernando or the community, we saw this 

as an opportunity to demonstrate not only our passion for 

the project, but also our knowledge and experience in 

the realm of park planning and sports field design.

Our design concept, illustrated herein (see Exhibit 

on page 4), works to maximize the community-driven 

program elements within the limited space available on 

the Layne Park site. In addition to saving most of the 

mature trees, the design features: 

» A universally designed children’s play area with

integrated shade elements. To address safety

concerns, the playground has been moved away from

the street and made more centrally located. MIG is

internationally recognized as a leader in the design

and development of children’s play environments—we

literally wrote the book “Play For All Guidelines” (1987).

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

II IJ 
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 341 of 498



P R O P O S A L  S U M M A R Y

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     3

» A restroom building (prefabricated to maximize value

within the limited budget) is conveniently located

adjacent to the children’s play area. MIG has recent

experience working with a variety of restroom

manufacturers, and has incorporated them locally for

parks in downtown Los Angeles and Pasadena. We

have an architect on staff who will work with the City

and design team in customizing the restroom to best

reflect the design of the park and the context of the

neighborhood.

» A lighted basketball court is located on the park’s

northern edge adjacent to Huntington Street. Note

that the court has been reoriented for better solar

orientation and to minimize space constraints. We

envision the incorporation of decorative graphics within

the court design to serve as a public art element that

reflects the diversity of the adjacent community.

» The lighted synthetic turf soccer field has been

revised dimensionally to better adhere to the U10 size

requirements of youth soccer programs. While we

anticipate having a subdrain system, bioswales straddle

the field to capture runoff.

» We call these bioswales the “Discovery Creeks,” and

see them not only as a key LID feature, but also as an

opportunity to educate the public about sustainability

and the native plants and animals of the San Fernando

area.

» A series of picnic shelters and shaded picnic areas

round out the park design, which is complemented with

walls and fences for security, new energy-efficient park

lighting, a smart irrigation system, and a palette of plant

material appropriate for the San Fernando microclimate.

This concept plan is merely a possibility and 

demonstration of our passion for the Layne Park 

Revitalization project. Our work plan and proposed 

design fee incorporated within this document is 

specifically not predicated on this concept plan. We 

look forward to working with the City of San Fernando 

in crafting a park design that reflects not only the 

requirements of the Prop 68 grant, but also the dreams 

and aspirations of the community itself.

WHY MIG?

In summary, we have identified several key differentiators 

that distinguish MIG from our competitors:

» MIG has a full range of in-house expertise available to

help deliver the project, including not only landscape

architecture, but also architecture, signage design,

CEQA review, habitat restoration, and community

engagement.

» MIG has experience working with the California Natural

Resources Agency on delivering grant-funded park and

open space projects.

» MIG is a recognized leader in the development of

children’s play environments.

» MIG is experienced with the development of sports

facilities, including synthetic turf soccer fields and

basketball courts.

» MIG has worked with the California Conservation Corps

in park design and implementation.

» MIG is a leader in the incorporation of green

infrastructure, including bioswales, in our park projects.

MIG is passionate about delivering park and open space 

projects that meet the recreational, social, cultural, 

environmental, educational, and economic goals of 

communities. We look forward to delivering a Layne Park 

Revitalization Project that is artful, driven by a compelling 

narrative, responsive to the site’s natural and historic 

context, promotes community equity, is fiscally and 

environmentally sustainable, and constructable.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 342 of 498



P R O P O S A L  S U M M A R Y

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     4

Lighted Basketball Court

Shaded Play Area

Lighted Synthetic Turf Field

Restroom Building

Discovery Creek Bioswale

Group Picnic Shelter

Shade Shelter

Picnic Pad with Shade

Concrete Walk

6’ Block Wall

6’ Wire Mesh Fencing

20’ Safety Netting

Drinking Fountain

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

NORTH

0’ 16’ 32’ 64’

1

2

3

4

5

5

6

7

8

9

9

9

10

11

12

12

13

North Huntington Street

Fermoor Street

Layne Park Design Concept

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

0 
0 
0 . [ 8 
0 
0 
0 

I [ 8 
0 

0 
1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 343 of 498



P R O P O S A L  S U M M A R Y

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     5

CONTACTS

Evan Mather, FASLA, PLA, SITES AP 

Principal-in-Charge 

617 West Seventh Street, Suite 304 

Los Angeles, California 90017 

office: (213) 694-3800 ext. 2525  |  cell: (310) 570-3804 

emather@migcom.com

Oscar Johnson, PLA 

Project Manager 

617 West Seventh Street, Suite 304 

Los Angeles, California 90017 

(714) 871-3638 ext. 4090

oscarj@migcom.com

Johnny Carson Park, Burbank, California

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 344 of 498



T E A M  P R O F I L E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     6

About MIG, Inc.
MIG, Inc., improves, adapts, and creates organizations, 

environments, and tools for human development. We are 

a community of designers, planners, engineers, scientists, 

and storytellers who engage people in creative problem 

solving and collective action. We believe that the physical 

and social environment around us have a profound 

impact on our lives, and this belief shapes the principles 

that guide our work:

» Communities can plan their own futures.

» The world needs an ecological perspective.

» Great projects work for everybody.

» Elegant design inspires new thinking.

» All work should be context driven.

» Accessibility is always a given.

MIG is at the forefront of innovation. We are leading 

local, regional, and national planning and design 

initiatives to ensure accessibility and equity; engage, 

educate, and empower people through participatory 

processes; facilitate strategy development for social 

change; create playful and inclusive communities; 

reimagine streets and repurpose infrastructure; 

revitalize cities and restore ecosystems; and promote 

environmental stewardship by recognizing that the health 

of the natural and built world is mutually dependent.

For nearly four decades, MIG has worked with public, 

private and nonprofit agencies and their constituents 

worldwide to craft outdoor spaces where people walk, 

drive, gather, play, explore, work, learn, and live. Our 

landscape architecture practice integrates natural and 

built environments to connect people to place, nature,  

and each other. 

02
Team Profile 

Compton Creek Nature Park, Compton, California

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 345 of 498



T E A M  P R O F I L E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     7

Existing site features, topography and history inform 

our designs as we work with clients and communities 

to develop a specific program of functions and uses—

creating a powerful sense of place that not only pleases 

the eye but protects ecological and cultural resources 

and enhances community livability.

We offer a full range of services including site 

assessment, programming, concept and schematic 

design, feasibility analysis, irrigation, and planting 

design, construction documentation and administration, 

and site maintenance manuals. Our approach is cross-

generational and universal—allowing all ages and abilities 

to share in the experience; integrated—considering 

all aspects of a project from vision to construction 

to ongoing maintenance; collaborative—partnering 

with clients and communities to foster ownership and 

advocacy; and creative—striving for innovation in design, 

programming, and implementation. 

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

» Urban Design and Placemaking

» Park and Natural Areas Planning

» Design for Children and Youth

» Ecological Design and Landscape Architecture

» Recreation Programs and Community Services

» Park and Facility Needs Analysis and Operations and
Maintenance Plans

» Community Outreach and Involvement

» Facilitation and Consensus Building

» Landscape Architecture, Parks, Plazas and Public Realm

» Cultural Landscapes

» Universal Design and Accessibility

Subconsultants
CWE

Civil Engineering, Survey, Structural Engineering
Since 2006, CWE’s trusted and distinguished civil 

infrastructure, water resources, and environmental 

engineering services have enhanced the quality of 

life of our esteemed communities. They have served 

over 150 public municipalities, utility companies, 

private businesses, and federal agencies who have 

benefitted from their promise of Creating a Better 

Tomorrow, Today™. CWE’s award-winning industry 

leaders actively work to cultivate the engineering 

protégés and environmental stewards of tomorrow. 

They work tirelessly to bring the mastery, creativity, 

and commitment necessary to deliver forward-thinking 

results to enhance the communities we live, work, and 

play in, leaving them better for the next generation. This 

is the CWE standard.

CWE has been recognized by the Zweig Group as a  

“Hot Firm” three times and a “Best Firm To Work For” four 

years in a row. These honors not only highlight CWE’s 

significant business growth, but also reflect their growing 

staff’s sense of purpose and happiness at CWE. The 

firm is eager to demonstrate how engaged employees 

with the same goal of Creating a Better Tomorrow, 

Today™ prompt clients to return, and show the City of San 

Fernando what benefits their dedicated engineers and 

scientists can bring to fulfill this project’s civil engineering, 

structural engineering, and survey needs. 

CWE is a Disadvantaged (DBE), Minority (MBE), 

and Small Business Enterprise (SBE).

Size 240 employees

Office Locations Los Angeles, Pasadena, Fullerton, 
Riverside, San Diego, Berkeley, 
San Jose, Sonoma, Sacramento, 
Portland, Denver, Seattle Pioneer 
Square, Seattle Westlake,  
San Antonio

Years in Business 38

Organizational Structure Corporation

Litigation MIG has no pending litigation or 
litigation within the last five years.

MIG Details

Size 34 employees

Office Locations Orange County, Los Angeles 
County, San Diego County, Utah 
County

Years in Business 14

Organizational Structure Corporation

Litigation CWE has no pending litigation or 
litigation within the last five years.

CWE Details

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 346 of 498



T E A M  P R O F I L E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     8

INTEGRAL GROUP

Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing Engineering
Integral Group is an interactive global network of 

mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and energy engineers 

collaborating under a single deep green engineering 

umbrella. They provide a full range of building system 

design and energy analysis services, and with a staff of 

over 800, across over 20 offices in the United States, 

Australia, Canada, and Europe. Integral Group is regarded 

as an innovative leader in building system design. As 

members of the US, Australian, Canadian, and UK, 

Green Building Councils and are founding signatories 

of the World Green Building Council’s Net Zero Carbon 

Buildings Commitment, Integral Group has  100+ LEED 

Accredited Professionals with expertise that includes 

alternative energy sources, passive system design, and 

green building systems.

The firm’s organization is designed to specifically 

meet the challenge of accelerating critical change in 

sustainable building practices. Their integrated approach 

to building systems design allows them to enhance 

opportunities that nature provides, working in harmony 

with a building’s environment to reduce its reliance on 

outside energy sources. Integral Group specializes in 

the design of simple, elegant, cost-effective systems for 

high performance building environments and provide 

comprehensive analyses that help prioritize their energy 

saving potential and carbon reduction effect.

GEOTECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Geotechnical Engineering
Geotechnologies, Inc. has been providing geotechnical 

services for 48 years in the Southern California region 

for a wide spectrum of clients from private developers to 

public institutions. 

Geotechnologies, Inc. has consulted on over 21,000 

projects in both the private and public sectors. Projects 

types include municipal, commercial, institutional, 

medical, retail, research, entertainment, and residential. 

The firm’s staff of registered engineers and geologists 

specializes in foundation and shoring design, grading 

recommendations, and seismic hazard evaluation. The 

field technician staff provides testing and inspection 

services during the course of construction. Such 

inspections include footings, piles, shoring, helical 

anchors, and grading control. 

Integral Group Details

Geotechnologies, Inc. Details

Size 800 employees

Office 
Locations

Oakland, CA Los Angeles, CA San Diego, 
CA Seattle, WA Austin, TX Atlanta, GA 
Washington, DC Richmond, VA New York, 
NY, Vancouver, BC Victoria, BC Calgary, 
AB Edmonton, AB Toronto, ON London, 
UK Oxford, UK Belgrade, SER Sydney, AUS 
Melbourne, AUS Brisbane, AUS

Years in 
Business

11

Organizational 
Structure

Corporation

Litigation Integral Group has no pending litigation or 
litigation within the last five years.

Size 24 employees

Office 
Locations

Glendale, CA

Years in 
Business

48

Organizational 
Structure

Corporation

Litigation Geotechnologies has no pending litigation 
or litigation within the last five years.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 347 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     9

03
Team Experience
MIG

Landscape Architecture
With a core competency in landscape architecture, MIG 

provides full services from concept design, feasibility 

studies and master plans to construction documentation 

and administration. The firm has broad experience in 

the design of sustainable outdoor environments that 

integrate people with and without disabilities, contribute 

to community livability and enable residents to lead 

healthy, active lifestyles. Projects range from parks and 

plazas to trails and streetscapes. We create innovative 

environments that:

» Foster a sense of place;

» Contribute to neighborhood and community identity;

» Promote public safety;

» Facilitate intergenerational recreation opportunities;

» Promote environmental stewardship and sustainability;

» Honor the community’s history and natural environment;

» Meet maintenance and program needs; and

» Support revenue generating goals.

Parks, Open Space, and Trails Planning
A coordinated and integrated park, open space, and 

trails network provides significant community benefits 

and is an important factor for increasing livability. MIG 

has a track record of designing context-sensitive parks 

and trails that enhance public use, access, and user 

experience; encourage resource preservation; support a 

comprehensive transportation strategy; and incorporate 

local and state objectives. Creating a comprehensive 

and connected network of trail corridors requires an 

understanding of the complexities associated with 

overlapping jurisdictions, goals, and strategies. 

Public Involvement and Community Outreach
MIG has extensive experience designing public outreach 

and involvement programs that educate the community, 

encourage participation, engage stakeholders in 

evaluating alternatives, and provide agency staff with 

meaningful community input. MIG provides a multilevel, 

well-documented involvement process aimed at 

increasing public confidence in decision making. MIG 

uses proven facilitation techniques and succinct, easily 

understood information to ensure that the community 

and stakeholders understand pertinent issues and that 

agencies receive meaningful community input. Our 

outreach approach enables the community to contribute 

ideas, solutions and strategies for addressing issues, 

which results in supported and successful projects. 

Sustainable Design
MIG’s design and planning practice is built on a 

foundation of creating sustainable projects that 

comprehensively integrate all aspects of low impact 

development from building public realm and open space 

design to creative methods of promoting healthy living 

and educating the community. 

Yanaguana Garden at Hemisfair Park, San Antonio, Texas

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 348 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     10

CWE

CWE has experience providing civil engineering services 

for the City of San Fernando in recent months. They 

installed an underground manufactured infiltration system 

underneath the existing park and replace the baseball 

field and irrigation system for the San Fernando Regional 

Park Infiltration project, which was funded under the 

Proposition 1 Stormwater Grant Program. Six different 

alternatives were developed and evaluated to maximize 

benefits while reducing capital cost and ongoing life 

cycle cost. The infiltration system serves a drainage 

area greater than 950 acres and recharge groundwater 

sources with 446 acre-feet of runoff annually. 

Civil Engineering
CWE has been providing civil infrastructure design and 

improvement services for 14 years as a firm, and has  

prepared numerous park improvement plans. Their civil 

design expertise on projects such as the City of Torrance 

Stormwater Basin and Treatment Wetland Enhancement, 

City of Los Angeles Garvanza Park Rainwater Capture 

and Use, and City of Santa Monica Los Amigo Park 

Stormwater Harvesting and Direct Use Demonstration 

has been recognized on a local and national level from 

entities such as the American Society of Civil Engineers 

(ASCE), Engineering News-Record (ENR), and the 

California Stormwater Quality Association (CASQA). 

CWE staff includes 11 Professional Engineers (PEs) and 

9 Envision™ Sustainability Professionals (ENV SP) with 

experience providing design Plans, Specifications, and 

Estimates (PS&Es) at the 30%, 60%, 90%, and 100% 

levels. In addition to civil infrastructure design, CWE has 

experience developing and implementing improvement 

plans, Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPPs) 

and Low Impact Development (LID) Plans, and performing 

water pressure, sewer, and hydrology and hydraulic 

studies for public works clients.

Survey
CWE has conducted significant survey work for numerous 

park improvement projects throughout Southern 

California, including the City of San Fernando Regional 

Park Infiltration, City of Torrance Stormwater Basin 

and Treatment Wetlands Enhancement, and City of 

Bell Gardens John Anson Ford Park Infiltration Cistern 

projects, to name a few.   The survey tasks have included 

boundary survey, topographic survey, design survey, and 

construction staking for most of our civil design projects.  

CWE conducts field surveys, site evaluations, and 

investigations, and coordinates proposed improvements 

with existing field conditions. Plans will clearly show 

existing conditions, including but not limited to signs, 

traffic striping/markings, curbs, gutters, street lights, etc. 

from field observations. Topographic survey will include 

existing structures on private property that might interfere 

with construction of the project, and will be clearly shown 

and identified within the base topographic mapping. This 

work will be prepared in US Customary English units by 

our California-licensed Land Surveyor in accordance 

with the City and County of Riverside guidelines and 

in Computer Aided Design and Drafting (CADD) format 

(scale 1 inch = 40 feet). The horizontal datum will be NAD 

83 California State Plane Zone VI, and the vertical datum 

will be NAVD 88.

Structural Engineering
CWE has significant experience with providing structural 

engineering for park improvement projects, and have 

prepared structural calculations for prefabricated 

restroom building foundations, bridges, dams, walls, 

towers, canopies, site lighting poles, and fencing. 

currently providing structural calculations for the LACPW 

Burton Chase Park project, with a focus on the sizing 

of shelter members, the prefabricated restroom facility 

foundation, and conducting a bridge evaluation. CWE 

also helped design the main entrance bridge replacement 

for the City of Long Beach El Dorado Nature Center 

Improvement project and construct bridge abutments for 

the award-winning City of Burbank Johnny Carson Park 

Improvement and Stream Restoration project as part of 

the MIG Team.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 349 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     11

INTEGRAL GROUP

Mechanical Design 
Integral Group designs efficient mechanical and HVAC 

systems including the use of chilled beams, efficient 

outside air systems that eliminate reheat, radiant cooling 

systems and low pressure drop systems. They are 

leaders in HVAC for critical environments and are widely 

recognized as innovators in radiant heating and cooling 

systems.

Electrical and Lighting/Daylighting Design
Integral Group provides a full range of sustainable 

electrical systems design services including power 

distribution, lighting and lighting controls, fire detection 

and alarm, public address, master clock, telephone and 

data systems, and renewable energy sources. They 

also specialize in architectural lighting design, energy 

conservation systems, and site infrastructure.

Plumbing Design
Integral Group developed deep expertise in the design 

of critical environments involving complex water 

quality issues that require unique experience and 

technical knowledge. In all building and project types, 

water is a key component of sustainable design and is 

interconnected with energy efficiency in many ways that 

are not always widely recognized. They are well versed in 

the specification and use of low-flow fixtures, rainwater, 

and grey and black water systems.

Energy Analysis 
Integral Group’s services in this area include detailed 

measurement, analysis, and recommendations on energy 

efficient solutions for a wide variety of building types and 

environments. They use the most advanced analytical 

tools available today including CFD modeling and 

proprietary software, monitoring, and analysis solutions. 

Because of their unique experience, expertise, and 

knowledge gained from both design and analysis of many 

different projects over the years, Integral Group is often 

called upon to help develop industry standards.

GEOTECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Geotechnical Engineering
Geotechnologies, Inc. has won California Geotechnical 

Engineer’s Association (CalGeo) Outstanding Project 

Award twice. These awards recognized innovation in 

the USC North Science Building renovation and the 

stabilization of a failing Frank Lloyd Wright structure. In 

addition, the firm has received three Honorable Mention 

Awards for Outstanding Project. 

Their staff of registered engineers and geologists 

specializes in foundation, shoring and retaining wall 

design; grading guidelines; seismic hazard evaluation; 

geological hazard evaluation and peer review. Their 

broad range of services has made Geotechnologies, Inc. 

a leading project consultant in the Southern California 

area.

The testing and geotechnical observation services 

provided by Geotechnologies, Inc. during construction 

are performed by registered City of Los Angeles 

Deputy Grading Inspectors. Inspectors verify that the 

recommendations provided by the engineers, and the 

requirements of the building code, are met.

All laboratory testing is performed in-house allowing 

for greater quality control. The laboratory operated 

by Geotechnologies, Inc. has been accredited by 

the American Association of State Highway and 

Transportation Officials (AASHTO), the City of Los 

Angeles, and the California Division of the State Architect 

(DSA). 

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

II IJ 
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 350 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     12

Johnny Carson Park Revitalization
BURBANK, CALIFORNIA

MIG led this $3.7 million project to transform a drainage 

channel into the centerpiece of Johnny Carson Park—one 

of Burbank’s largest and most utilized neighborhood 

parks. Our team was challenged with the task of 

upgrading the park’s infrastructure while meeting the 

City’s sustainability goals. The work focused on the 

restoration of Little Tujunga Wash, which traverses the 

10-acre park and flows into the Los Angeles River.

MIG conducted a highly interactive community design 

process with City staff, community leaders, local 

residents, and businesses to define the needs and to 

solicit feedback on the design options. Based upon this 

input, MIG developed an innovative, sustainable design 

that provides multiple benefits of improved energy and 

water efficiency, public access, and water quality. The 

Little Tujunga Wash is now a recreation destination with 

an enhanced habitat; improved pedestrian access with 

bridges and new walking paths lined with parcourse 

equipment; a California native plant palette; and 

reclaimed water irrigation. 

MIG provided full landscape architecture services for 

planting, hardscape, and irrigation for the entire park 

renovation, which also included new LED lighting, an 

acoustic concert stage, an expanded children’s play area, 

and picnic areas.

Johnny Carson Park reopened in July 2016 and has been 

recognized for its excellence in quality-of-life design by 

the American Society of Landscape Architects and the 

American Public Works Association.

PROJECT DETAILS
Project Cost: $3.7 Million

Timeframe: 2014-2016

Reference: Judie Wilke 
City of Burbank Park, Recreation and Community 
Services Department 
(818) 238-3773
jwilke@ci.burbank.ca.us

AWARDS
» BEST Awards 2016, APWA So. California Chapter

» Merit Award 2016, ASLA/SC Quality of Life Design
Awards

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 351 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     13

MIG led the visioning, programming, and design for 

key public spaces at Hemisfair Park. This 104-acre 

redevelopment area in central San Antonio, has become 

one of the great attractions of the city, a well-loved and 

authentic destination that enhances livability of San 

Antonio residents of all ages. MIG led the team that 

prepared the programming document to guide the overall 

design concept for Hemisfair Park, then took the first 

projects from design through construction. Yanaguana 

Garden is the implementation of just one of those areas. 

Since 2010, San Antonio had imagined an active, exciting 

24/7 outdoor play and recreation experience for both kids 

and adults. On opening day the local newspaper called 

the park a “love letter to the City.”  From young children 

thrilled at climbing the Boomerang, to adults of all ages 

playing ping pong and enjoying the live entertainment 

and many food options from local vendors, visitors 

describe Yanaguana as colorful and fun. 

The wide variety of options that were thoughtfully 

considered and executed, make this the City’s 

“backyard,” a place for all to gather and enjoy regardless 

of age, ability, or economics.

Yanaguana Garden at Hemisfair Park
SAN ANTONIO, TE X AS

Key design elements of the park include a winding 

promenade with vine covered Pergola and surface pattern 

that flows through the site to connect to San Antonio’s 

famed river; native limestone seatwalls; a cascading 

water play spray area with terraced limestone ledges and 

seatwalls, custom mosaic glass patterns; a central square 

with colorful checkered patterns that can be game boards 

or a colorful dance floor for special events; a custom 

restroom building with a one-of-a-kind mural; an outdoor 

theater and seating area, active play areas, shaded rocky 

sandscape and a mosaic play sculpture titled PanterAzul 

based on the legendary blue panther and a well spring 

and winding river mosaic seatwall. Around the entire area 

are restaurants, an ice cream parlor, a future beer garden 

and an intimate music venue with streets that merge into 

the park and extend to other parts of Hemisfair.

PROJECT DETAILS
Project Cost: $6 Million

Timeframe: 2013-2016

Reference:  
Andres Andujar, HPARC 
(210) 867-1305  |  Andres.Andujar@Hemisfair.org

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 352 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     14

MIG helped the City of Westlake Village to assess and 

select a site for an approximately 20-acre community 

sports park in association with the YMCA. 

MIG developed a conceptual plan for a hillside park off of 

Thousand Oaks Boulevard just west of Lindero Canyon 

Road. The plan provides for a variety of active recreation, 

including a children’s play area, in-ground skate park, 

perimeter jogging/walking trail, overlay basketball courts 

in the parking area, and lighted fields for softball/baseball 

and soccer. The plan also incorporates supporting 

amenities such as a restroom/concession building, picnic 

facilities, and a maintenance building and yard.

Access to the park is via a one-way entrance drive and 

exit roadway from Thousand Oaks Boulevard. The YMCA 

building and pool complex are centrally located in the park 

for ease of access and user convenience. Each sportsfield 

will be constructed using synthetic turf to lower operational 

costs and conserve water. Slopes will be landscaped with 

drought tolerant and native plant species to blend into the 

adjacent oak woodland foothills.

PROJECT DETAILS
Project Cost: $748,280 Design, $16 M Construction

Timeframe: 2015-2017

Reference:  
Audrey Brown, Assistant City Manager 
City of Westlake Village 
(818) 706-1614
audrey@wlv.org

Westlake Village Community Park
WESTL AKE V ILL AGE, CALIFORNIA

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 353 of 498



T E A M  E X P E R I E N C E

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     15

MIG is working with the City of Pasadena and area 

residents in the transformation of an existing surface 

parking lot into the first urban park in Pasadena’s historic 

Playhouse Village district. This one-acre community-

driven park is geared to serve not only visitors to this 

popular retail and entertainment district, but also a 

growing residential population, resulting from a series of 

new multi-family developments completed over the last 

two decades. 

The park design is centered around a vine-covered 

shade trellis, which acts as a community gathering point, 

and features a children’s playground, historic water 

feature, open lawn area, convenient dog run, restroom 

building with concession option, and California-themed 

landscaping. 

Pasadena Playhouse District Park
PASADENA , CALIFORNIA

A new landscaped buffer along Union Street provides 

additional open space and pedestrian streetscape. A 

48-space surface parking lot is designed to accommodate

events, includingfarmers markets and street fairs, and

also capture on-site stormwater. New furniture, lighting,

and public art elements complement the design. The park

is scheduled to begin construction in early 2021, with

completion estimated by the end of 2021.

PROJECT DETAILS
Project Cost: $553K (fee)

Timeframe: 2019-2021

Reference: Hayden Melbourn, Principal Engineer 
City of Pasadena Public Works and Engineering 
(626) 744-7345
hmelbourn@cityofpasadena.net

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 354 of 498



W O R K  P L A N

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     16

04
Work Plan
Project Understanding
The City of San Fernando is interested in contracting with 

an experienced and qualified firm to provide professional 

design services for the Layne Park Revitalization Project, 

located at 120 North Huntington Street, San Fernando. 

Layne Park is a small neighborhood park approximately 

33,200 square feet in size serving both residential 

and commercial residents. The existing park amenities 

include an open field, playground equipment, and 

several picnic tables. The objective of the Layne Park 

Renovation Project is to enhance the park amenities 

that will provide greater recreational opportunities for 

the surrounding community, provide employment or 

volunteer opportunities for residents, and incorporate 

environmental elements for efficient use of water and 

other natural resources. The Statewide Park Development 

and Community Revitalization Grant Program is funding 

the Layne Park Revitalization Project. As such, all 

contracted work must comply with the provisions of 

§1771.5 of the State Labor Code.

Project Approach
MIG brings to the City of San Fernando nearly four 

decades of success driven by a philosophy of working 

interactively with our clients. It will be our intent to 

become an extension of your staff. We have provided 

professional design services to more than 250 cities, 

eight counties, the State of California, 12 states 

throughout the United States, the Federal Government, 

college and corporate campuses and many park, and 

school districts throughout the country. MIG will bring our 

experience of completed construction plans for public 

facilities totaling more than $1 billion. We have designed 

many renovated and enhanced community parks that 

include facilities similar to Layne Park. Recent parks 

include: Johnny Carson Park in Burbank, Lambert Park in 

El Monte, Wishing Tree Park in West Carson, Ponderosa 

and Anaheim Coves Parks in Anaheim, Golden, 

Apollo, Dennis-The-Menace and Wilderness Parks in 

Downey, and the just-completed Magic Johnson Park in 

Willowbrook and Veterans Park in Tustin.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 355 of 498



W O R K  P L A N

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     17

The MIG Team appreciates the magnitude and 

increasing importance of Layne Park as an established 

resource in your community. We also realize the value 

of determination the City has shown in successfully 

winning the highly competitive State grant funding for 

the enhancement of this park and will adhere to all 

grant funding requirements. Having completed many 

State grant funded projects, such as Wishing Tree 

Park in Carson and Mendez Tribute Monument Park in 

Westminster, we understand the requirements such as 

providing design elements that the Conservation Corps 

are able to perform. We are also familiar with the State 

accounting requirements for documenting hours and 

expenses throughout the design and billing process. 

This will significantly ease the process of invoicing and 

tracking payments through the City and State.

The renovation of Layne Park will require thorough 

knowledge of current mandates that will affect design. 

Accessibility requirements will require circulation and 

full universal access to facilities throughout the park. We 

understand the water conservation requirements enacted 

by AB325 and AB1881 that now govern irrigation water 

use. These water conservation concerns and mandated 

irrigation restrictions have prompted limitations on turf 

use, requirements for smart weather-based irrigation 

controllers and more efficient sprinklers and drip 

systems. Implementation of on-site green infrastructure to 

capture and store stormwater runoff for percolation and 

groundwater recharge is becoming the norm. Resource 

conservation in terms of energy efficiency and long-term 

maintenance demands is a key design criterion which 

we will consider in our conceptual design process. Our 

intention is to design your proposed park improvements 

with your City’s high-quality standards and goals of safety, 

connectivity, opportunities for intergenerational activities, 

healthy exercise, and positive community interaction. We 

will work closely with City maintenance staff to garner 

their knowledge and recommendations to efficiently 

manage this facility and ongoing costs.

Communication will be key in the successful development 

of Layne Park. Our MIG project manager will present 

and set an agreed schedule with the City at the project 

start. The schedule will indicate the tasks, milestones, 

deliverable dates, and anticipated review periods 

throughout the design process. We will carefully monitor 

and manage that schedule continuously through the 

design process, making adjustments as necessary with 

the City staff’s review and approval to accommodate 

any meetings and or extended review periods that may 

become necessary. Continual communication between 

the City and the project team through the project 

manager, will keep the project schedule coordinated and 

everyone informed. If an unexpected delay occurs, the 

project manager will prepare and present a plan of action 

for making up the time to the City representative for 

review and approval.

MIG is particularly familiar with the special requirements 

of municipal projects. Our team understands the 

importance of complete and thorough bid documents to 

ensure quality construction from the “low responsive bid” 

contractors. Our design and construction documents will 

reflect this attention to detail and the quality of materials 

and equipment selected.

MIG has developed an In-House Plan Review and 

Checklist document for Quality Assurance/ Quality 

Control in the review of construction documents. Our 

team will utilize MIG’s plan review checklists in preparing 

and reviewing the construction documents for Layne 

Park. The checklists address the following drawing and 

specification items: Grading, Drainage, Irrigation Systems, 

Walkways, Fencing, Lighting, Restroom Building, Passive 

Facilities, Site Amenities, Drought Tolerant Plant Materials, 

Signage and General and Specific Notes.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 356 of 498



W O R K  P L A N

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     18

MIG has earned a reputation for completing our project 

tasks in a timely manner. The broad experience of our 

overall firm coupled with the expertise of our local office 

personnel ensure our prompt response to your project 

assignments and any questions and issues that may 

come up during the design or construction process. We 

will work closely with the City staff and our project team 

to meet all project milestones.

MIG understands the relationship between the City 

departments and the approval process. In providing 

design services for our public clients, the MIG Team 

understands the City’s submittal process, multi-agency 

review schedules and desire to address plan check 

comments in a timely manner. We realize the value 

of proactively moving the project forward, to ensure 

reviewers’ continuity and maintain project momentum.

The MIG Team is very familiar with construction 

administrative procedures and construction support 

services. MIG provides on-site construction observation 

and support for most of our clients. As the prime design 

consultant for 90% of our projects, we coordinate the 

on-site services for all project team consultants. Our staff 

is well trained in construction administration services and 

tasks, coordination with consultants, Agency staff, and the 

contractor. We understand that construction support will 

be at the City’s request and paid on a time and materials 

basis as utilized. We strongly recommend construction 

support services as needed, to ensure that the project 

implementation is according to the design intent.

MIG favors a highly interactive approach in which our 

project team will work closely with City staff as directed. 

We envision Layne Park as a collaborative team effort 

that will maximize the strengths and resources of all 

project team members and City staff and will result in a 

re-energized and beloved neighborhood park. 

Project Scope of Work
In accordance with an executed professional services 

agreement, MIG shall coordinate planning of Layne Park’s 

program elements and deliver a construction documents 

package (plans, specifications, estimate), suitable for 

bidding, that provides a single, cohesive community park 

program and layout. As part of our design process, MIG 

will prepare high quality drawings, exhibits, renderings, 

and professional oral presentations as needed for 

review and approval by the City of San Fernando. As 

communicated in the RFP, the Layne Park Revitalization 

Project must include the following:

» Construct a restroom building, powered by solar
panels.

» Construct a basketball court with lighting.

» Construct an artificial turf soccer field with lighting.

» Add new landscape and irrigation improvements.

- Tree removal/replacement (if needed).

- Smart Irrigation with ground sensors.

- Bioswales.

- Plant non-invasive and drought tolerant trees, shrubs,
etc.

» Conform existing and new lighting to LED, solar power
preferably.

» Add fencing along alley ways.

» Renovate playground for ADA accessibility and add
shading.

» Install shading for existing picnic tables.

» Install drinking fountains.

» Design to incorporate projects that the California
Conservation Corps will perform.

Our cost proposal includes the delivery of the following 

items: 

» Geotechnical Report.

» Topographic Survey.

» 30%, 65%, 95%, and 100% (Bid Set) PS&E (Plans,
Specifications, and Estimate).

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

II IJ 
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 357 of 498



W O R K  P L A N

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     19

Our proposed project schedule is based on the overall 

milestones as provided in the RFP. We are committed 

to and staffed appropriately to complete the Layne Park 

Revitalization Project bid documents by June 2021 based 

on receipt of a notice-to-proceed (NTP) from the City 

of San Fernando in November 2020. Specific project 

milestones include:

» Kickoff Meeting with City of San Fernando –
November 30, 2020

» Submit 30% PS&E to City of San Fernando –
January 4, 2021

» Present 30% PS&E at City Council Meeting –
January 18, 2021

» Submit 65% PS&E to City of San Fernando –
March 1, 2021

» Present 65% PS&E at City Council Meeting –
March 15, 2021

» Submit 95% PS&E to City of San Fernando –
April 26, 2021

» Present 95% PS&E at City Council Meeting –
May 17, 2021

» Submit Bid Set to City of San Fernando – May 2021

» Bid Period – Summer 2021

» Construction Period – Fall 2021/Spring 2022

» Layne Park Revitalization Project Grand Opening –
May 2022

» Submit Record Drawings – June 2022

TASK 1: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

The goal of this task is to provide all professional and 

support services required to manage, control, track 

and report on the progress of work and expenditures 

provided under this scope of work, including but not 

limited to coordination and management of the MIG 

consultant team, perform Quality Assurance/Quality 

Control (QA/QC) measures, and conduct project 

coordination meetings with City of San Fernando. Specific 

tasks include:

1.01  MIG will provide General Project Management 

including but not limited to providing monthly status 

reports, providing the design schedule with updates 

as requested, providing meeting minutes with action 

items, reviewing and approving monthly billing 

invoices, and coordinating subconsultant contracts.

1.02  MIG will facilitate regular Project Meetings via 

Teleconference with the City of San Fernando and 

consultant team. For the purposes of this proposal, 

we have estimated twenty-four (24) one-hour weekly 

teleconferences during the development of the 

project.  

TASK 2: PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ENGINEERING 

ESTIMATES

The goal of this task is to prepare the Plans, 

Specifications, and Estimate for the Layne Park 

Revitalization project, as required to construct the 

project. It is anticipated that the package will include, at a 

minimum: Title Sheet; General Notes; Existing Conditions 

(including Right-of-Way) Plans; Demolition Plans; Tree 

Disposition Plans; Horizontal Control Plans; Grading 

and Utilities Plans; Landscape Construction (Flatwork, 

Furniture, Fencing/Walls, Lighting), Planting, and Irrigation 

Plans; Electrical Plans; and all required details anticipated 

to construct the project. MIG will prepare the technical 

specifications for the project, the City will prepare the 

general conditions for the project manual. A preliminary 

estimate of probable construction costs (i.e. engineering 

estimate) consistent with the drawings and specifications 

will be prepared.

2.01  The MIG Team will prepare a Topographic Survey for 

use in the project. The survey will include contours 

at one-foot intervals; spot elevations on hardscape 

features; existing building and structure footprints; 

sidewalks and trails, driveways, and handicap 

ramps; trees and major specimen plants, with trunk 

diameters greater than six inches; above ground 

utilities including valves, pull-boxes, meters, vaults, 

and miscellaneous manholes; all major surface 

features that define the shape of the terrain, such as 

tops and toes of slopes, grade breaks, and natural 

group.

2.02  The MIG Team will prepare a Geotechnical Report 

for use in the project that will inform the City and 

consultant team on the possible location of LID 

elements, a well as the optimal locations for site 

structures (i.e. prefabricated restrooms and shade 

elements). 

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

II IJ 
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 358 of 498



W O R K  P L A N

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     20

2.03  MIG will visit the project site and conduct Field 

Investigation services (i.e. review of existing context, 

review of existing utilities, site conditions, site 

photography) as required to deliver the project.

2.04 MIG will prepare and submit the Conceptual Design 

(i.e. 30% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) 

documentation) package.

2.05 MIG will attend a City Council Presentation, slated 

for the third Monday in January 2021 (1/18/2021), 

and be available to present a status update on the 

Conceptual Design (i.e. 30% PS&E documents).

2.06 Based on comments received from the City during 

the review process, MIG will revise and resubmit 

the 65% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) 

documentation package. 

2.07 MIG will attend a City Council Presentation, slated 

for the third Monday in March 2021 (3/15/2021), and 

be available to present a status update on the 65% 

PS&E documents.

2.08 Based on comments received from the City during 

the review process, MIG will revise and resubmit 

the 95% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate (PS&E) 

documentation package. 

2.09 MIG will attend a City Council Presentation, slated 

for the third Monday in May 2021 (5/17/2021), and 

be available to present a status update on the 95% 

PS&E documents.

TASK 3: FINAL SUBMITTALS

The goal of this task is to finalize the PS&E and prepare 

the Bid Set for use in the bid advertisement. Specifically:

3.01 MIG will prepare the Bid Set for the project, 

including: the submission of two full-size and two 

half-size (bond paper) final plan set master with the 

appropriate seal and signature on each plan sheet 

and title sheet of specifications; electronic copy of 

all plans in AutoCAD and Adobe Acrobat format on 

a flash drive; electronic copy of the specifications 

document in Microsoft Word format on a flash drive; 

one set of quantity calculations and final estimate 

of construction costs in Microsoft Excel format on a 

flash drive; all documentation (scanned if necessary) 

used on the project design on a flash drive.  

TASK 4: BIDDING PHASE

The goal of this task is to provide support to the City 

during the bid period. Specific tasks include:

4.01 MIG will attend the Pre-Bid Meeting. 

4.02 During the bid period, MIG will prepare responses 

to Contractor requests for clarification, record 

and distribute among potential bidders answers 

and clarifications given to individual Contractors, 

and prepare formal construction documentation 

addenda, if necessary. MIG will also prepare any 

required addenda and pre-bid meeting agenda, if 

requested.

TASK 5: DESIGN SUPPORT DURING CONSTRUCTION 

PROCESS

The goal of this task is to provide design support to the 

City during the construction phase. It is assumed that 

the City will lead the management of the construction 

process; the MIG Team will be available on an as-needed 

support role only. Upon request, the MIG Team will attend 

the pre-construction meeting, prepare responses to 

Contractor Requests For Information (RFIs), and review 

submittals and shop drawings for those parts of the 

Project in the scope of work. Specific tasks include:

5.01 MIG will attend the Pre-Construction Meeting with 

the Contractor and City’s Project Manager to review 

construction schedule, review anticipated submittals 

and shop drawings, and establish methods of 

communication during the construction period. MIG 

will prepare any required pre-construction meeting 

agenda, if requested.

5.02 MIG will Prepare Responses to Contractor Questions 

during the construction period in the form of drawing 

clarifications and responses to RFIs.

5.03 MIG will provide In-House Field Support during 

Construction, including the review of product 

submittals and shop drawings for those parts of the 

Project in the scope of work. This task also includes 

time for regular communication with the City and 

Contractor to review project progress.

5.04 MIG will prepare Record Drawings for the Project 

upon receipt of the Contractor’s as-built drawings.

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

II IJ 
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 359 of 498



W O R K  P L A N

Agreement Review and Approval
Notice to Proceed
1.0 Project Management

General Project Management
Weekly Project Meetings

2.0 Plans, Specifications and Engineering Estimates
Kickoff Meeting  with City of San Fernando
Field Investigations
Prepare Topographical Survey

 Prepare Geotechnical Report
 30% Plans and Specifications
 30% Cost Estimate
 QA/QC

Submit 30% PS&E
City Review Period
Present at City Council Meeting (1/18/21)
65% Plans and Specifications

 65% Cost Estimate
 QA/QC
 Submit 65% PS&E
 City Review

Present to City Council (3/15/21)
95% Plans and Specifications

 95% Cost Estimate
 QA/QC
 Submit 95% PS&E
 City Review

Present to City Council (5/17/21)
3.0 Final Submittal

Bid Set
Submit to City of San Fernando

4.0 Bid Phase
Attend Pre-Bid
Bid Period
Respond to Questions
Bid Opening
Council Award

5.0 Design Support During Construction
Pre-Construction Meeting
Respond to Contractor Questions/Field Support
Park Grand Opening
Record Drawings

Schedule
Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

2020 2021 2022

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     21

30
%

 P
S

&
E

65
%

 P
S

&
E

9
5%

 P
S

&
E

EX
H

IBIT "A
"

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T N
O

. 1974

* I 
- : 
- : 

• : 
Ii 
'* :-
: * 

• 

-* 
• 
• .. 

* -* 
* 

* * 
* 

• 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 360 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     22

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Evan Mather, Principal-in-Charge, MIG
Oscar Johnson, Project Manager, MIG

CIVIL ENGINEERING, 
SURVEY, STRUCTURAL 

ENGINEERING

William “Bill” Young, CWE
Vik Bapna, CWE

Tommy Muttaraid, CWE
David Farrel, CWE

LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURE/

IRRIGATION

Evan Mather, MIG
Oscar Johnson, MIG

Dino Viale, MIG
Holly De La Torre, MIG

MECHANICAL, 
ELECTRICAL, AND 

PLUMBING ENGINEERING

Andrew Reilman, 
Integral Group

Annette Malekandrasians,  
Integral Group

Miguel Garcia, 
Integral Group

GEOTECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING

Edward Hill, 
Geotechnologies

Technical Focus Areas

TEAM ORGANIZATION 

05
Project Staffing
The specializations and qualifications of our committed 

staff will be a significant asset in the timely completion of 

the Layne Park Revitalization. The MIG Team’s capabilities 

are aligned with the goals of the City of San Fernando. 

With 28 years of experience with an emphasis on 

landscape infrastructure, water quality, conservation, 

and environmental performance, Evan Mather, FASLA, 

PLA, SITES AP will serve as Principal-in-Charge to ensure 

adequate resources are allocated to this project and 

that contractual requirements are met. Evan will provide 

overall project direction, oversight and quality control. 

As project manager, Oscar Johnson, PLA will be 

responsible for day-to-day contact with the City and project 

team. He will employ regular and recurrent team meetings 

and calls to ensure timely and budgeted completion of all 

work activities associated with the project.

Dino Viale is an highly experienced irrigation designer 

and will be responsible for irrigation design. Experienced 

park designer and NRPA certified playground inspector  

Holly De La Torre will assist with landscape design. 

SUBCONSULTANTS
» William “Bill” Young, PE, CWE, Civil Engineering

» Vik Bapna, PE, ENV SP, CPSWQ, QSD/P, CWE,
Civil Engineering

» David Farrel, PLS, CWE, Survey

» Tommy Muttaraid, PE, CWE, Structural Design

» Andrew Reilman, PE, LEED AP BD+C, HBDP, Integral Group,
Mechanical Engineer

» Annette Malekandrasians, PE, Integral Group, Electrical
Engineer

» Miguel Garcia, Integral Group, Plumbing

» Edward Hill, Geotechnologies, Geotechnical Engineering

Earvin “Magic” Johnson Park, Los Angeles, California

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

§AN f ERNANID 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 361 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     23

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Earvin “Magic” Johnson Park
Master Plan and Phase 1A,
Willowbrook, CA

» Exposition Park Master Plan,
Los Angeles, CA

» Johnny Carson Park Revitalization,
Burbank, CA

» Santa Monica Memorial Park
Master Plan, Santa Monica, CA

» Robert F. Kennedy Inspiration
Park, Los Angeles, CA

» Pasadena Playhouse District Park
and Parking Lot, Pasadena, CA

» West Wilshire (Pan Pacific) Park,
Athletic Field Improvements,
Los Angeles, CA

» Alpine Park Recreation Center
Expansion, Los Angeles, CA

» Burbank Water and Power
EcoCampus, Burbank, CA

» Cerritos Community Regional
County Park Renovation,
Cerritos, CA

» Walnut Creek Habitat and Open
Space Master Plan, San Dimas, CA

» Heritage Garden, Glendale, CA

» El Cariso Park, Sylmar, CA

» Del Rey Crossing, Los Angeles, CA

» Santa Monica City Services Building,
Santa Monica, CA

» Medea and Palo Comado Creek
Design, Agoura Hills, CA

Evan Mather, FASLA, PLA, SITES AP
PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE

Evan Mather is an award-winning landscape architect and filmmaker whose 

work in both mediums is a high-level practice of inquiry and exploration. Evan 

has walked these dual paths since college—applying his creativity on the land 

and through the lens. For over 25 years, he has been committed to delivering 

sustainable projects that impact people and the environment in tangible, 

measurable ways. From streetscapes and schools to parks and infrastructure, 

Evan seeks to reveal the stories inherent in the context, history, geology, 

ecology, and culture of a project site. His films investigate and communicate 

landscape architecture, urban design and sustainability issues by immersing 

audiences in a landscape’s narrative. Evan’s unique synthesis of disciplines 

and his incorporation of new technologies enables him to educate and inspire 

clients and the general public—offering a fresh perspective and unveiling 

unexpected project possibilities. With each project, he strives to elevate his 

craft and his profession—using his experience and expertise to create healthy, 

beautiful environments that engage and endure.  

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

» Landscape Architecture

» Park Design

» Sustainability

EDUCATION

» BLA, Louisiana State
University, Baton Rouge

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Landscape Architect: CA
#4805

» SITES Accredited Professional

» Affiliations

AFFILIATIONS

» Active with the Southern
California chapter of
the American Society of
Landscape Architects, serves
on the Executive Committee
as Treasurer and chair of the
Fellows Committee

» Council of Fellows,
American Society of
Landscape Architects

PAPEERS / PRESENTATIONS

» Speaker, “SITES: Devise a
Truly Sustainable Maintenance
Plan That Works for the Long
Term”, 2017 ASLA National
Conference

» Speaker, “Foothill Gold
Line State of the Project
Conference”, Pomona College,
2016

» Speaker, “Completing the
Street: Nature in the Urban
Streetscape”, Greenbuild 2016

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 362 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     24

Oscar Johnson
PROJECT MANAGER

Oscar Johnson has always had a passion for drawing and creating, and 

he’s been fulfilling it as a landscape designer and project manager for two 

decades. From multimillion dollar sports facilities to intimate neighborhood 

parks, Oscar has designed and managed construction for a variety of public 

and private projects throughout California. With his meticulous attention to 

detail and his dedication to longevity, he develops construction details and 

design specifications that are cost-effective and can be built to last. He is 

adept in establishing a camaraderie with clients, colleagues, and contractors 

to shepherd projects from design to ribbon-cutting. Oscar is proactive in 

reducing risks and applying new technologies and materials to his designs. 

He describes himself as “a build-a-better-mousetrap type of person,” who 

takes the Big Picture and fills in the fine lines. While his work has benefited 

people in many communities, Oscar particularly appreciates providing 

physical, mental, and emotional stimulation to children with disabilities 

through his projects—enabling them to interact with nature and with others. 

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Mendez Tribute Monument Park,
Westminster CA

» Lambert Park, El Monte CA

» Wishing Tree Park,
West Carson CA

» La Quinta Sports Park,
La Quinta, CA

» Big League Dreams, Manteca, CA

» Big League Dreams, Las Vegas, NV

» Compton Creek Nature Park,
Compton, CA

» Mesa Marin Sports Complex,
Bakersfield, CA

» Ponderosa Park, Anaheim, CA

» Cerritos Park East Ballfield,
Cerritos, CA

» Anaheim Coves Phase II,
Anaheim, CA

» Veterans Sports Park at Tustin
Legacy, Tustin, CA

» Westminster 25 Parks Project,
Westminster, CA

» Greenleaf Parkway SCE Easement
Improvements, Compton, CA

» Pico Park Renovation,
Pico Rivera, CA

» Fullerton Parks Renovation –
Adlena, Byerrum and Valencia,
Manteca, CA

» Liberty Park Renovation,
Cerritos, CA

» Grace Park, Long Beach, CA

» Huntington Beach Pier Plaza
and South Beach Renovation,
Huntington Beach, CA

» Deer Canyon Park Preserve,
Anaheim, CA

» Dills Park Renovation/Expansion,
Paramount, CA

» Firestone Boulevard, Downey, CA

» Beverly Boulevard Streetscape
Improvements, Pico Rivera, CA

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

» Park Design

» Landscape Architecture

» Project Management

» Parks and Recreation Planning

» Sports Parks

EDUCATION

» BSLA, California State
Polytechnic University, Pomona

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Landscape Architect: CA #6481

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 363 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     25

Dino Viale
SENIOR LANDSCAPE DESIGNER | IRRIGATION SPECIALIST

Dino Viale is a detail-oriented, self-motivated professional in the landscape 

and irrigation industry. He possesses strong design and construction skills 

bringing planning and construction together seamlessly. Dino has a passion 

for water conservation and is constantly striving to create irrigation design 

solutions that seamlessly fit the unique needs of his projects, creating lasting 

and cost-effective systems that save water.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» 14th Street Promenade,
San Diego, CA

» Alderwood Mall, Lynnwood, WA

» Asian Art Museum,
San Francisco, CA

» Cherryland Community Center,
Alameda, CA

» CHP Crescent City,
Crescent City CA

» Chrissy Field Restoration,
San Francisco, CA

» Del Amo Park,
Los Angeles County, CA

» Desiderio Park, Pasadena, CA

» Gamma Street Park, San Diego, CA

» Laguna Niguel Regional Park,
Orange County, CA

» Lambert Park - Phase 1 and 2,
El Monte, CA

» National Audio-Visual
Conservation Center,
Culpeper, VA

» Orion Park, Chula Vista, CA

» Salinas Public Safety Center,
Salinas, CA

» San Francisco Zoo African Savanna
Exhibit, San Francisco, CA

» San Francisco Zoo Lemur Exhibit,
San Francisco, CA

» Santana Row, San Jose, CA

» Skyline Hill Park, San Diego, CA

» Ventura Community Park,
Ventura, CA

» Villa Monserate Park ADA
Improvements, San Diego, CA

» Wilderness Park, Downey, CA

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

» Irrigation Design

» Landscape Design

» Construction Documentation

EDUCATION

» BS, Landscape Architecture,
Polytechnic State University,
San Luis Obispo

REGISTRATIONS

» American Society of Irrigation
Consultants (ASIC), Professional
Member, Northern CA Chapter

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 364 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     26

Holly De La Torre
LANDSCAPE DESIGNER

Holly De La Torre’s wide interests in landscape architecture coupled with the 

breadth of projects she has worked on for over 12 years with MIG, has led her 

to be a strong member of the design team. She has gained experience in park 

design ranging from large sports complexes to community and neighborhood 

parks and recreational trails. She has participated in projects from conceptual 

design through construction and knows the importance of complete and 

definitive construction documents and the value of collaboration through the 

design and construction process.

Holly is a NRPA certified playground inspector and this has prompted her 

interest in children’s play environment design as well as her increasing expertise 

in plan checking play area construction documents on an on-call basis for 

the Irvine Planning Department. She has a talent and gift for envisioning the 

details and their interconnection importance. Her young children have also 

significantly contributed to her growing passion for incorporating educational 

and interpretive elements in park and play area design.

Holly’s interest in improving the larger environment and quality of life has 

been demonstrated in her successful design of streetscapes, parkways, 

campuses, and most recently dog parks, where owner’s interaction and 

comfort are as important as the canine activity design. She has also 

successfully participated in public outreach, recreation facility assessments, 

and park and recreation master plans.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Anaheim Coves, Anaheim, CA

» Beverly Boulevard Improvements,
Pico Rivera, CA

» Big League Dreams Sports Park,
Manteca, CA

» Cerritos Park East, Cerritos, CA

» City of Irvine Landscape Plan Check
Services, Irvine, CA

» Compton Creek Natural Park,
Compton, CA

» Compton Greenleaf Parkway,
Compton, CA

» Del Amo Boulevard Median
Upgrades, Carson, CA

» Fresno Figarden Baseball
Complex, Fresno, CA

» Mesa Marin Sports Park,
Bakersfield, CA

» Our Community School Feasibility
Study, Chatsworth, CA

» Perris Valley, Big League Dreams
Sports Park, Riverside County, CA

» Pico Park, Pico Rivera, CA

» Santee Towncenter Park,
Santee, CA

» Tehachapi Valley Recreation
and Parks District Master Plan,
Tehachapi Valley, CA

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

» Landscape Design 

» Playground Inspection 

» Park Design

EDUCATION

» BS, Landscape Architecture,
California State Polytechnic
University, Pomona

REGISTRATIONS

» Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design, U.S.
Green Building Council,
Accredited Professional

» Certified Playground Safety
Inspector, National Recreation
and Park Association (NRPA)

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 365 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     27

William “Bill” Young, PE
CIVIL ENGINEERING  |  CWE

William “Bill” Young is a respected leader in the California civil engineering 

community, with experience managing large and small design projects from 

conceptualization and design through construction.  His projects cover a 

diverse range of community improvements, involving parking lot, street, 

curb, and gutter repairs and improvements; highway design; pavement 

rehabilitation design, including pervious pavement and interlocking pavers; 

bioswales and bioretention systems; stormwater BMPs; flood control 

infrastructure; and irrigation lines.  Bill also has three years of field survey, 

including field topography, boundary, construction staking, and as-built 

verification for utilities and flood control projects.

Vik Bapna, PE, ENV SP, CPSWQ, QSD/P
CIVIL ENGINEERING  |  CWE

Vik Bapna is an award-winning civil engineer with experience in the planning, 

design, and construction of more than $200 million worth of civil engineering 

projects, ranging from single-lot developments to regional stormwater BMP 

projects with multiple stakeholders.  His experience includes developing 

multi-benefit water quality enhancement projects, developing multiuse 

projects to infiltrate urban and stormwater runoff, designing structural 

treatment control BMPs, and developing project concepts.  Vik was 

responsible for developing the first urban watershed plan that addressed 

flood protection, water quality enhancements, creation of open space and 

recreational opportunities, and habitat enhancements.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» City of San Fernando Regional Park
Infiltration, San Fernando, CA

» Johnny Carson Park Improvement
and Stream Restoration, Burbank, CA

» John Anson Ford Infiltration Cistern
Project to Capture Urban Runoff,
Bell Gardens, CA

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» City of San Fernando Regional Park
Infiltration Project, San Fernando, CA

» Garvanza Park Rainwater Capture and
Use, Los Angeles, CA

» City of Los Angeles University Park
Rain Gardens Design-Build, Los
Angeles, CA

» El Dorado Nature Center
Improvement, Long Beach, CA

» Los Angeles County Department of
Parks and Recreation Earvin Magic
Johnson Park, Los Angeles, CA

» Bohnett Park Stormwater
Treatment, Santa Barbara, CA

» Los Amigos Park Stormwater
Harvesting and Direct Use
Demonstration, Santa Monica, CA

» Los Angeles County Department of
Parks and Recreation Don Wallace
Multi-Use Trail Connector, Los
Angeles, CA

EDUCATION

» BS, Civil Engineering,
California State Polytechnic
University, Pomona

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Civil Engineer, CA, 35715

EDUCATION

» BS, Civil Engineering,
New Jersey Institute of
Technology

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Civil Engineer, CA, 52060

» Envision™ Sustainability
Professional Credential

» Certified Professional in Storm
Water Quality, 543

» Qualified SWPPP Developer/
Practitioner, 368

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 366 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     28

Tommy Muttaraid, PE
STRUCTURAL DESIGN  |  CWE

Tommy Muttaraid has more than 18 years of experience in structural design, 

emphasizing in concrete and steel structures as well as project management.  

He has in-depth experience in the design of bridges, soldier beam retaining 

walls, and pump stations.  Tommy has experience with fencing and gate 

design, including preparing structural details and performing calculations.  

He has worked on projects involving park design and improvement, street 

improvement, storm drain, and other public works infrastructure for public 

agencies throughout California.

David Farrel, PLS
SURVEY  |  CWE

David Farrell has more than 35 years of experience in the area of land 

surveying.  He is knowledgeable of the principles, practices, and procedures 

of ALTA, topographic, and boundary surveys, legal descriptions, and 

easement preparation.  David’s responsibilities have included the preparation 

of Parcel Maps, Tract Maps, ALTA Surveys, Record of Surveys, horizontal 

and vertical control, preliminary design surveys, FEMA flood certifications, 

drainage and flood control design, sewer and water improvements, water 

quality and water resources surveying, construction staking, GPS surveys, 

photogrammetry, legal description, and lot-line adjustments.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» City of Torrance Stormwater
Basin and Treatment Wetlands
Enhancement, Torrance, CA

» Johnny Carson Park Improvement
and Stream Restoration,
Burbank, CA

» Mesmer Low Flow Diversion,
Culver City, CA

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» City of San Fernando Regional Park
Infiltration, San Fernando, CA

» Johnny Carson Park Improvement
and Stream Restoration,
Burbank, CA

» Garvanza Park Rainwater Capture and
Use, Los Angeles, CA

» Watershed Conservation Authority
Azusa River Wilderness Park,
Azusa, CA

» Storm Drain Point Repair,
Rancho Palos Verdes, CA

» Surfrider Beach Septic Tank Soldier
Beam Seawall Upgrade Design and
Structural Calculations, Malibu, CA

» City of Torrance Stormwater
Basin and Treatment Wetlands
Enhancement, Torrance, CA

» John Anson Ford Park Infiltration
Cistern, Bell Gardens, CA

» Burton Way Median Green Street,
Beverly Hills, CA

EDUCATION

» MBA, California State
Polytechnic University, Pomona

» BS, Civil Engineering,
University of California, Irvine

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Civil Engineer, CA, 66008

EDUCATION

» Antelope Valley College

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Professional Land Surveyor,
CA, 7813

» Certified in GPS Technology

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 367 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     29

Annette Malekandrasians, PE
ELECTRICAL ENGINEER  |  INTEGRAL GROUP

Annette Malekandrasians is a project engineer with over 13 years of experience. 

She holds extensive experience in designing substations, medium voltage and 

low voltage switchgears and motor control centers, and project management. 

Annette is driven by sustainable electrical design and increasing the 

efficiency of resource use. Annette’s experience includes engineering and 

design, specifications, report preparation, work-hour estimates, procurement, 

inspection and witness testing experience of major electrical equipment, 

analysis of systems utilizing ETAP and SKM for engineering calculations such 

as: voltage drop, load flow, cable pulling, cable derating in underground duct 

banks, short circuit, relay coordination and arc flash.

Andrew Reilman, PE, LEED AP BD+C, HBDP
MECHANICAL ENGINEER  |  INTEGRAL GROUP

Andy Reilman is the Managing Principal of Integral Group’s Los Angeles 

office, and a mechanical engineer with over 20 years of experience in HVAC 

systems design and integrated sustainable project design. His expertise in 

sustainable architecture and green buildings includes building designs for 

passive, low energy systems such as natural and mixed-mode ventilation, 

displacement ventilation, radiant heating and cooling, and building integrated 

renewable energy systems. Andy is skilled in project coordination with the 

electrical, plumbing, and fire protection trades, and has led integrated design 

teams and supported production of plans and specifications. His breadth 

of experience encompasses many building types including, among others, 

higher education, corporate office, and mixed-use projects. He continues to 

push the boundaries in sustainable design with extensive experience in LEED 

Platinum and Zero Net Energy buildings.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Earvin “Magic” Johnson Park,
Los Angeles, CA

» Donald Dungan Library
Costa Mesa, CA

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Earvin “Magic” Johnson Park,
Los Angeles, CA

» Lions Park Library and Community,
Center Costa Mesa, CA

» Hayward Zero Net Energy Library,
Hayward, CA

» Nevada Museum of Art Expansion,
Reno, NV

» Mingei International Museum
Renovation, San Diego, CA

» The Creek at Dominguez Hills,
Los Angeles, CA

» Downtown Las Vegas Master Plan,
Las Vegas, NV

» Mid-County Civil Courthouse
Superior Court of California,
County of Riverside, CA

EDUCATION

» MS, Power Engineering,
California State University,
Los Angeles, CA

» BS, Electrical Engineering,
Arkansas Tech University,
Russellville, AR

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Registered Electrical Engineer,
California #E21589

» IEEE

EDUCATION

» BS, Mechanical Engineering,
University of California, Davis

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Registered Mechanical
Engineer, CA #M33227

» Vice-Chair, Center for the Built
Environment

» Member, USGBC-LA Chapter

» American Society of
Mechanical Engineers (ASME)

» American Society of
Heating, Refrigerating, and
Air-Conditioning Engineers
(ASHRAE), Member and
Committee Member –
Standard Project Committee
209: Energy Simulation Aided
Design for Buildings Except
Low-Rise Residential Buildings

» Planning Commissioner,
Culver City, CA

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 368 of 498



P R O J E C T  S T A F F I N G

City of San Fernando  |  Layne Park Revitalization     30

Miguel Garcia
PLUMBING  |  INTEGRAL GROUP

Miguel Garcia’s innovative process is driven by a passion and pride for the work 

he produces. With his drafting background, Miguel understands architectural 

plans and the depth of projects. Through Miguel’s 25 years in the MEP industry, 

he has integrated the art of drafting into building innovative plumbing design, 

sprinklers, and fire suppression systems for projects in various sectors such as 

mixed-use, residential, airports, community work, and many more. As a natural 

problem solver, Miguel enjoys developing different paths to saving energy 

and accomplishing Zero Net Energy designs which is evident in his diverse 

portfolio. This reflects Miguel’s ability to yield innovative solutions through 

collaborative work with numerous clients. 

Edward Hill, GE, CEG
GEOTECHNOLOGICAL ENGINEERING  |  GEOTECHNOLOGIES

Edward Hill has over thirty-five years’ experience as a Staff, Project and 

Supervising Geologist/Engineer in the greater Los Angeles Area on geologic, 

geotechnical, and foundation engineering projects. His responsibilities 

include oversight of professional staff, coordination and performance of field 

exploration, laboratory testing, preparation of proposals and preparation of 

formal geotechnical reports. Projects reported on include single-family hillside 

construction, large tract hillside grading, landslide stabilization, seismic hazard 

evaluation and foundation design for commercial structures, high rise office 

buildings, bridges and roads.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Earvin “Magic” Johnson Park,
Los Angeles, CA

» Santa Clara County
Vietnamese American Service
Center Santa Clara, CA

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Johnny Carson Park, Burbank, CA

» El Dorado Nature Center,
Long Beach, CA

» Greystone Park, Beverly Hills, CA

» West Boulevard Park,
Los Angeles, CA

» Mingei International Museum
Renovation, San Diego, CA

» Lions Park Library and Community
Center Costa Mesa, CA

» Nevada Museum of Art Expansion,
Reno, NV

» Burbank Community Services
Building, Burbank, CA

» Costa Mesa Library,
Costa Mesa, CA

» West Hollywood Library,
West Hollywood, CA

EDUCATION

» Sprinklers and Other Fire
Suppression Systems Diploma,
University of Wisconsin,
Madison, WI

» Plumbing Systems Design
Diploma, University of
Wisconsin, Madison, WI

EDUCATION

» BS, Geology, University of
Southern California

» PhD, Jurisprudence, Glendale
University College of Law

REGISTRATIONS / 
CERTIFICATIONS

» Geotechnical Engineer, G.E.
2126, CA

» Registered Geologist, R.G.
4144, CA

» Certified Engineering
Geologist, C.E.G. 1403, CA

» Registered Civil Engineer,
R.C.E. 36581, CA

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 197401/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 369 of 498



C
ity

 o
f S

an
 F

er
na

nd
o 

 | 
 L

ay
ne

 P
ar

k 
R

ev
ita

liz
at

io
n 

   
 3

1

0
6

Pr
op

os
al

 C
os

ts
 a

nd
 R

at
es

Hr
s@

24
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Hr

s@
17

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

Hr
s@

14
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
Hr

s@
11

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

1.
01

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
60

10
,5

00
$ 

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
60

10
,5

00
$ 

   
   

 
-

$
 

2,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

12
,7

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

1.
02

Re
gu

la
r P

ro
je

ct
 M

ee
tin

gs
 v

ia
 T

el
ec

on
fe

re
nc

e
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

24
4,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
24

4,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
14

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
2,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
7,

54
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Su
bt

ot
al

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
84

14
,7

00
$ 

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
84

14
,7

00
$ 

   
   

 
1,

14
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

20
,2

40
$ 

   
   

   
  

2.
01

Pr
ep

ar
e 

To
po

gr
ap

hi
c 

Su
rv

ey
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

2
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
80

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
9,

15
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2.
02

Pr
ep

ar
e 

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l R
ep

or
t

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
2

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

9,
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2.

03
Fi

el
d 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
4

96
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
4

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
4

56
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
4

46
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
2,

68
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

42
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
-

$
 

4,
10

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2.

04
Pr

ep
ar

e 
30

%
 P

la
ns

, S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, E

st
im

at
e

6
1,

44
0

$ 
   

   
  

40
7,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

8
1,

12
0

$ 
   

   
  

80
9,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

13
4

18
,7

60
$ 

   
   

 
7,

80
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
-

$
 

26
,5

68
$ 

   
   

   
  

2.
05

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

(3
0%

)
2

48
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
2

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

8
92

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

1,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
1,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2.
06

Pr
ep

ar
e 

65
%

 P
la

ns
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, E
st

im
at

e
4

96
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
24

4,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
4

56
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
40

4,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
72

10
,3

20
$ 

   
   

 
12

,9
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
,5

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

33
,8

68
$ 

   
   

   
  

2.
07

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

(6
5%

)
2

48
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
2

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

8
92

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

1,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
1,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

2.
08

Pr
ep

ar
e 

95
%

 P
la

ns
, S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

, E
st

im
at

e
2

48
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

2,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
4

56
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
24

2,
76

0
$ 

   
   

   
46

6,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

,5
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
30

,9
60

$ 
   

   
   

  
2.

09
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
(9

5%
)

4
96

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

2
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
8

92
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
2,

23
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

2,
23

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Su

bt
ot

al
24

5,
76

0
$ 

   
   

 
94

16
,4

50
$ 

   
   

20
2,

80
0

$ 
   

   
 

17
2

19
,7

80
$ 

   
   

31
0

44
,7

90
$ 

   
   

 
44

,8
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

21
,1

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

11
9,

73
8

$ 
   

   
  

3.
01

Pr
ep

ar
e 

Bi
d 

Se
t

2
48

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

8
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

4
56

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
2,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

34
4,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

87
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
42

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

8,
03

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Su

bt
ot

al
2

48
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
8

1,
40

0
$ 

   
   

  
4

56
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

2,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
34

4,
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
87

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

42
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
8,

03
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4.
01

At
te

nd
 P

re
-B

id
 M

ee
tin

g
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

2
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
02

Pr
ep

ar
e 

Re
sp

on
se

s t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 Q

ue
st

io
ns

2
48

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

6
1,

05
0

$ 
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
8

92
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
2,

45
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
76

0
$

 
1,

42
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
4,

63
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Su
bt

ot
al

2
48

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

8
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
  

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
8

92
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
18

2,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

76
0

$
 

1,
42

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

4,
98

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

5.
01

At
te

nd
 P

re
-C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
ee

tin
g

1
24

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

4
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

0
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
0

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5

94
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
94

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
02

Pr
ep

ar
e 

Re
sp

on
se

s t
o 

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 Q

ue
st

io
ns

2
48

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

12
2,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

4
56

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

24
2,

76
0

$ 
   

   
   

42
5,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

52
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

7,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

14
,5

20
$ 

   
   

   
  

5.
03

In
-H

ou
se

 F
ie

ld
 S

up
po

rt
 d

ur
in

g 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
2

48
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
24

4,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
8

1,
12

0
$ 

   
   

  
48

5,
52

0
$ 

   
   

   
82

11
,3

20
$ 

   
   

 
1,

52
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
42

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

14
,2

60
$ 

   
   

   
  

5.
04

Re
co

rd
 D

ra
w

in
gs

1
24

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

2
35

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

4
56

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

16
1,

84
0

$ 
   

   
   

23
2,

99
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

2,
99

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Su

bt
ot

al
6

1,
44

0
$ 

   
   

 
42

7,
35

0
$ 

   
   

  
16

2,
24

0
$ 

   
   

 
88

10
,1

20
$ 

   
   

15
2

21
,1

50
$ 

   
   

 
3,

04
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

8,
52

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

32
,7

10
$ 

   
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
LA

BO
R

34
8,

16
0.

00
$ 

  
23

6
41

,3
00

.0
0

$ 
 

40
5,

60
0.

00
$ 

  
28

8
33

,1
20

.0
0

$ 
  

59
8

88
,1

80
.0

0
$ 

   
51

,6
44

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

36
,8

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
9,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

18
5,

70
4

$ 
   

   
  

RE
IM

BU
RS

AB
LE

S 
BU

DG
ET

2,
40

0.
00

$ 
   

  
1,

30
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
20

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
FE

E 
SU

BT
O

TA
L

90
,5

80
.0

0
$ 

   
52

,9
44

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

37
,0

80
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
9,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

18
9,

80
4.

00
$ 

   

H
ol

ly
 D

e 
La

 T
or

re

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
ig

ne
r

Ev
an

 M
at

he
r

O
sc

ar
 Jo

hn
so

n
Se

ni
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 
M

an
ag

er

D
in

o 
Vi

al
e

Irr
ig

at
io

n 
De

sig
n

Pr
in

ci
pa

l P
ro

je
ct

 
Di

re
ct

or

Ta
sk

 4
: B

id
 P

ha
se

Ta
sk

 5
: D

es
ig

n 
Su

pp
or

t D
ur

in
g 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Pr
oc

es
s

Ta
sk

 1
: P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

Ta
sk

 2
: P

la
ns

, S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Es

tim
at

es

G
eo

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

Ta
sk

 T
ot

al
s

In
te

gr
al

 G
ro

up
Ta

sk
 T

ot
al

s

Ta
sk

 3
: F

in
al

 S
ub

m
itt

al
s

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

 T
ea

m

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

Fe
e 

To
ta

ls
CW

E
Ta

sk
 T

ot
al

s
M

IG
 T

as
k 

To
ta

ls

M
IG

EXHIBIT "A"
CONTRACT NO. 1974

--

--

.... .... 

--

--
--

- --
--

- --
.... -

- --
--

- --
.... .... 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 370 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 371 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 372 of 498



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1204                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and City Councilmembers 
 
From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By:   Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
Date: January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve City Council Liaison Assignments and Ad Hoc 

Committees, and Request for Direction Regarding Appointments to City 
Commissions 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve the proposed City Council Liaison and Ad Hoc Committee assignments (Attachments 

“A” and “B”); and  
 

b. Review and provide direction to staff regarding Councilmember appointments to City 
Commissions (Attachment “C”). 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
   
1. On December 3, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8046 declaring the certificate 

of canvass and the November 3, 2020 General Municipal Election results, and installed newly 
elected officials to the City Council.  Directly following, the City Council proceeded with the 
annual reorganization to choose one of its members to serve as Mayor and one of its 
members to serve as Vice Mayor.   
 

2. The City Council’s annual reorganization involves, in part, new (or re‐appointed) liaison 
appointments and assignments to various committees and outside organizations.  Pursuant 
to Section 11.2 of the City Council Procedures Manual, the Mayor, with the consent of the 
majority of the City Council, may appoint Councilmembers to serve on liaison commissions, 
Ad hoc committees, and standing committees. 

 
 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 373 of 498



Consideration to Approve City Council Liaison Assignments and Ad Hoc Committees, and Request for 
Direction Regarding Appointments to the City Commissions 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Ad Hoc Committees. 
Ad Hoc committees consist of either one or two Councilmembers, have a clear and definite scope, 
and dissolve upon completion of the scope, unless otherwise extended by the City Council with 
a new scope. Ad Hoc committees are less formal than standing committees and are therefore 
not subject to the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

Due to changes to the members of the City Council resulting from the November 3, 2020 General 
Municipal Election and changes to the Mayor and Vice Mayor designations resulting from the 
annual reorganization, updated appointments and assignments to the City Council Liaison 
positions and Ad Hoc Committees are necessary.  Staff reviewed the list with the Mayor and Vice 
Mayor and the recommended assignments to City Council Liaison positions and Ad Hoc 
Committees are included in Attachment “A” and Attachment “B,” respectively.  

City Commissions. 
Per the City’s Code, each Councilmember may appoint one Commissioner to each Commission 
(i.e., Planning and Preservation Commission, Parks and Wellness Commission, Transportation 
and Safety Commission, and Education Commission), with such appointment to be ratified by the 
City Council.  Attached is the current roster of City Commissioners and their respective appointing 
Councilmember (Attachment “C”). 

Since the City has two new at-large Councilmembers, staff is recommending that the 
Councilmember that received the highest number of votes in the 2020 election (Councilmember 
Montanez) is responsible for appointing replacements for Commissioners appointed by the 
Councilmember that received the highest number of votes in the 2017 election (former 
Councilmember Fajardo). In turn, Councilmember Rodriguez would be responsible for appointing 
replacements for Commissioners appointed by former Councilmember Gonzales. Applicants who 
wish to be considered for appointment to a commission, must submit an application (Attachment 
“D”) to the nominating Councilmember, at which time the proposed appointments would be 
presented at the next City Council Meeting to review and ratify.  

Past practice has been that the sitting Commissioner continues to serve until a replacement is 
appointed and ratified by the City Council.  

 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The City Council annual updates to the liaison assignments, ad hoc and committees lists are 
included in the City Clerk’s regular work plan and, therefore, included in the Fiscal Year 2020-
2021 Adopted Budget. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 374 of 498



Consideration to Approve City Council Liaison Assignments and Ad Hoc Committees, and Request for 
Direction Regarding Appointments to the City Commissions 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council review and approve proposed changes to the City Council 
Liaison and Ad Hoc Committee Assignments (Attachment “A” and “B,” respectively).  This will 
enable the City to have consistent and appropriate representation in various governmental 
associations of which the City is a participating member.  Staff is also requesting direction 
regarding Councilmember appointments to the City Commissions list (Attachment “C”).  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. City Council Liaison Assignments 
B. City Council Ad Hoc Committee Assignments 
C. Committees/Commissions List  
D. Application to Serve on a City Commission 
  

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 375 of 498



 
Revised by City Council: September 8 , 2020 

 
 

 

AGENCY/COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

DAY 

 

APPOINTEE(S) 
 

COMMENTS 

 

1 
San Fernando Downtown Mall Merchants 
Association 

Mornings 
(as needed) 

Joel Fajardo 
Vacant 

Pending Finalization of 
Memorandum of 
Understanding with SF Mall 
Merchants Association 

 
 

2 

 
 

City Selection Committee (L.A. County) 

 
 

Night 

 
 
 

Alt: 

Joel Fajardo 
Mary Mendoza 

Mary Mendoza 
Sylvia Ballin 

 

 

3 
 

Valley Economic Alliance 
 

Day 
Joel Fajardo 
Cindy Montanez 

 

 

 
4 

 

 
Independent Cities Association (ICA) 

 

 
Night 

 
 
 

Alt: 

Robert C. Gonzales 
Celeste Rodriguez 

 
Vacant 
Hector A. Pacheco 

 

 
5 

 

Independent Cities Risk Management 
Authority (ICRMA) 

 
Day 

 
Alt: 

Sub Alt. 

Nick Kimball 
Timothy Hou 
Michael Okafor 

Adoption of a new 
Resolution is required when 
representatives are 
changed 

 
6 

 
Independent Cities Finance Authority (ICFA) 

 
Day 

 

Sylvia Ballin 
Nick Kimball 

Adoption of a new 
Resolution is required when 
representatives are 
changed 

 
7 

 
League of California Cities 

 

1st Thursday 
Evening 

 
 

Alt: 

Hector A. Pacheco 
 

Joel Fajardo 
Mary Mendoza 

 

 
 

8 

 
San Fernando Valley Council of Governments 
(SFVCOG) 

 
 

TBD 

 
 
 

Alt: 

Joel Fajardo 
Mary Mendoza 

 

Sylvia Ballin 

 

 
 

9 

 
Southern California Association of 
Governments (SCAG) 

 
1st Thursday 

Morning 

 

 
Delegate: 

Hector A. Pacheco 
 

Vacant 
Celeste Rodriguez 

SCAG requests 
appointments: 
1) Regional Councilmember 
Representative 
2) Delegate 

 
10 

Metropolitan Water District (MWD) of 
Southern California 

 
Day 

  
Sylvia Ballin 

 
 

 
12 

Los Angeles County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (MTA) 
San Fernando Valley Service Council 

1st Wednesday 
Evening 

 
Robert C. Gonzales 

Current term expires 2023, 
seat is shared among San 
Fernando, Burbank and 
Glendale. Elected Official is 
not a requirement to serve 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 376 of 498



 

 
Updated:  September 8 , 2020 

 
 
 

13 

 
Greater Los Angeles County Vector Control 
District 

 
2nd Thursday 

Evening 

 
 

Jesse H. Avila 

11-2-2020: Re-Appointed 
term 1-4-21 to 1-4-23 
Elected Official is not a 
requirement to serve 

 
 
 

14 

 
 

Upper Los Angeles River and Tributaries 
Working Group (Mountains Recreation and 
Conservation Authority) 

 
 
 

Day 
Monthly 

 
 
 
 

Alt: 

Nick Kimball 
Cindy Montanez 

 
 
Hector A. Pacheco 
Matthew Baumgardner 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 377 of 498



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 

Revised:  9/8/20 

Page 1 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE 
CREATED 

NAME MEMBERS SCOPE 

1 4/2/13 

East San Fernando Valley Transit 
Corridor (Include Metrolink Dual 
Track) 

Responsible Staff: 
Administration 

Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until dissolved 

Gonzales 
Pacheco 
Rodriguez 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
planned light rail project through San Fernando, 
including reviewing options related to the City’s 
local match, public outreach efforts with Metro, 
providing feedback regarding potential 
improvements along the rail ROW by Metro 
and/or the City, and other ESFVTC policy related 
items that require additional study. (Recommend 
dissolving upon completion of ESFVTC 
construction through San Fernando) 

4 5/7/18 

Wildhorse Children’s 
Foundation regarding the use of 
Pioneer Park 

Responsible Staff: 
Administration 

Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until dissolved 

Gonzales 
Fajardo 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
City’s partnership with WHF, including providing 
feedback related to a formal agreement (e.g. 
Lease/MOU/etc.) regarding use of facilities at 
Pioneer Park, connecting WHF with other 
community service providers to enhance 
programming at the facility, provide input re: 
public outreach, and other WHF items that 
require additional study. (Recommend review 
during City Council re-org each year to determine 
necessity to extend) 

5 6/18/18 

Citywide Parking Permits, 
Trolley Service, and Parking 
Meters  
(renamed 8/5/2019)  

Responsible Staff:  
Temporarily assigned to 
Community Development 

Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until dissolved 

Fajardo 
Gonzales 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
City’s parking meter program, including providing 
feedback related to potentially expanding the 
parking meter program and increasing the use of 
smart meters, provide input re: public outreach, 
and other parking meter items that require 
additional study. (Recommend review during City 
Council re-org each year to determine necessity to 
extend) 

ATTACHMENT "B"

fERNANID 
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 378 of 498



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Revised:  9/8/20 
 

Page 2 
 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE 
CREATED 

NAME MEMBERS SCOPE 

7 1/7/19 

City General Plan Update  
(renamed 8/5/2019) 
 
Responsible Staff:  
Community Development 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until dissolved 

Mendoza 
Pacheco 
 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to 
updating the City’s General Plan, including 
evaluating potential funding sources, reviewing 
draft plan amendments with staff, provide 
feedback related to public outreach efforts, and 
other General Plan items that require additional 
study. (Recommend dissolving upon adoption of 
an updated General Plan) 

8 2/4/19 

U.S. Census 2020 
 
Responsible Staff:  
Administration 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
Monthly until dissolved 

Ballin 
Gonzales 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
United States Census 2020, including act as the 
City’s liaison on the City’s Complete Count 
Committee, provide feedback related to Census 
public outreach activities/programs, and other 
Census items that require additional study. 
(Recommend dissolving upon completion of 2020 
Census activities) 

9 2/4/19 

Social Media Policy 
 
Responsible Staff:  
Administration 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
1 – 2 meetings 
 

Ballin 
Pacheco 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
City’s Social Media program, including reviewing 
the draft social media policy and other parking 
meter items that require additional study. 
(Recommend dissolving upon adoption of Social 
Media Policy) 

10 2/19/19 

Green City/Street and Parkway 
Tree 
(combined/renamed 9/8/20))  
 
Responsible Staff:  
Administration 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
Quarterly until disolved 

Pacheco 
Fajardo 
Montanez 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to the 
City’s environmental related programs, including 
environmental programs available to City 
residents, public outreach efforts, City Hall 
programs to decrease carbon footprint, and other 
Green City items that require additional study. 
(Recommend review during City Council re-org 
each year to determine necessity to extend) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 379 of 498



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Revised:  9/8/20 
 

Page 3 
 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE 
CREATED 

NAME MEMBERS SCOPE 

13 9/3/19 

Street and Parkway Tree  
 
Responsible Staff:  
Public Works 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
Bi-monthly until dissolved  
 

  
 

Gonzales 
Pacheco 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations related to street and parkway 
tree programs, including:  

 Street and parkway tree maintenance to 
prolong tree life expectancy; 

 Tree species that are appropriate to place in 
streets and parkways; 

 A program for residents to plant and maintain 
trees in parkways; and 

Other street and parkway tree policy related 
items that require additional study. (Recommend 
dissolving upon adoption of a policy/program 
outlining the regulations for street and parkway 
tree planting and maintenance) 

16 2/18/20 

 
100-Year Anniversary of 
Women’s Right to Vote 
 
Responsible Staff:  
Recreation & Community Services 

 
Meeting Frequency:  
As necessary until dissolved 
 

Ballin 
Mendoza 

Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to City Council related to a 
100-year Anniversary of Women’s Right to Vote 
event, including receiving feedback from local 
groups, provide input to enhance the impact of 
the proposed event/program, and other 
Women’s Right to Vote events/programs that 
require additional study.  
Research and Develop a Request for Proposal 
“RFP” for te Woman’s Right to Vote Mural 
(Recommend dissolving upon completion of a 
proper recognition event) 

17 2/18/20 

 
Mural Program 
 
Responsible Staff:  
Recreation & Community Services 

 
Meeting Frequency:  
As necessary until dissolved 
 

Gonzales 
Rodriguez 
Ballin 

On 12/07/2020, Ordinance No. 1700 adopted 
regarding guidelines for Murals on private 
property. Review and develop policy 
recommendations for Mural guidelines on public 
property. Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to a proposed citywide Mural 
program, including reviewing the draft mural 
policy and other mural related items that require 
additional study. (Recommend dissolving upon 
adoption of Mural Program Policy) 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 380 of 498



 CITY COUNCIL AD HOC & STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Revised:  9/8/20 
 

Page 4 
 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

DATE 
CREATED 

NAME MEMBERS SCOPE 

 6/15/20 

Public Safety  
 
Responsible Staff:  
Police Department 
 
Meeting Frequency:  
As necessary until dissolved 
 

Fajardo 
Mendoza 
Pacheco 

 
Review information and develop policy 
recommendations to a Public Safety 
Commission/Comittee, including reviewing the 
Public Safety structures and other public safety 
commission/committee related items that 
require additional study. (Recommend review 
during City Council re-org each year to determine 
necessity to extend) 
 

 
 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES 

DATE 
CREATED 

MEETING 
DAY/TIME 

NAME MEMBERS COMMENT 

1   None at this time.  
 

   

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 381 of 498



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  December 2020 

1 

DISASTER COUNCIL 
Municipal Code: 
Composition: 
Term of Office: 

Meetings: 

Staff Contact: 

Address & Phone: 

Chair: 
Vice-Chair: 

§26-91
Nine Members - Specific Titles Italicized
Two years (for Member Nos. 5-9)
Meets Quarterly (February, May, August, November) 
City Hall – Community Room 
Nick Kimball, City Manager 
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-1222
Sylvia Ballin
(Vacant)

MEMBERS DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

TERM 
EXPIRES 

1 Mayor Sylvia Ballin 12/7/20 12/7/22 
2 Councilperson Appointed by Mayor (Vacant) - - 
3 Asst. Dir. Of Emergency Services Matthew Baumgardner 7/16/20 7/16/22 
4 Coordinator of Emergency Services Lt. Irwin Rosenberg 7/16/20 7/16/22 
5 Disaster Communications Rep. Gene Roske 7/16/20 7/16/22 
6 Rep. of the Fire Dept. Chief John Drake 7/16/20 7/16/22 
7 Rep. of the American Red Cross Christina Rodriguez 7/16/20 7/16/22 
8 Representative of the L.A.U.S.D. Jose Razo 7/16/20 7/16/22 

9 
Rep. of the California Emergency 
Mobile Patrol or other Similar 
Trained Volunteer Organization   

Janet Gibson 7/16/20 7/16/22 

TREE COMMISSION 

Municipal Code:         §2-600

Council Action - 
June 6, 2016: 

Eliminate.  Elements from the Tree Commission (i.e., street tree master planning and 
oak tree preservation) to be consolidated with the Planning and Preservation 
Commission. 

SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Municipal Code: §2-566

Council Action - 
June 6, 2016: 

Disband.  If a safety concern needs to be addressed, Department Heads may request to
agendize the item before the City Council or the Disaster Council for review and/or
consideration.

ATTACHMENT "C"01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 382 of 498



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  December 2020 

2 

EDUCATION COMMISSION 

Municipal Code: 
Composition: 
Term of Office: 

Meetings: 

Staff Contact: 

Address & Phone: 

Chair: 
Vice-Chair: 

§2-614
Five Members  (must be a registered voter and City resident) 
§2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from
Meets Monthly Last Tuesday at 6:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers 

Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA  91340 
(818) 898-1204
Angel Zobel-Rodriguez 
David Govea 

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER 

1 David Govea 11/18/19 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Nicole Mohr 10/21/19 Joel Fajardo 
3 Olivia Robledo 9/16/13 Robert C. Gonzales 
4 Suzanne Llamas 11/18/19 Mary Mendoza 
5 Angel Zobel-Rodriguez 1/7/19 Hector A. Pacheco 

PARKS, WELLNESS, AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

Municipal Code: §54-56
PWR Commission may appoint two cultural arts liaison members:
- Liaison members do not have voting rights and City residency is not required
- No stipend

Composition: Five Members (must be a registered voter and City resident) and two liaison
members (refer to above)

Term of Office: §2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from

Meetings: Meets 2nd Tuesday at 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

Staff Contact: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation & Community Services 

Address & Phone: 
Recreation Park 
208 Park Avenue, San Fernando, CA  91340 
(818) 898-7381

Chair: Sandra Richards
Vice-Chair: Joe Ponce

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER 

1 NinaMarie Julia Herrera Ballin 3/28/11 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Joe Ponce 10/19/15 Joel Fajardo 
3 Saydith Navarro 12/17/12 Robert C. Gonzales 
4 Jason B. Hayes 10/21/19 Mary Mendoza 
5 Sandra Richards 3/4/19 Hector A. Pacheco 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 383 of 498



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  December 2020 

3 

PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
Municipal Code:  §62-26

Council Action - 
June 6, 2016: 

- Combine with Tree Commission
- Elements from the Tree Commission (i.e., street tree master planning and oak tree
preservation) to be consolidated.

Composition:  Five Members (must be a registered voter and City resident)
Term of Office:    §2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from

Meetings: Meets 2nd Monday at 6:30 p.m.
City Hall - Council Chambers

Staff Contact: Timothy Hou, Director of Community Development

Address & Phone: 
San Fernando City Hall
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340
(818) 898-1227

Chair: Alvin F. Durham, Jr.
Vice-Chair: (Vacant)

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER 

1 Alvin F. Durham, Jr. 3/28/11 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Marvin R. Perez 10/21/19 Mary Mendoza 
3 Aida Montes 11/6/17 Joel Fajardo 
4 Ivan Gonzalez 8/6/18 Robert C. Gonzales 
5 Hector Pacheco Sr. 3/4/19 Hector A. Pacheco 

SENIOR CITIZENS ADVISORY BOARD 
Established:     Minutes Order - October 1, 2001 City Council Meeting 

Composition:  
Five Members appointed by PWR Commission 
(Two representatives from Las Palmas Club, two Members from Park Avenue Club 
and one at-large Member) 

Term of Office: Two years 

Meetings:     Meets 4th Thursday at 1:00 p.m. 
Las Palmas Park 

Staff Contact: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation & Community Services 

Address & Phone: 
Las Palmas Park 
505 S. Huntington Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-7340

Chair: (Vacant)

MEMBERS NOMINATE SECTOR DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

TERM 
EXPIRES 

1 (Vacant) Park Avenue Club - - 
2 (Vacant) Park Avenue Club - - 
3 Marco Tulio Escobar At-Large 9/9/14 9/9/16 
4 Benita Rivera Las Palmas Park Senior Club 11/10/15 11/10/17 
5 (Vacant) Las Palmas Park Senior Club - - 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 384 of 498



CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Updated:  December 2020 

4 

TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION 
Municipal Code:         
Composition:  
Term of Office:    

Meetings: 

Staff Contact:       

Address & Phone: 

Chair:  
Vice-Chair:  

§90-71
Five Members (must be a City resident) 
§2-34 Appointment to and §2-35 Removal from
Meets 1st Wednesday at 6 p.m. 
City Hall – Council Chambers 
Matthew Baumgardner, Director of Public Works
San Fernando City Hall 
117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA 91340 
(818) 898-1222
Rudy Trujillo
Dee Akemon

MEMBERS APPOINTED APPOINTED BY 
COUNCILMEMBER 

1 Dee Akemon 9/21/15 Sylvia Ballin 
2 Clarisa Tolentino 9/16/19 Joel Fajardo 
3 Rudy Trujillo 12/17/12 Robert C. Gonzales 
4 Francisco Arrizon 10/21/19 Mary Mendoza 
5 Nicole Mohr 9/3/19 Hector A. Pacheco 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 385 of 498



City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-004.1 (11/2018) |  Page 1 of 2 

APPLICATION TO SERVE ON A CITY COMMISSION 
This is a public document. To assist the City Council in evaluating each applicant in the selection 

of Commission Members, please provide as complete of a response as possible to all questions. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
NAME PHONE NO. 

RESIDENCE ADDRESS CITY & STATE ZIP CODE 

MAILING ADDRESS If different than above CITY & STATE ZIP CODE 

EMAIL ADDRESS Business or personal to be used for Commission activity 

EMPLOYER POSITION 

BUSINESS ADDRESS CITY & STATE ZIP CODE 

BUSINESS PHONE 

ARE YOU A REGISTERED VOTER OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO? 

 YES  NO

DO YOU OWN PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO? If yes, please list the address(es) 

 YES  NO

DO YOU OWN OR OPERATE A BUSINESS IN SAN FERNANDO? If yes, please state the name and nature of the business 

 YES  NO

MEMBER COMMITMENT 

I am willing to fulfill all requirements of a City Commissioner, including but not limited to: 

 As Planning and Preservation Commissioner, I am willing to file financial disclosure statements (Form 700), a
public record, as required by the State and the City’s Conflict of Interest Code.

 I understand that absence from three consecutive regular meetings shall be deemed to constitute my
retirement.

 I am willing to attend/complete the required two hours of State mandated AB1234 Ethics Training every two
years.

Please also attach and submit a brief bio statement to this application. 

I agree to all requirements mentioned above and have provided all correct and truthful information in this 
application. 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE DATE 

RECOMMENDED BY CITY COUNCILMEMBER: 
____________________________________ 

ATTACHMENT "D"
THE CITY OF ~ 

SAN _,ERNANID 
-

r 

' ' l - '·, 

' .· '-
I 

' 
; '- ' ' I 

' i 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 386 of 498



APPLICATION TO SERVE ON A CITY COMMISSION 

City Council  |  117 Macneil Street  |  San Fernando, CA 91340  |  (818) 898-1201  |  Form # CC-004.1 (11/2018) |  Page 2 of 2 

COMMISSION APPLICATION CHOICE(S) Please indicate which Commission you are interested in 

  EDUCATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando 

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Education Commission? 

  PARKS, WELLNESS, AND RECREATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando          

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Parks, Wellness, and Recreation Commission? 

  PLANNING AND PRESERVATION COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando          

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Planning and Preservation Commission? 

  TRANSPORTATION AND SAFETY COMMISSION Must be at least 18 years old and a registered voter of the City of San Fernando          

What is your understanding of the duties as a member of the Transportation and Safety Commission? 

PLEASE ATTACH AND SUBMIT A BRIEF BIO STATEMENT TO THIS APPLICATION 
  

sAN f ERNANID 01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 387 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 388 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 389 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 390 of 498



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1201                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Councilmember Cindy Montañez  
   
Date:  January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Discussion Regarding the Tesla Supercharger Agreement  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
I have placed this on the agenda for City Council discussion regarding the Tesla Supercharger 
Agreement with the City of San Fernando, Contract No. 1960.  My Memorandum addressed to 
the City Council is attached for your consideration (Attachment “A”).  The following documents 
are also included for reference: 
 
a. City of San Fernando Downtown Economic Development and Asset Analysis (Attachment 

“B”); and 
 

b. Change.org (Petition) Website Information (Attachment “C”); and 
 

c. Tesla Supercharger Agreement, Contract No. 1960 (Attachment “D”) 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
There is no impact to the budget by discussing this item.  Additional future costs to be determined 
based on City Council direction. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Memorandum from Councilmember Montañez to the City Council 
B. City of San Fernando Downtown Economic Development and Asset Analysis 
C. Change.org (Petition) Website Information 
D. Tesla Supercharger Agreement, Contract No. 1960 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 391 of 498



DATE: DECEMBER 28, 2020 

TO: MAYOR SYLVIA BALLIN 
VICE MAYOR MARY MENDOZA 
COUNCILMEMBER HECTOR ANDRES PACHECO 
COUNCILMEMBER CELESTE RODRIGUEZ 

FROM: CINDY MONTANEZ 

CC: RICHARD PADILLA, CITY ATTORNEY 
NICK KIMBALL, CITY MANAGER 
JULIA FRITZ, CITY CLERK 

RE:   REQUEST TO ADD TESLA AGREEMENT TO 1-04-2021 COUNCIL AGENDA 

BACKGROUND 

San Fernando residents, businesses, property owners and other stakeholders have been asking 
for a beautiful, successful, properly-scaled Downtown that builds off our history and becomes 
not only a shopping destination but one of the most beautiful places for people to enjoy 
themselves.  

There is significant community opposition from residents, merchants, property owners and 
other stakeholders to the Tesla charging station (12 superchargers and 2 wall chargers) at city-
owned parking Lot 8 (Celis and Brand Blvd).  

A San Fernando resident has gathered more than 450 signatures as of Tuesday, December 29, 
2020 requesting an immediate 90-day pause to the project to allow for community input.  In 
addition, the Downtown Mall Merchants Association, property owners, individual residents, 
and a private attorney have submitted verbal and written communication against the Tesla 
charging station at Lot 8.  Furthermore, the City Council, City Manager, Community 
Development Director and City Attorney were made aware of a possible Temporary Restraining 
Order against the City prior to Monday, December 28, 2020, the date the City Manager insisted 
construction start. The City Attorney did not complete their analysis nor response to this 
threatened Temporary Restraining Order yet the City Manager pressed forward with allowing 
construction to proceed on Monday, December 28, 2020 potentially increasing the legal and 
financial risk to the City. There is no public record of any public decision requiring a December 
28, 2020 construction start date. 

The City Council has a responsibility to discuss, evaluate and make a determination relative to 
the concerns and opposition stated by the public including, but not limited to: 

ATTACHMENT "A"
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 392 of 498



1. Lack of sufficient public notice and comment period for residents. Residents did not 
receive proper communication from the city regarding the up to 10 year license 
agreement on a highly-valuable publicly-owned property.  

2. Failure to provide public notice to the adjacent property owners and merchants. 
3. Possible closed session decisions that should have been made in public, including the 

selection of Lot 8 prior to a public meeting and the determination of the construction 
start date of December 28, 2020 without public notice. 

4. Failure to evaluate all available location options and configurations for the most 
beneficial placement of electric chargers. 

5. Failure to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act, proper environmental 
analysis and other mitigations. 

6. Land use decision inconsistent with the City sanctioned analysis (City of San Fernando 
Downtown Economic Development and Asset Analysis, March 4, 2019). This analysis 
concluded that ‘Lots 8 and 10 are 60,000 square feet of contiguous land, making mixed-
use development with a parking deck feasible.’ 

7. Failure to produce an economic analysis of the benefits to the city, residents, merchants 
or property owners to justify giving Tesla free use of publicly-owned land for up to 10 
years. 

8. Failure to complete a parking needs assessment prior to eliminating already limited 
parking in the Downtown. The Citywide Parking Management Master Plan Study has not 
been completed. 

9. Failure to complete an evaluation of vacancy rates on commercial corridors to 
understand current and future parking demands. 

10. Failure to properly notice, outreach to and engage the Spanish-speaking community.  
 
The City of San Fernando Downtown Economic Development and Asset Analysis, March 4, 2019 
identifies Lot 8/10 on Celis and Brand Blvd. as one of the key opportunity sites to do something 
special to enhance our Downtown. Insisting that the Tesla charging station be installed on Lot 8  
in disregard for the City’s economic development analysis will stall the community’s desire for a 
flourishing Downtown at a significant cost to taxpayers. If the City ties up this valuable lot for a 
decade the city will lose another generation of people who also deserve better.  
 
City Councilmember Cindy Montanez requested a special meeting prior to the start of 
construction, but was unable to get more than two votes in support of a special meeting due to 
unavailability of councilmembers during the Christmas holiday.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Immediately halt construction of the Tesla charging station at Lot 8 to allow for public notice 
and comment.  The City retains its right per Contract 1960: Tesla Supercharger Agreement to 
evaluate relocation upon further public input.   
 
The city has a responsibility to engage and listen to the people of San Fernando and should 
immediately halt the construction of the Tesla charging station at Lot 8 to allow for a thoughtful 
and respectful community engagement and comment process which includes adequate notice 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 393 of 498



in English and Spanish to residents, property owners, merchants and other key stakeholders. 
Pushing forward with construction increases the relocation cost to taxpayers. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Contract 1960: Tesla Supercharger Agreement Approved by City Council on 8-3-20 
2. Community Opposition Petition 
3. City of San Fernando Downtown Economic Development and Asset Analysis, March 4, 

2019 
4. Link to 8-3-20 City Council discussion on Tesla License Agreement 
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 394 of 498



1

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO:
DOWNTOWN SAN FERNANDO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND ASSET ANALYSIS

MARCH 4, 2019

PREPARED BY:  

Kosmont Companies | Kosmont Realty | Kosmont Transactions Services

1230 Rosecrans Avenue, Suite 630 |  Manhattan Beach, CA 90266

(424) 297-1070 |  www.kosmont.com  |  CA Broker #01182660

ATTACHMENT "B"01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 395 of 498



• The City of San Fernando has recently completed the San Fernando Corridors Specific Plan to guide development 
in the downtown and surrounding areas.

• The City Council is seeking help understanding current real estate fundamentals and economic development tools 
in a Post Redevelopment ERA, in order to achieve economic growth and attract qualified developer interest.

• The City owns properties in the downtown and has hired Kosmont Companies to evaluate the assets given 
current market conditions and potential public private transaction negotiations.

2

INTRODUCTION

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 396 of 498



• Communities and environments today are changing as a result of demographic,
retail, and land use shifts.

• Land use is a function of City vision and zoning, market conditions, and execution
of a plan by both the public and private sectors. Land use also varies by
environment, such as urban, suburban, and rural communities.

• Economic Development has become a major priority for communities. In a post
Redevelopment era, Econ. Dev. tools look different.

• Kosmont understands the evolution in land use and has applied new Economic
Development tools to a wide array of different projects, including zoning strategies,
public-private transactions, and asset strategies.

OVERVIEW

3

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 397 of 498



4

PRESENTATION 
OUTLINE

• Global Changes

• Economic Development

• Downtown San Fernando

• Conclusions and Recommendations

000 

[0] ... o ... 
O,@' ,0 
: 0 : 

b~ , '9 ··o·· 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 398 of 498



Technology is changing the way we live and consume
• Shifting retail & tenant mix, interaction, and connectivity (e.g. driverless cars, robots, big data)

• Retail adapting to changing social habits, bricks/clicks omni-channeling, focus is on trips vs. sales

• “Last Mile Delivery” reflects changes in buyer behavior & expectations: the new “store” is an industrial building

Green Economy:  California shifting to a reduced carbon footprint “green” economy
• Mandates are aggressive and extensive 

• Spur growth of clean, sustainable, environmental business initiatives to achieve compliance 

• State approved 4 new “Housing and Sustainability” Districts;  incentives for public/private projects 

Economic Development Approaches are changing due to new focus of private investment
• Private Investment strategies based on digital-based lifestyle shifts,  demographics,  climate action mandates

• Cities need private $$ to create jobs,  tax revenue, and housing

• Housing shortage affects all sectors;  state-wide priority with local control at stake

• Automation driven job losses will require commitment to job creation and “continuous” education

5

THE PLUMBING OF THE WORLD IS CHANGING

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 399 of 498



BUSINESSES PURSUE RELEVANCE AND PROFITS 
IN A CHANGING WORLD

Consumption 
Customers are buying differently 
• Brick & Mortar vs Online
• Accelerated Demand for convenient/rapid delivery (last mile delivery)
• InstaCart, Doordash, UberEATS,  Amazon,  Wal-Mart

Commuting
People’s movement patterns changing
• Economy of sharing (Uber/Lyft ride-sharing)
• Driverless/Autonomous cars & transit coming quickly
• Expanding Transit (multi-billion dollars from County sales tax measures)

Communication
People are communicating digitally
• Social Media (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter)
• Employee Recruitment (LinkedIn, Zip Recruiter, Indeed)
• Digital means local as well (Nextdoor)

6

Public & Private Sectors 
Must Focus on the 3 C’s

11--=----=--
___ I 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 400 of 498



PURSUING THE MILLENNIAL CONSUMER

7

Millennials
19%

Gen. X 
24%

Silent 
Gen.
21%

Millennials
24%

Gen. X 
25%

Gen. Z 
16%

Baby 
Boomers

22%

Silent 
Gen.
7%

• Millennials are 80 million 
strong today and represent $600 
billion in spending power

• Generation Z (5 to 17 year olds) 
and Generation Alpha (0 to 4 
year olds) are up and coming 
digital native generations

Source: ICSC; ESRI (2018)

U.S. in 2000 U.S. in 2018
Gen. Alpha 

6%

Baby 
Boomers

29%

Gen. Z
7%

Who they are 

Education Income Habitation Marital Status Kids 

~ 00 ~ a @w 
What drives them 

Experience Personalization / Technology Health Social Good 
Authenticity 

00 00 

~ 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 401 of 498



San Fernando Population by Age Bracket in 2018

Millenials 
(18-34), 27%

Gen. X (35-54), 
26%

Gen. Z (5-17), 
20%

Baby Boomers 
(55-74), 15%

Gen. Alpha 
(0-4), 8%

Silent Gen. 
(75+), 4%

Region Median Age

City 32.0

County 35.7

State 36.2

Generation Population (2018)

Millennials 
(18-34 years old) 6,650

Gen. X. 
(35-54 years old) 6,354

Gen. Z
(5-17 years old) 5,019

Baby Boomers
(55-74 years old) 3,807

Gen. Alpha 
(0-4 years old) 1,928

Silent Gen.
(75+ years old) 964

TOTAL 
POPULATION 24,723

AGE PROFILE

Source: ESRI (2018); Expedia, “Millennial Travel Report”; Nielsen, “Millennial Travel Study” 8

Did  You Know?
• Millennials are the largest population segment in San Fernando

• 50% of Millennials prefer “finding” hidden local places than visiting 
tourist attractions (prefer authentic experiences)

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 402 of 498



RETAIL MEETS INDUSTRIAL: DESTINATION OR DISTRIBUTION?

Sources: https://www.retailcustomerexperience.com/news/omnichannel-retailers-big-winners-in-holiday-
season/; Shopping Centers Today, Feb. 2017, Datex; https://www.statista.com/statistics/272391/us-retail-e-
commerce-sales-forecast/; https://www.statista.com/statistics/379112/e-commerce-share-of-retail-sales-in-us/  

• THINK DISRUPTION AND BIFURCATION

• Retail as much about distribution of goods as it is
destination to consume goods.

• Last Mile delivery is the timely goods movement to
the final destination (home or pick up location)

• Consumers have multiple ways to shop for and
receive goods:
 TheTraditional Approach – Buy and pick up in store

 Buy and Receive – Buy in store receive at home

 Click and Collect – Buy online and pick up in store

 Click and Receive – Buy online and receive at home

• Today….Retail meets Industrial = REDUSTRIAL
 Growth from apparel, sporting goods, electronics, office

supply, food

 Still internet captures only approx. 9% of total retail sales

9

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 403 of 498



10

DESTINATION IS RETAIL
FITNESS THEATRE / ENTERTAINMENT / CULTURE

RESTAURANT / BREWERY COMMUNAL DINING MARKET HALLS

SteelCraft; Long Beach, CAStone Brewing; Escondido, CA

Divergent Crossfit; South Pasadena, CA Century Theatres; Mountain View, CA

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 404 of 498



11

RETAIL SALES DRIVEN BY PLACE OR PACE OF DELIVERY

Destination Distribution

Experience
Food

Entertainment
Blended/Mixed Use

Industrial                       
Fulfillment

Click and Collect
Last-Mile Delivery

Amazon Fulfillment Center; San Bernardino, CA Blended/Mixed Use: Paseo Colorado; Pasadena, CA 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 405 of 498



12

PRESENTATION 
OUTLINE

• Global Changes

• Economic Development

• Downtown San Fernando

• Conclusions and Recommendations

000 

tO)..o ... 
o,@' ,o 
: 0 : 
b", "6 ···o··· 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 406 of 498



The goals of the State include reducing the housing shortage
and becoming greener. Cities will need to address these
objectives by way of economic development projects such as
blended/mixed use, transit, live/work/play environments.

Downtown San Fernando can benefit from utilizing publicly
owned assets to advance economic development objectives
and retaining/attracting retail dollars in the Downtown area.

Examples of case studies are presented herein.

HOW DO CITIES ATTRACT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT?

13

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 407 of 498



1. City of Buellton Avenue of Flags – Zoning & Economic Development Tool Strategy

2. City of Santa Clarita Old Town Newhall – Public-Private Transaction Structuring

3. City of Placentia Metro Parking Structure – Asset and Public Improvement Strategy

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CASE STUDIES

14

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 408 of 498



1. Analysis
• Economic & Demographic Profile (Households, Industries)

• Market Supply and Demand Analysis (Retail/Industrial/Office)

2. Strategy
• Economic Development SWOT Evaluation

• Opportunity Site Assessment

3. Implementation
• Targeted Retailers / Developers / Businesses

• Matching with Prioritized Opportunity Sites

• Marketing/Outreach Activities

• Evaluation of Fiscal Impacts and Economic Benefits

• Financing / Zoning Strategies (e.g., D.O.R.TM)

Kosmont prepared an Economic Development Strategy and Implementation Plan for the 
City of Buellton:

15

CASE STUDY #1: CITY OF BUELLTON 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Wine production, g'lo~I top 6 

- ---------------1.tM L;.- --=---C::::::::::::::____:s;.2 , ;:::::. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 409 of 498



• Incentives support Specific Plan Goals and Objectives and are placed into a “Reserve 
Account” for City to distribute on a case-by-case / project basis

• If developers provide specified community benefits / objectives, City rewards 
developers with incentives

Potential Community Benefits / Objectives Potential Incentives 

• Construction of restrooms

• Construction of an off-site public parking lot

• Payment into, or creation of, a parking district

• Construct off-site public improvements (curb, gutter, 
sidewalk, street widening)

• Payment of an off-site trail fee

• Payment of off-site water / wastewater fees

• Installation of public art

• Payment of a library fee

• Adding additional green building features

• Increase building heights from 35 to 50 feet

• Reduce on-site parking requirements

• Increase mixed-use residential density from 12 units 
per acre to 18-20

• Reduced rear yard setbacks

• Allow land uses not allowed in the CR zone, such as 
100% industrial

• Reduced application fees

• Reduced traffic fees of off-site public improvements 
are provided

Source: City of Buellton City Council Staff Report, October 23, 2014

16

Development Opportunity Reserve (D.O.R.)TM TRADE-OFFS: 
CITY OF BUELLTON

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 410 of 498



CITY OF BUELLTON:
DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITY RESERVE (D.O.R.)TM

17

Developer A
Project

Developer C
Project

Builds
Public 

Parking 
Lot

Receives
Reduction in 
Required On-
Site Parking Builds

Public 
Restrooms

Receives
Increase 
in Max 

Building 
Height

Provides 
Off-Site Public 
ImprovementsReceives

Residential 
Density 
Bonus

Assigns new density to a County/City controlled Density Account (D.O.R.TM) and
allocates that density to a project that conforms to Community Vision, instead
of awarding density to all property owners via a Specific Plan.

Developer B
Project

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 411 of 498



Vision for Old Town Newhall
• Create an Arts and Entertainment District - 2005 Specific Plan

 Live theater entertainment
 Special events
 Night life

• Alternative to the mall
 Unique shopping and dining experience – a downtown destination

City of Santa Clarita Investment
• City of Santa Clarita made substantial investment in public improvements and 

amenities in Old Town
• Kosmont issued Developer RFP and negotiated P3 transaction
• City gets fiscal impacts and economic benefits such as jobs, wages, taxes, a 

revitalized downtown core and improved quality of life
• City made the upfront investment in order to foster revenue not only from 

the project, but also from the entire Old Town District
NOTE:  A net fiscal impact analysis which considers municipal service costs, as well as 
indirect and induced fiscal revenues generated by catalyst projects, should be conducted 
prior to recommending a strategy

18

CASE STUDY #2: OLD TOWN NEWHALL

 Museums
 Art galleries

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 412 of 498



19

OLD TOWN NEWHALL STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

Before After

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 413 of 498



20

OLD TOWN NEWHALL FAÇADE IMPROVEMENTS
Before After

'-----> 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 414 of 498



21

OLD TOWN NEWHALL – CATALYST PROJECT

PARKING STRUCTURETHEATER

RESIDENTIAL / RETAIL MIXED-USE RESIDENTIAL / RETAIL MIXED-USE

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 415 of 498



22

CASE STUDY #3: PLACENTIA PARKING STRUCTURE

Challenge

• City owns properties adjacent to future Metrolink station

• Limited financial resources prohibits City from proceeding with development of properties

• New Metrolink station required City to provide parking spaces for Metrolink riders

• City needs private developer who will take on construction risk

Transaction Structure – Public-private partnership: build-to-suit Capital Lease Structure

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 416 of 498



23

PLACENTIA – PARKING STRUCTURE

Strategy

• Public private deal structure with a third party developer (RFQ process)

• Development of the parking structure will likely be financed through the use of 
Lease-leaseback structure or lease revenue bonds

• Revenues from parking structure will be used to underwrite the bonds

• Other City Assets (parks, etc.) may be pledged as security to help reduce credit risk

• If desired can utilize leveraged funds to finance (gas tax bonds)

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 417 of 498



24

PLACENTIA – PARKING STRUCTURE
Outcome

• The City leveraged its own assets and land for private development, public infrastructure, and 
overall economic development for the community

 Transit Oriented Development (TOD) of parking structure adjacent to the future Metrolink station

 Minimize cost of construction and transfer risk of cost escalation (GMP) 

 Complete project in an accelerated timeframe (no or limited bidding process)

 Finance TOD project as part of revitalization of downtown Placentia

 Prevailing wage did not factor into this transaction

• In addition to the parking structure site, the City of Placentia issued an RFP for a potential hotel 
development on another set of parcels it owns. This land will be sold for market value and the City 
is currently in an Exclusive Negotiation Agreement (ENA) with a developer

• The City has also embarked on creating a specific plan for the transit-oriented area and are 
currently looking at highest and best use options

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 418 of 498



25

STRATEGIES FOR PROSPEROUS COMMUNITIES
• Basis of successful Community Development prioritizes place-making, 

transit-oriented development (TOD), greenhouse gas reduction, and 
sustainable infrastructure. 

• Goal of successful Community & Neighborhood Development is to attract 
and retain business, jobs, and increase cities’ tax base.

• Trends in CA public policy, demographics, and retail shape this generation 
of Community  Development projects

• Projects implemented through application of Econ. Dev. tools:

 Land use / zoning and D.O.R.TM

 Tax increment financing (EIFD / CRIA)

 Private-private sector investment and financing (SSTR)

 Special Districts

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 419 of 498



26

PRESENTATION 
OUTLINE

• Global Changes

• Economic Development

• Downtown San Fernando

• Conclusions and Recommendations

000 

tO)..o ... 
o,@' ,o 
: 0 : 
b", "6 ···o··· 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 420 of 498



27

EVALUATE AND STRATEGIZE

Assets must be evaluated
• Evaluate asset’s maximum potential 

• Determine highest and best use 

• Align potential of asset with needs of the: 

 Community 

 Public Agency

Optimal asset management strategies
• Maximize revenues

• Optimize costs

• Minimize risks

• Realize public agency’s objectives

• Sustain economic development in the community

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 421 of 498



28

WHAT ASSETS?

City of San Fernando 
Public Parking Lots

City of San Fernando 
Public Parking Lots

1320 
San Fernando Rd.

D 

~~ ~6 j 

l !l!JO 

1 

> 

PORTER LAND & WATER CO S 
RESURVEY CF THE TOWN OF 

SAN FERNANDO 

soo 
coo 

500 

68"' 

700 

800 

City of San Fernando 

T 
0-uii== li:i N 
888 8 8 

-1.,,0 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 422 of 498



29

WHAT ASSETS?
City of San Fernando owns 13 public parking lots in the downtown area with 784 parking 
spaces, many for the San Fernando Mall businesses

• Lots 1, 7 and 12 are very small lots (less than 7,500 SF), making blended/mixed-use development impractical

• Lots 3, 5, 8 & 10 are required to include at least 144, 59, 96 and 39 public parking spaces respectively -
requiring parking structure

• Lots 8 and 10 are 60,000 SF of contiguous land, making mixed use development with a parking deck feasible

• Lot 3 is 62,876 SF with access on Celis St. and Pico St.

• Lot 6 is of significant size, but is located adjacent to City Hall and is not in mixed-use zone. Lot 6 is also 
adjacent to a future Metro Light Rail Transit (LRT) station

• Lot 4 is 1.2 acres with frontage on Truman St. and suitable for blended/mixed-use

• Lot 5 is 0.5 acres with access on San Fernando Mission Blvd. and Truman St.

• Lot 2 is well located but already is a multi-level parking deck

• Lot 9 is almost 0.5 acres, but located outside downtown zone

• 1320 San Fernando Rd. is a 0.9-acre, mid-block site between S. Workman St. and S. Kalisher St. located within 
the downtown area. Frontage on San Fernando Rd. makes the site suitable for blended/mixed-use 
development, primarily residential

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 423 of 498



30

Established in 2017 to Guide New Development in Downtown

Land Use and Development Goals:
• Revitalize City’s commercial corridors – small-town, mixed use
• Enable a walkable, multi-modal environment with a mix of uses within walking distance of the 

Metrolink Station, future LRT stations, and Downtown San Fernando
 Maclay Ave., Truman St., San Fernando Rd., and First St. corridors

Relevant Specific Plan Districts and Overlays
• Downtown – mixed-use, TOD, active storefronts; increased FAR/height in Downtown Overlay 

surrounding mall
• Mixed-Use Corridor – neighborhood connecting to Metrolink
• Auto Commercial – auto sales with retail/office mix
• Maclay – new housing/commercial compatible with adjacent residential; mixed-use in 

Neighborhood Services Overlay at Glenoaks and Eighth St.
• Workplace Flex – commercial/industrial; limited industrial allowed in Flex-Use Overlay north side 

of Truman
• General Neighborhood – multi-family housing with transition to adjacent single-family housing

CORRIDORS SPECIFIC PLAN:
GOALS AND DISTRICTS

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 424 of 498



31

SPECIFIC PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
Parking lots are located in Downtown District in 
Residential Overlay (near San Fernando Mall):

• Mixed-use, TOD, active storefronts
• Freestanding stores, auto-oriented buildings, drive-up 

services prohibited
• Increased max FAR
• Extra story of development
• Upper floor residential uses with CUP

Generally allowed land uses:
• Parking
• Residential (CUP)
• Retail, Service, Entertainment, Lodging and Office

General development standards:
• Max FAR = 3.0 non-residential; 3.5 residential mixed-use
• Max residential density = 50 du/ac
• Max height = 4 stories, 50 ft.
• Setback = 0 ft.

Source: San Fernando Corridor Specific Plan § 4.1-4.4

I 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 425 of 498



32

ASSET MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Asset Management Best Practices Include:

• Define/Prioritize long term community needs

• Develop a financial plan

 Understand long term capital requirements

 Identify capital sources

 Provide reserves for regular maintenance of real estate assets

 Focused economic development initiatives to increase tax base

 Long term ground leasing of surplus real estate

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 426 of 498



33

DETERMINE PROGRAM/CONCEPT

• Determine the highest and best use for the asset to generate the 
maximum value for the public agency, as well as the community. Your 
highest and best use may be different than that of the private sector.

• Initial project concept is further refined through: 

 Market analyses
 Economic feasibility studies
 Status of entitlements
 Environmental compliance

• Highest and best use must be supported by an optimal mix of 
product types and basic building parameters: square footage, number 
of units, amount of open space, height of building, parking, amenities. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 427 of 498



34

POTENTIAL TAX REVENUES

Real estate development offers numerous ways to address City 
financials:

• Revenue from land sales/ground lease income

• Revenue from increased tax base:

 Property tax from increase in assessed value 

 Retail sales taxes from visitor spending 

• Potential for impact fees/inclusionary units at building permit (housing, traffic)

• Community Facilities District and/or Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts for 
infrastructure

• Density is key to feasibility – what is minimum threshold?

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 428 of 498



35

MARKET AND FINANCIAL VIABILITY

Is the project responsive to market demand?
• Look at tomorrow’s market not just today’s market
• Define the primary market area for the project
• Determine current and future competition 
• Researching demographic and market trends

Determine if project fulfills the current and future demand of 
potential users in the market area 

• Absorption
• Pricing
• Quality/design/amenities

How can public agency attract private equity/debt to make 
assets productive?

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 429 of 498



36

LEVERAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT
• Public-private partnerships (P3) can be

utilized to make productive use of underutilized
public assets

• The asset can also be an investment in a P3 to
generate income for the public agency

• Primary P3 Transaction Structures:
 Ground Lease
 Sale-Leaseback
 Sale

• Utilize non-traditional revenues

PUBLIC 

SECTOR 

PRIVATE 

SECTOR

The public sector needs private investments. The private sector
is in the business to access capital and take risks.

The private sector needs the public sector as their partner.
Private sector developers need assistance with entitlements and
at different times may partner with the City when there are
financial implications (e.g. developer needs to install public
infrastructure and City could help with public improvements.)

Intermediaries (like Kosmont) are the translator 
between the public and private sectors and can 
assist both parties in solving issues in the public-
private partnership (P3). Kosmont assists in vetting 
the project merits and challenges of a P3 deal. 

Real Estate 
Fina nee /Economics 
Development 

k Entitlements 
OS . 

companies 
since / 986 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 430 of 498



37

LEVERAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT (CONT.)

Ground Lease Transaction

Ground Lease of public land to private entity for development and
operation of public-use or private-use property (potential economic
development tool), but can be difficult to get loan financing

Typical Process and legal documents:

• Request for Qualifications (RFQ) / Request for Proposals (RFP)

• Exclusive Negotiation Agreement (ENA)

• Memo of Understanding (MOU) Non-binding

• Disposition Agreement (DA)

• Ground Lease (GL)

• CEQA/EIR

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 431 of 498



38

LEVERAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT (CONT.)

Sale – Leaseback Transaction
• Public agency sells property to a private entity and leases it back

simultaneously on long term basis

• Private entity makes an equity investment in the property and in
return gets benefit of ownership

• Public agency gets a stable cash flow and an opportunity to lease
back the facility at an affordable rate

• Private sector owns the property at the end of the lease (unless
Joint Powers Authority (JPA)* transaction wherein public agency gets
ownership at end)

• Method of raising funds for capital projects that may be less costly
than issuing tax exempt bonds

*Note: A Joint Powers Authority (JPA) is a legally created entity that allows two or more public agencies to jointly exercise 
common powers. Such an entity provide public agencies the ability to provide services in an efficient and cost-effective 
manner; Source: https://www.bbknowledge.com/general/the-ins-and-outs-of-joint-powers-authorities-in-california/

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 432 of 498



39

LEVERAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT (CONT.)

Sale Transaction

• Public agency finds best developer/partner through RFQ/RFP
selection process

• Public agency sells property to a private entity and controls
entitlement process and development terms

• Private entity makes an equity investment in the property and in
return gets benefit of ownership and asset appreciation

• Public agency gets an influx of cash capital

• Private sector owns and operates project potentially subject to
Development Agreement performance measures

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 433 of 498



40

LEVERAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT (CONT.)

Non-traditional Revenues and Approaches

• Signage, advertising, billboards, and wireless telecommunications facility
leases can add significant revenue at little capital cost

 Can you create a signage district?

 Do you have sites with high visibility and high traffic?

• Kiosks also generate high rents per square foot

• Public messaging a benefit to community, programs and business districts,
and city’s marketing/outreach

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 434 of 498



41

REAL ESTATE MARKET DATA (HIGH LEVEL)

RETAIL MARKET

At a regional level, the East San Fernando Valley retail market has 95% occupancy with average rents of $25 psf.

In City of San Fernando there is a 98% occupancy rate for the 1.8 million gross SF of inventory, up significantly from 
recession low of 90%.  However, there has been less than 30,000 SF of new construction in past decade

Average rent rates are about $25 psf, showing a strong recovery from peak recession lows around $16 psf, but below levels 
needed to justify new development at current land values. New development will require higher rents

Asking rents for vacant space in the San Fernando Mall area above $30 psf indicating better economic potential.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 435 of 498



42

REAL ESTATE MARKET DATA (HIGH LEVEL) – CONT.

RETAIL MARKET (CONT.)

Consumer demographic analysis indicates that San Fernando is capturing more than its fair share of sales in most retail 
categories, indicating the city is a regional draw with respect to restaurants, general merchandise, grocery stores and home 
furnishings.

However, the City faces growing competition with many of today’s consumers spending more in large discount warehouses 
(value shopping) and on e-commerce websites, such as Amazon.com (convenience shopping).

With significant online channels for purchasing clothing, shoes, and an array of soft goods, even the most vibrant 
communities are faced with reduction in retail brick and mortar formats.  Despite this trend, the City has strong soft goods 
demand.

Key to maintaining a healthy retail market is creating dining and entertainment gathering places that provide social 
experiences, including more blended use with office and residential nearby. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 436 of 498



43

REAL ESTATE MARKET DATA (HIGH LEVEL) – CONT.

OFFICE MARKET

The East San Fernando Valley office market is a small component of the Los Angeles office employment sector, with less 
than 9 million SF of space, primarily class B/C.   

Vacancy rates at 6% are relatively healthy, while average gross monthly rents are $28 psf.

Office building sale values are approximately $250 psf, well below levels needed to justify new development.

For the City of San Fernando, there is only 450,000 SF of office inventory, with vacancy at approximately 3% and average 
rents of $25 psf (full service gross) up 40% from recession levels.

There has been little new construction in the past 10 years.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 437 of 498



44

REAL ESTATE MARKET DATA (HIGH LEVEL) – CONT.

APARTMENT MARKET

The North San Fernando Valley apartment market, as defined by CoStar, has only 5,500 apartment units, with 85% being 
older class B/C units.

Average rents are $1,500 per month in 2018, as vacancy rates have steadily declined over the past decade down to 2.5%. 
Class A apartments are achieving rents of $2,250 per month.

For the City of San Fernando, there are approximately 1,100 apartment units, with only 53 new units constructed since 
2012.  Even at peak of the 2008-10 recession vacancy rates were only 4-5%.  Today’s average rents are only $1,000 per 
month, and clearly not high enough to justify new construction.

The San Fernando area is a predominately single family suburban community with above average household size.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 438 of 498



45

PRESENTATION 
OUTLINE

• Global Changes

• Economic Development

• Downtown San Fernando

• Conclusions and Recommendations

000 

tO)..o ... 
o,@' ,o 
: 0 : 
b", "6 ···o··· 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 439 of 498



46

HIGHEST AND BEST USE SITE ANALYSIS

Strengths

• Metrolink and other new regional transit station

• I-5 freeway access

• Healthy retail market

• Vibrant downtown

Weaknesses

• Smaller parcel sizes (need 0.5 to 1.0 acre to do 
blended-use)

• Replacement parking for parking lots 3, 5, 8 & 10 
increases cost

Kosmont has examined the 13 parking lots for new development potential using a SWOT analysis:

Opportunities

• Potential for entertainment uses

• Multi-family transit oriented development 
(TOD)

Threats

• High land values ($75 - 95 psf) are major 
challenges to development 

• E-commerce is a major threat to soft good 
retailers, limiting new retail development

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 440 of 498



47

CONCLUSION

• Blended-use development appears to be challenged by lower current residential 
market rents – New multi-family product may warrant higher residential rents and/or 
may need to consider condominiums instead of apartments

• The entertainment/retail market is healthy - opportunities for substantial new 
development need to be identified

• The office market is not strong enough with rents too low to support significant new 
development

• With land values so expensive, high density and zoning strategies are of utmost 
importance. Need large enough parcel to accommodate parking and integrated 
blended uses (explore parking strategies)

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 441 of 498



48

CONCLUSION (CONT.)
Based on the SWOT analysis Kosmont recommends the following 
parking lots for development:

• Lot 3, potentially combined with closure of Celis St. is a prime location for blended use development 
and replacement parking

• Lot 6, although not in the mixed-use zone, is a good site for entertainment / retail and possible office
• Lots 8 & 10 combined total 60,000 square feet, leaving adequate room for a multi-level parking garage 

and 3-4 story blended use development
• 1320 San Fernando Rd. is a 0.9-acre, mid-block site located in the downtown area. Frontage on San 

Fernando Rd. makes the site suitable for blended/mixed-use development, primarily residential

To evaluate the financial feasibility, Kosmont prepared a preliminary pro forma to illustrate the potential 
development value and developer profit from both mixed-use and 100% commercial developments on a 
40,000 SF site.

See Blended-use and Commercial Development Pro Formas

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 442 of 498



49

Exhibit 1
      San Fernando Corridor SP
  Feasibility Per Specific Plan Limits

Residential Units 30 850 sf
Commercial SF 20,000   

Pro Forma
Stabilized Income:
Residential Gross income $2.80 per month $856,800
  Less: Vacancy Factor 4.0% of rent (34,272)
Commercial Gross income $27 PSF $540,000
  Less: Vacancy Factor 8.0% of rent (43,200)
Effective Gross Income 1,319,328
Maint.,Taxes & Insurance 35.00% of Apt EGI (341,885)
Net Operating Income 977,443

Development Costs
Land 75.00$   3,000,000$       
Arch & Engineering 4.0% 439,283
Resid. Construction 200$       5,862,069
Comm. Construction 175$       3,500,000
Construction - Parking 18,000   1,620,000
FF&E 7,500     per apt unit 225,000
Leasing 1,500$    and 5% Leasing commission 45,000
Financing 6.0% 30 mths 873,476
Taxes & insurance 1.0% 116,914
Developer Overhead 3.0% of costs 380,452
Contingency 5.0% of costs 634,087
  Total Costs 16,696,281

Stabilized Value @ 6.00% $16,290,720

Developer Profit ($405,561)
Profit Margin -2.4%

Exhibit 2
      San Fernando Corridor SP
  Full Commercial Development

Commercial SF 30,000  
0 Pro Forma

Stabilized Income:
Gross income $30 $900,000
  Less: Vacancy Factor 8.0% of rent (72,000)
Effective Gross Income 828,000
Non-Reimburs Expenses 10.00%  of EFG (82,800)
Net Operating Income 745,200

Development Costs
Land Value 75.00$  3,000,000$     
Arch & Engineering 4.0% 222,000
Construction - Building 175$     5,250,000
Construction - Parking 2,000$  300,000
Tenant improvements 40$        1,200,000
Leasing 5.0% x 7.5 yr Lease 310,500
Financing 6.0%  18 mths 327,713
Taxes & insurance 1.0% 72,825
Developer Overhead 3.0% of costs 230,491
Contingency 5.0% of costs 384,152
  Total Costs 11,297,681

Stabilized Value @ 6.00% $12,420,000

Developer Profit $1,122,320
Profit Margin 9.9%

BLENDED-USE AND COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT SAMPLE PROFORMAS

ko!il. 
n~li:-,tlto 

+ 
[ .. 

T 

,.. 

----... 

The- ana~es. pr~1on.c.. FJSSUl1l,ihnns, rates <:i f ~et;om, and al'fy examples presented herein .s,1e ro, 
fllusu;;1m,e purposes a nd are not a .guarantee of acrua.l a nd/or future reS:tJtts.. Project pro 1o,:ma. and 
la:\. aMl~St;!S at£ pro,tec:IJ(lns: onl~. ACluill ,~suts may differ from those e.xpresse<:1 ·1n ft,ts attatjSrs 

l l 

,.. 

Toe- anat,:ses-, .Pr~1or:is. assuiq;ihons, ra~l;!S Qf ~ehltn, and af'\'Y ex1;1mples presen1E:.+o.1 herein a 1e rn, 
tllusuatM! purposes and arn not a ,guasaotee of actual and/or futuro resuns. Project pro fo,rna and 
la,. aBa-l~ses are pro,ec1ions: onl~. A ctual resl.Jls: may differ from [hose expresse<I in fttts: anat,srs. 

ko S n~plRliDL---1_6_0_1 -.. - $w--,,,.- •• - B-,,-d- ·11'3"2---.,_,,--,ia_n_E)_e•-<-~- CA- --,- 156-- l- (4_24_J_•sa-.~---I - w- .,,- .,-t -o....,--n-, .,- .,,- ,-, ~ 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 443 of 498



THANK YOU
QUESTIONS AND DISCUSSION

PREPARED BY:  

50

Kosmont Companies | Kosmont Realty | Kosmont Transactions Services

1230 Rosecrans Avenue, Suite 630 |  Manhattan Beach, CA 90266

(424) 297-1070 |  www.kosmont.com  |  CA Broker #01182660

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 444 of 498



ECONOMIC &
DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILE
POPULATION & HOUSEHOLD DEMOGRAPHICS

APPENDIX

51

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 445 of 498



Population & Households
• Population of ~24,700 and ~6,200 households within the City

• Population of ~10,288,900 and ~3,369,700 households within Los Angeles County

Income
• Avg. HH income ~$63,000 in City and ~$94,900 within Los Angeles County

• 1.82% annual growth projected for HH income over next 5 years in City

Other Demographic Characteristics
• Average household size of 3.97 in City (larger than County and State)

• Median age of 32.0 in City (younger than County and State)

• ~12% Bachelor’s Degree or higher (lower than County and State)

• Race: ~51% White, ~42% Some Other Race, ~4% Two or More Races

• Ethnicity: ~93% Hispanic in City

Source: ESRI (2018)

2018 DEMOGRAPHIC HIGHLIGHTS

52

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 446 of 498



SAN FERNANDO CITY LIMITS

San Fernando
City Boundaries

Source: ESRI (2018)

53

San Femancto 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 447 of 498



2018
City of 

San Fernando
County of 

Los Angeles
State of 

California

Population 24,723 10,288,937 39,806,791

Households 6,190 3,369,650 13,336,104

Average HH Size 3.97 3.00 2.92

Median Age 32.0 35.7 36.2

% Hispanic Origin 93.3% 49.0% 39.6%

Per Capita Income $15,969 $31,653 $34,254

Median HH Income $50,618 $62,751 $69,051

Average HH Income $62,961 $94,861 $100,620

2018-2023 Annual Growth Rate

Population 0.47% 0.54% 0.82%

Median HH Income 1.82% 3.87% 3.47%

POPULATION & INCOME
CITY, COUNTY, AND STATE

Source: ESRI (2018) 54

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 448 of 498



City of San Fernando – 2018 Households by Income Bracket 

12% 12%

10%

16%

23%

11% 11%

3% 2%

<$15K $15K -
$25K

$25K -
$35K

$35K -
$50K

$50K -
$75K

$75K -
$100K

$100K -
$150K

$150K -
$200K

$200K+

HH Income Median Avg.

City $51K $63K

County $63K $95K

State $69K $101K

INCOME PROFILE

Source: ESRI (2018)

55

--~~ 

--

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 449 of 498



Note: U.S. Census Bureau defines race and ethnicity as two separate and distinct identities. One Census question asks 
respondents which socio-political race (of categories in pie chart above) they associate most closely with, and a separate question 
asks whether they associate with “Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin” or not (defined as ethnicity).
Source: ESRI (2018)

City Population by Race & Ethnicity in 2018

Hispanic Origin of Any Race: 93%

2 or More Races: 4%

White Alone
51%

*Most respondents of 
Hispanic Origin additionally 
indicate “White” or “Some 
Other Race”

Some Other 
Race Alone

42%

Black Alone: 1%
Asian/Pacific Islander Alone 1%

American Indian Alone: 1%

RACE & ETHNICITY

56

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 450 of 498



Population Aged 25+ by Educational Attainment in 2018

39%

30%

20%

9%

3%

22% 20%

26%

21%

11%

17%
20%

29%

21%

13%

No high school
diploma

High school graduate
or equivalent

Some college or
Associate's degree

Bachelor's degree Graduate or prof.
degree

City County State % Bachelor’s 
Degree or Higher

City 12%

County 32%

State 34%

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT

Source: ESRI (2018)

57

-

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 451 of 498



Housing Breakdown (2018)

49%
46%

5%

43%

51%

6%

51%

42%

7%

Owner Occupied Renter Occupied Vacant

City County State

Avg. HH Size

City 3.97

County 3.00

State 2.92

Source: ESRI (2018)

HOUSING & HOUSEHOLD SIZE

58

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 452 of 498



Source: Zillow.com (Sept. 2018) 

County

City

State

Zillow Home Value Index

$632K

$218K

$551K

USA 

$497K

HOME VALUE HISTORY

59

Current I Forecast 
$731K 

$519K 

$307K 

$95K 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 453 of 498



POPULATION SEGMENTATION PROFILE
“Tapestries” in City Description

1. Urban Villages 55%

• Multicultural, multigenerational, and multilingual households
• More than half the population 25 and older have a high school diploma or some 

college
• Homes are typically single-family and owner occupied 
• Consumers are brand and status conscious, but many purchases are for the 

family esp. children; Enjoy shopping at Costco, Trader Joe’s, Target, and Macy’s

2. Las Casas 41%

• A family-oriented market with multigenerational households (high average 
household size of 4.12)

• Young population, average labor force participation, high unemployment
• Homes are primarily renter-occupied in single-family and multi-unit buildings
• Consumer spending reflects their children – baby food, furniture, children’s 

apparel – and convenience – fast food and family restaurants

3. Southwestern 
Families

4%

• Young, majority Hispanic families
• While 32% have attended or graduated college, 40% have not completed high 

school, limiting employment prospects
• About 55% own, 45% rent single-family homes within a mix of urban city 

centers and metropolitan area suburbs
• Budget-conscious consumers; Enjoy shopping at Walgreens, dollar stores, and 

discount department stores

Source: ESRI (2018) 60

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 454 of 498



• Younger population - median age of 32.0 in City (younger than County and 
State median ages)

• Majority of San Fernando’s population is of Hispanic origin (93%); Households 
are multigenerational and blue collar

• Average household size of 3.97 is larger than both Los Angeles County and 
State average household sizes; Average household income for the City is 
lower than the County and State average household incomes

• Educational attainment in San Fernando is lower than that of the County and 
State with a sizable population (39%) of residents not completing a high 
school education

SUMMARY: POPULATION & HOUSEHOLD DEMOGRAPHICS

61

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 455 of 498



ECONOMIC &
DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILE

UNEMPLOYMENT & EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY

62

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 456 of 498



12.1%
11.8%

10.6%

9.4%

8.0%

6.4%

5.1%
4.5%

12.5%

12.2%

10.9%

9.8%

8.3%

6.6%

5.3%

4.7%

12.2%

11.7%

10.4%

8.9%

7.5%

6.2%

5.5%

4.8%

3%

6%

9%

12%

15%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

City
County
State

Note: Not seasonally adjusted; annual averages for 2010-2017

Source: California Employment Development Department (2018)

Unemployment Rate
(August 2018)

State 4.3%

County 5.1%

City 4.9%

UNEMPLOYMENT

63

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 457 of 498



21%

28%

17%
19%

15%

36%

24%

19%

13%

8%

38%

24%

19%

11%
9%

Management, business,
science & arts

Sales & office Service Production,
transportation &
material moving

Natural resources,
construction &
maintenance

City County State

Civilian Employed Population Age 16+ by Occupation

Source: ESRI (2018)

RESIDENT EMPLOYMENT BY OCCUPATION

64

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 458 of 498



Note: Top 10 listed by number of employees (high to low); Source: City of San Fernando CAFR (FY 2016-2017)

Major Employers No. of Employees

Los Angeles Unified School District 2,021

Pharmavite, LLC 370

Los Angeles County Superior Court 276

Pepsi Bottling 268

Home Depot 254

Puretek Corp. 200

Production Resource Group, LLC 200

Sam’s Club 170

Vallarta Supermarkets 162

Ricon Corp. 149

SELECT MAJOR EMPLOYERS WITHIN THE CITY

65

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 459 of 498



Source: California Employment Development Department, U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (2014)

Industry 2014 2024
Annual 
Growth
2014-24

Total 
Growth 
2014-24

Total
Change
2014-24

Health Care and Social Assistance 602,100 780,900 178,800 29.7% 3.0%

Accommodation and Food Services 386,800 483,700 96,900 25.1% 2.5%

Professional and Business Services 599,100 680,300 81,200 13.6% 1.4%

Retail Trade 413,000 449,900 36,900 8.9% 0.9%

Educational Services (Private) 118,600 148,600 30,000 25.3% 2.5%

Construction 119,600 146,700 27,100 22.7% 2.3%

Government 556,200 582,000 25,800 4.6% 0.5%

Wholesale Trade 222,500 242,700 20,200 9.1% 0.9%

Transportation, Warehousing, and Utilities 163,400 183,500 20,100 12.3% 1.2%
Other Services 
(excludes 814-Private Household Workers)

150,500 167,000 16,500 11.0% 1.1%

Information 198,000 213,500 15,500 7.8% 0.8%

Financial Activities 211,100 218,900 7,800 3.7% 0.4%

Mining and Logging 4,300 4,500 200 4.7% 0.5%

Manufacturing 364,100 329,300 (34,800) (9.6%) (1.0%)

Total Nonfarm 4,189,000 4,724,700 535,700 12.8% 1.3%

Total Farm 5,200 4,700 (500) (9.6%) (1.0%)

Total Other 297,600 333,900 36,300 12.2% 1.2%

Total Employment 4,491,800 5,063,300 571,500 12.7% 1.3%

EMPLOYMENT PROJECTIONS BY INDUSTRY
LOS ANGELES COUNTY

66

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 460 of 498



Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2015)

Workers Employed Within City
Manufacturing 19.6%

Accommodation and Food Services 14.2%

Wholesale Trade 9.8%

Health Care and Social Assistance 8.8%

Construction 8.5%

Retail Trade 8.5%

Finance and Insurance 5.9%

Educational Services 5.6%

Other Services (excluding Public Administration) 4.7%

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 3.1%

Information 2.3%
Administration & Support, Waste Management and 
Remediation

2.1%

Public Administration 2.1%

Transportation and Warehousing 1.5%

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 1.3%

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 1.2%

Management of Companies and Enterprises 0.6%

Utilities 0.1%

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 0.1%

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 0.0%

City Resident Employed Population (Age 16+)
Health Care and Social Assistance 14.1%

Manufacturing 13.1%

Retail Trade 12.1%

Accommodation and Food Services 9.0%

Educational Services 7.4%
Administration & Support, Waste Management and 
Remediation

6.6%

Construction 5.5%

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 4.5%

Wholesale Trade 4.3%

Information 3.8%

Finance and Insurance 3.4%

Other Services (excluding Public Administration) 3.3%

Public Administration 3.1%

Transportation and Warehousing 2.8%

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 1.9%

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 1.8%

Management of Companies and Enterprises 1.4%

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 1.1%

Utilities 0.7%

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 0.1%

“Industries in which City residents work” “Jobs in the City”

EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY

67

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 461 of 498



Employed residents/Sq. Mile

Employed residents/Sq. Mile

Employed residents/Sq. Mile

Employed residents/Sq. Mile

Employed residents/Sq. Mile

Employed residents

Employed residents

Employed residents

Employed residents

Employed residents

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2015)

RESIDENT CONCENTRATION WITHIN CITY

68

-0 

\ 
~ 

~o~\ ~:;t.r __ ....... ___________________ _ 
t 

c;. 5 - 214 

215 - 844 

845 -1 893 

1,894 - 3,361 

• 3,362 ~ 5,250 

• 1 - 2 

O 3 - 13 

14 -43 

44 -100 

. 101 - 196 

..._________::.....::::.....~~~~~~~::::::J 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 462 of 498



Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2015)

EMPLOYMENT CONCENTRATION WITHIN CITY

69

5 e 205 JobsfSq.Mlle 

206 "' 805 Jobs/Sq.M le 

,. 806 1,805 Job {Sq.Mlle 
0-

,..... 1 ,806 - 3.205 JobsfSq.Mlle 

~ ~ 1 • 3 .206 5 005 JobsfSq.Mlle 
?,-871,f'!i: 

~r,,1>,t, • 1 .. 2 Jobs 

o 3 - 30 Jobs 

31 -151 Jobs 

152 - 477 Jobs 

• 478 - 1 ,165 Jobs 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 463 of 498



Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2015); Notes: *The top 25 locations where City residents work and where people who work in San Fernando come from are listed.**The table on the 
left asks the question ‘What percent of total San Fernando residents work within the City of San Fernando?’, while the table on the right asks ‘What percent of everybody who works in San Fernando also 
live in the City of San Fernando?’.

“Where City residents work” “Where people who work in the City come from”

City Employee Origin*
Los Angeles, CA 51.1%
San Fernando, CA** 6.7%
Santa Clarita, CA 4.5%
Palmdale, CA 2.4%
Glendale, CA 2.1%
Burbank, CA 1.5%
Simi Valley, CA 1.3%
Lancaster, CA 0.8%
Pasadena, CA 0.6%
Anaheim, CA 0.6%
Long Beach, CA 0.5%
San Diego, CA 0.5%
Oxnard, CA 0.5%
Thousand Oaks, CA 0.5%
Bakersfield, CA 0.4%
Moorpark, CA 0.4%
Santa Monica, CA 0.3%
South Gate, CA 0.3%
Lake Los Angeles CDP, CA 0.3%
Castaic CDP, CA 0.3%
East Los Angeles CDP, CA 0.3%
Altadena CDP, CA 0.3%
Torrance, CA 0.3%
Calabasas, CA 0.3%
San Bernardino, CA 0.3%
All Other Locations 22.8%

Employed Residents Place of Work*
Los Angeles, CA 53.0%
San Fernando, CA** 5.6%
Santa Clarita, CA 4.3%
Burbank, CA 4.0%
Glendale, CA 1.7%
Simi Valley, CA 1.5%
Thousand Oaks, CA 0.9%
San Diego, CA 0.9%
Santa Monica, CA 0.8%
Culver City, CA 0.8%
Pasadena, CA 0.7%
Oxnard, CA 0.6%
Anaheim, CA 0.6%
Beverly Hills, CA 0.5%
Irvine, CA 0.5%
Long Beach, CA 0.5%
Torrance, CA 0.5%
San Francisco, CA 0.5%
Moorpark, CA 0.4%
Camarillo, CA 0.4%
Westlake Village, CA 0.4%
Calabasas, CA 0.4%
El Segundo, CA 0.4%
Orange, CA 0.4%
Costa Mesa, CA 0.4%
All Other Locations 19.5%

RESIDENT AND EMPLOYEE COMMUTE

70

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 464 of 498



*Employment Ratio = People employed within City (living and working in City + 
those who come into the City for work) / Employed population of City (living and 
working in City + workers who live in the City, but work outside of the City)
Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2015)

Workers living & employed
in the City

Workers employed in the City 
but living outside

Workers living in the City but 
employed outside

Workers Living and Working 554

Workers Coming (Inflow) 7,761

Workers Going (Outflow) 9,414

Net Inflow/Outflow (1,653)

Employment Ratio* 0.83

Reference: Los Angeles County

Workers Living and Working 3,445,811

Workers Coming (Inflow) 997,322

Workers Going (Outflow) 779,053

Net Inflow/Outflow 218,269

Employment Ratio* 1.05

WORKER INFLOW / OUTFLOW
“ARE JOBS COMING OR GOING?”

71

~~~~r-------------r-_____ J 
~ 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 465 of 498



2018
City of 

San Fernando
County of

Los Angeles
State of 

California

Employment 10,494 4,186,060 16,100,156

Households 6,190 3,369,650 13,336,104

Jobs / Housing Ratio 1.70 1.24 1.21

Source: ESRI (2018)

JOBS / HOUSING BALANCE

72

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 466 of 498



City Limits

Source: ESRI (2018)

TRAFFIC MAP
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

73

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 467 of 498



• Kosmont analyzed the location of homes and job centers within the City. There is a high 
concentration of homes in the north and northeast portions of the City, while there is a 
strong concentration of jobs in the south and southeast portions of the City

• Historically, the City has slightly lower unemployment compared to Los Angeles 
County, but slightly higher unemployment than the State. Currently, the City’s 
unemployment rate is only slightly lower than the County and higher than the State’s 
unemployment rates

• Most workers in the City are employed in the following industries: manufacturing, 
accommodation and food services, wholesale trade, health care and social assistance, and 
construction

• A majority of employees who live in the City work in other areas including Los Angeles, 
Santa Clarita, Burbank, Glendale, and Simi Valley, yielding a net outflow of jobs; The net 
outflow of jobs indicates a lower daytime population in the City

• San Fernando’s jobs/housing ratio is higher than the County and State ratios, indicating a 
possible need for more housing in the City

SUMMARY: UNEMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY

74

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 468 of 498



MARKET DEMAND ANALYSIS
RETAIL SALES SURPLUS / LEAKAGE

75

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 469 of 498



Retail Category
Retail 

Spending 
Potential

Retail 
Sales

Retail 
Surplus/ 

(Leakage)

Percent 
Surplus/ 

(Leakage)

Online Sales 
Leakage 
Potential

Shopper Goods (GAFO):
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores $11,986,064 $20,273,332 $8,287,268 69.1% High
General Merchandise Stores $27,404,381 $86,567,835 $59,163,454 215.9% Med
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores $5,824,094 $24,970,625 $19,146,531 328.7% Med
Health & Personal Care Stores $10,730,748 $7,531,939 ($3,198,809) (29.8%) Med
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores $5,341,570 $5,164,087 ($177,483) (3.3%) High
Electronics & Appliance Stores $6,067,450 $6,591,052 $523,602 8.6% High
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $5,724,463 $8,356,433 $2,631,970 46.0% Varies
Subtotal – GAFO $73,078,770 $159,455,303 $86,376,533 118.2%

Convenience Goods:
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $26,381,472 $68,555,324 $42,173,852 159.9% Low
Food Services & Drinking Places (Restaurants) $17,525,291 $41,824,553 $24,299,262 138.7% None
Subtotal – Convenience $43,906,763 $110,379,877 $66,473,114 151.4%

Heavy Commercial Goods:
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores $8,783,401 $29,741,260 $20,957,859 238.6% Low
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $31,809,880 $56,729,755 $24,919,875 78.3% Low
Gasoline Stations $14,664,876 $14,294,773 ($370,103) (2.5%) None
Subtotal – Heavy Commercial $55,258,157 $100,765,788 $45,507,631 82.4%

Non-store Retailers $4,628,832 $1,412,730 ($3,216,102) (69.5%) Varies

Total Retail $176,872,522 $372,013,698 $195,141,176 110.3%

Source: ESRI, Infogroup (2018)

RETAIL SALES SURPLUS / LEAKAGE BY CATEGORY
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

76

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 470 of 498



/

San Fernando Residents Deserve Public Notice of New
Tesla Charging Station

Petition details Comments Updates

ATTACHMENT "C"01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 471 of 498

https://olunuz.change.org/
https://olunuz.change.org/p/mayor-sylvia-ballin-san-fernando-residents-deserve-public-notice-of-new-tesla-charging-station?redirect=false
https://olunuz.change.org/p/mayor-sylvia-ballin-san-fernando-residents-deserve-public-notice-of-new-tesla-charging-station/c
https://olunuz.change.org/p/mayor-sylvia-ballin-san-fernando-residents-deserve-public-notice-of-new-tesla-charging-station/w?source_location=petition_nav


/

459 have signed. Let’s get to 500!

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 472 of 498



/

Nicolas Cardenas started this petition to Mayor Sylvia Ballin and 1 other
The City of San Fernando has provided its residents no public notice of the creation of a potentially disruptive
Tesla Charging Station. Even impacted businesses were provided limited notice of the project, which the city has
been considering for months. 
While the COVID 19 pandemic has made public communication and civic engagement more difficult, that is no
excuse for providing next to zero public notice of such a major project. 
We ask that the City of San Fernando delay the planned Tesla Charging Station for 90 days in order to provide a
period of public notice and comment. We also ask that the City consider relocation options within 1,000 feet of the
current site. 
Start a petition of your own

Start a petition of your own

This petition starter stood up and took action. Will you do the same?
Start a petition

Updates

Happy Holidays and Thank You
Happy holidays to all on this Christmas Eve! Thank you for being a part of this effort and I look forward to
continuing to update as I get more info. Please keep this petition moving and I appreciate the momentum that we
…

Happy Holidays and Thank You
Happy holidays to all on this Christmas Eve! Thank you for being a part of this effort and I look forward to
continuing to update as I get more info. Please keep this petition moving and I appreciate the momentum that we
have already gained.

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 473 of 498

https://olunuz.change.org/u/669374711
https://olunuz.change.org/start-a-petition?source_location=petition_show
https://olunuz.change.org/p/mayor-sylvia-ballin-san-fernando-residents-deserve-public-notice-of-new-tesla-charging-station/u/28267105


/

Nicolas Cardenas
6 days ago
More updates

Reasons for signing

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 474 of 498

https://olunuz.change.org/p/mayor-sylvia-ballin-san-fernando-residents-deserve-public-notice-of-new-tesla-charging-station/u/28267105
https://olunuz.change.org/p/mayor-sylvia-ballin-san-fernando-residents-deserve-public-notice-of-new-tesla-charging-station/c/811049813


ATTACHMENT "D"

CONTRACT NO. 1960 

SUPERCHARGER AGREEMENT 

This Supercharger Agreement (this "Agreement") is effective as of the date last signed below by 
and between the City of San Fernando, a municipal corporation ("Counterparty") and Tesla, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation ("Tesla") . Tesla and Counterparty are each referred to herein as a "Party" and 
collectively as the "Parties." 

WHEREAS, Tesla, through the provision of electric vehicle charging services at the Property, will 
provide value to Counterparty by increasing the visibility of, and attracting Tesla customers to, the City of 
San Fernando; and 

WHEREAS, Counterparty is the so le owner of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Counterparty acknowledges the value of having an electric vehicle charging station to 
serve Tesla customers at the Property and desires to grant a license to Tesla for the use of the Premises, 
defined below, pursuant to the terms set forth herein. 

WHEREAS, this Agreement was approved by the City Council of the City of San Fernando at its 
meeting of August 3rd, 2020 under Agenda Item No. 7 . 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and for other good and valuable consideration, 
the receipt and legal sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows : 

1. CONTACT INFORMATION: 

2. 

Counterparty: 
City of San Fernando 
117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn : Nick Kimball 
Phone: (818) 898-1202 
Fax: (818) 898-7329 
Email : nkimball@sfcity.org 

Tesla : 
Tesla, Inc. 
3500 Deer Creek Road 
Palo Alto, CA 94304 
Attention: Supercharger Team 
Phone: (650) 681-5000 

With a copy to: 
Email : superchargerhost@tesla .com 

24-hour Technical Support & Service : 
877-79-TESLA (877-798-3752) 

LICENSE FOR USE OF PREMISES: Counterparty is the owner of that certain real property 
commonly described as City of San Fernando Parking Lot 8 (Assessor Identification No 2522-004-
904 (hereinafter, referred to as the "Property") which is more particularly described and depicted 
in the legal description attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit A. For the purpose of 
undertaking the Permitted Uses described under Section 10 of this Agreement below, and subject 
to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Counterparty hereby grants to Tesla a 
license to use and access fourteen (14) parking spaces, up to five (5) feet of additional parking 
width to provide disability access and up to 400 square feet of space for equipment (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Premises") on that portion of the Property described and depicted in that 
certain document attached hereto as Exhibit A. The parking spaces within the Premises shall not 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 475 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

be outfitted with non-Tesla charging equipment and Counterparty shall not license, lease or 
commit the same during the Term (as defined below); provided, however, nothing herein shall 
prevent Counterparty from entering into agreements w ith other th ird party electric vehicle 
service providers to install non-Tesla charging equipment elsewhere on the Property. 

3. FOOTPRINT: A total of fourteen (14) parking spaces within the footprint of the Premises shall be 
outfitted Trade Fixtures consisting of: (a) twelve {12) Superchargers (as defined in Exhibit B), and 
(b) two (2) Tesla Wall Connectors ("Wall Connector"), all to serve as dedicated charging stalls 
("Dedicated Stalls"). 

4. CONSTRUCTION AND ALTERATIONS: Tesla, at its sole cost and expense, shall construct and install 
the Supercharger Station on the Premises ("Tesla's Work"). Tesla acknowledges and agrees that 
Tesla's Work shall only begin after: (a) Counterparty has approved all plans and specifications, 
including equipment and easement locations (the "Approved Plans"); and (b) Tesla has obtained 
all permits and approvals required by applicable governing bodies. Any alterations to the 
Approved Plans or Supercharger Station shall be subject to Counterparty's prior written approval 
which may be granted, conditionally granted or denied by Counterparty (provided that any such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed). Tesla, at its sole cost and 
expense, shall promptly repair any damage to the Property or any improvements constructed 
thereupon caused by Tesla or its agents or contractors in the performance of Tesla's Work. 

5. CONSTRUCTION START DATE; CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION: Tesla sha ll be authorized to 
commence the Tesla Work upon the date specified by Counterparty in a written notice to proceed 
(hereinafter, the "Construction Start Date'' ). Counterparty and Tesla shall undertake a joint 
inspection of the Supercharger Station upon completion by Tesla to ensure that all installation 
and construction of all improvements, equ ipment, utilities and infrastructure that comprise the 
Tesla Work have been constructed in accordance with the Approved Plans; are operational and 
free of defects; and are constructed and installed in compliance with all applicable federal and 
state standards and requirements. As a precondition to Counterparty accepting and approving 
the Tesla Work, Tesla shall correct any aspect of the Tesla Work which does not satisfy the 
requirements set forth in the preceding sentence. The construction and installation effort shall 
be deemed complete upon Counterparty's issuance of a written notice of acceptance 
(hereinafter, the "Notice of Acceptance"). 

6. COMMENCEMENT DATE: Tesla shall open the Supercharger Station to the public (the 
"Commencement Date") within three hundred and sixty-five (365) days following the 
Construction Start Date. Upon Tesla's written request, Counterparty may entertain requests for 
additional time before opening the Supercharger Station to the public. Any such written request 
for additional time must be submitted no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the 
Commencement Date. The written request shall (i) explain why additional time is required; (ii) 
identify what t asks remain to be completed; (iii) describe w hat measures Tesla has undertaken to 
mitigate the need for additional time; and (iv) state how much additional time is reasonably 
required. Counterparty may grant or conditionally grant any such request for additional time 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, to the extent delay is due to 
permitting, utility, or other requirements beyond Tesla's control, or is due to Force Majeure (as 
defined in Section 32). Tesla shall deliver written notice to Counterparty promptly following the 
Commencement Date to confirm such date for recordkeeping purposes. 

Page 2 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 476 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

7. TERM: EARLY TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: 

A. Initial Term; Renewal Term: The term of this Agreement (the "Initial Term") shall commence 
upon the date the Agreement is signed by all of the Parties and shall remain in effect until 
the fifth (5 th

) anniversary of the Commencement Date. Tesla shall have one (1) option to 
extend the term of this Agreement for an additional five (5) years (a "Renewal Term" and 
together with the Initial Term, the "Term"), upon the same terms contained in this 
Agreement, provided that Tesla is not in breach of this Agreement (as defined under Section 
16 of this Agreement, below) at the time the option is exercised. Tesla shall exercise the 
option for the Renewal Term by giving notice to Counterparty no later than ninety (90) days 
prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. 

B. Termination for Convenience: If Tesla timely exercises its option to extend the Initial Term 
of this Agreement (as provided under paragraph 7(A)of this section, then Counterparty may, 
in Counterparty's sole and absolute discretion at any time on or after the sixth (6 th) 

anniversary of the Commencement Date, terminate this Agreement for convenience and 
without cause upon sixty (60) ca lendar days prior written notice to Tesla ("Termination for 
Convenience"). 

C. Termination Based On Low Utilization or No Utilization: If Tesla timely exercises its option 
to extend the Initial Term of this Agreement (as provided under paragraph 7(A) of this 
section), then Counterparty may, in Counterparty's sole and absolute discretion at any t ime 
after the sixth (6th

) anniversary of the Commencement Date, terminate this Agreement upon 
thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice on the grounds that the Superchargers are 
underused. For purposes of this Agreement, the Supercharges shall be deemed "underused" 
if over a sixty (60) consecutive day period, fifty (SO) or few charging sessions occur at the 
Premises as set forth in a written report generated by Tesla following Counterparty's written 
request therefor. 

D. In the event Counterparty elects to terminate the Agreement pursuant to paragraph 7(B) or 
7(() of this section, Counterparty shall pay Tesla (hereinafter, a "Termination Payment") in 
accordance with the following buyout schedule: 

1. If Counterparty issues its notice of termination on or after the sixth (6th) anniversary 
of the Commencement Date but before the seventh (7th

) anniversary of the 
Commencement Date, Counterparty shall pay Tesla the aggregate sum of Two 
Hundred and Forty Thousand Dollars ($240,000); 

2. If Counterparty issues its notice of termination on or after the seventh (7 th
) 

anniversary of the Commencement Date but before the eighth (8 th
) anniversary of the 

Commencement Date, Counterparty shall pay Tesla the aggregate sum of One 
Hundred and Eighty Thousand Dollars ($180,000); 

3. If Counterparty issues its notice of termination on or after the eighth (8t h
) anniversary 

of the Commencement Date but before the ninth (9 th ) anniversary of the 
Commencement Date, Counterparty shall pay Tesla the aggregate sum of One 
Hundred and Twenty Thousand Dollars ($120,000); 

Page 3 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 477 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

4. If Counterparty issues its notice of termination on or after the ninth (9 th
} anniversary 

of the Commencement Date but before the tenth (10th
) anniversary of the 

Commencement Date, Counterparty shall pay Tesla the aggregate sum of Sixty 
Thousand ($60,000); 

5. If Counterparty issues its notice of termination on or after the ten (10th
) anniversary 

of the Commencement Date, Tesla shall not be entitled to receive any compensation 
from Counterparty for such termination and Counterparty shall be under no 
obligation to compensate Tesla for such termination. 

E. The sums referenced in paragraph 7(0) of this section shall be delivered to Tesla by 
Counterparty upon the effective date of the termination, provided that Tesla has removed 
all Trade Fixtures from the Premises. 

F. Except as otherwise provided under paragraph 7(G) of this section, in consideration for the 
applicable Termination Payment referenced under paragraph 7(D) of this section, Tesla sha ll 
fully and forever discharge and release Counterparty and Counterparty's elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers and their respective heirs, 
executors, attorneys and insurers from all claims and ca uses of action, or appeal rights, 
whether now known or now unknown, which Tesla has, or might have or could have 
asserted, against the Counterparty in connection with the termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to paragraphs 7(8) and 7(C) of this Agreement, including damages (including, but 
not limited to consequential damages), losses, attorneys' fees and costs. By acceptance of 
the Termination Payment, Tesla waives any and all rights Tesla may have under Civil Code 
section 1542 with respect to the forgoing release to the full extent t hat Tesla may lawfully 
waive such rights, notwithstanding any subsequent discovery of any additional claims or 
facts which Tesla did not know or suspect to exist in favor of Tesla on or after the time at 
which Tesla receives the Termination Payment. Except as otherwise provided under 
paragraph 7(G) of this section, it is the intention of the Parties that Tesla's rece ipt of the 
Termination Payment shall be effective as a full and final accord and satisfaction and 
settlement of, and as a bar to each and every claim, demand, action, covenant, cause of 
action, obligation, debt, controversy, act, omission, promise, agreement, account, reckoning, 
liability, cost, or expense that Tesla has or may have against Counterparty arising out of 
Counterparty's termination of this Agreement pursuant to paragraphs 7(8) and 7(C) of this 
section. In connection with such release, discharge accord and satisfact ion, Tesla 
acknowledges that it is aware that it may after the receipt of the Termination Payment, 
discover facts different from or in addition to the facts known or believed to be true with 
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, but it is Tes la's intention to fully, finally, 
absolutely and forever settle any and all claims, disputes and differences relating to 
Counterparty's decision to terminate this Agreement pursuant paragraphs 7(8) or 7(C) of this 
section that may exist upon the receipt of the Termination Payment, except as otherwise 
provided in paragraph 7(G) of this section . 

G. The provisions of Section 20 (Indemnification) and Section 25 (Publicity) shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason, including termination pursuant to paragraphs 
7(8) and 7(C), above. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing, the releas e and 
discharge contemplated under paragraph 7(F), above, shall not ext end to, or otherwise 
embrace, breach of contract claims or claims arising out of (i) the breach of Section 20 

Page 4 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 478 of 498



8. 

9. 

CONTRACT NO. 1960 

(Indemnification) or Section 25 (Publicity); (ii) any outstanding, unsettled or unadjudicated 
claim for damages (excluding claims for consequential damages or causes of action seeking 
Tesla's continued use of the Premises as contemplated under this Agreement) submitted in 
writing to Counterparty prior to the Counterparty's issuance of notice pursuant to paragraph 
7(8) or 7(C) of this section; or (iii) any pre-existing, unadjudicated and unsettled lawsuit 
seeking damages (excluding claims for consequential damages or containing causes of action 
seeking Tesla's continued use fo the Premises as contemplated under this Agreement) filed 
by Tesla prior to City's issuance of notice pursuant to paragraphs 7(8) and 7(C) (all of the 
foregoing collective referred to as "Pre-Existing Claims"). The forgoing notwithstanding, the 
existence of any Pre-Existing Claims shall not operate to prohibit Counterparty from 
exercising its right to initiate the termination of this Agreement pursuant to paragraph 7(8) 
or 7(C), subject to the survival of such Pre-Existing Claims as contemplated under this 
paragraph 7(G). For purposes of subsection 7(G)(ii), above, the "writing" submitted by Tesla 
in connection with an outstanding, unsettled or unadjudicated claim shall have stated in 
reasonable detail the factual and legal basis for Tesla's claim for damages; the date of 
occurrence for such damages or a reasonable approximation of such date; the amount of 
such damages or a reasonable approximation of such damages; measures Tesla has taken to 
mitigate such damages (it being understood that Tesla shall have no duty to mitigate such 
damages unless if required by law) and such writing shall have been submitted in accordance 
with the noticing requirements set forth under Section 27, below. For purposes of 
subsection 7(G)(iii) a "pre-existing, unadudicated and unsettled lawsuit includes any claim 
subject to the California Government Claims Act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) 
which shall have been submitted to the City c/o of the Office of the City Clerk in the manner 
prescribed under the Government Claims Act. 

H. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the rights of 
Counterparty set forth in paragraphs 7(8) through 7(G) of this section are personal to the 
City of San Fernando and shall not be subject to any assignment or other transfer of this 
Agreement. 

REMOVAL: If this Agreement is not Terminated for Convenience, Tesla shall, at its' sole cost and 
expense, remove all Trade Fixtures (as defined in Exhibit 8) promptly following termination of this 
Agreement and restore the Premises to a condition commensurate with the rest of the Property, 
subject to exceptions for reasonable wear and tear and damage by casualty or condemnation. 
Counterparty agrees that all Trade Fixtures and related intellectual property are and shall remain 
the personal property of Tesla. The Infrastructure (as defined in Exhibit 8) shall be left in a safe 
condition and shall become the property of Counterparty upon termination of this Agreement 
(except for Infrastructure that is upstream of the meter, which is and shall remain the property of 
the utility). 

UTILITIES: Tesla agrees to arrange for, and shall pay, all charges for all Tes la-related utility services 
provided or used in or at the Premises during the Term. Tesla sha ll pay directly to the utility 
company the cost of installation of any and all such Tesla-related utility services and shall arrange 
to have the utility service separately metered. Counterparty shall not be responsible for any 
damages suffered by Tesla in connection with the quality, quantity or interruption of utility 
service, unless the cause of the disruption or damage was Counterparty's gross negligence or 
intentional misconduct. Counterparty and Tesla shall reasonably cooperate to establish all 
necessary utility easements upon the Property required to connect the Supercharger Station with 

Page 5 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 479 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

electrical service from Southern California Edison, provided that all such effort shall be at Tesla's 
sole cost and expense and further provided that the location and scope of all such easements shall 
be subject to approval by Counterparty, which shall not be unreasonably withhe ld, conditioned, 
or delayed. 

10. USE: Tesla shall use and occupy the Premises during the Term for the following authorized uses: 

A. For the purpose of installing equipment, utilities and other related infrastructure and 
improvements for the operation of an electric vehicle charging station to serve Tesla 
customers. The aforementioned equipment, utilities and other related infrastructure and 
improvements to be installed on the Premises sha ll be more specifically described and 
depicted in the Approved Plans. The term "Supercharger Station" shall be a collective 
reference to the Superchargers and all equipment, utilities and other infrastructure and 
improvements constructed and installed on the Premises by Tesla, as more particularly 
defined on Exhibit B, attached hereto; 

B. For the incidental generation of photovoltaic electricity and the operation of an energy 
storage system; 

C. Tesla is authorized to operate and collect payment for use of the Supercharger Station year 
round, twenty-four (24) hours per day and seven (7) days per week; 

D. Tesla may, in its discretion and at its sole cost and expense, install security cameras and other 
equipment to monitor the Premises from off-site, which plans and specifications therefor 
shall be subject to Counterparty's prior written approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned, or delayed; and 

E. Seal coating of all areas in the Premises impacted by Tesla's Work together with any areas 
on the Property outside of the Premises which are excavated as part of Tesla's installat ion of 
its utility lines to serve the Premises. All surface improvements described in this section and 
Section 4 above, shall be more specifica lly described in the Approved Plans. 

The term "Permitted Uses" sha ll be a collective reference to the authorized use set forth under 
this Section, above. 

11, MAINTENANCE: Tesla shall be responsible for maintaining the Supercharger Station (including 
repair and replacement of equipment, as necessary) at its' sole cost and expense, and 
Counterparty shall have no liability for damage to the Supercharger Station unless caused by 
Counterparty's negligence or intentional misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Counterparty's normal responsibility to maintain the common areas of the Property shall also 
apply to the Premises, such as for repaving, restriping, snow removal and garbage collection, and 
Counterparty agrees to coordinate such maintenance with Tesla pursuant to Section 12. Tesla 
understands that the Property is open and accessible to the public and agrees that Counterparty 
shall be under no responsibility to provide posted police security or private security to safeguard 
the Supercharger Station or any other improvements installed on the Premises. 

12. TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT: Tesla agrees that Counterparty shall have the right to temporarily 
access and/or temporarily restrict access to all or any portion of the Premises to perform routine 

Page 6 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 480 of 498



13. 

CONTRACT NO. 1960 

parking lot maintenance, provided that (a) not more than half of the charging stal ls may be 
restricted at any given time, (b) Counterparty shall use commercia lly reasonable efforts to 
minimize any impairment of the Premises, including, without limitation, by limiting such 
impairment to times of day and days of the week that are not busy charging periods, and (c) 
except in the case of an emergency, Counterparty shall provide Tesla at least fourteen (14) days' 
advance written notice stating the date, time, duration and scope of the planned impairment. 

COUNTERPARTV COVENANTS: Counterparty represents that: (a) it is the owner of the Property 

and has the power and authority to enter into this Agreement on the terms hereof; (b) it has 
obtained any required consents to enter into this Agreement; (c) the Property is subject to no 
conditions, restrictions or covenants incompatible with the Permitted Uses; and (d) this 
Agreement does not violate any agreement, lease or other commitment by which Counterparty 
is bound. Counterparty shall not take any action that would impair or interrupt the use of the 
Premises or Supercharger Station, except as permitted in Section 12. Counterparty agrees to 
notify Tesla within a commercially reasonable time if (a) it has knowledge of third-parties 
impairing or misusing the Supercharger Station, or (b) it obtains knowledge of a needed repair to 
the Supercharger Station. If non-Tesla motorists repeatedly park in the Dedicated Stalls, thereby 

impairing use of the Dedicated Stalls, then the Parties shall reasonably cooperate to implement 
an appropriate and effective strategy for preventing such impairment, which may include, without 
limitation, alternative signage and painted asphalt. 

14. PAYMENTS TO COUNTERPARTV: Other than parking fees charged to all users of the Property, 
Counterparty shall have no right to request or accept payment from Tesla, Tesla customers or any 
other third-parties in connection with use of the Supercharger Station. 

15. SIGNAGE: Subject to applicable Laws (as defined in Section 35), Tesla shall install signage for the 
Dedicated Stalls substantially simi la r to the signage represented in Exhibit B ("Signage"). Any 
material revisions or additions to the Signage shall be subject to Counterparty approval, which 
shall not be unreasonably withhe ld, conditioned or delayed. 

16. EVENT OF DEFAULT AND CURE; BREACH: 

A. In the event either Party fails to perform any duty, obligation or task set forth under this 
Agreement (or fai ls to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation or task 
set forth under this Agreement), an event of default (hereinafter, " Event of Default") will 
occur provided, however, that for each Events of Default, the Party alleging an Event of 
Default shall first give written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a 
"Default Notice") which specifies: (i) the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action 
required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default will be cured, 
which will not be less than thirty (30) calendar days, or if a cure is not reasonably possible 
within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such cure to 
completion. The Event of Default will constitute a breach of this Agreement if the defaulting 

Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the thirty (30) calendar day cure period, or such 
extended period of time if a cure is not reasonably possible within such thirty (30) calendar 

days provided that the defaulting Party has commenced such cure and is diligently 
prosecuting such cure to completion. 

B. In addition to any Event of Default described under subsection (A) of this Section, above, the 

Page 7 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 481 of 498



17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

CONTRACT NO. 1960 

following shall also constitute an Event of Default; (i) the assignment of this Agreement by 
Tesla without the prior written approval of Counterparty (where such approval is required 
pursuant to Section 19) where such assignment is not cured within the cure period set forth 
under subsection 16{A), above; (ii) the filing by or against Tesla of a petition to have Tesla 
adjudged a bankrupt, or a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating 
to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a petition filed against Tesla, the same is dismissed 
within sixty (60) ca lendar days); (iii) the appointment of a trustee or a receiver to take 
possession of substantially all of Tesla's assets located on the Premises or of Tesla's interest 
in this Agreement, where possession is not restored to Tesla within sixty (60) calendar days; 
or (iv) the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tesla's assets 
located on the Premises or of Tes la's interest in this Agreement, where such seizure is not 
discharged in sixty (60) calendar days. 

C. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement will constitute a waiver 
of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach. No waiver, benefit, privi lege, or 
service voluntarily given or performed by a Party wi ll give the other Party any contractual 
rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

REMEDIES: Counterparty and Tesla acknowledge and agree that each Party sha ll have all 
remedies avai lable at law or in equity if a breach by the other Party has occurred and is continuing. 
In addition, if a breach by Tesla has occurred and is continuing, then Counterparty, may: (a) 
continue this Agreement in effect by not terminating Tesla's right to possession of said Premises 
and thereby be entitled to enforce all Counterparty's rights and remedies under this Agreement; 
or (b) bring an action to recover and regain possession of said Premises in the manner provided 
by the laws of eviction of the state where the Premises are located then in effect. 

EXCLUSIONS: Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, each Party expressly releases the 
other from any claims for, speculative, indirect, consequential or punitive damages, including any 
lost sa les or profits of the other Pa rty. 

ASSIGNMENT: Tesla shall not assign this Agreement voluntarily or by operation of law, or any 
right hereunder, nor sublet the Premises or any part thereof, without the prior written consent 
of Counterparty, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided that 
the foregoing prohibition shall not limit Tesla's ability to transfer this Agreement t o a Tesla 
Affiliate, for wh ich no consent of Counterparty shall be required. "Affiliate" means an entity 
which: (a) controls or is controlled by a Party hereto or (b) is under common control with a Party 
hereto: where "control" means that more than fifty percent (>50%) of the cont rolled entity's 
shares or ownership interest representing the right to make decisions for such entity are owned 
or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the controlling entity. Subject to Section 16(8), above, any 
assignment or attempted assignment of this Agreement by Tesla without the prior written 
consent of Counterparty as provided herein shall be void and of no force or effect. 

INDEMNIFICATION : 

A. Counterparty: Except to the extent a claim arises from any negligence or willfu l misconduct 
of a Counterparty Indemnified Pa rty, Tesla hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend Counterparty, its Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, managers, 
members, employees, agents and representatives (each a "Counterparty Indemnified 

Page 8 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 482 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

Party") from all losses and liabilities, includ ing court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, 
on account of or arising out of or alleged to have arisen out of any third party claim directly 
related to: (i) Tesla's use of the Premises; (ii) Tesla's breach of this Agreement ; or (iii) bodily 
injury or damage to rea l or tangible personal property caused by the use of the Trade 
Fixtures. 

B. Tesla: Except to the extent a claim arises from any negligence or willful misconduct of a 
Tesla Indemnified Party, Counterparty hereby agrees t o indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend Tesla, its Affiliates and thei r respective directors, officers, managers, members, 
employees, agents and representatives (each a "Tesla Indemnified Party") from all losses 
and liabilities, including court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, on account of or arising 
out of or alleged to have arisen out of any third party claim directly related to : (i) 
Counterparty's entry onto the Premises; or (i i) Counterparty's breach of this Agreement. 

21. LIENS: Tesla shall promptly remove or bond any liens placed on the Property as a result of any 
claims for labor or materials furnished to Tesla at the Premises. 

22. DESTRUCTION: Any total destruction of the Premises shall, at Counterparty's or Tesla's written 
election w ithin thirty (30) days of such destruction, terminate this Agreement . 

23. INSURANCE: Tesla shall carry commercial general liability insurance with limits of not less than 
Two Million Five Hundred Thousand dolla rs ($2,500,000) for bodily injury or death and property 
damage and an umbrella insurance policy of not less than Five M illion dollars ($5,000,000). The 
total limits required above may be met by any combination of primary and excess liability 
insurance. Counterparty and Counterparty's elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers shall be included as additional insured on all such policies of insurance. A 
certificate evidencing such insurance shall be delivered to Counterparty upon the execution of 
this Agreement and from time to time thereafter as may be requested by Counterparty. Tesla will 
also carry worker's compensation insurance in accordance with state and federal law . 

24. TAXES: Tesla understands and acknowledges that t he Trade Fixtures installed at the Property may 
be subject to possessory interest taxes pursuant to Section 107 of the Revenue and Taxation Code 
and Section 33673 of the Health and Safety Code. Tesla shall promptly pay such t axes following 
receipt of a w ritten notice from Counterparty stating that such tax is due, with adequate 
supporting documentation showing the amount of such tax. Tesla shall have the right to cha llenge 
such tax and Counterparty, at no expense, shall reasonably cooperate in such challenge. 

25. PUBLICITY: Neither Party will use the other Party's name, trademark o r logo w ithout obtaining 
the other Party's prior written consent. 

26. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS: Counterparty is not aware of any environmental contamination at 
the Premises that violates any applicable environmental law. Counterparty agrees that it will 
indemnify and hold Tesla harmless from all costs from, and Tesla shall have no liabil ity for, any 
environmenta l contamination of the Property, unless caused by Tesla, its agents, employees or 
contractors. During the Term, Counterparty is responsible for remediating any pre-existing 
contamination and any contamination not caused by Tesla, its agents, cont ractors or employees, 
but only to the extent required by applicable environmental law. 

Page 9 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 483 of 498



27. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

CONTRACT NO. 1960 

NOTICES: All notices, demands and approvals sha ll be in writing and shall be delivered by prepaid 
first class certified mail, or by a reputable overnight delivery service, to the addresses of the 
respective Party as specified in Section 1. Notice given by certified mail sha ll be deemed given on 
the second business day after deposit in the United States Mail, and any notice given by overnight 
delivery service shall be deemed given on the next business day after deposit with such overnight 
delivery service. Copies of notices, demands and approvals shall also be delivered if a "copy to" 
e-mail or other address is specified in Section 1. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as provided in 
Section 4, Counterparty may approve the plans and specifications by e-mail. Either Party may 
change their respective address for notices by giving written notice of such new address in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section 27. 

BROKERS: Each Party represents to the other Party that it has not dealt with any broker and each 
Party hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the other Party harmless from all losses and liabilities, 
including court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of any claims for commissions or 
fees related to any broker, finder or similar person with whom the indemnifying Party has dealt, 
or purportedly has dealt, in connection with this Agreement. 

SALE OR TRANSFER: In the event of a sale or transfer of all or a portion of Counterparty's interest 
in the Property or Premises while this Agreement is in effect, Tesla's rights shall be conveyed with 
the Property or Premises and Counterparty warrants that any transferee shall be bound by all 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, and shall obtain any necessary documents to confirm 
such assignment. 

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit 
of Counterparty and Tesla and their respective successors and assigns. 

SUBORDINATION: This Agreement is subject to and subordinate to all ground or superior leases 
and to all mortgages which may now or hereafter affect such leases or the real property of which 
the Premises are a part and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and 
extensions of any such ground or superior leases and mortgages; provided that Tesla's rights 
under this Agreement shall not be disturbed by such subordination so long as Tesla is not in breach 
of this Agreement. This Section 31 shall be self-operative and no further instrument of 
subordination or non-disturbance shall be required by any ground or superior lessor or by any 
mortgagee, affecting any lease or the Property. 

FORCE MAJ EURE: If either Party's performance of its obligations under this Agreement is delayed 
by Force Majeure, then such Party' s time of performance will be extended by a corresponding 
number of days. As used in this Agreement, "Force Majeure" means an act, event, condition or 
requirement beyond such party's reasonable control, including, without limitation, labor disputes, 
governmental restrictions, natural disasters, fire, flood, inclement weather, explosion, 
embargoes, war, terrorism, civil disturbance or other similar events. 

INCENTIVES: Counterparty agrees that Tesla shall own and receive the benefit of any Incentives 
derived from the construction, ownership, use and operation of the Supercharger Station. 
Counterparty will cooperate with Tesla in obtaining all Incentives, provided that Counterparty is 
not obligated to incur any out-of-pocket costs in doing so unless re imbursed by Tesla. If any 
Incentives are paid directly to Counterparty, Counterparty agrees to immediately pay such 
amounts over to Tes la. "Incentives" means (i) electric vehicle charging or renewable energy 

Page 10 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 484 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

credits or cert ificates, carbon credit s and any similar environmental or pollution allowances, 
credits or reporting rights, (ii) rebates or other payments based in whole or in part on the cost or 
size of equipment, (iii) performance-based incentives paid as periodic payments, (iv) tax credits, 
grants or benefits, and (v) any other attributes, commodit ies, revenue streams or payments, in 
each of (i) through (v) under any present or future law, standard or program, or paid by a util ity 
or any governmental, regu latory or administrative authority. 

34. RIGHT OF COUNTERPARTY TO RELOCATE SUPERCHARGER STATION: Counterparty sha ll have the 
one-time right during the Term to order t he relocation of the Supercharger Station to another 
location within the Property, or any other parking lot owned by Counterparty within the Central 
Business District of San Fernando, California which Counterparty deems suitable for such facilities, 
at the sole cost of the Counterparty, provided that (i) the new location provides for the same 
footprint for charging sta lls and charging equipment, (ii) the new location can be supplied with 
equ ivalent utility service, (iii) the new location is similar in terms of ease of access, safety, security, 
and prox imity to amenities, (iv) Counterparty shall provide Tesla with no less than 120 calendar 
days prior written notice of any such ordered location, and (v) Counte rparty obtains Tesla's 
written approval of the new location, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or 
delayed. In all relocation scenarios, the relocation plan shall make best effort s to ensure t hat the 
new Supercharger Station location is open to the public before the former Supercharger Station 
location is decommissioned. 

35. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW: Each Party shall comply with all applicable codes, laws and ordinances 
("Laws") in fulfilling its respective obligat ions under this Agreement. Each Party represents that it 
is in good standing under the Laws of the st ate of its organization. 

36. GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be governed by the Laws of the state where the Premises 
are located. 

37. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL: COUNTERPARTY AND TESLA EACH WAIVE, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED 
BY APPLI CABLE LAWS, THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BASED 
UPON OR RELATED TO, THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

38. INTERPRETATION: The headings and defined terms in this Agreement are for reference purposes 
only and may not be construed to modify the terms of this Agreement. Neither Party shall have 
the right to unilaterally revoke or terminate this Agreement, unless such revocation or 
termination is pursuant to the explicit terms of this Agreement. 

39. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Agreement is inval id or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this Agreemeent shall not be affected, and each provision shall be valid and enforceable to the 
fullest extent permitted by law. 

40. COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of w hich shall be 
deemed an original and all of which together wi ll constitute one agreement. Electronic signatures 
and other signed copies transmitted electronically in PDF or similar format shall be treated as 
originals. 

[Signature page follows.] 

Page 11 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 485 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have each caused an authorized representat ive to execute this 
Agreement as of the date signed below. 

COUNTERPARTY: TESLA: 

City of San Fernando Tesla, Inc. ::unicL]rati~ a Delaware corporation 

By: 

Name: Nick Kimball Name: Maximilien de Zegher 
Senior Manager, North America Charging Infrastructure 

Title : 

Date : 
August 10 2020 

Page 12 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 486 of 498



EXHIBIT A 

Property and Premises Descriptions and Depiction 

Property: 
Parking Lot 8 owned by the City of San Fernando, with a lot sq . ft. of 43,070 sq. ft. 
Assessors Identification No. 2522-004-904 

Legal Description: 

CONTRACT NO. 1960 

PORTER LAND AND WATER CO'S RE SURVEY OF SAN FERNANDO LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 33, 34,35 1 36, 

37, 38 AND 39 AND NW 30 FT OF SW 100 FT OF VACST ADJ ON SE AND LOT 40 BLK 17 

Premises and Property Depiction: 

AREA OF WQRK 
SEE SHEET A-3 

(N) UTILITY CAPACITOR 

(N) UTILITY PME 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 487 of 498



CONTRACT NO. 1960 

EXHIBIT B 

Supercharger Station 

Tesla shall install the Supercharger Station on the Premises pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and 
the Approved Plans. 

The "Supercharger Station" shall cons ist of: (a) necessary utility infrastructure, wh ich may include a utility 
transformer, metering equipment, condu it, wiring and concrete pads (collect ively, the "Infrastructure"); 

and (b) certain trade fixtures as determined by Tesla, which shall include (12) charge posts 
("Superchargers"), two (2) Wall Connectors, power electronics equipment, switchgear and Signage, and 
may also include, without limitation, other visual barriers, a canopy, solar panels and an energy storage 
system (collectively, the "Trade Fixtures"). 

Signage 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 488 of 498



01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 489 of 498



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 490 of 498



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL       117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1201       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Department      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 

 

To: Mayor Sylvia Ballin and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Vice Mayor Mary Mendoza 
   
Date:  January 4, 2021 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Partnership with the East Los Angeles College 

Foundation and California Student Aid Commission to Promote the “Second 
Annual CALSOAP LA College and Career Expo” through the City’s Social Media, and 
Approve Use of the City Seal 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I have placed this item on the agenda and recommend that the City Council:  
 
a. Discuss and approve a one-time partnership with the East Los Angeles College Foundation 

and California Student Aid Commission to promote the “Second Annual California Student 
Opportunity and Access Program (CALSOAP) LA College and Career Expo”; and 

 
b. Approve the use of the City Seal to allow CALSOAP LA to use the City name and City Seal on 

event promotional materials; and 
 

c. Approve providing promotional information related to the event through the City’s Website 
and Social Media outlets. 

 
 
BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS: 

The East Los Angeles College Foundation, California Student Aid Commission CALSOAP was 
formed with the program’s primary goal to improve the flow of information about post-
secondary education and financial aid while raising the achievement levels of low-income, 
elementary and secondary school students or geographic regions with documented low-eligibility 
or college participation rates, and who are first in their families to attend college.   
 
1. On November 25, 2020, Vice Mayor Mendoza received correspondence from CALSOAP 

(Attachment “A”) announcing the upcoming Los Angeles College Foundation’s Second Annual 
College and Career Expo being held virtually on February 13, 20 and 27, and requested the 
City of San Fernando to partner with the program by contributing in the following:  
 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 491 of 498



Consideration to Approve a Partnership with the East Los Angeles College Foundation and California 
Student Aid Commission to Promote the “Second Annual CALSOAP LA College and Career Expo” through 
the City’s Social Media, and approve use of the City Seal 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

a. Allowing CALSOAP LA to use the City name and City Seal on event informational 
materials to increase recognition and credibility for the event; and  
 

b. Promote the event through the City’s website and social media campaigns. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no impact to the budget by discussing this item.  Additional future costs to be determined 
based on City Council direction. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
A. Correspondence and Flyer 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 492 of 498



From: Julia Fritz
To: Julia Fritz
Subject: RE: Join CALSOAP LA as a Partner for the Second Annual College & Career Expo this February 2021!
Date: Monday, December 28, 2020 11:06:05 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image004.png

From: "Angelica D'Egidio" <angelica@santamariagroup.com>
To: "Mary Mendoza" <MMendoza@sfcity.org>
Subject: Re: Join CALSOAP LA as a Partner for the Second Annual College & Career
Expo this February 2021!

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Honorable Vice Mayor Mendoza,

Thank you for your response! There is no fee associated with a partnership; it's
more so about utilizing the channels available to you through the City of San
Fernando (ie. city digital marketing like social media, newsletters, etc.) to promote
the event to your constituency! We also use your name and logo to boost
recognition for the event as well! Financial contributions are welcome but not
required, and we would be excited to have you on board!

Please feel free to let me know if you have any other questions and we look forward
to hearing from you! Stay safe! Happy holidays!

Best Regards, 

Angelica D'Egidio 
The Santa Maria Group
1801 E. 7th Street, Los Angeles, CA 90021
Email: angelica@santamariagroup.com
Office: 213-346-0400
Cell: 818-397-8342
Pronouns: She | Her | Hers
www.santamariagroup.com

On Tue, Dec 22, 2020 at 10:38 PM Mary Mendoza <MMendoza@sfcity.org>
wrote:

Hello Ms. D’Egidio,
 Thank you for your email.  Is there a fee associated with the partnership?
 Mary Mendoza, Vice Mayor
City of San Fernando

 From: Angelica D'Egidio <angelica@santamariagroup.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 25, 2020 2:12 PM
To: Yicel Paez <yicel@calsoapla.org>; Angelica D'Egidio
<angelica@santamariagroup.com>
Subject: Join CALSOAP LA as a Partner for the Second Annual College & Career Expo
this February 2021!

ATTACHMENT "A"
01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 493 of 498

mailto:JFritz@sfcity.org
mailto:JFritz@sfcity.org
mailto:angelica@santamariagroup.com
mailto:MMendoza@sfcity.org
mailto:angelica@santamariagroup.com
http://www.santamariagroup.com/
mailto:MMendoza@sfcity.org
mailto:angelica@santamariagroup.com
mailto:yicel@calsoapla.org
mailto:angelica@santamariagroup.com




 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

*Please forward this to the appropriate person as needed.

 
RSVP on Eventbrite!  

 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 494 of 498

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/2nd-annual-calsoap-la-college-and-career-expo-tickets-130302778117


01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 495 of 498



                                       Sincerely, 
 
                                       Angelica D'Egidio 
                                       The Santa Maria Group
                                       1801 E. 7th Street, Los Angeles, CA 90021
                                       Email: angelica@santamariagroup.com
                                       Office: 213-346-0400
                                       Cell: 818-397-8342
                                       www.santamariagroup.com

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION. This e-mail message is intended only
for the personal and confidential use of the designated recipients. This message
may contain sensitive, protected and/or confidential information. If the reader of
this message is not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review,
use, dissemination, forwarding or copying of this message is strictly prohibited.
Please notify us immediately by reply e-mail if you are not an intended recipient
of this message, and delete the original message and all attachments from your
system and from any electronic devices where the message is stored. 

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 496 of 498

mailto:angelica@santamariagroup.com
http://www.santamariagroup.com/


 

College     Career Expo&

Save the Date

JOIN us FOR A Virtual college and career expo 
on the following three saturdays in february 2021:
february 13   , 20    , and 27    from 10:00 am to 1:00pm

for the Annual Cal-SOAP l.a. 

Our Partners

th th th

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 497 of 498



Financial Aid and 
college affordability

With Study smart Tutors     CAL-SOAP LONG BEACH

Yicel Paez and reyna verduzco
Email: calsoapla    gmail.com

Office: 213-260-0569

Learn More
 www.calsoapla.org

Follow Us on Social Media!

@

Day 1: FEBRUARY 13

Day 2: FEBRUARY 20
First Year Persistence

Contact Us

Calsoapla

Day 3: FEBRUARY 27
College & Career Exploration

&

01/04/2021 CC Meeting Agenda Page 498 of 498


	ADM_Approve CDBG Administration Services Contract Extension (1-4-2021) AR.pdf
	ADM_Approve CDBG Administration Services Contract Extension (1-4-2021) ATT A.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Contract No 1799(a) - 1st Amendment Michael Baker International Contract Extension (7-1-16)
	Contract No 1799(b) - 2nd Amendment Michael Baker International Side Letter (9-8-17)
	Contract No 1799(c) - 3rd Amendment Michael Baker International Side Letter (7-19-18)



	PW_Approve Wastewater Flow Monitoring Professional Services Agreement (1-4-21) AR.pdf
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 16
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 17
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 18
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 19
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 20
	PW_Approve Wastewater Flow Monitoring Professional Services Agreement (1-4-21) ATT A EX B.pdf
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 21
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 22
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 23
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 24
	US Cubed Proposal Wastewater Flity Systems Science  Software 25

	ADPBA7F.tmp
	I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Sc...
	1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of three years (3) commencing from February 1, 2021.  Upon the conclusion of the Term, this Agreement shall renew automatically for a maximum of two (2) one-year extensions, unless CITY issues written notice...
	2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Director of Public Works (hereinafter, the “CITY Representative”) to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement.  The CITY Representative or their designee shall act on b...
	2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Mark Serres, Vice President, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full authorit...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times....
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform t...
	2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requir...
	2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perfo...
	2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with applic...
	2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orien...
	2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, ...
	IV. INDEMNIFICATION


	PW_Approve Wastewater Flow Monitoring Professional Services Agreement (1-4-21) ATT B.pdf
	City of Fernando
	Wastewater Flow Monitoring and Sampling Services
	Proposal Index
	Tab 1:  Identification of Proposer
	Name of Company:
	Utility Systems Science & Software
	Type of Company:
	Address:
	Number of Employees
	Utility Systems Science & Software has over 80 employees as part of their parent company, Technology Resource Center (TRC).

	Name, Title, Address and Telephone numbers of persons to contact concerning the Proposal.

	Tab 3: Experience and Technical Competence
	Tab 5: Fee Proposal


	PW_Approve Toole Design Agreement (1-4-21) AR.pdf
	ADP17C4.tmp
	I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Sc...
	1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of 18 months commencing from January 4, 2020:  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for cause.
	2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the Director of Public Works and Public Works Management Analyst (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Manager s...
	2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Tony Leonard, Project Manager, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full author...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times....
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform t...
	2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requir...
	2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perfo...
	2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with applic...
	2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orien...
	2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, ...
	IV. INDEMNIFICATION



	RCS_PSA with Moore Iacofano Goltsman Inc for Design of the Layne Park Project (1-4-21) AR.pdf
	ADPCB9B.tmp
	I. ENGAGEMENT TERMS
	1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, CONSULTANT agrees to perform the services and tasks set forth in Exhibit “A” (hereinafter referred to as the “Sc...
	1.2 TERM:  This Agreement shall have a term of Six (6) MONTHS commencing from January 04, 2021.  Nothing in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the CITY’s ability to terminate this Agreement at any time for convenience or for ...
	2.1 CITY’S REPRESENTATIVES:  The CITY hereby designates the City Manager and the Director of Recreation and Community Services (hereinafter, the “CITY Representatives”) to act as its representatives for the performance of this Agreement.  The City Man...
	2.2 CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE: CONSULTANT hereby designates Daniel Iacofano, President and CEO to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (hereinafter, “CONSULTANT Representative”).  CONSULTANT Representative shall have full au...
	2.3 COORDINATION OF SERVICE; CONFORMANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS:  CONSULTANT agrees to work closely with CITY staff in the performance of the Work and this Agreement and shall be available to CITY staff and the CITY Representatives at all reasonable times....
	2.4 STANDARD OF CARE; PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES:  CONSULTANT represents, acknowledges and agrees to the following:
	2.5 ASSIGNMENT: The skills, training, knowledge and experience of CONSULTANT are material to CITY’s willingness to enter into this Agreement.  Accordingly, CITY has an interest in the qualifications and capabilities of the person(s) who will perform t...
	2.6 CONTROL AND PAYMENT OF SUBORDINATES; INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Work shall be performed by CONSULTANT or under CONSULTANT’s strict supervision.  CONSULTANT will determine the means, methods and details of performing the Work subject to the requir...
	2.7 REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS:  If any of CONSULTANT’s officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or subconsultants is determined by the CITY Representatives to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely perfo...
	2.8 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  CONSULTANT shall keep itself informed of and in compliance with all applicable federal, State or local laws to the extent such laws control or otherwise govern the performance of the Work. CONSULTANT’s compliance with applic...
	2.9 NON-DISCRIMINATION:  In the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orien...
	2.10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that CONSULTANT and all persons retained or employed by CONSULTANT are, and shall at all times remain, wholly independent contractors and are not officials, officers, ...
	IV. INDEMNIFICATION






